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Welcome to Amec Foster Wheeler

e
Our vision 1s to be the most trusted partner

for our customers by conststently delivering
excellence - bringing together the knowledge,
expertise and skills of our people from across

our global network
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Performance highlights

L _______ |
2015 was a year of contrasting forces

Revanue® 5455 Adjusted profit
£m befors taxt 21 2y 3 B\, 334
£m
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3133
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R
Profit/ (loas) Adjusted diluted EPS*2*
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M"._ 1 Continuing operations
ividend
prc pers 420p [‘5353-521 2 Figures for 2012 and 2011 have been rastated to reflect the reclassiication
365p [(3:7 73] n 2013 of the UK conventional power business as 8 discontinued operation
[593¢] and Lhe adoption of {AS 19 (Revised 2011} Employee Benefits
[474c] f}z‘hﬁ] 3 Agjusted profit betore Lax represents peolit before tax before
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Koy performance indicators

We use a variety of other key performance indicators to track
our progress towards our goals These relate to the elements

of pur business model and ¢an be found in the strategic report
onpages 12 and 13

Adjusted performance measures used by the Group are
explained and reconciled to the equivalent IFRS measures
in the section entitled Performance measures on

pages i72tc 174
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exceptionalsterns the amortisation and mparment of intangible assets
asbestos related costs and ntenest expense (ns! al insurance recovenes)
and the Group s share of tax o the results of jont venlures

4 Adjusted diduted earnings per share represents profit for the year before
exceptwonal tems the amortisation and mpairment of intangibie assets
asbestos related costs and interest expense (net of nsurance recovenes)
and the tax effect of those items drnaded by the diduted number of
ordinary shares

5 The dividend vatues disclosed in cents were caiculated at the fotliowing year
end exchange rates
31 December 2015 - 14739
31 December 2014 - | 5593
31 Decomber 2013 ~ 16563
31 December 2012 - 1 6255
31 December 2011 - 15541
This represents an estunate and no representation ¢2n be made that
the dividend could have been converted into US dollars at this rate ang
as a result these tigures have been inchuded in square brackets m the
tzble above
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Amec Foster Wheeler at aglance

Amec Foster Wheeler operates across thewhole ™ of revense o ©
of the oil & gas value chain — from production Amencas

to refining, processing and distnbution of oo

derivative products — in mining, clean energy Global Power Group -

and the environment & infrastructure markets,
employing around 40,000 people in more than
55 countnes pry

Total revenue 2015

£5.5bn

Office locations

]
Split of employses & Empioyees 2015
%

a
Arnerxas
KECIS
AMEASE

Giobal Power Group

41
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QOur operations

Qur operations are structured into four business units ~
three with gecgraphic remits and one with a global renit

(see overviews below)

This structure has been designed to further enable
collaboration and promote greater growth opportumhes

|
Amencas

The largest of our business
units with around 16,000
employees and approximately
150 offices in 10 countries
across North and

South Amenica

The business 15 balanced
across our markets Inoil
&gas we are delivening
world scale projects across
a portfolio of upstream,
midstream and downstream
business, with a leadership
position in the oil sands

of Canada a strang US
position onshore and in

the Guif of Mexico and a
growing presence in Mexico
We provide a full-service
sotution in the miring
rmarket from our leading
position i consulting project
delivery and remediation

In clean energy we have 3
strong renewables business
supparting the development
of solar and wind projects a
robust nuclear position and
a growing development of
gas power Throughout our
geographies we are a leading
environmental consultancy

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2015

Northern Europe & CIS
(NECIS)

Northern Europe &

the Cammonwealtn of
independent States has
around 12 500 emnployees
operating i more than 120
locations across 20 countries
with its expertise extending
nto many more

The urut has broad based
customner reach across three
of our markets 1n environment
& infrastructure clean energy
- notably in the nuclear
ndustry ncluding asset
support decommissioning
and new build programmes
and ol & gas - across the
value chain and lifecycle for
projects onshore and otishore
from pre-feasibihty consulting
to late-hfe management and
decommissioning

Delivenng
ground breaking
energy-related
projects around
the world

A
Asla, Middle East, Africa and

Southern Europe (AMEASE)
The Asta Middle East

Alrca & Southern Europe
(AMEASE) unut has over 8,000
employees spread across
more than 40 locations

with strong capabihties and
customer reach across each
of our ail & gas environment
& infrastructure and

mirning markets

In addition to our regional
locations we also have our E&l
and clean energy group which
works across all markets and
15 focused on delivening major
construction projects and
specialty consutting services
across key geographies
throughout AMEASE

and beyond

Globa)l Power Group
Operating three
manufacturing facihties

two cageneration plants

10 engineering and service
centres in seven countries
and employing around 2 500
employees, this business unit
designs supplies and erects
steam generating auxihary
and air pollution control
equipment as well as a wide
range of aftermarket products
and services

Delrvering projects and
services virtualily anywhere
inthe world, we enable
utibties independent power
producers and industnal
customers to achieve their
pewer process steam and
envirgnmental goals
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Amec Foster Wheeler at a glance continued

]
Our customers include

BpP KOC

ConocoPnilips Kuwart National Petroleum Co
Duke Energy Louiswlle Gas & Electne Ca
EDF Newmant

Enterpnse Products Operating LLC Owens Comning

Equistar Chemucals LP PEMEX

ExxonMabsl Sempra

Georgia Paarfic Shell

Georgia Power Talisman Sinopec

K&S Potash Canada Zadco

]
Order book 6
% 4

Americas

NECI5

AMEASE

Giobal Power Group

Ovder book

£6.6bn

A diversified

customer proposition

in four distinct, yet
complementary
markets
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Our four markets

Our diversified approach with operations across four markets
balances risk and maximises opporturity over the long term
We provide similar services across our markets (see pages

24 to 25) winrung work through strong customer relationships
and our proven ability to dehiver projects successfully Many

of the skills and services we provide to our customers are
transferable across markelts

0il & Gas

We are involved in every part of the project delivery phase
across the o1l & gas value chain but we specifically do not
operate in early cycle exploration or dnliing

Clean Energy

In renewables we provide a full-service engineering,
procurement and construction solution on wind solar, biomass
and trofuels projects We alse support the full ifecycle of
nuclear energy and are a respected leader in the design and
supply of combustion and steam generation equipment

Mining

We offer min:ng consulitancy (including ore resource estimation
mine planming and feasibility studies) design project and
construction management services

Environment & Infrastructure (E&I)

We are a leading consulting engineenng and project
management hrm with strong market posstions especially
n the water transportation and infrastructure government
services and industrial sectors

Amec Foster Wheeler
Amual report pnd scoounts 2015
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Our sectors

c
Z
g
3

Fuil Wfecycle for the upstream
oll & gas industry - offshore
and onshore

g |
ﬂ
g
3
z
2
a l

Executing downstream
projects in refirung chermicals
and petrochemicals

Governance

Nuclear

Expertise spanning the
entire hfecycle of complex
nuclear assets

Conventional Power
High-value services,
equipment and technology
{or power plants

I‘E |
1]
L4

Global expertise in every
aspect of water, from
source to ocean

Industnal/Pharmaceutical
Offering a whote world af
technical expertise and full
lifecyele services

Midstream

Providing transportation
for the midstreamoil &
gas \industry

Expertise and delivery
from concept to closure

Renewsables/Bioprocess
A century of expenence
supporting today s
renewable energy

Transmussion & Distribution
Innovative and high value
added solutions

Financials

Government
Comprehensive
environmental engineenng
services and design

Transportation &
tnfrastructure

fnnovative solutions for
complex transportation needs

0
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Chairman’s statement

John Connoity
Chauman

The last year has been one of significant challenge and change
N your company

Having completed the acquisition of Foster Wheeler at the
end of 2014 the group tackled the task of integrating the

two companies to create the new Amec Foster Wheeler

This took place during a year when the sigmficant ol price
decline and consequent actions across the oil & gas sector
produced extremely turbulent and chailenging markets for
our business Whilst we will continue for some time to operate
i these harsh markets, your board remains confident that the
strategic rationale for the Amec Foster Wheeler combination
remamns sound

As we announced Samir Brikho stepped down from the Chuef
Executive role on 17 January and teft the company with lan
McHoul apponted interim CEQ from that date Samur was Chief
Executive for nine years and made a sigruficant contribution

to the development of the group during that period and on
behalf of the board | want to thank lim for lus commitment and
contribution during hus tenure | also want to thank lan McHoul
for steppang into this rote to steer the company forward in the
penad ahead The board has progressed the search for a new
CEOQ, supported by Korn Ferry and we anticipate making an
announcement on this in due course

in the Chief Execulive s statement on page 7 lan McHoul
reports on progress and our near term pniorities As already
announced your board concluded that an appropriate

action in these markets 1s to lower the dividend (see below)
A priority was {0 execute a refinancing and m March 2016 we
announced that the new financing for the company s medium
term was in place with total facilities of £1 7 bilhon which
gves us substantial headroom and marks another mportant
step towards further strengthening our balance sheet The
execulive team continue to execute a clear strategic plan to
optimise the group s performance during these challenging
market conditions

Your board
There have been a number changes to your board since the
start of 2015

» Kent Masters formerly the Chref Executive Officer at Foster
Wheeler AG was appointed a non-executive director on
13 February 2015 for an imtial term of three years which will
end at the 2018 AGM

» Neil Carson was appotnted Semor Independent Director and
Chairman of our Remuneration Commuittee on 14 May 2015
fallowing the previously-announced retirement from the
board of Stmon Thompsaon at the close of the annual general
meeting. having served two three-year terms as a Director
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» Roy Frankhn, currently Chairman of Keller Group plc deputy
chatrman ot Statoil ASA and a nen-executive director of
Santos Ltd was appointed an independent nan executive
director and member of the neminations committee, with
eftect from 1 January 2016

» As reported above Samir Brikho stepped down from hus
position as Chief Executive on 17 January 2016 lan McHou!
was appointed intenm CEQ in addition to his role as Chef
Financial Ofticer with effect from 17 January 2016

Full hographscal details of your board can be seen on pages
41to 43

Diversity remains another key area of focus for your board and
your company has made great strides in this area — not just the
diversity of human capital (individual characteristics skills and
gender) but also as | have mentioned previously 1n thought
diversity Collaboration teamwork and respect for each other
combined with an assiduous attention to health salety security
and the environment will ensure that we remamn at the top of ocur
game. despite competitive pressures and market conditions
And here again we see further benahts from the merged
operating practices ftollowing our acquisition of Foster Wheeler
where we have created a best of both approach

1 also want to comment on health and safety, which remains an
absolute priority throughout the organisation The Chuef Executive
reports to the board on this at every meeting and our Health
Safety, Security, Environmental & Ettics Committee (see page 63)
has an increasingly key role to ensure we protect our people

our customers and everyone associated with our projects

Your company will benefit from our best-in-class approach,
whiuch 15 clearly understood and uphelfd throughout the group

Your Company's performance

The tough market conditions will continue for longer than
origmally expected and these have been reflected in the
performances of your company across our four markets -

oil & gas, miing & metals, clean energy and envircnment &
infrastructure (more detads can be seen on pages 24 to 25)
Qur 2015 trading profit! was £374m and our proposed final
dridend s 14 2p per share making atotal of 29 Op per share
for the year If approved at your Company s annual general
meeting on 27 Apnl 2016 1t will be paid on 4 July 2016 to those
shareholders on the register at close of business on 27 May 2016

Conclusion

My fellow directors and | rernain strongly convinced of Amec
Foster Wheeler s potential We believe that your company s
strategy strength & depth of customer refationshups and
breadth of skills & capabthities will enable us to optirruse our
performance in these down markets and position your company
to take advantage of better markets when they return

Difficult imes call for strong teadership and | would like to thank
our leadership team and everyone in Amec Foster Wheeler for
therr valued contribution to date and their commutment to
delvering our future potential

0 00...

hn nolly
air| ]
10 2016
1 Nony FRES muesure (ser Performance measurnes on peges 172 to 1724)

Armec Foster Wheeler
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Chief Executive's statement

tan MeHoul
Chuet Financial Othcer andwiterim CEO

Following a board meeting on 17 January the Company
announced the departure of Samir Brikho on 18 January 2016,
since when | have fulfilled the dual roles of Chief Financial
Officer and mterim CEQ My finance report can be found on
page 28 and | would for the record, ke to wish Samer all the
best for the future

2015 was a year of contrasting forces We successfully launched
our new cperating model on 1 January so creatng the platform
from which to develop and grow our business However market
conditions and commaodity prices continue to dictate the flow
of multiple projects on which we have been working

Despite the market downturn and the industry-wide mantra
about the conditions being tougher for even longer we have
achreved notable successes in helping our customers achieve
greater efficiencies - and we have continued to win projects
and contracts across all of our four business urits

In November in recogrition of the harsh environment and

future outlook we announced our intention to reduce our future

dimdend payments - thereby bringing them back in line with
our existing policy of around two times earnings cover

Tough times call for tough acttons and we continue to reduce
costs ~ raising our synergy targets streamlining our business
focusmg our offering creating greater efficiencies through
innovation and partnership and being more flexible to even
better support the needs of our customers

The Group Leadership Team and | are working on creating
the most efficient platform for growth in both the current and
hopefully more positive market conditions in the nmid- to near
term future

2015 results

The challenging backdrop of economic uncertainty continued
into 2015 and was exacerbated by the continuing price
dechine in many of our core commaodities We have delivered a
trading profit! of £374m on reduced revenues of £5455m and
proposed a final divedend of 14 2p per share = in line with our
November 2015 guidance

Our cash conversion rate! was 104% and adjusted earnings

per share’ of 677p As | am also Chief Financial Officer | wall give
more depth and insight into our financial performance in the
Financial Review on pages 28 to 37

We have continued to win interesting and exoiting projects

in each of our four key markets and across our four business
umts, resulting from increased collaboration skills transfer
and knowledge sharning

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annuad teport and acoounts 2015

Dividend per ghare for the year

29.0p

Adjusted dilyted EPS for 2015

6/7.7p

Order book

£6.6bn

Ayear of
contrasting
forces
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Chief Executive’s statement continued

Delivering on promises

We operate throughout the ail & gas value chain, from
production and transportation through processes that go
beyond simple separation and dehydration, to refining or
processmng crude ort into fimished fuel products This remams
the major part of our business accounting for 54% of cur
revenues and so the low price of crude o1l has had a dramatic
impact on our business

In 2015 we have concentrated on developing innovative ways

of working and providing more cost-efficient solutions for

our customers who are also feeling the pain Our Moredless

inbiative which established more momentum during the year
1s [ust one example of how our lean and scalable engineening

processes and integrated dehvery approach has been proven
to delwer notable savings

During 2015, we won more than 1 000 new projects with a
mux of new and existing customers however the start dates
of a number of these contracts have been delayed by market
conditions Our order book, at £6 6bn 1s up on 2014, but does
not take nto account work won with no confirmed start date

Our employees continue to work on many of the more
interesting and ground-breaking work 1nour chosen markets
as befits the talent and skifls we have More detail can be found
onpages 240 25

In oit & gas we have strengthened our relationship with BP
winning North Sea contracts have won work in Texas US
with D'Arcnoff and been awarded projects with SKS Orpic
and the Government of Timor-Leste in Malaysia Oman and
Timor-Leste respectively

Our clean energy business has seen us win a range of contracts
Irom steam generating and arr poltution control to nuclear
assessment and solar generation We have been recogrised

as a key supplier and strategic player for Mexico's growing heat
recovery steam generator markel with four project wins during
2015 and have won nuclear projects in Canada, France, Japan,
UK and USA

We have seen notable innovation i our environment &
infrastructure markets winning further work for the US Air

Force with the Contract Augmentatian Program IV i the US ang

for the design and construchion of special facilities in Guam

Qur mining business has been impacted by commodity prices
but notable winsg included providing front-end engineering
services for the expansion of the Gépler Gold Mine in Turkey
and an engineering procurement and construction contract
with Petra Diamonds for its Cullinan Mill Extension Project

n South Africa

08

The industry 1s
now saying ‘tougher
—for even longer’

]
Tough environments provide

opportunities for divarse
thought leaders

]
Chailenges create a
platform from which to
showcase our best work.
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Developing full potential

We have blended the skills withun our orgamsation to benefit the
needs of our custormers and created a platform for long-term
growth which whule the shings and arrows of commaodity pnces
may temporarily hurt us 1s the night approach for our business
tn the long term

Our company has been delivering ground-breaking
energy-related projects and improving the lives of bilions
of people since 1848

Operating in over 55 countries our approach is to forge strong
working partnerships with our customers - which include
governments multi-national businesses and communities

= to create some of the world s leading industnal projects

Our 40,000 strong skilled workforce ranges from
archaeologists to zo0logists and almost every profession
n between

And we are good at what we do - designing delivering and
maintaining strategic and complex assets to ttme and budget
For example despite the challenging conditions, our Danjing
4 tiomass power plant project in South Korea reached
commercial operation two weeks ahead of schedule

We have embedded the concept of using our specifically
resourced offrces 1n India as turther support for the businesses
and we have added greater nsk management protocols through
our |[dentify Acquire, Deliver process

We deliberately maintain our strong and established positions
inmmmng clean energy power generation environment &
infrastructure alongside the ol & gas market to develop
complementary skills and sennces as well as to provide revenue
diversification and a form of hedging against market trends

Diwversity 1s also evident in our approach to life i the
methodology we apply to solving our customers problems
and in our business strategy

We have to empower our employees and maintain their career
paths and excitement about our future and as a part of the
integration process we have introduced new systems to further
harness our combined potential in living our values and creating
aculture of safety honesty and collaboration - with customer
needs at the heart of averything we do

The Academy which provides our people with development
opporturities towards reachung therr full potentral alsc shifted
towards delivering maore free and accessible solutions globally
supporting the business need for improved ethciency

Dotrtg the right thing
Without ethical or safe behaviour we would be just another
company. 50 we aspire to be the best at both

Buring the year we introduced our new Code of Business
Conduct by which we operate and accompanying online
programmes for Code of Business Conduct and anti-bribery
and corruption training

Both are mandatory for all staff to ensure that all our
employaes, and thase workang on our behalf are aware of the
laws applicable to us and act in accordance with those laws

Amee Foster Wheeler
Afvai report and acocunts 2015

Safety 1s at the heart of all that we do and we successfully
launched our Beyond Zera rubiative = meaning zero harm every
minute of every day whatever we do at work or at home

i includes the tools to enable all our employees to help

us achieve a world-class Health Safety, Secunity and
Environmental performance and includes prepanng the ground
for a new programme for 2016

Designed to enable our safety leaders to eflectively identify
hazard and intervene when they consider satety 1s beng
compromused, we call it HEART (for Harm Elimination and
Recogmition Training)

HEART will equip our safety leaders at supervisory and
management levels of our orgamsation with the confrdence
and skills to use the techmique

Outlook

Current thinfung incicates that low commodity prices will
continue to be the largest disruptve factor in our markets for
the immediate future — especially in cur ol & gas and mining
aperating units - 50 we see another tough year ahead In
some markets

However | have taken great heart from the way our people

have buckled down to the chalienges set across our business

as the tougher for even longer’ mantra continues to have a
maor impact on customer decision-making capital expenditure
and project implementation

In particular, | believe the benefits of our diverse model are
already differentiating us with good opportunities (n down
stream oil & gas renewables government work and UK T&D

We have almost sixty years' experience n decommissioning
highly complex nuclear assets and the expertise we have can
be used to benefit other areas such as retiring UK North Sea
ol and gas platforrms

We will continue to partner with our customers to delver the
most innovative, efficrent and effective results possible and are
looking to put our global resources peopte and thinking to work
even harder to achieve this

Our business platform s in place, our operating model s
embedded, we are reviewing underperforming assets, we plan
to hatve our debt by rmid 2017 and we are looking to buld cur
business by doing the right thing delivening on prormises ang
dehvenng fufl potential

luk_

lan McHoul

Chuiel Finzncial Qthcer and intenm CEOQ

10 March 2016

1Nen FRS e on pages 172 1 T34)
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Connected

excellence

]
Long-term client relationships help to safeguard
the future of our business Our work with EDF
Energy, under a hifetime enterprise agreement,
provides technical support and expertise for

EDF Energy Generation's current UK nuclear
reactor fleat

EDF Energy operates 15 reactors at eight
nuclear power plants across the UK Amec
Foster Wheeler was chosen to provide serices
because of our unique range of shills and
capabihties in nuclear engineernng, combined
with a long-standing relationship between the
two organisations

The services we provide will enable EDF Energy
to continue delivenng the secure, reliable,
low-carbon electncity the UK needs now and
into the future

10

through deep
customer
knowledge




— ]
Jo Skelton, Section Lead

- Remote Operations, fits

a cowl in the gap between
tuel guide tubes on Amee
Foster Wheeler’s Hot Box
Dome ng at Birchwood,
Warrington, UK. The Hot
Box Dome project s ane

of the projects within EDF's
fleat-critical programme.
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Our business model

]
We convert the talents of our people and therr
customer relationships into a low-nsk business

To succeed we need to deliver excellence to
our customers

Dullvering exceilence

Peopte are our principal asset
Read more on page 14

We are customer focused
Read more on page 15

Customers rely on our services and solutions
Read more on page 16

We have a flexible and low-risk business model
Read more on page 17

What this means

Qur employees are clever people Their skiils are a scarce
resaurce

Qur highly skifled engineers project managers, consultants
and scientists deliver for our customers creating long-term
customer relationships and a strong reputation for excellence

We are investing in our High-Value Execution Centres
(HVECs) toincrease our capability and capacity to take
on work cost effectively

We have a wide range of customers around the world

They include sorme of the largest international ol companies
such as ExxonMobil and BP, chermicat companies such as Dow
muners such as Rio Tinto utility comparies such as EDF and
government bodies such as US BoD

We provide ligh-value services ~ consulting, engineering,
project and construction management and supply
chain management

These skills are enticat to the successful development
and operation of our custormers’ assets - nght across
thesr lifecycle

We have a particularly strang reputation for delvering
engingering solutions for complex projects

The majonity of our contracts reimburse us for our people s
time We often also get additional payments by achieving
pre-agreed performance measures Many of these are

long term contracts

In selected circumstances we take on fixed-price work

The breadth of our market and customer exposure gives
us great growth oppertunities and reduces the impact during
lower levels of activity In one market

Amec Foster Wheeter
Annua reoort and accounts 2015




Our valuss

» Wa listan, understand and respond

» We agres on clear axpectations
Delrvering » Wa a3pirn to consistent axcellenca
on promisas

» We invest in our people
Developing » We embraca diversity and Inclusion
full potential » We connect globally a3 one team
Doing the We foty first
nght thing © Weput rafety

.|
Managing the challenges

Our future success relies on attracting developing and retaiming the best people
We need to be flexible using our people as cost effectively and efficiently as possible
We maintain the highest standards of safety and ethics

We are committed to encouraging and providing mechanisms for employees to
become shareholders in Amec Foster Wheeler and our SAYE share option schemes
(Sharesave) allow employees to participate in Amec Foster Wheeler's share price
growth Sharesave is open to employees in all major countries of operation who
meat a minimum service qualification Offers to participate are currently being made
on a regular basis

We win business because of our reputation for delivery and the strength of our
long-term customer relatiocnships

Qur diversified customer base lirmits our dependence on any one customer

We are adaptable to ensure we offer our customers the right services when and
where they need themn

We must be able to deliver these services in a cost-effective way

We work across a range of cychcal markets which can impact demand for
our services

Our reputation for delivery 1s very important to cur continued success
We take fixed-price work when we know the customer and the project well
We have a good track record predicting earmings frem each project and contract

Arnec Foster Wheeler
Annua report and accounts 2015

» We act sthically and with integrity
» Wa care about our communities

We look at the ublisation rate of
employees, gender diversity and
employee instigated turnover

We measure the engagement of our
people and the devetopment activity
that has taken place and a number
of safety measures

Read more on page 14

We track levels of customer satisfaction
and look townprove our win-to-bid ratie

Read more on page 15

We track our revenue growth and our
margin progression

We also look at the mux of services
we provide and where they sit in the
iecycle of our customers assets

Read more on page 16

Our profit margin and cash conversion
reflect the quabty of project delvery

We also have a range of non-finanaial
measures ncluding greenhouse gas
emussions and completion of project
and peer reviews

Read more on page 17
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Delivering excellence

People are our principal asset

.|
Our success depends upon our people delivering
projects successfully for our customers

To foster the nght culture in which our people can
succeed, our values (see page 13) are entrenched
throughouit our business

We perpetuate the very highest standards of safety mutual
respect and ethical behaviour that we can and this combined
with caring for the environment in which we operate underpins
our approach to being a sustainable people business (reaa
more about our commitment to sustainability on page 22 and
on our dedicated sustainability microsite on amectw com)

Operating model
On 1 January 2015 we introduced our new operating mode!

Key principles include globa! standards for execution of
projects, creating centres of excellence and multi-office delivery

Investing in talent

We have developed both technical and leadership training
to ensure we maintamn a pipehne of skilled talent to meet
our growth aspirations

Group-wide traiming 1s led by the Academy our tn-house
development programme

Adapting to dynamic markets

Delivering a project for our custemers requires us to put
together teams of people to match the needs of the project
and the customer

During 2015 we recruited approximately 12,000 people the vast
majonty into project teams Of these new hires more than 903
were recruited directly We have also seen a similar number of
pecple teave as projects finish or their roles change Together
this means that our utiisation rates remain very high

14

Diversity and inclusion

The business case 1s clear An argamsation that enjoys diversity
enoys a nchness of ideas that leads to better solutions for

the customer

Gender 15 just one part of this OF our directly employed
workforce 23% (or 8,247 people) 1s made up of women and
77% (or 27.610) 1s made up of men of our executive grade
employees 109 (41) are women and 90% (369) are men of
our Group Leadership Team one person (1096) 1s a wornan and
nine people (90%) are men and of our board 25% (two people)
are women and 75% (six people) are men

Age gender and ethnicity are all important and assessed
but diversity of thought for instance cannot be measured
as accurately QOur approach 1s to survey our employees
to ask how they fee! and feed the findings into the Graup
Leadership Team

We are committed to providing a safe and secure workplace
where people are free from harassment and where diversity and
inclusion are the norm with equal opporturuttes for progression
and development for alt

Our Code of Business Conduct highlights our comnuitment
to human rights and we respect those of any indvidual or .
community, with whom we are involved and we support the
elmination of ¢hild labour

Participation

We are committed to encouraging and providing mechanisms
for employees to become shareholders in Amec Foster Wheeler
and our sawings-related share option schemes (Sharesave)
alfow employees to partictpate in Amec Foster Wheeler

share price growth Sharesave 15 open to all employees in all
major countries of operation who meet a minimum service
qualification Offers to participate are currently being made

on a regular basis

Prionties for 2016

As usua! the most important prionty remans that our people
are safe at work and that we continue to attract develop and
retain skilled employees

Split of amploysas &
% 21

Amercas

NECIS

AMEASE

Gigbal Power Group
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We are customer focused

L]
We have a wide range of customers and work

for some of the world’s largest corporations and
government bodes, designing and maintaining
critical assets Cur customers expect us to deliver
excellence every day We are very proud of the
high proportion of repeat business we generate

Our customers include some of the largest international ol
compamies such as ExxonMobil and BP, chemical companies
such as Dow miners such as Rio Tinto utility companies such
as EDF, and government bodies, such as the US Department
of Defense

Qur top 10 customers accounted for approximately 31%
of revenue

]
Diverslfied customer basa 59
%

Top 10

nz20

Others
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Strategic customer management
Developing long term and worldwide relattonships with
key custorners 1s a prionty

With additional service offerings and new customers
across a broader geographic footprint, there are much
greater apportunities to cross-sell and a strategic approach
to managung our customer relationships is no longer a

nice to-have - it is a necessity We now have three hiers

of customer relationship global regional and local

Global accounts are managed centrally by the business
development team We expect to expand this over the
corming years

By utiising strategic account managernent and globat
accounts we are 'upping our game to expand and deepen
our relationships with our most significant customers

Our goals to get closer 10 our custormers and be therr trusted
partner Regional and local account management will remain
an important component

Achievernents in 2015

Despite the ¢hallenging conditions in our end markets

we are pleased that the customer satisfaction scores have
remamed high

During 2015 work has continued on a number of significant
projects for customers such as BP. ExxonMobil, K+$ Sempra
EDF and Honeywell

Wa have also begun new projects for customers such as

» Maersk Oifin the UK North Sea - where our cost-effective
approach (Moredless) was key in winming a new contract

» Yuhuang Chemicals in Loursiana - where we are utilising
the breadth of our US-based engineering and construction
capabibties combined with a strong relationship with Air
Liquide to win a major contract to build a new methanol plant

» Petra Diamonds in South Africa - where we have begun work
at the Cullinan diamond mine mull extension

» UK Power Networks — where we have begun a 12-year
partnership to upgrade electricity infrastructure in the UK

Priorities for 2016
The development of long-term and worldwide customer
relationships will continue to ba our key prionty

Integrating the former AMEC and foster Wheeler relationships
will provide us with significant new opportunties particularly
inthe mud and downstream ol & gas market

For example we canoffer enhanced project delivery to

our combined upstream and downstream customers across
new-build and brownfield projects We are now offering
environmental services to former Foster Wheeler customers
for the first time too

We are also planning to expand the geographic reach of
our services for instance by offering brownfield services
In new countries
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Delivering excellence continued

Customers rely on our services
and solutions

. |
In each market or sector, the range of services
prowvided to our customers s similar

We are experts in designing, delivenng and
mamntaining strategic and complex assets,
offering total life of asset support from feasibility
planning nght through to decommuissioning

Qur diversified service offenng partially offsets the cychcal
nature of our customers capital expenditure plans and reduces
our dependence on any are part of the energy mix

:on servicas PrY
Progect delvery
Professional serwces
Other
53
Core services

CQur core services include engineering, project management,
construction and construction management, hook-up

and commissioning decommussioning and related
consultancy work

We have a reputation tor delivering engineering sclutions for
complex projects and operating in remote and harshiocations

Our clean energy offering also includes Circulating
Fiuidised Bed (CFB) and heat recovery steam generators
condensers and emission control equipment for improved
environmental performance

Working through the Iifecycle

Wa provide high-value services across the ifecycle of our
custorners assels and the range of services we are able to
provide (s similar in each of our four markets

Many of our services are provided through long-term cantracts,
gving us the opportunity to provide cnitical services in
partnerstup with our custormers For instance we have been
supporting the current fleet of UK nuclear reactors for more
than 50 years Some of these contracts have been renewed
several imes

16

Project delivery team

Qur operating model has an enhanced project delivery
funchion with responsibility for ensuring the identification
and management of project nsks driving the use of common
systems and tools supporting the development and
mobihsation of our teams and ultumately helping us to dehver
excellence on all our projects

Achlevements i 2015
Contract wins announced in 2015 include

» Algeria Consultancy project to de bottieneck Hassi R Mes
gas feld (Sonatrach)

» Belgum Detailed engineering for Zeebrugge LNG terminal
expansion (Felguera)

» Canada Remediation work at Port Granby long-term waste
management faciity (Canadian Nuclear Laboratories)

» China Three-year project management contract ata
coal chemical complex ( Shenhua Ningxia Coal)

» Guam Design and construction of speciabist facilities
(US A Force)

» Malaysia Consultancy services to a new refinery and
pet-chem complexin Kedah (SKS)

» Oman Three-year technical services contract for refinery
and polypropylene faciliiies (Orpic)

» Philippines Design and supply two ISOMW CFB boilers
in Cebu (Hyundai)

» Poland Design supply construction and commussicring
of 220MW CFB bailer 1n Zabrze (Forturn Zabrze)

» Turkey lmtial phase reimbursable EPC for the Copler Gold
Mine (Anago!d Madencilik)

» UAE Three-year extension to project management
consultancy {PMC) services contract on Upper Zakum project
(Zadco)

» UK Five-year integrated services contract n the UK North Sea
(Maersk)

» UK Three year contract to supply regutatory, techruical and
training services to MoD nuclear safety authority (UK MaD)

» USA Engineening and logistics support worldwide AFCAP v
(US Ar Force)

» USA Early stage EPC for new methanol plant in Lowsiana
(Yuhuang Chemicals)

»Vietnam Front end engineering design (FEED) for Dun Quat
refinery upgrade (Vietnam National il and Gas Group)

Pnorthes [n 2016

Qur main priority 15 to continue to adapt our services 5o that
customers choose us to deliver and maintain their projects -
sately and cost effectively

Amec Foster Whee'er
Annual report and acoounts 2015




We have a flexible and low-risk
business model

]
We have a flexible and low-nisk business

model, the majority of our contracts are on
acost-plus basis

When we agree fixed-price work we take the time
to get to know the customer and the project first

By using common systems we can deliver work
consistently and share work across offices and
time zones

We are also able to adapt the type of work we
do as our customers’ plans change - offenng
a mix of engineering, project management and
full-scope project delivery packages

As a result. our business 1s more flexible and
sustainable, and cur financial performance less
volatile than others’

In the majority of cur contracts our customers reimburse us
for our people s time and any matenals we consume We often
arrange to get additional payments f we achieve pre agreed
performance measures

in selected circumstances we take on fixed-price work
Typically we will do this where we know the customer and
the project well

Where this 1s not possible we may look to partner with others
to gan access to projects which would otherwise be unavailable
tous

Each year we do work on numerous contracts — some of which
are mulh year thus together with the breadth of our market
and customer exposure reduces the impact of lower levels

of actmity i any one area of our business

Amac Foster Wheeler
Annual report and acoounts 2015
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Revanus by contract style 291
%

Retmbursable

Fixed price

QOther

Flexibihity
The Global Power Group has a different business model to our
engmneenng and project management business

in addition to engineenng and project delivery, it includes
fabrication in its typical scope of activities

Enhanced risk management

Thus plays a vital role in ensuring that we win projects with the
greatest possible opportunity for success maximising the value
we get for our resources and addressing risks that are part of
contracting in our industry

We use a detailed workflow system which addresses the risks
associated with tenders {for both lump sum and rembursable
contracts) in areas such as technical challenges, financial

and pricing terms joint venture/partner nsks as well as a full
range of governance ssues such as humanrights safety and
environmental risks

Achievements in 2015

Cur order book timshed 2015 at £6 6bn and we have
successfully adapted to lower levels of upstream o1l & gas
work by increasing our exposure to downstream and clean
energy projects

In Apnl wa announced the completion of Copper Mountamn
solar 3 project in Nevada where we provided EPC services
tor one of the largest photovoltaic (FV} solar plants in the US
ahead of scheclule and under budget

In December we antered into a joint venture with Khan Offshore
{o deliver commussioning services for facilities as they are being
constructed in South Korean yards — creating an opportunity

to expand the addressable market for commissioning services
which has been growing well since we acquired Qediin 2012

Priorities for 2016

Despite some tough market conditions we want to win
new contracts which will maintain our low-nisk and fiexible
business model

We will continue to increase collaboration acress the Group -
between teams from different sectors and countries as well as
substantially increasing the share of work carried out through
multr-office delivery

17
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Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties

. |
Amec Foster Wheeler operates in more than

55 countries, serving a broad range of markets
and customers As such, the Group is subject

to certain general and Industry specific risks
Where practicable, the Group seeks to mitigate
exposure to all forms of nsk through effective

nsk management and nsk transfer practices

The board has overall responsibility for isk management for
deterrmiming the risk appetite in relation to the principal risks
for implementation of the risk management policy and for

reviewing the effectiveness of the nsk management systems

Risk management process

A global mandatory procedure detailing the nsk management
process 1s used at project operating unit business unit

and group levels to identify the key risks that could have a
significant impact on Amec Foster Wheeler s ability to achieve
its objectives These are recorded in risk registers and evaluated
to determine the hikely impact and probahihty of occurring

Control actrons are developed to mitigate or elimminate nsks
that are considered unacceptable Risk owners are identshed
and given responsibility for ensunng actions are implemented
with appropriate review dates

The risk registers are reviewed and updated at least quarterly
with the relevant risk owners

Reporting and monitonng
The nisk commuttee 15 chared by the Chief Executive and meets
at least twice each year to

» review and adwise the board on Amec Foster Wheeler s risk
appetite in relatron to the principal strategic risks taking
account of the current and praspective macro-economic
finangial political business and sector environments

» review and approve the risk management strategy policies,
procedures and processes

» review and report to the board on the effectiveness of the nisk
management systems

» review the Amec Foster Wheeler plc nsk register and make
recommendations as appropreate

» review any new or emerging risks and any potential impact
they may have on risk appetite and the ability of Amec Foster
Wheeler to manage such nsks

» review any issues rased by other committees of the board
that impact on the nisk profite of Amec Foster Wheeler

» review and consider reports on key risk 1ssues such as
new business and geographical locations for operations
or projects

» consider any internal or external nisk trends and
concentrations

The terms of reference of the risk commuttee have been
amended to reflect the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2014

Roles and responsibilities
Bosrd Risk oversight
» prisure appropnate sk management
processes are nplace
» ensure management s positioned
o o wantfy and respond ta nsk
a » ensurgrelevant information s raised
Chief Executive/ Group fynction heads Head ol Risk to the appropnate level
risk committee Management
Risk owner/risk manager -
» participate i the dentification of nsk 3
" Business unit Leadership tearms/ Business Uit » participate i the dentihcation of sk =
E 8 prasidents function heads Head of Cormmencial/ managsment action pians g
a s Head of Project » ensure action plans 2re implenented 2
o Delivery » morutor and report on resk status ?%
o
a
E Operating unit Leadership teams/ Operating Unt
== heads tunction heads Head of Commercal/
3 g Head of Project Risk co-ordinator
(=3 Oelrvery » ensure risk Management process
ts tollowed
» taciitate nsk management reviews
" Project manager Project team Project risk owners » collate and rssue nsk management
'g reportsAegrsters
g » promote learing and consistency
o
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Principal business and strateglc risks

The table below shows Amec Foster Wheeler s principal business and strategic nisks Eachis specific to the Group and could have
amaterialimpact on it Actions have been taken to mitigate these nsks and these are also shown

Other financial risks that may impact the Group are shown on pages 136 to 141 - note 19 Capital and financial nsk management
- ____________________________________________________]

Rk

Mbigation

Geopolitical and economic conditions

Amec Foster Wheeler expects to derive the magonty of ils revenues from
Eurgpe the US and Cenada and s therefore particularly affected by pobtical
and economie conditions in those mariets

Changes i general economic conditions may mftugnce customers decisions
on capitalinvestment and/er asset maintanance which could lead to volatiity
inthe development of Amec Foster Wheeler § order inlake These ruay akso
lead to charge in the customer base competition and in the way customers
procure the services we provide Anincrease in competition for new contracts
may lead to dilferent less lavourabla contract terms and conditions

Continuing and escatating unrest and insurgency actrvity in the Middle East
Mmay have a negative umpact on exisung and future opportunities in the regwon

Arnec Foster Wheeler seeks to mamiain a balanced geographic presence
and through acqurktions and organc growth will continue o increase
1ts exposure to other attractive regrons of the world

Tha risk associated with economic conditions resulting in a downturn

and aHecting the demand far Amac Foster Wheeler s services has been
addressed as far as practicable by seelung to mamtawn a batanced busmess
portlolio in terms of geographies markets clhients and service offering/
husiness model

In lght of continuing global economic uncertamtes steps have been taken to
assess and monitor any potential impact on Armec Foster Wheeler s business
opportunities and agdress potentiat ncreased supply chain and more
broadly counterparty risk

The strategy and business development function is focused on realising
the synergies across our customers markels geographues service oflenings
and retatansheps

Changes in commodity pnces

A sustained and significant reduction inod & gas or commaodity prices would
have an adversé tmpact on the level of customer spending vy Amec Foster
Wheeler s markets and consequently represents a risk to-organic growth

The tallin o prices has had an impact on the nvestment behaviour ol Amec
Foster Wheeler customers in this sector with pressure on czpital expenditure
leadmg to a greater focus on smaller projects and operating expenditure and
an increase [ competition lor new contracts

Thas risk ts mitigated by mamntaming a balanced business porttolio
of geographies markets chents and service offerings

improved eftficeencies through ncreased workflow between offices
and the eflective use of centres of excellence and HVEC

Project delivery

Fading to mantain discipline and rmeet customer expectations on project
cdelivery could result in damage to reputation joss of repeat business and
patentially lead to Ltigation and/or claims pgainst Amec Faster Wheeler

The project delvery functon provides assurance drives project execution
and supports the development training and maobiiisation of personnel to
enhance execution competencies

In agdition the systemn of globally applied policsas and procedures combired
with comprehensive management oversight the risk management procass
projoct reviews internal 2udit peer révitws and customer feedback mitigate
the resh to successiul project defvery

Lump sum comtracts

Lump sum contracts camry different risks than reimbursable contracts wath
tha cortractor agreeing the contract price at the start of the contract and
accepting the nsk ol tost overruns in completing the project

This risk 1s mittgated by having skills and competencies tulty aigned with the
project scopa Itis further mitigated by having a clear delegated authority
structure Inplace combun ed with the formal global mandatory procedures
relatng 10 contracting penciples and the tender review process In addition
tha project dehvery function referred to 1 the project delivery nisk above
performs reviews provides assurance a2nd dnves project axecution

Staf? recrulbnent and retention

An inability to attract and retan suticient high cahbre employees
could become a barner to the continued success and growth of
Amec Foster Wheeler

Seruor management departures or prolonged absences could also
adversely atfect our abdity toimplement our strategy and manage
our operations efficiently

This risk 15 mitigated with a clear HR strategy winch s ahgned to the
business strategy 2nd focused on atiractng developing and retaining the
best people for the Group with succession planning as 2ppropriate It is
underpinned by an employee framework which descnibes how we manage
our people consistentty

tn addition thereis a continual review of compensalion and benetits to ensure
sector and gecgraphic competitveness and there are localised recruitment
tearms capable of recrutting l2rge numbers into Amec Foster Wheeler

Amec Foster Wheeler Academy delvers dgvelopment actnities (0 enhance
delvery and prepare employees for more advanced roles

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report arxd accourts 2015
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Principal nsks and uncertainties continued

Rrsi

Mitigat ron

Hasatth, safety, security and amvironmant

Amec Foster Wheeler 1s mvotved in activities and emaronments that have the
potential to cause senous njury to personnel or damage to property or the
environment and damage %o our reputation

These actvities may swvolve operations such as design constructon
commissioning and decommissioning which have potential to cause senous
environmental damage poliution 2nd habitat destruction

In grder to ¢ontrl sk and prevent harm Amec Foster Wheeler s locused on
achieving the highest standargs of health satety snd securty management
Trus 15 achieved through setting of an effective pobcy and putting i place
clear standards which underpin our health salety secunty and envirgnmental
management systerms

We have put in place processas to assure thal our systems work effectvely
throughout the organisabon and heaith and satety performance s regularly
reviewed against agreed targets to facitate continual improvemnent

Amec Foster Wheelgr employs envronmental and engineering speciausts
to suppori projcts in implementing comprehensme project management
planmng at all stages of aproject These processes are governed by
appropriate quahty management systems and are supportad by nsk
ertification tools armed at identifying and managing all aspects of project
environmental risk

Environmantal licences

Amec Foster Wheeler s buid/own/operate taciities and fabrication/
manufacturing sites rely on maintaining envirshmental licences to operate
which inctudes protecting the environment and achieving legalty enforceable
operating parameters Failure to maintain these standards may result in

the revocation of all or part of the Uicence and the suspension of operation
resulbng in comunal or civil acbon and/or inancial sk to the business Failure
to mamtain assets and/or pollution abaterment equipment may resull in a
faiure to meet legally binding objectwes and targets for the operation

Emaronmental managerment systerns &re in place to monitor and mitigate
this risk

Planned preventative maintenance scheduies are m place to further migate
this risk

Information technology (IT)

Amec Foster Wheeler 15 exposed to the risk that the T systems on which it
relies fad and/or that sensitive data held by the Group ts lost due to ineffective
data governance or as a result of unauthorised access to Amec Foster
Wheeler systams or malware astacks

Appropnate conlrols 2re n place to mitigate the risk of systems fature and
data loss ingluding systems back up procedures data security breach
response plan disaster recovery plans and globally distnbuted data
centres providing a secure 2nd reliable environment for hgsung crntical
apphcatons Thera 1s 2lso apprgpnate virus protection mahware detection
and remediation network secunty controls and penetration testing and
encryption of mobile devices

Ethical breach

A substantrve ethical breach and/or non comphance with laws or reguiations
could potentially lead to damage to Amec Foster Wheeler s reputation fines
Inigation and claims for compensation

Amec Foster Wheeler has a number of measures in place to mitrgate
tha nisk of a substantive ethical breach and/ar non compliance with
laws or regulations inchudng

» embedded policies and procedures

» Code of Business Conduct

» segregation of duties

» management oversight

» tinancial and operational controls

» independent whistie blowing mechantsm

» appointment of ethics and comphance officers
» a1t1 fraud snd other internat audits

» lagal team adwice

» tratning programmes supporing the Code of Business Conduct and
anti bribery and corruption

» gversight by the ethics commuttee of the board (row the HSSEE commuttee
-~ seq pages 63 and 64}

Pansions

Amec foster Wheeler operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes
where careful udgement 5 required in determining the assumptions lor
future salary and pensionincreases discount rate ntlation avestrnent
returms and member iongewty There is a risk of underestimating thrs habehity

This risk to Amec Foster Wheeler s pension schemes 1s mitigated by
» maintainng a relatvety strong funding potition over ime

» taking advice rom independent qualitied actuanes and other
professonal advisers

» agreeing appropnate nvestment policies with the trustees

» close monitanng of changes inthe funding position with reparatary acton
agreed with the trustees in the event that a sustained deficit emerges

See note 14 on page 128 {or turther details on our pension schemes
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Rah Watygarhon

Legsacy risks The established legacy team manages these clams with internal and external
Litigation and busness claims froen divested and non core businesses remam  lagal advice The aim s ta seek cost-aXective management of ikigaton and

a resk to Amec Foster Wheeler promate commaertially sensible settlements where appropriate

Managing non core legacy assets untd divestment may require skills thatare  Amec Foster Wheeler has made provisions for the fegacy Issues that are
not commaon to the rest of the Comparny believed to be adequate and ts not aware of any other current issues relating
to disposed businesses winch are kkely to have a matenal impact Speciabist

Ground contzmenants remam at some former Amec Foster Whesetar teams with the appropriate knowledgs are b htw as required

operatonal localittes where the poltutant may have bean as a result of the

Company s operations or the Company 1s responsible for s clezn up In the case of any known contaminated iand strategies have been developed
There 15 a risk that potiution may result in a risk to human heaith or the to minimise the risk pesed by such centaminated land including asset
ervironment There 1s potential for civil and/ar cromunzl action agamst the management and tand remadation projects and they reman under
Company for such pollutants contmuing review

Asbestos Qabllity There is aded-cated m-house finance and legal resource including a team
Tha tegacy Foster Wheeler business is exposed to significant numbers ot specialist asbestos lawyers who manage the claumns assisted by National
of clamms relating to alleged exposure to aspestos The quantum of these Co-ordinating Counset {NCC) and loca! counsel Aclaims strategy ras been

claims Is actuanally forecast each year and provisions are heid against these  developed with the NCC and regular reviews are undertaken
loss projections However there s a resk that these loss projections will be

exceeded and the prov couid be inzdequate to meet the labilities The team monitors legal developments n these clams and the strategy

te deal wath them on a regular basts

The quanturn of these ¢laums 15 actuarizlly lorecast each year and provisions
are held against the uimate Wss projections

Viabitity statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of The UX Corporate Governance Code (September 2014 revision) the directors have
performed a robust assessment of the pnncipal nsks detailed on pages 19 to 21 for the next three years and have concluded that
they have a reasonable expectation that Amec Foster Wheeler will be able to continue in operation and meet its habitities as they
fall due over this threée year period

The directors have selected a three-year period for this assessment, in ine with the three year busmess planruing process and this
also reflects the average duration of the larger customer contracts entered into by the Company

In making this assessment the directors have taken into account the Company s current trading pertermance and prospects

the stated strategy concerning the review of underperforming assets and the board s appetite for risk The Company refinanced
its banking taciities i early March 2016 and the assessment conlirms that we are comphant with the covenants and undertakings
contained within these new facilities over the three-year period

The approach adopted for this assessment was a detailed review of the principal risks by a semor management team with
representatives from finance commercial legal tax and treasury strategy, internal audit and nisk to consider which of these risks
might threaten the Group s viability The assessment of these risks included modeling them in severe but plausible scenarios
taking account of

» varying impacts of specific risks across business units or market sectors as appropriate
» any potential nsk nterdependencies
» the nisk mitigation measures currently in place

The analysis of the principal risks has been weighted towards downside risk and a sensitivity analysis has been used to stress
test the nisk events most hikely to negatively impact the company Specific scenarios have been tested and include

» a further fallin ol prices increasing pressure on customer spending and impacting prospects for future projects
» project delivery failure resulting in delayed payments, settlement payments reputational damage and reduced future work
» nisk of cost overruns on lump sum contracts

» 3 substantve ethics breach and/or non-comphance with laws or regulation which could result in reputational damage
fines htigation and claims for compensation

» 3 serious environmental ncident causing third party damage and/or injury and reputatronal damage

Annual report 2 stcounts 2015
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Sustamnability

L ]
Sustainable development 1s shaping our business
every day It s at the heart of our values

Greenhouse gas emissions

2015 2014
GO COw
embamlord v emasons in
Yaas anciec 31 Octoer tonown Torin
Combustion of fuel and operation
of facihties 838,073 24355
Electncity heat steam and cooling
purchased for own use 59.682 35434
Per employee 2283 217
Per £1m revenue* 164.57 1574

*Based on AMEC revenue only lor 2014

The figures show scope one and two emissions from our global
business where we have operational control

The 12-month period to 30 September (the carbon reporting
year) rather than the calendar year has been used

This ensures actual data can be reported, even for those
regions where energy/fuel usage 1s more difficult to access
By reducing reliance on estimation a more accurate footprint
can be prowided in a fimely manner

We have use accepted methods of calculation based on

the Greenhouse Gas Protocol A Corporate Accounting and
Reporiing Standard (revised edition) We have used national
conversion factor guidehnes (eg Environmental Protection
Agency Environment Canada) where appropriate

Qur 2015 footprint 1s markedly different from previous year
due to the inclusion of ermsstons from two power generation
facilities which came as part of the Foster Wheeler acquisition
Our 2014 data represents the AMEC business only The 2015
footprint represents the Amec Foster Wheeler business (with
Foster Wheeler data being incorparated mto the carbon report
from 1 January 2015)

Our approach to sustainable business

Qur growth aspirations will only be achieved by focusing
on our customers and how we deliver our projects safely
and sustamnably

In 2015 we developed and launched our sustainabiity strategy
for Amec Foster Wheeler - Resilient World whera natural
resources are cleaner and more efficient and we work in
partnerstup with others to respond to changing demands for
a stable and secure supply of natural resources Our strategy
focuses on the opporturities to work with others to help solve
these challenges as well as manage our rnisks, to deliver value
to Amec Foster Wheeler and its customers Qur strategy
focuses on three key areas

People

Investing for tomorrow by developing a diverse inclusive and
talented workforce which exhibits our values and behaviours
to drive sustainabihity
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Growth in demand drives the competitron for skills and
expertise within the industry that we need to deliver a resilient
world We will resource for a diverse and inclusive workforce,
ntroducing new people {both expenenced and new entrants)
to the resource pools in order to ¢reate a business with genuine
diversity of thought

Innovation

Delivering mnovative technologies solutions and services
that add business value for our customers whilst minimising
environmenital impacts

We will drive long-term growth for Amec Foster Wheeler by
developing and encouraging a growing portfohio of innovative
environmental technologies solutions and services which add
value to our customers and our business

Dehvery
Being a trusted partner by embedding a consistent
sustamnabihity standard across our projects

Qur customers demand high standards and sustainabilityis a
fundamental part of this We will ensure a consistent approach to
inherently embedding sustainabiity nto the core of our projects,
and implement a value-add sustamnability framework to be used
for those chients with advanced sustainability objectives

We want to ensure that sustainabdity is integrated into the very
core of our business and within our deciSION-MakiNg processes
We want 1o be acknowledged as a leader in sustainable
business practice continually validating our social iicence

to operate by ensuring employees behaviours and actions are
in ine with our values Further details on our approach and our
strategy can be found on our dedicated sustainability site at
www amectw com/sustainability

Additonally we

»developed and launched our Resifient World
sustamability strategy

» launched an onhne interactive sustainability report
on our new sustainability website

» re-committed to the UN Global Compact principles
as Amec Foster Wheeler

» continue to support SOS Children as cur global strategic
charity - in 2015 we raised just over £140 000 for them,
reaching 5 568 beneficiaries We also developed a new
mermorandum of understanding with the tnternational
Federation of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies (IFRC),
to support them in designing transitional shelters to be used
n chisaster situations

» collated and reported a new carbon lootprint baseline for the
Amec Foster Wheeler bustness from which tuture reduction
targets will be set

» became a partner of 100 Resihent Cities (100RC) - pioneered
by the Rockefeller Foundation to give urban centres across the
world access to ground-breaking tools allowing them {o better
plan for potentially destructive weather events

» convened a workung group to address the due diligence
and operational processes required to address the Modern
Slavery Act

Amec Faster Wheeler
Annual report and s ccounts 2015




Global market trends

.|
With nearly $400bn of projects in the ol & gas
industry cancelled in the past 12 months, we are
facing an unprecedented upheaval in our

largest market

The fundamentals for energy consumption
and infrastructure investment remain positive
inthe long term

In the short terrm we will need to continue
to adapt to customers' needs

Our asset-light business model and mix of end
markets and services has provided us with some
protection from commodity market volatility

Short-term challenges

At the time of writng 1 early 2016 the oil price has fallen to
$40 and has recently been below $30 At this price research
shows that more than 109% of current production cannot cover
its operating costs

We have also seen hundreds of new projects cancelled or
deferred as our chents cut costs and capital commitments

Despite this, the global oll market remains over supphed and
stocks have continued to grow

This situation looks set to continue tor a whie yet ~ with
forecasts for the market to re-balance tn 2017 at the earhest

During 2016 we also expect to see Iran begin exporting more
oll as international sanctions are hfted Estimates vary from
250,000 to 500,000 exira barrels of ol entering the market
during the first few months While this may increase the
over-supply of odin the short term the epening up of Iran

15 atso an opportumity for us In September 2015 we joined a
British government delegation in Tehran to meet with potenbial
Iraman customers

Oll prics na
At year end 10738 o 8o
% per barrel
5733
3661
Source Factset
Brent (USD/barrel) 200 2012 2013 2014 2015

Long-term outlook

Despite the current weakness long term forecasts for globa!
energy demand and supply have not changed significantly over
the past year The Inlernational Energy Agency (IEA) World
Energy Outlook 2015 predicts a 37% increase by 2040

Long-term cif demand s expected Lo increase more than 20%
from just over 90 to 110 mullion barrels of ol per day by 2035

Amec Foster Wheeler
Anrwal report and accounts 2015

Changing hydrocarban production mix

A change from today's production mix 15 still expected with
crude ol falking and a greater share being taken by natural gas
liquids and uneonventional sources

In recent years the rapid increase i tight o production -
mainly from the od sands i Canada and shale ol n the US -
together with huge investments in kquefied natural gas projects
has changed the nature of the energy market and created
regional trade imbalances

In 2005 the US imported more than 12 milion barrels of oil per
day. and it 1s now forecast to be self-sufficient during the 2030s
Over the same penod China is expected to import more than
13 million barrels per day, and to becormne the largest importer

Changing energy mix

Concerns around resource depletion, dangerous emissions
stnicter regulation and consumer preference are dnving
renewable forms of energy including nuclear to mcrease thetr
share of total energy production Amongst fossil fuals gas s
expected to grow 1fs share with ol and coal reducing

|
Enargy mix 71
% L)

Qil & Gas 3

Coal 28

Renewable

Nuclear

Hydra

Other

Source BP energy outlook 2016 summary tables 51

The nuclear industry remains a fragmented market with

a consequence that gur opportunities vary sigmificantly

We expect to see new build in the UK Eastern Eurepe andin
some ¢countries n Asia reactor life extensions in the UK, Eurcpe
and North Amernica and decammssioning work i the UK,
Europe and North America Overall the |EA forecasts nuclear
will be used to generate around 12% of electricity in 2035
shightly above today s level

Emissions controls and the need for greater efficiency are also
driving change Today many renewable technologies benefit
from local and regional subsidies whichis currently supporting
their growth

World leaders gathered in Paris at the end of 2015 to agree

on a pact to cut carbon emissions We remawn well placed to
benelit from these developments - with our increased exposure
to gas and LNG since the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, and

our long-standing market posttions in renewable and nuclear
energy markets

Strong resource fundamentals remamn

More than 1 Sbn peaple tin emerging markets are expected to
becorme urbansed in the period to 2035, a key underlying driver
of long-term growth for the mirung industry

However lower cormmodity prices and general economic
uncertanty have caused the postponement or cancellation
of some projects in the near term

In addition a number of major mning compames have
announced detays to projects and cost reduction programmes
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Our markets

We operate in more than 55 countries,
focusing on four markets.

» Qil & Gas

» Clean Energy

» Mining

» Environment & Infrastructure

]
We provide similar services in each of our markets

We win work through strong customer
relationships and our proven ability to deliver
projects successfully

Many of our services are transferable
across markets

We have benefited from our ability to operate across many
markets - focusing our elforts on retaining a diverse adaptable
and scalable business model

We have also shifted resources between markets - for mstance
offsetting the weakness in upstream with ssgnificant growth in
downstream ol & gas

In the UK we have transferred some senior progect management
staff from the oil & gas market into nuclear - allowing us to
expand our role on a nine-year contract with EDF

In the US we have created a combined project dehvery team

= which can work across the ol and gas and clean energy
markets lo ensure we execute to the highest standards pessible
every time

Busmess review

In Novernber 2015 we announced a review of our market
positions Our ain 1s to Identify a path to tmproved performance
or to sell businesses if this 15 not hikely We are making good
progress on this plan and expect to update shareholders later
in 2016

Competitive environment

There 1s no one competitor operating in all the same markets
with the same geographic footprint and with a similar approach
to nisk as Amec Foster Wheeler

2015 rewve nue by end market 12
%

O & Gos 7

Minng

Clean Energy

Ervironment & Infrastructure
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il & Gas

We do not operate in early cycle exploration or dnlling but we
are involved 1n every part of the project delivery phase across
the o1l & gas value chain

In the upstream market the mayonity of our activity 1s for
offshore assets, where we support fixed platforms and floating
production umits largely above the waterline

We are a market leader in UX North Sea brownfield services
and provide integrated solutions to new entrant operators
n the region

We also support onshore ol & gas fields booster stations
gathering centres tank farms, gas ol separation plants
and pipelines

qo;llﬁummu- 48
Upstream
Mudstream
Downstream
4 48

Recent advances in the extraction of gas reserves in onshore
locatiens around the world have made gas monetisation ane
of the lastest growing sectors in the glabal oil & gas industry
where we hope to build on our extensive expertence

In the downstream market we work on new builds and major
expansions and revamps mncheding clean fuels projects to
meet new legistation and residue upgrading to produce
higher-value products

We have more than 60 years of experience in the chemicals
industry encompassing plants producing olefins aromatics
fertilizers and a wide range of specialty and fine chermicals

In the downstream/petrochermucal markets we prowvide a full
service EPC offering

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annuasireport and accounts 2015




Clean Energy

In renewables our focus 1s on detivering projects for our
customers most of whuch are local utilities We provide a fuil
sarvice EPC solution on wind solar biomass and biofuels
projects This s mostly in North America however we also plan
to expand our positions in the Middle East

Over the past three years we have seen strong growth in the
US for solar power spurred on by subsicies which have recently
been extended to at least 2019

Our nuclear capability has been developed over 60 years
positioring us to support the full ifecycle of nuclear energy
from new-build and reactor support (includmng lifetime extension)
ko nuclear decommussioning and waste management We have
experience of a wide range of nuclear technology

QOur nuclear customers include major utilties, governments
national regulators reactor suppliers and other significant
stakeholders We have a particularly strong presence in the

UK and Canada a growing business in the US a good presence
in Central and Eastern Europe and South Africa and nascent
propositions i Asia

We also have a long-standing relationship i the UK and
a growing presence 1n Canada with the transmyssion and
distribution system owners

We offer a full range of steam generator equipment clean

ar technologies aftermarket products and services to the
power industrial and waste-to-energy sectors In addition

to engineening and procurement, we offer fabnication facilities
located in Europe and Asia to delver our products

Our expertence comes from designing servicing and improving
fossil generating plants that come from over 200 million hours
of successfully and retiably logged operation

Mining
We support our customers projects in a dwerse range of
commodities including potash won ore copper and gold

We offer muning consultancy (including ore resource estimation
mine planning and feasibiity studies) design project and
consiruction management services and have whole-life service
capabiities

We are a leading nternational consultancy with a leading
positian in the North and South American EPCM markets

In addition to our estabhshed positian in Australia we are
growing our Afnican business

Amex Foster Wheeler
Anrnu report and accounts 2015

Ermvironment & Infrastructure (EAI)

The enviranmental consulting and engineering market includes
services provided to all four of aur markels with skills that are
easlly transferable across customers

By positicring ourselves as a trusted partner right at the
beginning of a project — often the early site development and
permitting stage ~ we can deliver comprehensive solutions
across the Iifecycle of our customers assets

We are currently operating predominantly in the US Canada
and the UK with an emerging presence in the Middle East
Alnca and Australasia

Our E&I market alone consists of four sectors

Water

Our primary areas of focus are water resource management
water policy, coastal management, asset planning and
management, and wastewater collection and treatment

Water services are also commonly provided to customers
n our other markets, inciuding mening and o1l & gas

Transportation/Infrastructure

We provide programme management planmung and design
project and construction management, asset development
and tong-term asset support QOur customers inctude
government transportation agencies national and local
customers and private developers in Canada and the US
We have over 50 years experience in the sector

Government

We provide a broad range of services to varrous chents
including the US Federal Government which s the largest
procurer of environmental services i the world Customers
also include various branches of the military and state/
provincial agencies Services range from remediation
programmes to design and delivery of infrastructure facitities,
including arfield facihities, housing and site mprovements
atinstallations globally

Industrial/Pharmaceutical

We provide compliance and due ditigence services ranging
from geotechnical and environmental to matenals and water
resources consulting
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. ]
Flonda's springs and nvers have tremendous
ecological value Qur work with the St Johns River
Water Management District to investigate and
evaluate the health of 14 different spring systems
in North and Central Flonda, supports the
shaping of a safe, sustainable future for the area

The scientific diving taking place on the

project requires high levels of skill, focus and
determination Ensuring we have the nght people
in place to take on complex projects like these,

is key to the success of our business

Our evatuation of the eco-
system wll help create data-
driven solutions to protect
the Florida Springs, through
collecting aquatic flora and
fauna and measuring water
velocrty,
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Financial review

NS Reported under IFRS

lan McHoul
Ctuet Financial Qffrcer and Intenm CEQ
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£en unleas staled 0158 2014 Change

Continuing operations

Revenue 5.455 3593 +37%

(Loss)/profit before net

financing expense (205) 148 -

(Loss)/profit before tax (235} 155 -

Cash flow from operations 220 200 +10%

Diluted earmings per share (66 1)p 351p -

Dividend per share 29.0p* 433p -33%

1 includes the propased hnal dvidend for 2015 of 14 2p per ordinary shara

Adjusted measures

]
Undertying

Em unkas stated F.ooil 2014 change’

Continuing operations

Revenue 5455 3993 +37% 7%

Trading profit! 374 321 -19%

Trading margin? 6.9% 80% -l10bps

Adjusted profit

before tax? 334 317 +5%

Trading cash flow* aas 283 +37%

Cash conversion® 104% 38%

Adjusted diluted

earrings per share® 677p 79 5p -15%

1 Tracing profit represents profit before net tinancing expense before the
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets asbestos related costs
(nat of nsurance recovenies) and exceptional lems but including the
Group s share of the trading profit of joint ventures

¢ Tracding margin represents trading profit expressed as a percentage
of revenue

3 Adjusted prohit before tax represents prohi before tax before
exceptional items the amortisetion and tmpairment ol intangble assets
asbestos refated costs and interest expense {net of insurance recovenss)
and the Group s share of tax on the results o} joint ventures

4 Trading cash {low represents cash generated fram operations before
cash flows ansing trom exceptional itemns asbestos-related payments
(net of msurance recovenes) the difference between retirement benefit
contributrans and the current servce cost legacy settlements and
discontinued operatons and currency transiation differences on working
capstal but including dvidends recerved from joint ventures

5 Cash conversion represents trading cash flow expressed as a percentage
of trading prohit

b Adjusted diluted earrings per share represents prohit for the year from
continuing operations before exceptional terns the amortrsation and
mmpairment of mtangible assets asbestos related costs and mterest
expense (net of iInsurance recovenes) and the tax effect of those items.
divided by the difuted number of orctinary shares.

T Underlying change excludes the effect of flow-threugh procurement
acquisitons and disposats of businesses and currency exchange
rate movements

Amec Foster Wheeler
Azt report and accounts 2015




Basis of preparation

Accounting policies

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS as adopted for use inthe EU and those parts of

the Companies Act 2006 that are applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS From the Group s perspective there are
no differences between IFRS as adopted for use m the EU and
IFRS as issued by the IASB

The Group s principal accounting polictes during 2015 were
unchanged compared with 2014

Cnitical accounting estimates and judgements

As outiined in note 1to the consolidated financial statements
management considers that the most sigruficant areas of
judgement and estimation made in preparing the consolidated
financiat statements arise in relation to the accounting for
long-term contracts business combinations defined benefit
penstons and other retirement benefits the estimation of
habilit:es in respect of uncertain tax positions and provisions
{inctuding asbestos-related habilities) and i assessing the
recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets

Restaterment

0On 13 November 2014 {the acquisition date) the Group
acquired 95 3% of the 1ssued share capital of Foster Wheeler
AG Due to the relatively short period of ime between the
acquisition date and 31 Decemnber 2014 management had

not finalised i1ts assessment of the fair values of certain of
Foster Wheeler's assets and habilities at the time that the 2014
financial statements were completed and as a result, the 2014
financial staterments reflected the provisional assessment of
the fair values as at the acquisition date

Buring 2015 management has completed the far value
assessment and the comparative amounts shown i the
Balance Sheet, Statement of Comprehensive Incorne,
Staterment of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement have
been restated to reflect changes made to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabitities recogrised on the acquisition of Foster
Wheeler details of which are set out in note 24

As the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG in November 2014
represented more than 90% of Foster Wheeler's 1ssued share
capital the acquisition qualifies for merger relief under section
612 of the Companses Act 2006 from crediting the share
prermium that argse on the new shares issued in consideratron
for Faster Wheeler to a share prermum account The batance
sheet as at 31 December 2014 has been restated to present the
excess of the nominal value of the shares ssued of £877m

as a merger reserve

Adjusted performance measures

We report adjusted performance measures because they
provide both management and investors with useful additional
infarmation about the underlying trading performance of

the business

The adjusted performance measures that we reported
excluded the amortisation and impairment of mtangible assets
and exceptional tems and, where refevant the tax etfects of
those items

Amec Foster Wheeier
Annual report and accounts 2015

Adjusted performance measures used by the Group are
explained and reconciled to the equivalent IFRS measures in
the section entitied Performance measures on pages 172 to 174

Continuing operations

Reverue

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheetler revenue for

the period at £5 455m was 37% higher than last year

(2014 £3993m) Fallowing its acquisition In Novermnber 2014,
Foster Wheefer contnibuted £274m to the Group s revenue

n 2014

Revenue increased by £462m inthe Americas by £199m
1n NECIS and £534m in AMEASE and in addition there was
afull year s revenue in the Global Power Group of £364m
(2014 £53m)

On a pro-forma basis and excluding the effect of currency
movements and bolt-on acquisitions underlying revenue
decreased by 7% Underlying revenue from E&I was up 14%
underpinned by growth inUS government work and clean
energy was up 2% but o1l & gas was down 8% with mining
and GPG down 24% and 209 respectively

Scope revenue at £5 176m was 6% lower than last year
(2014 £5493m) This includes scope revenue of £2 577m
inthe Amencas £1448m for NECIS and £884m tor AMEASE

Seasonalty

The Group s revenue 15 generaily higher in the second half of
the year principally because weather conditions inthe northern
hermisphere are typically more conducive to project activity

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were £872m (2014 £354m), including
exceptional ters mtangibles amortisation and imparrment and
asbestos-related costs (net of insurance recoveries) of £538m
(2014 £135m)

Adrmirustrative expenses before mtangibles amortisation

and impairment, exceptional items and asbestos-retated items
increased by £115m following the Foster Wheeler acquisition,
the impact of which was partly offset by the mpact of cost
savings achieved to date

Corporate costs which comprise the costs of operating central
corporate functions and certain regional overheads were £23m
higher at £54m (2014 £31m}) reflecting the enlarged group

{Loss)/profit betore net financing expense

There was a loss before net inancing expense of £205m
{2014 profit of £148m) as the profit generated by Foster
Wheeler has beenoffset by an ympatrment charge of

£308m in the Global Power Group business and higher
intangible amortisation resulting from the ntangible assets
recogmsed on the acquisitions of Foster Wheeler and Scopus
n 2014
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Financial review continued

Amortisation and imparrment of intangible assets

Intangible assets principally comprise goodwill and wentifiable
Intangible assets that were recognised in relation to acquired
businesses Goodwill 1s not amortised but is subject to an
annual impairment test

The results of the Global Power Group for 2015 and forecasts
for 2016 and beyond are well down on earlier expectations
gving nise to an mpairment in goodwill of £308m In additron
there has been a £7mimpairment to the order backtog
intangible asset arising on the Foster Wheeler acquisition

No impairments were recognised in 2014

Intangibles amortisation was £129m (2014 £49m) reflecting
the full-year amaortisation of intangible assets recognised on the
acquisitions of Foster Wheeler and Scopus completed i 2014

Exceptional and ashestos-related tems

Net exceptional and asbestos-related costs totaling £115m
(2014 £107m) were recogrusedin arriving at profit before
tax from continuing operations as follows

» costs of £97m relating to the integration of Foster Wheeler
and AMEC (including internal staff costs associated with
dentifying and achieving cost synergies)

» 3 £5m loss incurred following 2n unauthorised payment
made from the Australian business and not expected
to be recovered

» £13m amortisation of facility fees associated wath the
acquisitron of Foster Wheeler

» During the year ended 31 December 2015 the Group
recogmsed net asbestos-related income of £6m (2014
costs of £9m) in profit before net financing expense which
related to the movement in the discount rate applied to the
net asbestos-related habihties assumed on the acquisition of
Foster Wheeler of £5m and experiential gains of £9m as the
hatiity 15 reassessed on an annual basis In addition there
was an asbestos related interest expense of £7rn related to
the unwinding of the discount apphed to the lability and costs
of £1m assocrated with managing the hability
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Trading profit and trading margin
|

Lmuntass stated L) 204 Changs
Revenue! 5,455 3993 +37% 7%

{Loss)/profit before
net financing

expense {205) 143
- Amortisation and
impairment of
intangibles 444 49
- Net asbestos-
related (sncome)/
costs a3 8
- Exceptional items 108 94
- Share of trading
profit of joint
ventures 40 22
Trading prohtt s 321 +17% -20%
Trading margin? 6 9% 80% -110bps -10Cbps
Order book £6.6bn  £63bn +5%

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 172 to 174)

Trading profit increased by 17% to £374m (2014 £32Im)
Trading margin decreased by 110 basis paints te 6 9%
(2014 80%)

On a proforma basis and excluding the effect of currency
movernents and bolt an acquisitions trading profit was £83m
lower than 2014 with reductions in the Americas and NECIS
were partly offset by growth n AMEASE Within the Americas
trading profit fell by 36% on an underlying basis as a result
of pricing pressure In the oil & gas market and trading margin
was down by 350 basis points compared with 2014, due to

an ncreased proportion of EPC tn our scope, particularly in
downstrearn oil & gas and clean energy

Within NECIS trading profit decreased by 5% but trading
margin was 9 0% up 100 hasis points compared with 2014
with less procurement favourable contract settiements and
cost savings initiatives boosting the margin

In AMEASE trading profit rose by 18% reflecting higher
contributions from oil & gas and E&1 Trading margin was 6 5%
up 130 basis points compared with 2014 due to the early benefits
of cost saving inthiatives and favourable contract settlements

Armec Foster Wheefer
remrtr and accounts 2015




Net financing expense

The net financing expense was £58m (2014 £5m) Of this
expenses of £20m (2014 £5m) have been presented separately
on the ncome statement relating to £13m amortisatbion of the
facility fees associated with the Foster Wheeler acquisition

and £7m (2014 £1m) due to the unwinding of the discount

on ashestos related habihties (net of insurance recoveries)

Of the remaming £38m there was bank interest payable of £31m
(2014 £7m) net foreign exchange losses of £1m (2014 £nd),
and a net interest expense on pension assets and habities

of £2m (2014 income of £1m) and other costs classified

as financing of £4m (2014 £1m)

A net currency exchange loss of £3m (2014 £4m) was
recognised in the translation reserve in respect of foreign
currency borrowings and derivatives held in designated
net investment hadging relationships

Share of results of jaint ventures
The Group s share of joint ventures profit for the year was
£28m (2014 £12m)

{Loss)/profil before tax

Loss before tax was £235m (2014 proht of £155m)

after intangibles amortisatron and impairment of £444m
(2014 £49m) exceptional and ashestos-related items of
£115m (2014 £107m) and the Group s share of joint ventures
tax expense of £10m (2014 £6m)

Adjusted profit before tax was 5% higher at £334m
(2014 £317m)

Taxation

Qur tax policy 15 to manage our obhgations in comphance
with all relevant tax laws disclosure requirements and
regulations We seek to ensure that our approach to tax and
the tax payments that we make in all terntories in which we
have operations are fully consistent with local requirements
taking into account avaifable tax incentives and allowances
and are aligned with the group s wider busmess strategy

We seek to develop good apen working relationships with tax
authonties and to engage with them proactively recogmising
that tax legrslation can be complex and may be subject to
differing interpretations

The group s effective tax rale on cantinuing operations
(including its share of joint ventures iNncome tax expense
but before exceptional tems intangbles amortisation and
wmparment and asbestos-relaled itens) reduced to 22 0%
(2014 230%)

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annusl repont end sccounts 2015

We expect the effective tax rate to remain below 25%

Dunng 2015 there was a tax credit on exceptional items of
£18m (2014 tax credit of £6m) and a tax credit of £27mon
intangibles amortisation and impairment (2014 E12m)

The group s share of joint ventures income tax expense was
£10m (2014 £6m)

(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations

The loss for the year from continuing operations was £253m
(2014 profit of £106m) atter intangibles amortisation and
imparrment of £444m (2014 £49m) the nel asbestos-related
incame of £6m (2014 expense of £9m) net exceptional items
of £121m (2014 £98m) and anincome tax credit on those
items of £45m (2014 charge of £18m)

Ad|usted profit for the year from tontinuing operations was
7% higher at £261m (2014 £244m)

Non-¢ontrothing interests
During 2015 there was a loss of £1m attnbutable
to non controlling interests (2014 toss of £3m)

Earmings per share

The diluted loss per share was (67 2)p (2014 EPS 26 5p)
compnising a loss per share of (66 1)p (2014 EPS 35 1p) from
continuing operations and a loss of (1 1)p (2014 8 6p) from
discontinued operations

Ad|usted diluted EPS from continuing operations was 677p
(2014 79 5p) the reduction being due to the decline in the
profit for the year from continuing operations and the increase
n the number of Shares in Issue as a conseguence of the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler

Dividend

The Board recommends a final dividend of 14 2p per share
which together with the interim dividend of 14 8p per share,
results in a total dwidend of 29 Op per share (2014 43 3p)
areduction of 33% Subject to approval by shareholders at
the AGM on 27 April 2016 the final dividend will be payable
on 4 July 2016 to sharehelders on the register at the close
of business on 27 May 2016

Dividend cover for 201515 2 3 himes (2014 1 8 imes) based
on adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations

As announced in November 2015 it 1s the current intention of
the board that ordinary dwidends in 2016 will be approximately
half that dectared 1 2014 with approximately one-third paid at
the intenim and two-thirds as a final dwidend
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Financial review continued

Results by operating segment
(presented on a pro forma basis)
Americas
. |
Underiying
£ uniess sated 2008 2014 Crangs chungs!
Revenue 2,646 2,705 -2% -3%
Profit belore net
financing expense 94
- Intangibles
amortisaton and
impairment 46
- Exceptionat tems 2
- Share of trading
prohit of joint
ventures )
Trading profit! 161 258 -38% 36%
Trading margin 61% 96% 350bps
Order book £20bn £20bn -

1 Non IFRS measure (see Pertarmance measures on pages 172 to 174)

Revenue in Americas was £2 646m (2014 £2,705m) a
decrease of 206 Excluding the effect of bolt-on acquisitions
and currency movements, underlying revenue was down 3%
Growth in underlying revenue in the downstream oil & gas
clean energy and E&1 was offset by dechnes i upstream

ol & gas and mining

Trading profit fell by 33% to £161m (2014 £258m), as aresult
of pricing pressure n the oil & gas market Trading margin was
6 1%, down by 350 basis points compared with 2014 due to
anncreased proportion of EPC i our scope particularly

n downstream ol & gas and clean energy
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Northern Europe and CIS (NECIS)

. ]
Undertywg

Em uress sLated w1 201 Changs change’

Revenue 1492 1705 -12% -13%

Profit before net

financing expense &0

- Intangibles
amortisation and ‘
impairrment 41

- Exceptional items 13

- Share of trading !
profit of joint
ventures 20

Trading profit! 134 137 2% 5%

Trading margin? 90% 80% +100bps

Order book £2.4bn  £23bn +4%

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 172 to 174)

Revenue i NECIS fell by 12% to £1 492m (2014 £1.705m)
primanly due to a downturn i ol & gas project activity

Excluding the effect of bolt-an acquisitions and currency I
movements underlying reveniue was also down 13% |

Trading profit decreased by 2% to £134m (2014 £137m)
Trading margn was 9 0% up 100 basis ponts compared

with 2014 Less procurement favourable contract settierments
and cost savings intiatives boosting the margin

Asia, Middle East Afnca and Southern Europe (AMEASE)
- ]

Lmuness stated s 2014 Changs :r:!n";'
Revenue 1,050 1031 +2% +2%
Profit before net
financing expense bk}
- Intangibles
amortisation and
impairment 23
- Exceptional tems 8
- Share of trading '
proht of joint .
ventures 4 .
Trading profit! 68 53 +27% +18% !
Trading margin' 65% 52% +130bps
Order book £18bn £16bn +6% !

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 172 tg 174)

Revenue in AMEASE was up 2% year on yaar at £1,050m
(2014 £103Im) dnven by antncrease in US government work
and reduction in mming work Excluding the effect of bolt-on
acquisitions and currency movements, underlying revenue
was up 2%

Trading profit rose by 279% to £68m (2014 £53m) reflecting

higher contnbutions from ol & gas and E&I Trading margin :
was 6 5% up 130 basis points compared with 2014, due to !
the early benefits of cost saving wnutiatives and favourable

contract settlements

Amer Fostir Whieeler
Anrusl repart and accounts 2015




Global Power Group
|

Underlyng
Lm unless stated 2018 2014 Changs
Revenue 364 454 20% -20%
Profit before net
financing expense (302)
= Intangibles
amorhsation and
impairment 334
- Exceptional items 4
- Share of trading
profit of joint
ventures 15
Trading profit! 51 68 26% 3%
Trading margin' 14 0% 152% -120bps
QOrder book EQ04abn  £04bn -

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performarce measuras on pages 172 to 174)

Revenues in GPG fell by 20% to £364m (2014 £454m)
pnmanty driven by a dechine in project activity On an underlying
basis revenue was also down 20%

Trading profit fell by 26% to £51m (2014 £69m} Trading margin
was 14 0%, down 120 basis points driven by pricing pressure

in weak market conditions and lower resource utihsatien and
reflecting the non-recurrence of £20m one-off income from
ahcense settlement 1n 2014

Investment Services

Duning the periods under review, Investment Services
principally compnsed the incheon Bridge PPP project in Karea
and the Lancashire Waste project (whuch the group exited

in 2014), the Group's insurance captive the Group's wind
development activities and a range of other non-core activities

Revenue in Investment Services was £15m (2014 £6m)
Investment Services made a profit before net financing expense
of £10m (2014 loss of £16m) after deducting an exceptional
loss on disposal of businesses of £2m (2014 £21m) Trading
profit was £14m (2014 £9m) of which £2m (2014 £3m) was
denved from joint ventures

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent the residual assets and
retained obhgations of businesses sold i prior years together
with the UK conventional power business that was classified
as a discontinued operation during 2013

Discontinued operations generated a trading loss before
tax of £6m (2014 loss of £10m) and after a tax credit of
£1m (2014 £2m) generated a loss for the year of £5m
(2014 loss of £8m) Duning 2014 negative revenue of £13m
was recognised due to the settlement of final accounts and
additional provisions an certain contracts within the UK
conventional power business

Amnec Fester Whesler
Annual report and actourts 2015

Discontinued operations mcluded a profit on disposals of

£1m (2014 loss £23m) anstng from moverments inindemnity
provistons and costs associated with businesses sold in prior
years In 2014, the loss on disposals included a provision of
£llminrespect of a new claim receved in the year related to
acontract completed by the built environment business which
was sold in 2007

Discantinued operations generated an overall loss for the year
of £4m (2014 £27m)

Acquisitions
There were no acquisitions duning 2015

Acquisition of Faster Wheeler in 2014

On 13 Novermber 2014 the Group acquired a 95 3% interest in
Foster Wheeler AG by way of 2 public tender offer Consideration
payable for the interest acquired totalled £1 915m, of which
£979m was settled incash £919mwas settled by the issue

of approximately 85m of the Company s ordinary shares and
£17m was settled by the grant of replacement share options
and awards

During 2015 management completed its assessment of the net
identifiable assets of Foster Wheeler as at the acqusition date
This resulted in the recogmition of goodwall of £1 726m on the
acqusition of Foster Wheeler

In January 2015 the Group acquired the remammng 4 7%
interest in Foster Wheelar AG by way of a squeeze-out merger
under Swiss law for consideration of £85m of which £51m was
paid in cash and £34m was settled by the issue of 4 3m of the
Company s ordinary shares and ADSs

Further details of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler are set out
in note 24 to the accompanying financial nformation

tiquidity and capntal resources

Trading cash flow

Trading cash flow of £388m was £105m higher than last year
(2014 £283m) principally due to the increase in trading profit
following the acqursition

Cash conversion was 104% (2014 88%)

Cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations was £220m (2014 £200m)
aincrease of £20m which was largely with the £105m
increase in trading cash flow partly offset by an increase

of £41m in the cash outilow on exceptional items (principalty
integration-related costs)

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangible
assets were £36m (2014 £31m) Additionally in 2014
purchases of computer software amounting to £33m were
financed using deferred payment arrangements
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Financial review continued

Acquisitions and disposals

Ouring 2015 there was a cash cutflow of £5m inrespect of
deferred conswderation arrangements on prior year acquisitions
There was a ¢ash cutflow of £54m from the acquisition of the
non controlling interests in Foster Wheeler and Kromav this s
presented within financing activities in the cash flow statement

Ouring 2014 consideration pard an the acquisition of
businesses was £1 049m which comprised £982m for Foster
Wheeler {including a currency hedging loss of £3m) and
£67m for Scopus The net cash outflow on acquisitions was
£781m after decucting cash and cash equivatents of £268m
{2014 Enil) held by the acquired businesses

Movement in net (debt)/cash
The movermnent in net {debt)/cash may be analysed as follows

2018 20
Yaar anded 31 December Im £m
Trading cash flow 388 283
Write off of inance arrangement fees {12) -
Net asbestos related payments (22) {5)
Excess of retirement benefit contributions
over current service cost (3 (2)
Cash outflow on exceptional items 72) (58)
Legacy settlements and
discantinued operations (36) (9)
Dividends recewved from joint ventures {42) (14)
Exchange rate mavemnents 19
Cash generated from aperations 220 200
income taxes paid {net) {79) (54)
Interest paid (net) (35) (3)
Capital expenditure {net of disposals) (36) {31)
Acquisitions and disposals (net) {51) (876)
Ordinary dwidends (167 (124)
Net share movements 10 ]
Dridends recewved from joint ventures 42 14
Exchange and other movements a3 7)
Cash movement in net debt {63) (875)
Naon-cash movements (80) (49)
Movement in net debt (143) {924)
Opening net debt (803) 121
Closing net debt {946) (803)

Net debt compnsed
"

018 2014
Az 2t 31 December = tm
Cash and cash equivalents 307 377
Cash depostits 33 118
Cash deposits »3m 23 21
Financial dervatives 14 -
Bank foans {net of facility lees) (1.264) (1258)
Finance lease obhgations {59) (61)
Net debt (946) {803)
Cash balances

We manage our cash balances such that there s no
significant cencentration of risk 1n any one bank or other
financial nstitution We monitor closely the credit quality
of the institutions that hold the Group s deposits Simuilar
consideration s given to the Group $ portioho of derivative
financial iInstruments

As at 31 December 2015 the Group had cash balances totalling
£363m (2014 £516m} of which 63% was held in institutions
with a long term credit rating of at least A- {or equwvalent)

by at least two of Standard & Poor 5 Moody s or Fitch

Barrowings

Borrowing facilities

We seek to maintain a balanced capital structure comprising a
mux of debt and equity, which 1s determuned by considening the
Group's business profide and strategy, financial policies and the
availablity and cost of funding We target the Group s long term
net debt to be no more than two times trading profit

As at 31 December 2015 the Group had commutted banking
facilities of £1768m (2013 £1863m)

In February 2014 the Group entered into aUS$2 160m
credit faciity agreement with a syndicate of lenders In July
2014 the facility agreement was amended to among other
things increase the financing available under the faciity to
US$2,260m As at 31 December 2015 the facilities avallable
under the agreement were as foliows

» Faciity B, a US$830m bridge facilty maturing August 2016
{with a six month extension available at the Group s option

» Faciity C a US$830m termioan maturing in equal
nstalments in 2017 2018 and 2019

» Facility D, a US$350m revolving credit facility matuning
May 2016

Amac Foster Whesler
Arnuzlreport and accounts 2015




Facitities B and C were for the purpose of financing the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler including the payment of afl

fees, costs and expenses associated with the acquisition and
the repayment of the Group s £100m 12-month term loan

that matured in April 2014 Facility D s available for general
corporate purposes but may not be used for the same purposes
as Facilities B and C Facility D15 currently utiised only for
providing bank guarantees We also have a five year £377m
multi-currency revolving credst facility that matures in July 2017

On 1 March 2016 the Group entered into a new syndicated
faciity compnising of three tranches athree year £650m

term loan, 2 five year £650m term loan and a live-year £400m
revolving credit faciity This new facility replaces the company s
existing £377m revolving credit facihty and the Foster Wheeler
acquisition facility of $2,260m

As at 31 Decemnber 2015 the Group had commutted borrowing
headroom of £442m (m addition to cash cash equivalents and
bank deposits of £363m)

Finclsty Orpwwyps Heacrorm
£m £m Em

Credit facility agreement
- Facility B 563 263 0
- Facility C 563 563 1]
- Facility D 237 62 175
Revohlving credit facirty 377 110 267
Project debt 26 26 -
Other 2 2 -
Finance leases 55 59 -
Commutted facihties 1827 1385 442

Interest rate profile
The majonty of the Group s borrowmngs are denominated in US
dollars and bear interest at filoatng rates

Qur policy 1s to maintain between 309 and 70% of the Group s
borrowings at fixed rates of interest We achieve this by using
interest rate swaps and other interest rate deratives As al

31 December 2015 only 28% of the Group s borrowings were
effectively at fixed interest rates due to the ongoing refinancing
activity in 2015 This wall be reviewed in Q1 2016 following the
completion of the reftnancing

As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average effective cost of
the Group s outstanding borrowings was 3 4% and the effectve
interest matunty was 11 months

Borrowing covenants

We are subject to customary covenants representations

and warranttes in relation to our borrowing faciities Our debt
financing faciity contains certain linancial covenants as defined
mn the facihty agreement including

» the ratio of consolidated net total borrowings to adjusted
consohdated EBITDA must not exceed 3 25 imes EBITDA

» the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to consolidated net finance
costs must not be less than 30 times

We satisfied these financial covenants by a comfortable margin
for the year ended 31 December 2015

A Foster Whecler
Annul repon and accounts 2015

Currency profile of debt

We aim to maintamn the currency of the Group s debt in
proportion to the currencies tnwiuch the net assets of

the Group s businesses are denominated We achieve the
desired currency profile of the Group s debt by borrowing
In the relevant currency and also by entering into currency
derivative contracts

As at 31 December 2015 the eftect of our hedging activity
on the currency profile of the Group s debt was as follows

Dwist byfore Effect of Debit after

Currency
- Sterling 137 23 160
- US dollar 1160 (448) 7z
-~ Euro 26 207 233
- Canadian doltar 0 218 218
1323 0 1,323

Other assets and habilities

Goodwill and other intangibles

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amaunt of goodwill was
£2,192m (2014 £2,516m) with the reduction during the year
principally an impairment of £308m recognised agamnst the
goodwill attnibutable to the Global Power Group business

See note 12 for further details

As at 31 December 2015 the carrywig amount of other
intangbles was £833m (2014 £927m) which comprised
acquired identifiable intangible assets of £753m (2014
£849m) and computer software of £80m (2014 £78m)
There was an imparment charge of £7m recogmsed against
the order back log intangible asset ansing as part of the
Foster Wheeler acquisition

Amortisation of £129m (2014 £49m) reflects a full year's
amortisation of the intangible assets arising on the Foster
Wheeler and Scopus acqursitions, bothin 2014

Research and development

QOur engmeenng project management and consultancy
businesses seek to develop advanced engineering solutigns

for our customers targeted towards the achievement of new

or improved functions and performance of therr assets Our
businesses are involved in front-end and detalled engineering
design and implernentation and testing actwities across a broad
range of markets including the Ot & Gas Mining and Clean
Energy sectors

GPG also conducts research and development activities

n the areas of combustion selid flud and gas dynarmics
heat transfer materials and sohid mechanics GPG licenses
its technology to a imited number of third parties n select
countries or markets

in the UK, the US and Canada the Group claims research and
development government credits Research and development
expenditure net of amounts recoverable from customers and
government crechts claimed is not matenal to the Group s
operating results
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Financial review continued

Property plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2015 property plant and equipment
armnounted to £127m (2014 £150m), with a reduction of £23m
during the year due as the additions of £16m were more than
offset by depreciation of £26m and other smaller movements

We hold the majority of the properties through which the Group
operates under operating {eases which are for varying periods
and on differing terms The Group has a network of over 350
offices worldwide which range from regional hubs with a
headcount of between 1000 and 2 500 emplayees to smaller
offices with more local focus 15 expected that the number

of properties that are occupied by the Group will be reduced
following the integration of Foster Wheeler s businesses

Pue to the geographical spread of the Group s operations
thare 1s no individual facility the loss of which would have a
matenal adverse impact on the Group s operations Equally
there are no plans to construct expand or improve facillities
that would, on completion or cancellation significantly affect
the group s cperations

Post-retirement benefits

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension plans in
anumber of countries There are three principal plans two in
the UK and one in the US Each of these plans s closed to new
entrants and the two legacy Foster Wheeler plans are 2lso closed
to future service accruals Following an employee consultation
exercise at the end of 2015 the Company has now confirmed
its intention to close its UK Staff and Executive Defined Benefit
pension schemes to future accrual from 1 Apnl 2016 and
replace them with a new Defined Contribution arrangement
Subject to ganing the necessary Trustee approvals all legacy
Defined Contribution plans in the UK will be merged into the
new arrangement by 30 June 2016 As at 31 December 2015
there was a net surplus of £63m on the Group's defined benefit
pension plans (2014 deficit of £86m) principally due to actuanial
gains m the defined benefit iabiity During 2015 the Group
contributed £36m (2014 £32m) to defined benefit pension
plans and expects to contribute £36min 2016 including special
contributions of £6m

Further information on the Group s retirement benefit plans s
provided in note 14 to the accompanying financial information

Pravisions

Prowistons hetd at 31 December 2015 amounted to £664m
(2014 £756m} with the substantial reduction during the year
ansing principally due 1o the utilisation of brought forward
prowisions of £64m QOtherwise additional provisions of £33m
were created and unutihsed provisions amounting to £38m
were released during 2015 In addition there was an exchange
movement of £22m on the opering balances

Provisions may be summarised as follows

- |
2018 2014
Ay at 31 December im km
Asbestos-related hitigation 3 400
Legal claims and actions 154 217
Cbligations relating to disposed
businesses 78 86
Property-related prowisions 19 19
Other provisions kL] 34
664 756
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Asbestos-related obligations

The Group is subject to claims by indivduals who allege that
they have suffered personal injury from exposure to asbestos
primanily in connectron with equipment allegedly manufactured
by certain of their subsidsanies during the 1970s or earher

As at 31 December 2015 the Group recognised

» an asbestos-related provision of £414m (after the effect of
discounting of £74m) whichincluded estimates of indermmity
amounts and defence costs for open and yet to be asserted
claims expected to be mcurred m each year in the period
to 2050

» Insurance recoveries of £118m (after discounting of £4my)

Management expects that there will be a net cash outflow
of £22m during 2016 due to the excess of forecast indemnity
payments and defence costs over Insurance proceeds

Details of the provisions held by the group are set out nnote 21
to the accompanying financial information

Non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2015 non-controiling interests in equity
amounted to £9m (2014 £22m) with the reduction during the
year being principally due to the acquisition via a squeeze out
merger of the 4 7% non-conirolling interest n Foster Wheeler
AG that existed when the Group took control of Foster Wheeler
in Novernber 2015 and was subsequently acquired by the Group
n January 2016

Distnbutable reserves
As at 31 Decernber 2015 the Company s distributable reserves
stood at £564m (2014 £726m)

tm
As at 31 December 2014 726

Dividends paid during 2015 (167)

Dividends receved from subsidiaries 100 f
Imparment charges (14) {
Integration costs (30) ‘
Other costs (51) !
As at 31 December 2015 564

In total there was a write down of £351m against the investments
in subsidiary undertakings Of this £337m was charged against
the merger reserve and so has noimpact on distribuiable
profits, and £14m against the profit and loss account reserve

During 2012 the Company generated a sigruficant profit froma
Group restructuring which becomes distributable as quatifying
consideration 15 received by the Company in settiement of the

associated loan There were no repayments of this loan duning

2015 or 2014

A Foster Whael!
Annug) reponarldagmunu 2015




Contractual obligations

As at 31 December 2015 the Group s contractual obligatons were as follows
-~~~ ]

Earbest pirnexd 11 whach pyment duse
Laxs than Batwsu o Barbwetisn two Alyr more
Tatzl Ot i and twed yepry ared trep yeurs iy tve sy
&m im L m m

Bank and other loans
= Principal 1264 679 192 386 7
- interesp? 47 16 15 16 -
Denvative financial instruments? 2 25 21 1 3 -
Finance leases 59 4 18 24 13
Operating leases 385 85 80 144 75
Post-retrement benefits? 36 36 - - -
Totat! 1,816 842 306 573 a5

1 Floating rate interest payments and payments on the {loating rate legs of interest rate denvatves are estunated based on market nterest rates as at

31 Decernber 2015

2 Payments on foresgn curmency derwatives are estimated based on market exchange rates as at 31 December 2015

3 Post employment benefit obbgahions represent contributons to winch the Group 1s commutted and are not subect to potential future adjustment to reflect

nwestment performance and other actuarial tactors

4 Future payments relating to the Group s uncertain tax positions are not mcluded because 1115 not practicable to estimate reiably the timing of these

cash outflows

Off-batance sheet arrangements

At 31 December 2015 the Group had no off-balance sheet
arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a
current or future effect on the Group s financiat condition
revenues or expenses results of operations, iquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that is material to tnvestors

Details of the Group's operating lease commitments are
set out In note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

Outlook for 2016

2016 15 expected to be another year of challengng market
conditions across upstream il & Gas and Mining However, our
exposure to a number of end markets including downstream
Ol & Gas renewables and government work means we expect
to see cnly a shght fall in tke-lor-bke revenue and a reduction in
trading margns significantly less than the dechine in 2015

Going cancern

Based on internal forecasts and projections that take into
account reasonably possible changes n the Group’s trading
performance the directors consider that the Company and
the group have adequate financial resources to continue in
operation Accordingly the directors continue to adopt the
going congern basis in prepanng the Company's and the
group s financial statements

We outline on pages 18 to 21 the principal risks and
uncertamties that may affect the Group's results cash flows
and financial position

Directors’ approval statement
The strategic report as set out on pages 1to 37 has been
reviewed and approved by our board of directors

lan McHoul
Chief Financial Officer and intenm CEQ
10 March 2016
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Connected

excellence

|
The proposed nuclear power

station at Moorside in
Cumbria will supply 3AGW
of electrecity - 79 of the
UK's requirements - when
it begins operating in 2024.

through sharing
skills across
our markets




|
Our Analytical Services Laboratories are some of
the largest inthe UK, carrying out radiochemical
analysis for awide range of chents

In 2015 our E&J dmsion announced two separate
contracts with Nugeneration Ltd (NuGen) on its
Moorside project in West Cumbria

E&l has engaged specialist radiological protection
support and commussioned radiochermistry work
from our clean energy colleagues during the
course of the project, collaborating effectively
across the business to deliver the best results

for the client
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Chairman’s governance overview

]
Good corporate governance helps to underpin
long-term effective company performance

Your board 1s responsible for the governance
structure at Amec Foster Wheeler and 1s
committed to delivering the highest standards

for the benefit of all of the Group's stakeholders

Dear shareholder,

The cbjective of this report 1s to set out what we belreve to be
essential to ensure that our strong governance frameworks are
apphed throughout your Company This section of the report
specifically exammes the detasls of the work of your board over
the past 12 months and the processes we implemented

| mentioned in my letter last year that we support current best
prachcee for boards to engage an external speciaitst to review
their activity every three years Following the 2014 engagement
of Lintstock to assist us in this 1 am pleased to report that
during 2015 avery directar had in-depth assessment interviews
with one of thewr external faciitators

In September 2014 the UK Financial Reporting Councilissued
a revised version of the UK Corporate Governance Code and we
are reporting aganst this framework for the first time in respect
of our 2015 financial year Designed to strengthen our focus

on and enhance the quality of information around long-term
health strategy and sustained value creation the revised code
inctudes significant changes including the introduction of a
viability statement and a requirernent for the board 1o report
on the efectiveness of nsk management in your Company

2015 15 also the first year when your Company needed to be
camphant with provisions of the US Sarbanes Oxley Act of
2002 on management s assessment of internal control over
financial reporting which we successtully achieved, on targat
by 31 December 2015 This process has added additional
requirements to your board s committee activities

In my Chairman s report on page 6 (| cuthine the board changes
winich have occurred since the start of 2015 lan McHoul was
apponted intenim CEO on 17 January 2016 following Samir
Brikho stepping down as Chief Executive The search for anew
CEQC with which Korn Feery has been appointed to assist us,

15 progressing well and an announcement will be made in due
course once a decision has been reached

Stnce my last report Simon Thompson retired from the

board and Netl Carson took on the roles of Sentor Independent
Director and Chairrman of the Remuneration Commuttee

Roy Frankhin joined the board on 1 January 2016

In addition to ithng an annual report in the UK, we are required
to also file our annual report in the US on Form 20-F which
complies with the reporting requiremenits of the New York Stock
Exchange US secunities laws and the rules of the Securties and
Exchange Comrmussion applicable to torergn private 1ssuers We
have preduced for the secend bime a combined annual report
and annual report an Ferm 20 F lo ensure consistency in the
infermation provided to our UK and US investors

In the UK the UK Corporate Governance Code* (the Code}
1s the standard against which we are required tc measure our
corporate governance practices and provides the framework
for our govemance report in the opinion of the directors
your Company has complied with the provisions of the
September 2014 edition of the Code in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015 The governance report examines
how we have apphed these provisions As requered by the SEC
a summary outhning the significant differences between the
Comgany's corporate governance practices as a UK hsted
company and those followed by US comparves can be found
on page 191

In 2016 the board will continue to apply the tughest standards
of governance to assure your Company achieves optimal
performance in these very challenging markets

copees of the UK Corporate Governance Code can be cbtained from
www frcpublications com

Amet foster Wheder
Al report and accounts 2015
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Leadership and effectiveness
QOur board of directors

______________________________________________________|
Qur board members are selected to ensure and
maintain an effective balance of skills, experience.
independence and knowledge of the areas in
which Amec Foster Wheeler operates and in the
duties and responsibilities associated with being
adirector of alisted company

|
John Connolly

Chairrnan of the board Chairman of the nommatons comnuttee

and a member of the remuneration committee

A chartered accountant John spent his career until May 2011 with globat
professional serwces firm Delotte John pined the firm in 1980 serving
Invarnous roles of mereasmg responstbdity Durmg fes tume at Deicitte he
held a8 wide range of senior leadership posstions in {he United Kingdom and
nternationally He was Glabal Charman between 2007 and 2011 and Global
Managing Director from 2003 to 2007 He was Senior Partner and CEO of the
UK Partnershup from 1999 until is retirement lrom the Partnerstup in 2011

John s chairman o GAS pic ard alsa of a number of prvate compantes

Beyond commercial business roles John & Charman of the Board of Trustees
of Great Qrmond Street Hosprtat Chanty and a member of the CBI President s
Advisory Council

Term of office

John was appointed as non executive Charman on § June 2011 and was
considered to be iIndependent on appontment m accordance with the
requrements of the Code

His 1arm of office was extended in March 2015 for a second threg-year term
to the date of the 2018 AGM
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Our board of directors continued

]
lan McHoul

Cheel Firancial Otficer and intenm CEQ
lan qualified a5 a Chartered
Accouniant with KPMG n 1984

His earty career was spent in the
brewng tndustry Between 1985 and
1995 he held vanous postiens with
the Foster 5 Brewing Group inchucing
General Manager Strategy He was
Financa & Strategy Director ol tha
Inntrepreneur Pub Company Lindted
from 1995 to 1998 and then served at
Scottish & Newcastle plc from 1998
o 2008 first as Finance Director

of Scottish Courage and later as
Group Finance Director of Scottrsh

& Newcastle plc lan holds a BScin
Mathematics from the Unrversiy

of Bristol

Term of office

lan was appointed intennm CEO on
17 January 2016 and Chied Financial
Qtficer on 8 Septernber 2008 and
has no fixed term of office His
service contract 15 terminable on six
and twelve months notice by him
andt the Company respectively

External apposntments

12n has been anon executive director
of Britvi¢ pic smce March 2014 and
was a non executive director of
Prermuer Foods pic from July 2004

to Apnit 2013

42

I
Linda Adsmany

Non executive Director Chairman

of the heatth satety secunty
envirormental and ethics (HSSEE)
commifles and a member of the
audit remuneration and nominations
committees

Lircia has over 40 years business
experience with 27 i the
international gnergy sector Betwaen
1980 and 2007 Linda held a number
of executive positions at BP pic in
the UX and US During that irne

she held vanous executive rales in
refining and marketing exploration
and production and petrochemucals
including Chuat Executive of BP
Shepping and Group Vice Prescetit
and Commerzial Director BP
Refiming & Marketing

inMarch 2013 Linda was appointed
anon executive diectar of Coeur
Mining inc aUS based pudicly
quoted primary siver producer
where she serves as chairman of the
audit cornmittee and 15 3 member
of the environmental health

safety and socul responsibility
committes InMarch 2014 Linda was
appomnted to the boar of directors
of Leucadia tvatronal Corporation
2aUS based NYSE-listed diversifted
holding cormpany engaged through
its consolhdated subsicharies in
avariety of businesses where

she 15 amember of the audit and
the nominating and corporate
governance cormmittees From 2006
to 2012 pner to pinting Amec Foster
Wheeler Lindawas anon execulive
director ol Nahona! Grid pic and a
member of their sudit nominatons
and safety ervironment and health
committees Linda s a qualihed
accountant (CPA) with a BS¢in
Business Admimistration from

John Carrall Uruversity Ohio and
has also undertaken pest graduate
non degree executive programmes
at Harvard Cambredge and
Tsinghua universities

Taren of ofiice

Linda was appeinted anon axecutme
directer on 1 October 2012

In January 2016 her term of office
was extended for a second three year
term to the date of the 2015 AGM

|
Nell Carson

Sermor independent Director
Chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of

the audit 2nd heatth safety

securnity amaronmental and ethics
(HSSEE) commuttees

Nell was Chief Executive of Johnson
Matthey Pic the FTSE 100 specaality
charnical company from 2004 to
June 2014 and stepped down as &
member of the board wn September
2014 Ha joined the company in 1980
aner completing an engneering
degree and hald a number of senr
managemant positions mboth the
UK and US including Managing
Director of Catalysts & Chermicals
fram 1999 to 2004 and Divssion
Directer of Catalytic Systems from
1997 to 1999

In Juty 2014 Neil became a

non executiva director of PayPoint
ple where he also serves as
charrman of the remuneration
committge and sertor independent
director In May 2015 Ned joined

the board of TT Electronics pic s
Chairman He |s currently Honorary
Presdent ot the Scciety for Chermical
tndustry (SCU) and ca chayr of the
Chemistry Growth Partnership
which i3 working with the
gavernment to stimulate growth in
the industry inthe United Kingdom
Ned was previously a foundng
member of the Princa of Wales
Corporate Lesders Group on Chmate
Change Nell recenved an engineenng
degree irom Lanchester Polytechni
(now Coventry Unmversity) and has
been awarded an Honorary Doctor ot
Business Adminustration from Angha
Ruskin Unrversity

Terrn of pfiice

Neilwas appointed 2 non executrve
director on 31 August 2010 His term
of office was extended n February
2014 tor a second three year term
to the date ol the 2017 AGM

]
Coiin Day

Non executive Director Chairman

cf the audit commuttes and a
member of the remunaration and
nominations committees

Cotn has mare than 25 years of
expenence of biue chip companies
including Aegis Group Pic ABB
Group De La Rue Group Pic and
British Gas Cotin was appointed
Chiet Executiva Officer of Essentra
pic {formerty Fritrona pic) on

1Apnl 2011 prior to which he was
Chet Financial Officer of Reckitt
Benckiser Group plc from 2000 to
2011 Between 1995 and 2000 he
served as Group Finance Director

of Aegis Group pic He spent $ix
yezrs in & nurmber of dwisional
hinance director pesitions with ABB
Group and served as Group Finance
Dwector of ABB Kent Instrumentation
and ABB Kent pic from 1988 to

1994 Cobin started his career in 1373
83 a frainee accountant at Keodak

Hu s 2 Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certilied Accountants and
holds an MBA from Crantield Schoal
of Managemert UK

Cobn has been a director of

FM Globat since January 2034 and
was appointed as a NoN executive
director and chawman of the audit
committes of Meggit pic on 1
Qctober 2015 He was previously a
non-executive diractor of WPP pic
trom 2005 to June 2015 Colinwas
appomnted to the FRC Audit Advisory
Group on 3 July 2014

Termofotfice

Cohn was appointed a non executive
director on 14 October 2010 Hx term
of office was extended m February
2014 for a second three year term

to the date of the 2017 AGM

At Foster Wheoter
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Roy A Franklin

Non executive Director and member
ol the nomnations compmitiee

Roy has more than 40 years
expenence as an exacutive in the

ol & gas ndustry He spent 18 years
at BF latterly as Head of M&A

BP Exploration after which he was
Group MD of Ciyde Patroleum and
then CEQ of Paladin Resources until
its acquisiton by Talisrnan Energy

in 2005 Since then Roy has served
on a number of international energy
boards in non executive roles

Roy 1s currently chairman of Keller
Group pke deputy chairman of Statoil
ASA and a non executrve director

of Santes Ltd He s atso currently
chamrman of privatety owned
Cuadrila Resources Holdings Ltd
and 3 member of the adwvisory board
of Kerogen Captal LLC

Term of otice

Roy was 2ppointed 2 non executve
directer onl January 2016 for an
imtial term of three years which will
end at the 2019 AGM

in accardance with the Company s
articles of association Roy will retire
from office at the forthcoming AGM
and offer hamself tor election

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual repert and accounts 2015

]
Kant Masters

Non executve Director and
member ol the health safety
secunty environmental and ethics
committee (HSSEE)

Kent was the Chief Executeve Otficer
of Fostar Wheeler AG from 2011 until
tha completion of the acquisition

by AMEC in November 2014 Prior

to jomning Foster Wheeler ha served
a5 armernber of the Executve Board
of Linde AG a world leading gases
and enginesring company from
2006 to 2011 At Linde Kent had
responsibdity for the Armercas
Africa the South Pacihe the global
bustress unit Healthcare and

the busness area Merchant and
Packaged Gases He was employed
by BOC Group ple from 1984 until the
sequisition of BOC by Linda i 2006
Kent served in rolas of mcreasng
responsibility at BOC including

as Chua! Exgcutive industrial and
Specwal Products from 200510
2006 and as President Process Gas
Solutions Amencas from 2002 to
2005 He also served on the board of
directors of BOC from 2005 to 2006

Kent served as the non executive
chaiman of Alrican Oxygen Lomtect
ftrom 2005 to 2011 Kent poined the
board of Albemarie in Janvary 2015
fellowang 1s acquisition of Rockwood
Hokdings Inc where he had served
a5 a director since 2007 Kent rs
amember of the compensation
eommuttee at Albemarle and served
on the audit and compensaton
committees at Rockwood

Term of office

Kent was appointed a non executive
director on 13 February 2015 for an
uutal term of three years whuch will
end at the 2018 AGM

]
Stephanis Newty

Non executive Director member

of the audit and heaith safaty
setunty environmental and ethics
(HSSEE) comrmuftees

Stephanie is the Chief Exacut ive
Q#icer of Crimson Hexagon abig
data social analytics company Pror
to Crmson Hexagon she founded
Golden Seeds in 2004 an investment
company that provides investment
capital to earty stage high growth
comparies Previously she spent
20 years working i the linancial
services Industry v Sydney London
and New York with the majority of
her career spent with J P Morgan
where she headed several globa
businesses serving as Global Head
of Futures and Optrons Head ol
International Private Banking Chief
Operating Gifwcer of Global Equaties
and Head of eCommerce

Apponted n 2004 Stephanie

was a member of the Foster Wheeler
AG baard until the completcn of

the acquisition by AMEC serving

on the audit and governance and
nominating committees She also
previqusly served as a non executive
drector and member of the audit and
compensabon and HR committees

of RiskMetncs Group Inc

Term of office

Stephanie was apported & non
suecutive drector on 13 Nowernber
2014 for an oubizl term of three years
which will end at the 2018 AGM

We will continue to seek to
build upon and complement
the board s existing skills
set, including a focus on
increased diversity whether
this 1s through gender

race nationalty or general
background The review of the
effectiveness of the board In
2014 identified the need for
additional expertise in ol &
gas markets and this led to
Roy Franklin s appointment
at the beginning of 2016

Indepandanca of non-wxscutive
directors

The board consxiers that with

Ihe exception of Kent Masters
whose pravicus employment by
Foster Wheeler preciudes bum from
meeting the required ndependence
critena the non executve
directors ere independent and

free from any telatonsiups or
circumstances that could affect
thetr independent judgement
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Amec Foster Wheeler governance structure

Board

Tha board has awnershup
of the global policres

Board committeea
Suppart the board i ts work with specitic review and aversight

Audit Nominstions

Provides independent idenuifies and makes

scnytiny of the Company s recommendations

financial and non-knancial concerming the

performance risks and composstion of the board

audit funchons and that of ts committees
Group Leadership Team

Responsivie for implementation of the global policies
Chief Exacutive

shareholder value
Management committees and groups
Deal genarally with more gperational matters

Ponsions and
retrement benefits

Share allotiment

Corporste tmnsactions Tander review

Behaviours, vision, values,
Code of Business Conduct, global policles

Business unit lsaders

Business unit teams

Hestth. Safuty, Security

Re atlon

Environmental and Ethi
As3ists m uphoiding our
cora valua of ntegrty and
maintaming our MSSEE
commitments for a sate and
secure working snveonment

Primanly responsible for runming
Amec Foster Wheeler s busmesses
with the objectve of craating

Risk

Disclosure

Aims to attract and retain
good management and to
incentonsa them to create
shareholder value

HSSE review

Group projsct review

Chief Financial Offfcer

Functional leaders

Functional teams

Global
mandatory procedures

Local Jurisdictional

policies and procedures

Amec Foster

Wheeder
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Board role and responsibilities

The board 15 collectively respansible for delivering sustarnable
long-term shareholder value in hine with its obligations to and
the expectations of the Group s stakeholders

The board 1s responsible for setting the Company's strategic
aims and providing the leadership and rescurces to achieve its
objectives The board s role 15 to be distinguished from overall
operational management which s the responsibility of the
Chief Executive who in turn delegates authonties to the Chief
Financial Officer business unit and functional leaders They
have in turn further delegated authorities to their teams

In order to ensure it retains appropriate overall control

of the Group, a number of key matters are not delegated

to management and as such the board maintains a schedule
of matters reserved for its approval These include

» annual strategic and short-range plans
» inancial and treasury policies

» risk identification, nisk appetite, risk management
and internal control systems

» high-valtue potentially high-nsk projects

» major acguisitions and disposals

» Code of Busmess Canduct

» full and halt-year accounts

» dwvidend policy

» succession planming for directors and senior executives
» group-wide policy framework

» ensunng the effectiveness of governance practices

» appointment and removal of the Company Secretary

Thus schedule 1s reviewed for continued acceptabiity on an
annual basis InMarch 2015 the schedule was reviewed and
anumber of changes were made to take account of various
matters including the UK Corporate Governance Code and the
Company s new operating model In July 2015 a further change
was made to include a requirement for board approval of high
value potentially high risk projects

High quality corporate governance helps to underpin
long-term company performance and the board 1s responsible
for marntamng strong governance practices and regularly
reviewing the Company s governance structure as illustrated
on page 44

i
g

r Whenler
and socounty 2015

i
{

During the year, to take account of Amec Foster Wheeler's new
valyes and expected working behaviours the board launched
new versions of fundamental decumants in the Company s
governance framework including a new Code of Business
Conduct The Code of Business Conduct 1s the cornerstone of
the Company s approach to governance and is applicable to all
employees including the Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
and other senior inancial professionals The Code ot Business
Conduct is the responsibiity of and 1s upheld by the board

1t acts as a guide for our day-to day working life prowiding

a practical application of Amec Foster Wheeler s values and
ensuring all those who work for and under Amec Foster
Wheeler s direction understand the behaviour that 1s expected
of them The Code of Business Conduct which)s available to
employees in 14 different languages complies with relevant UK
and US regulations and s available on the Company s website
at amecfw com/ethics

A global policies document works in conunction with the Code
of Business Conduct provicing further detail and elaboration
on matters affecting all of Amec Foster Wheeler's businesses
The global policies document describes the key policies for
directing and managing the Group s businesses consistently

In accordance with our vision and values These global pohicies
are supported by a set of mandatory procedures which
further explain how the policies are to be applied Together

the global polictes and procedures set the framework within
which business functional and local policies and procedures
are set The board approves the group-wide policy framework
On a day-to-day basis the board has delegated respansibility
for implemantation of the global policies and ownershup of the
procedures to the Group Leadership Team The board considers
the global policies to be part of the nsk-based approach

to corporate governance and the maintenance of sound
internal controls

In orcler to discharge s role, the board s also responsible

for maintaining sound risk management and internal control
systems The board has a rigorous and comprehensive risk
management approach to protect the Group's assets and the
interests of its stakeholders and create an environment for
business success The board regularly reviews the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's financial operational comphance
and rnisk management systems

The board is supported in s work by four board comrmittees
{nominations audit HSSEE and remuneration) chaired by
either the board Charman or angther non executive director
and a number of management commuttees and groups chaired
by executive directors (or other semor mdividuals) to which
speciic responsibilities have been delegated You can find out
more about the membership, duties responsibilities and work
of these committees in the dedicated reports that follow Full
written terms of reference for each board comrmttee can also
be found cnline at amechw com/aboutus/corporate-governance

The directors believe that the board leads and controls the
Group effectively and that all directors act in accordance with
what they consider to be the best interests of the Company
consistent with therr statutory duties under the Companies
Act 2006 and other legslation
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Board composition

As at 3] December 2015 the board comprised the non executive
chairman two executive directors (the Chiel Executive and

the Chief Financial Officer), and five non-executive directors

Roy franklin was appointed as a non-executrve director on
1January 2016

The Company announced on 18 January 2016 that Samir
Brikho had stepped down as Chief Executive Upon Mr Brikho s
departure lan McHoul was appointed to the role of ntenm CEQ
which he has agreed to fulll alongside his role as Chvef Financial
Officer until the search for a new CEO 15 concluded

Dlrectors tenurw as at 31 Decembier 2015

John Connolly 4y T
Samur Brikhe OyTs 3m
lan McHoul Wps 3m
Linda Adamany Iyfs 3m
Ned Carson Sy &m
Colin Day Syfs 2m
Kent Masters om
Stephanie Newby yr Im

20061 2007 | 2008 F 2009 20101 2011 1 2002 [ 200 ! 200 | 2015

Details of the directors including therr biographies other
signficant comrmitments and committee memberships can
be found on pages 41 to 43 Detalls of the directars service
contracts emcluments and share interests are set out in the
remuneration report on pages 67 to 80

The Company s articles of association require all directors

to seek election by shareholders at the AGM following

thewr initial appointment and re election every three years
thereafter However, in fine with the recommendations of the
Code our practice 15 that all directors submit themselves for
re-election on an annual basis All of the directors wishing to
continue serving and considered eligible by the board will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2016 AGM Roy Frankin
will also seek election at the forthcoming AGM hawing been
appointed on 1 January 2015

The independence of the non-executive directors 1s continually
monitored and formally assessed as part of the board s

annual evaluation process The board considers that with

the exception of Kent Masters whose previous employment
by Foster Wheeler precludes him from meeting the required
independence criterta the non-executive directors are
independent and free from any relationships or circumstances
that could affect thewr independent judgement

]
Membership of the board 6
Aon executrve Chasrman 1
Executive director

Non executrve director

46

The balance of executive and non executive directors provides
continuity on the board while ensuring no one individual, or
group of iIndwiduals dorminates the decision-making process

]
Experionce of the board 8

Financial management

and corporate finance

Corporate governance

International expertence 4

Expenance n business sectors

relevant te Amec Foster Wheeler

HS35E

Strategy 8

Number of board diractors

with expenence in gach topic 7

The vaned backgrounds and commercial expenence of the non- |
executive directors, and their independence from managernent

ensures rigorous debate at meetings and constructive

challenge and oversight of the executive directors in relation

to the strategic direction and performance of the group

]
Gender diversity of the board ™
%

Fernale

Male

As part of the company s broader dwversity inihiative 1t supports
the recommendations of the final report n the Davies Review
series We are pleased to say that two cut of our eight directors
are female representing 25% of our board Candidates for
board appointments are evaluated on menit in ight of the
requirements of the role, having due regard to the group-wide
commitment to diversity and inclusion The board recognises
the importance of diversity including but not umted to gender
balance across the group more generally tn 2015, Amec

Foster Wheeler s diversity initiatives have continued to focus
on implementing its group wide commitment to achieving a
more diverse worklorce and inclusive working environment
including encouraging and enabling greater diversity of thinking
Ouring the year a global mandatery procedure on diversity and
inctusion was introduced to drive associated action plans with
measurable abjectives for monitoring progress The gender
diversity of the Company and its senior management 1s shown
on page 14

Amec Fostes Wheelar
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The Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company does not combine the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive There is a clear and well-defined dvision of
accountability and responsibiity between the roles of the
Chairman and Cmef Executive and these are set out in writing
and have been agreed by the board The consequence of this
clear division of responsibility at the head of the Company s
such that no individual has unrestricted powers of decision
The Chairman and Chief Executive are committed to ensunng
the development and mamtenance of an effective and trusting
relationship with the appropriate balance between challenge

and support

The Chairman s pnimanly responsible for the leadership and
effectiveniess of the board He I5 accountable for promoting
effective board relationships and the participation of all

board members 50 as to encourage a culture of openness
and debate and enable the board to fulfit all aspects of s
role The Chairman has undertaken to ensure that the board
discharges its duties to promote the success of the Company
for the benefit of all stakeholders and to guide Amec Foster
Wheeler's business and conduct in accordance with the
tughest ethical standards

Each year the Chaiwrman produces a board plan intended to
summanse the board s activities in executing (ts duties during
the year The plan highhghts the pniorities the board has
identified for the year, and those of the Chief Executwe, and can
be modified to take account of any unscheduled developments
In chairing and setting the agenda for board meelings the
Chairman ensures sufficient time 1s avaitable for discussion and
meaningful challenge in areas such as strategy performance
value creation and accountability

Subject to matters reserved to the board the Chief Executive
isresponsible for the leadership of Amec Foster Wheeler s
businesses with the primary objective of creating shareholder
value Consistent with this objective, overall operational
management 15 detegated to the Chief Executive who together
with the Group Leadership Team 1s responsible lor the proposal
development and implementation of the Group s overall
strategy driving execution growing markets and customers
and developing our peaple The building and maintenance of
an effective executive management team, and the allocation

of responsibibity therein are key components of and essential
to the performance of the Chief Executive s role

The Chief Exacutive also takes the lead role in the promotion
of Amec Foster Wheeler setting the tone in the reahsation of
the Company s wision and values and encouraging the highest
standards of heaith safety securdy emaronmental and
ethical performance

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annyal report and acenunts 2015

Senior Independent Director

Neil Carson has acted as the board s Senior Independent
Director since the conclusion of 2015 AGM following the
retrernent of Simon Thompson Neil was selected for the

role on account of hus sigruticant knowledge of Amec Foster
Wheeler and its operations and his experience as a director

of mternational companies Both the nominations committee
and the board considered that Neidl Carson best met the critena
required for the role The Senior Independent Director 1s
responsible for

» providing additional support to and acting as a sounding
board for the Chairman on board-related matters

» acting as an addittonal channel of communication between
the Chatrman and the other directors where necessary

» being avanlable to shareholders for concerns they may have
that have not been resolved through the normal channels
of the Chairman Chiet Executwe or ather executive directors
or which are not appropriate to raise through these channels

» acquiring an objective understanding of the 1ssues and
concerns of Amec Foster Wheeler s shareholders through
attendance at a sufficient number of meetings with the
company s major shareholders and financial analysts

» at least annually establishing the views of the non-executive
directors as to the performance of the Charman

» following completion of the above evaluation exercise
providing teedback to the Chairman on his performance

» overseeing the search for a new Chairman as required
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors are crucial in bringing an external
perspective and wide range of skills experience expertise

and diversity of views to the board s deliberations and the
development of strategy They constructively challenge and
scrutirise the performance of management against agreed
objectives and provide an invaluable contribution to the work

of the board s committees In January 2015, the membershup

of each of the board committees was restructured to ensure the
mast effective use of each non-executive director's time and lo
more approprately reflect their skills and experience The board
benefits greatly from the contribution and balance they bring

To ensure this continues the Charman holds meetings with

the non-executve directors without the executive directors
present, immadiately following most scheduled board meetings

The board s policy 1s that non executive director appointments
are normally for three consecutive three-year terms subject
to assessment by the nomnations committee after the end

of each term The committee makes recommendations on
reappointments to the board

To ensure independence and constructive challenge pnor

to appointment and on any material changes the external
commitments of each non-executive director including those of
the Chairman are reviewed During the year Neil Carson joined
the board of TT Electrorics plc as chawrman and Colin Day was
appointed as a non executive director angd chasrman of the
audit committee of Meggitt plc In accordance with the board s
policy to ensure that non-executive directors are not confhcted
and are able to commit sufficient time to meet their dubies

and responsibilities to Amec Foster Wheeler the prospective
appointments were disclosed to the board for approval in
neither case was it considered that the external appontment
would have a detrimental effect Each director’s undertaking
as to their ongoing commitment to the role together with an
assessment of therr continued independence 15 reviewed as
part of their annual performance evatuation

Amec Foster Wheeler s non executive directars are not
employed by the Company in any capacity Kent Masters was
the former Chiaf Executive Officer of Foster Wheeler AG and
Stephame Newby was formerly an independent non-executive
director of Foster Wheeler AG

The letters of appointment of the non executive directors are
available for inspection at the Company s registered office by
request to the Company Secretary and will be avaslable for
inspection at the company s forthcoming AGM

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2015




Board meetings

The board holds a mrumum of six regular meetings throughout
the year scheduled in accordance with an annual timetable
Additional board meetings and telephane conference calls are
held as required to deal with specific 1ssues In 2015 there were
seven scheduled meetings and six unscheduled meetings

Directors are expected to attend all scheduled board and
relevant committee meetings, unless they are prevented from
doing $o by unavoidable prior business commitments or other
valid reasons All directors are provided with full papers in
advance of each meeting Where a director 1s unable to attend
a meeting they are encouraged to discuss any 1ISSUEs ansing
with the Chairman or Chief Executive as appropniate

Number of mestings attended

L]
Schedulad  Unschaduled

dahn Conncy w7 6/6
Samir Brikho r2i 5/6
lan McHoul 77 6/6
Linda Adamany 77 5/6
Ned Carson 77 3/6
Colin Day 7 4/6
Kent Masters (from 13 February 2015) 6/6 5/6
Stephanie Newby 77 4/6
Simon Thompson (to 14 May 2015) 3/3 171

Unscheduled meetings were canvened throughout the year
to consider such matters as trading updates and director
appointments As these were not scheduted members were
not atways able to attend but were provided with full packs
of information and were invited to make comments

At least one scheduled meeting each year takes place away
from Amec Foster Wheeler s head office in London This
prowides the board with an opportumty to understand more
about Amec Foster Wheeler s business and to meet employees
based locally The July 2015 board meeting took place in

our offices in Houston Texas US where the board met with
local management and also visited a chent project site in the
Southern US

The October 2015 board meeting and board strategy
discussions took place at our offices in Reading UK which were
particularly significant given the challenging market cenditions
facing the sectors in which the Group operates

Amec Foster Wheeler
Arvnsl report and accounts 2015

In addition to the matters reserved for the beard certain items
are considered at every scheduled board meeting The Chief
Executive provides a report on business performance strategy
execution and emerging issues and the Chief Financial Officer
updates the board on financial results and progress against the
short-range plan Reports are also received on investor relations
and market 1ssues HR and HSSEE matters |n addition the
Chairman and the General Counsel and Company Secretary
prowvide an update on legislative, regulatory and governance
matters and twice yearly the General Counsel and Company
Secretary provides updates on materal claims and disputes

Strategc report

Business unit management 1s regularly invited to present at
board meetings and led by the Group Presidents, provides
‘deep dive reviews of each business umt In addition to standing
iterns discussed at each meeting, the board considers a

regular schedule of financiat and planning matters including

the approval of financial results and dividends, special matters
nctuding the review and approval of strategy the determination
of major risks and nisk appetite and transaction and competitor
reviews The board receives an annual presentation from the
Group Human Resources Cirector on semor management
succession planning and management development In

2015 thus took place in July and the board was also provided
with updates on feadership development assurance and on
performance management The board has also identified a
range of topic reviews that are addressed annually and these
include the strategies followed by the Group s functions eg

Tax Treasury and IT as well as the board effectiveness and
composition reviews

Governance

The board alse holds a separate additional meeting each year
to perform a full strategic review of the Group On account of
the tming of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler the strategy
event eriginally scheduled lor October 2014 was held in

Apnl 2015 foltowing compietion of the acquisitton The board
undertook a further review of strategy in October 2015,
which considered amongst other things what improvements
could be made to the Group s actvities to better meet chent
reguirements in the current challenging market conditions

The Company Secretary i1s fundamental in ensuring the
efficiency and effectiveness of the board and its committees
and s responsible for ensunng that the directors have umely
access to full, accurate and relevant information and whatever
resources they need to undertake therr duties Agendas and
supporting papers for board and committee meetings are
circulated approxsmatety one week prior to the meeting date o
aliow sutlicient time for review and enable informed debate and
challenge at meetings Monthly interim reports are prepared,
including a reporl from the Chief Executive and the business
unit presidents and these are circulated to the boardif a
meeting 15 not scheduled in the month

Financials
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Board meetings continued

Where the directors, particularly non executive directors,
requere further insight on an issue the Company Secretary

will facihitate ths from the business or relevant members of the
semor management team Members of sentor management are
regularly invited to attend board meetings to present on specific
projects andissues The Company Secretary also ensures that
the correct board procedures are followed from both a legal and
aregulatory perspective

In addition to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary a formal process exists for the directors to

obtain independent professional advice at the Company s
expense where appropriate and necessary to discharge therr
responsibilities The Company Secretary 1s responsible for
the organisation and co-ordination of access to such advice
The Company Secretary ensures that a imely and accurate
record of all meetings of the board and its committees is
taken and circulated In addition the chairman of each board
commitiee reports fully to the board following each meeting
and minutes are made available to the board

If a director had a concern about the running of the Company
or a preposed action that could not be resolved this would be
recorded in the minutes In addiion upon resignation should
a director have any such outstanding concerns they would be
invited to provide the Chairman with a written statement for
circulation to the board No such staternents were recewved
during 2015

Conflicts of interest

The board has procedures in place for the disclosure and review
of conflicts of interest No material conflicts of interest arose

in 2015 Prior to appointment prospective directors provide
infarmation on any confhcts of interest and thereafter any
potential conficts of interest are considered at the start of
each board meeting Accordingly each director 1s aware of ther
responsibility to avaid a situation where they have an actual or
potential conflict of interest the requirement to keep the same
under review and inform the Charman and Company Secretary
of any change in therr situation An effective procedure 15 in
place for the board to authorise conflict situations, should they
arise 1n accordance with the Compares Act 2006 and the
Company s articles of association In other cases the conflict1s
managed by excluding the relevant director trom the discussion

Tha Company Secretary is responsible for keeping appropriate
records, tncluding the scope of any authorisations granted by
the board and ensures the board undertakes regular reviews
of conflict authonsatons Such matters are normally recorded
in the minutes of the relevant meetings

Executive directors are not permitted to accept external
appointments without the prior approval of the board

The board will review the nature scope and complexity

of any proposed external appointments, to ensure they will
not adversely impact a director s ability to devote such ime
and energy to therr role as is necessary to discharge therwr
responsibiities effectvely or create any potential conflicts

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Professional development

The Company Secretary assists the Chairmanin the
co-orcdhnation of director induction upon appomtment and
ongoing traming A comprehensive mduction programrme

1S In place for all new directors which takes into account their
previous experience, background and role on the board

The programme 1s tallored accordingly to

» provide an understanding of the duties and responsibihties
of a director and their particular role

» build an understanding of how the beard cperates within
Amec Foster Wheeler's structure

» further thetr knowledge and understanding of Amec Foster
Wheeler s culture its business and operations and the
markets and countries in which it operates

» estabhish alink with Amec Foster Wheeler s management
and people

» establish an understanding of the Company s main
relationships

New directors are provided with key board operational and
financial nformation and relevant legislatory and regulatory
guidance The programme is designed so as to priontise and
vary the delivery of matenals to optimise its effectiveness

and facilitate completion in a2 timely manner The programme
nvolves a combination of documentation, accessible via

the portal used by the board to cornmumicate and share
documents electronically meetings with other members of
the board semor management and their extended teams key
external parties including the Company s advisers and where
appropriate magor shareholders and site wisits where possible
Where a new director 15 to serve on a board commuttee,
induction matenal relevant to the committee is also provided
Progress against the induction programme 1S reviewed with the
director midway througtout the process to ensure a smooth
transition into directar traning and ongoing development

Ongoing trairing relevant to each director s individual
development needs conbinues alter appoaintment The
Chairman endeavours to review the traimng and development
needs of the directors at ieast annually The aim s to ensure
the further enhancement of therr skills and knowledge of the
bustness, so that they continue to fulfil their role effectively
on the board and its committees

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Internally facilitated traimng 1s arranged by the Company
Secretary on topics and issues relevant to the operation of

the board and the responstbihties of the directors The board
receives presentations from management on changes

and significant developments in the business Updates

on changes in legisiation and communications from the
Company Secretary s office on key developments in corporate
governance are also provided In additron use is made of
external aughtor and adwser traning programmes During

the year the hoard recewed presentations from internal and
external experts on such matters as health and satety legal
requirements and changes to the UK Corporate Governance
Code including nsk management 1nternal control and going
concern requirements, the new viability statement executive
remuneration and relatians with shareholders From time to
time the directors Indvidually attend sermnars and conferences
related to their areas of expertise and responsibility

To further develop the directors understanding of the Group's
businesses and culture the board undertakes visits to various
places of Amec Foster Wheeler business As previously
mentiongd duning the year the board visited the Group s
Houston US and Reading UK operations
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Evaluation

In kne with the recommendations of the Code, each year

a formal performance evaluation review 1s undertaken of the
board its cormmuttees and the directors indvicfually In 2015,
the performance evalualion was externally facilitated by
Lintstock a third-party service provider Lintstock have been
the prowder of the Company's nsider kst management
software since 2011 but other than this and the performance
evaluation have not undertaken any other work of any und for
the board or the Company

This year, the review process involved both one-to-one
nterviews and the completion by each director of an in-depth
survey designed to estabhish their perceptions in areas such
as the current composition and expertise of the board board
dynarmics and the interaction between board members and
the board and senior management, the board s management
of time and the scope of board agendas the quality of

both internat and external support to the board mncluding
information presented at meetings and updates cn major
developments between meetings and the board's role in setting
strategy and strategic oversight Opsnions were also sought
on the effectiveness of the Apnl 2015 board strategy event
(which bath the board and Group Leadership Team attended)
the appropriateness of the board s risk appetite and approach
to risk management and internal controfs and succession
planming and human resource management

Lintstock s report on the iindings of this survey of board
effectiveness was tabled for discussion at the board's
December 2015 meeting In summary, the results were very
pasitive and engagement and interaction amongst board
members continue to be very strong

The size of the board was considered appropriate and

with regard to composition the appointment of Ray Frankiin

as a non-executive director was dentified as a valuable addition
of ol & gas sector experience The board was seen to have
apprapnate knowledge of the markets in whuch the company
operates and a good understanding of shareholders and
stakeholders’ views There was considered to be good support
and challenge provided to management The frequency and
quality of management presentations were highly rated
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The board was seen to use its time effectively although it was
suggested that more time might be spent on market dynamics
the structure by which chents are supported major projects,
technology and succession planning considerations

The Company s strategy was considered to be clear wath broad
consensus as to the principal strategic 1ssues and the April
2015 strategy review day was highly rated

The risk appetite was considered to be clear and it was felt that
risk management was a strength and had improved

A number of areas for improvement were identified and these
will continue to be addressed over the coming year as part

of the board plan and include continued focus on succession
planming management of human resources and on the
strategic objectives of the Group in the context of the market
dynamics and challenges facing the sector

In additwon and as required by the Code dunng the year

the Semor Independent Director having taken the views

of the non-executive and the executive directors reviewed

the performance of the Chairman The Senior Independent
Director met with the Chairman in December 2015 to review his
performance during 2015 The Chiet Executive conducts annual
performance development reviews with his direct reports

In 2016, the board performance evaluation review will again
be externally facilitated by Lintstock




Nominations committee

. ______________________________________]
The nominations cormmuttee 1s pnmarily

focused on evaluating the board of directors

and on examining the skills, charactenstics and
dynamics that are needed to run an effective
board

Dear shareholder,

The Group has undergone transformational changes over

the past year and more than ever the rote of the norminations
committee 1S a key one

In 2015, Kent Masters and Roy Franklin were appointed to

the board bringing with them valuable o1l & gas expenence
Succession and evolutionary change remain our key priorities
taking into account our commuitment to diversity and inclusion

You will be awara that lan McHoul was appointed into the role
of intenm CEQ following Samur Brikho s departure The board
has mandated Mr McHoul to continue to drive forward the
Company s previously stated priorities and he will continue

to fulfil this dual role until a new CEQ 15 appointed | am
leading the succession process on behalf of the nominations
committee and we will make an announcement as soon as we
have made a decision

You can see from the charts on page 46 that we have a strong
blend of skills experence and length of service amongst your
board of directars and | see no reason that this should not be
maintained as your company rises to the challenges we will
ineytably face in 2016 and beyon

A 0,

n Qonnotly
Chayrerfan of the nominations commitite
10 th 2016
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Members

During 2015 the nomnations committee comprised the
Chairman Linda Adamany and Colin Day The quorum for
the commuttee is two members There were five committee
meetings held in the year

Membership and attendance of the nominations
committee up to 31 December 2015

1
Maating sttendance

John Connolly (Chatrman) 5/5
Linda Adamany 5/5
Colin Day 4/5

Meetings of the commuttee are usually called at short notice
to consider matters as they arise This means that members
may not always be available butthey are always fully apprised
of matters to be discussed and their views sought and taken
into account Colin Day was unable to attend one meeting
called at short notice due to a pnar commutment

At its meeting on 2 December 2015 the board approved minor
amendments to the terms of reference for the committee
These are available to review on amecfw com

With effect from 1 January 2016, the membership of
the comnuttee now compnses John Connolly (Chairman)
Colin Day Linda Adamany and Roy Frankhin

Key responsibilities

The commuttee 1s mendful of the board s desire to maintain

an appropnately diverse and balanced membership interms
of skills experience independence and knowledge of the
Group taking into account the benefits of diversity so as to
ensure the delivery of the Group s strategy and performance
The cormmuttee regularly reviews the board’s structure size
and composition against these cnterta and the board selection
critena referred to on page 54

Together with the board the commitiee alsc considers board
succession planning in conjunction with reports fram the Chief
Executive and Group Human Resources Director on serior
management succession planning so as to ensure that an
appropnate balance of skills 1s maintained both within the
semor management team and on the board

As part of the externally conducted board effectiveness review
undertaken in 2015, the perfermance of the commitiee was
also evaluated and this was overall rated highly As an area

for further improvement it was suggested that the commuttee
ought to peridically review the Business Unit Group President
succession plans
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Nominations committee continued

Activities of the committee

Prior to Simon Thompson s retirement in May 2015

the committee considered potential replacements for

his role as Senior Independent Director and as Chairman

of the remuneration commuttee After careful consideration
the committee concluded that Neil Carson best met the
required criterta and a recommendation was made to the
board accordingly

At the same time, the commuittee considered the
reappoiniment of the Chairman tor a second three-year
term of otfice as his first three-year term ended at the
2015 AGM His sigruficant experience and hus excellent
chairmanship duning a penod of significant change resulted
n 3 recommendation being made to the board to reappont
tun for a second three-year term

The committee also considered and recommended the
appointment of Linda Adamany as a new member of the
remuneration commuttee with effect from 30 April 2015

In July 2015 the commuttee reviewed and recommended

the adoption by the board of amended board selectioncriteria,
to be used to identify any gaps in the overall expenence and
knowledge of the board as a whole and to assist appropnately
in the future board selection process

In early 2016 the committee considered the reappointment
of Linda Adamany as a non-executive director for a second
three-year term of office as her first three-year termwill end
at the 2016 AGM On the basis of her sigrificant relevant
international expenence and her knowledge of the activities
of the Group the commmttee recommended that she should
be reappointed for a second three-year term

Duning 2015, the commuttee commenced a search for a

new non-executive director to replace Simon Thompson

The commuttee used the executive search irm The Zygos
Partnership (Zygos). to assist with the process After due and
careful consideration, due to his sigmificant relevant experience,
particutarly in the oil & gas sector a recormmendation was made
to the board to appoint Roy Frankhin as a non-executive director
with effect from 1 January 2016 Zygos had previously worked
with the company to assist with the search for a new Chairman
in 2011 and with the process that led to Linda Adamany s
appointment in 2012 Other than this they have not undertaken
any other work of any kind for the board or the Company

Following Samir Brikho s departure on 17 January 2016

a key focus for the commttee will be to find hus successor

The Company has appointed the executive search firm Korn
Ferry, to assist the Company in its search for a new CEQ, which
will consider both internal and external candidates A role
specification has been prepared to assist tn distilling a long hist
of candidates against the role requirements Both internal and
external candidates wil! be interviewed by the Chairman and
Group Human Resources Director and the resulting shorthst
of candidates will be interviewed by all board members

Full details of the process will be disclosed in next year s
report Korn Ferry also assisted the board with an exercise

1o sirengthen the semor executive pipeline in 2014 and have
from time to time assisted with searches for other senor
management roles Other than this they have not undertaken
any other work of any kind for the board or the Company

Amex; Foster Wheeler
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Our Group Leadership Team

|
Distinct from the executive director (shown on
page 42), the Group Leadership Team compnses
the following seruor operational and functional

management

]
Simon Naylor

Group Presdent Amencas

Sirnon was appointed Group
President Amencas in Octaber
2012 Pnar to that Simon had
been President Natural Resources
Amercas since 2007 wherg he
led the growth and successful
davelppment ot the Company 5
leading possttions in the core
market sectors ot mining ol & gas
and ol sands tn hs 23 years with
the company Simon has worked
across tha project itecycle n
consulting engineering and project
management A natural resources
professional his experence
meludes project devalopment
assel support strategy customer
retationsiup management and
operations leadership

Simon has an MBA from Cranteld
School of Management and a BSe
trom Uruversity College London

n Chernical Engineering

]
Roberto Penno

Group President Asia Middle

East Alnca and Southemn Eurape
(AMEASE)

Roberto was appointed Group
Prestdent AMEASE on 1 January
2015 immedately pnor to which he
was CEO of Foster Wheeler s Global
£8C Group - a position he held
since 2013 Previousty he was CEQ
of the Global E&C Group s Asia
Pacihic Region A 27-year veteran of
Foster Wheeler he has held a vanety
of posstns with the Company
including managng director of
ghabai sales marketng and strategic
ptanning director af commercial
aperations tor Foster Wheeler Asra
Pacific and other semor roles n
aperating unit management sales
2nd commercial management in
Europe Asia and the US

Roberto has a degree n Mechanical
Engneenng trom Unversity
Palitecruco Milan

Amec Foster Wneeler
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|
Gary Nedelka

Group President Global Power Group
(GPG)

Gary was apponted Group
President Global Power Group on
1January 2015 having served as
Chiel Executive Otficer of Foster
Wheeler s Global Power Group

since January 2002 Prior to thes

he served as Prasident and Chiel
Executive Officer of Foster Wheeler
North Amenca Corp anindrect
wholty owned subsidiary within

the Global Power Group Previously
he was President and General
Manager ol aperating companies

in China and he hetd a vanety of
positions of increasing responsibility
w cornmercial operations and
ergineenng management He jowed
Foster Wheeler in 1979 and s 2
member ¢f the American Society

of Methanmical Engineers

Gary hoids a 85S¢ in Mechanca)
Ergineering from Clarkson College
of Techinology

. ]
Jaff Relly

Group President Sirategy &
Business Developrment

Jeff has 30 years industry expenence
and was appointed Group Preswdent
Strategy & Bustniess Development gn
28 Aprl 2014 He started his career
with Stone & Webster Engineenng
Corp as a Chemical Process Design
Engineer and developed his career
thers and ot ABB Lummus Globat

Inc becoming company Yice
Pressgernt at both engineenng and
construction orgamsations He poined
ConocoPhilips n 2005 led upstream
and dowrnstream major project
portiohos globally and was ultimately
appointed Chuel Procuremment Officer
(CPQO) When Phillips 66 was spun

o*f as an ndependent corparation
haled the company s giobal projects
corganisation as weli 2s being its.
it CPQ

Jett has 3 BS Chernical Engineering
from The Unwersity of Texas at
Austin an MBA m Finance and
Intemational Business romthe
University of Houston

. ]
Jonathan Nl

Group Project Delivery Director

Jon was appouited Group Project
Delnvery Director on 13 November
2014 immeciately pnor to which

he served as Vice President Project
Risk Managemant of Foster Wheeler
= a positon he held since May 2011
Previously he was a director of
Foster Wheeter Energy Limited and
he has served in vanous executve
pos itons with that company He
was a member of the Foster Wheeler
team tor mare than 25 years.

Jonhas a 85¢ in Mechanical
Engineering from Neweastle
Unrvarsity an M5¢ in Project
Management from Cranfield School
ol Management He currently serves
2s a director of tha Engingening &
Construchon Risk Institute

.|
Wil Serle

Group Human Resources Drrector
Will was appointed Group Human
Resources Director on ] May 2011
having previously heid the position
of Human Resources Operations
Director since 2009 Will 15 also
respansdole tor sustainabihity at
Amec Foster Wheeler He powred
the Company in 2000 as Human
Resources Director for the 011 & gas
business moving to the Nalural
Resources role in 2006

Wil holds B Mastar s degree tn
Human Resources from The Robert
Gordon University and 1s a Fellow
ot CIFD

]
John Pearson

Group President Northern Europe &
CIS (NECIS)

Before taking the role of Group
President Northern Europe & C1S

on ! January 2015 lohn was Group
President ol Europe and pnar to
that he was Managng Director of
the o1l & gas business in Europe and
West Atrca He joined the Company
n 1990 ang has worked tn a vanety
of roles In engineering and project
management Inthe past John has
led tha Company s ol & gas projects
and asset support business streams
globalty Prior to joining the business
John warked for Chevron and has
worked around the warld having
spent time based tn Aberdeen

San Frarcesco Baku and London
John s currently contracter co char
of Oi' & Gas UK and sits as a member
of MER UK the Fiscal Forum and the
OGA stakeholder board

John holds a BSc Honours

Engineenng degree from
Aberdeen Unwversity

.|
Allson Yapp

General Counsel 2nd

Comparry Secretary

Alison was appointed General
Counsel and Company Secretary

on 1 December 2012 Immediately
prior to joinng the Company she was
Campany Secretary and General
Legal Counsel ol Hays ple previous
ta which she was Company Secretary
2nd Group Legal Adviser of Charter
pic Sha 15 a soheor and has more
than 20 years expenence as a semor
lawyer Inindustry She began her
career in private practice at Turner
Kenneth Brown adwising corporate
and commercial chents in M&A
belare moving in house to Johnson
Matthey plc where she held vanous
senior legal roles

Alison holds an LLB (Hons)
trom Bnstal Unsversity and
15 3 quahfied sohciter
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Leadership and effectiveness continued
Management committees

|
The board has also created a number of
management committees and groups that deal
generally with more operational matters

These are chared by executive directors or other semior
indwviduals and members are drawn from senror management
within the Group The minutes of each of these meetings are
circulated to each board meeting The terms of reference of all
these committees have been reviewed and updated following
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler

Corporate transactions committes

Mernbers!

Chuef Executive (charman) Chie! Financial Officer General Counsel
and Company Sacretary Head of Mergers and Acquisitions

Responsibidties

The corporate trensactions commities considers Mergess acquisitions
and disposals andg approves transactions where the consideration or
assumption of katilies 35 appropriate 15 £5r or less and above this
tevelit submits recommendations to the board lor approval Inaddition
it deterrmines transaction guidelines that are in line with Group policies
and procedures

Disclosure committes

Mombers

Group Financial Controllar (chairman) General Counsel and Company
Secretary Head of Risk Management and Insurance Chiet Corporate
Comphance Otficer Head of Internal Auait Director of Tax and Treasury
Group Corporate Atfars Director Head of investor Relations

Responsibiities

The disc losure commuttee assists the audit committes with regard to
ventying the information that 1s required to be disclosed m the company s
matera! publc disclosures and i 1ts periodic reports This is intended

to ensure such disclosures are in comphance with all relevant laws rules
and regulations ncluding the UK Listing Authority the Londan Stock
Exchange the New York Stock Exchange and the US Secunties and
Exchange Commussien

QGroup project review mestings
Attended by
Group Leadershup Team Commerciat Dirgctor

Responsibiires

The group project review meelings evaluale project execution and inanciad
performance on lugher risk higher valug projects that could have a matenial
effect on overall group performance

HSSE review committee

Members

Chief Executive (chairman) Group Human Resources Dvecior General
Counsel and Company Secretary

Respaonsibities

The HSSE review commuttee s key responsibitity is to provide eflectve
oversight of the Company 5 performance and management of HSSE
1Ssues across the group Thisncludes the evatuation of the effectiveness
of the Group s policies and management systems in respect of managing
health satety secunty and emaronmental nsk i both current and future
operatiens assocrated with the Cornpany § growth strategy

Penstons snd retirement benefits committee

Mambers

Chuet Financial Officer {(charman) Group Human Resources Director
Head of Pensions General Counsel and Company Secretary

Responsibilities

The pensions and retsrement benefits commitiee reviews and recommends
the estabhshment of any new or replacement pension arangements

any material amendments to exrsting pension schemes and the
discontinuance windmgup or mergar of any axisting arrangement

R also agrees with the trustees of those pension arrangements appropruate
fundmg plans to secure the benehts promusad

Risk committes

Members!

Chief Exgculive (chairman) Chiet Finaneial Qtiicer General Counsel
and Company Secretary Group Commercial Director Head of Risk
Management and Insurance Group Project Delvery Director

Respansibdities

The risk committee performs an integral role in the gavernance of nisk
within Amec Foster Wheeter by providing acvice and assistance o the board
enabhing it Lo tulhil s responsiblities in determining the nsk appetite of the
Group and the effectiveness of the nsk management and internal control
systems that support t It 8lso reviews the Amec Foster Whaaler plc nsk
register and the potentialimpact of any issues on the sk appetite and the
nsk profile of the Group It reports on key risk isswes such as new business
end geographscal locations and atso makes recommendatons on the
msurance programme for the Group

Share allotment committee

Members

Any two directors or adirector and the General Counsel arnd Company
Secrotary or the Deputy Company Secretary (the chamman to be appointed
fromthose directors present)

Responsibiities

The share allotrment commuttee approves the allotment of new sharas or
the 1ssue of existing shares held in treasury following the exercise of options
under the Savings Retated Share Option Scheme

Tarud L .

Members!

Chuef Executrve (chanrman) Chuel Fmnancial Ofticer General Counsel
and Comparty Secretary Head of Risk Management and Insurance
Group Commerc:2iDrector Group Project Delvery Director

Responshilities

The tender review committee prunarily reviews and approves proposed
tender subrmissions for contracts to be undertaken by the busiiess
um1s that are cutsde the delegated authonty of the Group Presidents
Higher resk contracts with an estimated revenue in excess of US$750m
also require the approval ot the board

1Whilst the search lor a new Chief Executive 13 undertaken the terms of reference of the commuttee have reen amended Lo allow Mr McHoul to act as chair in
fus capacity as tenrn CEOQ n additron the Group Financial Controdler has been appotnted as a member of {he Comrties in heu of the Chie! Financial Dificer
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Accountability

Risk management and internal contro! systems

The board has overall responsibihity for setting Amec Foster
Wheeler 5 nisk appetite, and for mamntaining sound risk
management and internal control systems Responsibiity for
risk management activities and practices and internal control
systems, is undertaken on behalf of the board by the audit
commuttee and rrsk commutiee both of which provide reports
to the board on their work Regular reviews of the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's financial operatignal, compliance
and risk management systemns are undertaken and considered
by the board These systemns can, however, only provide
reasonable assurance against matenal misstatement or loss,
as they are designed to manage rather than ehmunate the risk
of falure to achieve business objectives

The nternal control processes are complemented by an annual
control self-assessment exercise carried out by the principal
businesses This cavers health safety and environment, legal
commercial and contractual financial information technotogy
and human resources The results are reviewed by the board
through the audit committee, as part of the ongoing internal
cantral monitoring process

Amec Foster Wheeler has interests in a number of joint
arrangements where controls may not be reviewed as part

of the Group s formal corporate governance process because
of the jomt management responsibiities Responsibility for
such reviews rests with the joint venture and joint operations
boards and these are reviewed from time to bme as part

of Amec Foster Wheeler s normal internal audit process
Details of the company’s related undertakings can be found
on pages 194 to 201

The board and its commuittees have an ongoing process thatis
reviewed regularly by the board for identifying, evaluating and
managng the principal risks faced by Ameg Foster Wheeler
including strategy major projects to be undertaken significant
acquisitions and disposals, as well as entry into and exit from
different markets This process and the associated internal
cantrol systems accord wath the September 2014 Financial
Reporting Councit Guidance on Risk Management internal
Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting

Where appropnate, business decisions are reached following
astructured and documented review of potential opportunities
and threats taking steps designed to manage or nutigate any
nsk exposure

The threats and opportunibies associated with tender
submussions are reviewed by cornmercial review boards at
various levels in the Group in hine with the delegated authorities
Tenders that are outside the delegated authority of the business
units are also reviewed by the tender review commuttee and,

n additton tenders for entermg into high risk contracts with

an estimated revenue in excess of $750m are approved by

the board The most signuficant issues In terms of risk requue
the approval of the relevant bustness unit lead and the Group
Commercial Director

As a result of its ongoing involvement in and overview of

nsk management and internal control systems across the
Group the board s salisfied that the systemsn place remain
effective Further detars of the Group s risk management
process inctuding reporting and momtering and roles and
responsibiliies can be found on page 18

Amex Foster Wheeler
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Fallowtng the acquisition of Foster Wheeler in 2014 work

was undertaken in the year to integrate the control framework
and risk and control systems with those of the wider group
Pursuant to section 302 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
{SOX), we have carried out an evaluation of the eflectiveness
of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures {as such term s defined in Rules 132-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act)under the supervision

and the participation of the Group Leadership Team, which

15 responsible for the management of the internal controls
and which ncludes the CEQ and the CFO There are mtherent
hmitations to the effectivenass of any system of disclosure
controls and procedures including the possibility of human
error and the circumvention or overnding of the controls and
procedures Accordingly even effective disclosure controls
and procedures ¢an only provide reasonable assurance of
achieving their control objectives Based upon our evaluation
as at 31 December 2015 we have concluded that the disclosure
controls and procedures (1) were effective at a reasonable level
of assurance as of the end of the period covered by thns annual
report in ensuring that information required to be recarded,
processed summarnised and reported in the reports that

are filed or submitted under the Exchange Act 15 recarded
processed, summarised and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC s rules and forms and (n) were effective

at a reasonatile level of assurance as of the end of the period
covered by this annual report in ensuring that information to
be disclosed in the reports that are filed or submitted under
the Exchange Act 1s accumulated and commuricated to the
Group Leadership Team, including the Chief Executive and

the Chiet Financial Officer to aflow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure

Pursuant to section 404 of SOX, under the supervision and the
participation of the Group Leadership Team which includes the
CEQ and CFO management 1s responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
We have carrnied out an evaluabion of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(t) under the Exchange Act) based on the
Internal Controt = integrated Framewark (2013} 1ssued by

the Committee of Sponsonng Orgamisations of the Treadway
Cammussion (COSQ) Based on ths evaluation, we have
concluded that our internal control over tinancial reporting
was effective as at 31 December 2015

Ernst & Young LLP has audited the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and has also
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting Their attestation report can be found on page 95

Duning the peniod covered by this annual report, we have

not made any changes to our internal controd over financial
reporting that have matenally alected or are reasonably likely
to matenally affect our internal controd over hnancial reporting
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Accountability continued
Audit committee

. ____________________________________|
The main objectives of the audit committee

are to provide independent scrutiny of

the company's financial and non-financial
performance, the adequacy of the risk
management framework and internal controls,
and the performance of both the external and
internal audit functions This is of particular
importance given the added responsibilities

of conforming to the SOX requirements

The wide diversity of expenence and knowledge
of the committee members helps to achieve
these objectives, and constructive challenge
and guidance continue to be provided to

the leadershup tearm

Dear Shareholder

Your audit commuttee had another demanding year during
which management implemented its integration plans and

a new operating model for the combined businesses of AMEC
and Foster Wheeler Bringing two companies together each
with a diverse range of policies procedures computer systems
and processes was always going to be challenging parhicularty
as each had its own operating model that reflected its
respective market sectar strengths Fittingly your commuttee
and the board focused strongly on the quality of the revised
policies, procedures, systems and internal controls being
mplemented by management to successiully manage the

new company

The cammittee also took on additional responsibiihies dunng
the year 1n particular overseeng the exacting comphance
efiort that management had to undertake to implement the
requirements of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (SOX)
Anin house compliance team supported comprehensively by
external SOX specialists was established by management The
Chief Compliance Officer reported directly to the comruttee at
each of its meetings providing detailed status reports on the
project and its achievements As committee chairman i also
met separately on a regular basis with the Chief Complance
Officer and the externa! SOX specialists to be briefed on
progress As you rmght expect both the internal and external
auditors were also involved with the SOX process throughout
the year

As management continued throughout 2015 with

the mtegration process across numerous geographies,
the commuttee continued its vitat role of scrutimsing the
integnity and relevance of the Group s financial reporting
the appropriateness and quality of the internal control
environment and the continued suitability of the Group s
system of nsk management fn addition, the committee
examined matenal projects focusing on the key features
risks and opportunities these present and paid particutar
attention to contract provisioning and quahty of earmngs
Your commuttee has also been engaged with management s
process for meeting the new UK corporate governance
requirement of providing a wiability statement which1s
now a feature of this year s annual report

As reported to you last year management detected a fraud

in one of ts overseas aperations during the latter part of 2014
The fraud was not matenal at the group level although it was
significant at the local entity level | can now confirm that a
cnminal case aganst two former employees I1s presently before
the courts the outcome of which is yet to be deterrmined

The committee contnued to oversee the internal and external
audit activities Given the increased size and complexity of
the combined businesses, management and the committee
endorsed the recommendation to increase the size of the
internal audit team to strengthen the available resources

for the future

QOur goal continues to be one of being proactive and to provide
constructive challenge aver the information we receive
Throughout the year the commuttee has recewved timely and
quahty information from management and from the internal
and external auditors Ther reports have been relevant
succinct, and clear which has enabled your commuttee

to discharge its duties effectvely

(/“I' .
\.__....\____
Coltn Day ——
Chairman of the audit commuttee b
10 March 2016
Amec Foster Wheeler
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Members
The committee meets at least three imes each year and the
quorum for the commuttee s two members

Membership and attendance of the audit committee
up to 31 December 2015

|
Schacuisd  Unschaduled

Colin Day (Chairman) 3/3 11
Linda Adamany 3/3 0/1
Neil Carson 3/3 11
Simon Thompson (up to 14 May 2015) 0/1 1
Stephame Newby 3/3 071

There were three scheduled audit cornmittee meetings In

2015 and one unscheduled meeting The unscheduled meeting
was arranged at very short nolice and two members had

prior commutments

Colin Day has relevant and recent experience tn auditing
and accounting and the board considers that he has
suthcient financial experience and qualiications to satisfy
the critena under US rules for an audit committee financral
expert Biographies of all commuttee members can be found
on pages 41to 43

The membership of the commuttee currently comprises
Colin Day (Chairman} Linda Adamany Neit Carson and
Stephanie Newby

The Company Chairman, the executive directors the General
Counsel and Company Secretary the Group Financial
Controtler the Head of Internal Audit the Group Commaercial
Oirector, the Chue! Compliance Officer and representatives

of the external auditor also attended meetings throughout
the year

Ouring 2015 the committee met separately with the external
auditor the Head of Internal Auchit and the CFO, in each case
without others being present

During the year the commuttee s terms of reference were
reviewed and updated to reflect additional commuttee
requirements relating to the appropnateness of the going
concern assumptions, the wiabrhty statement internal controls
over financial reparting the disclosure committee and SOX
requirements These are available to view at amecfw com

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler a disclosure
commttee was established in November 2014 Thisisa
managemaent commitiee that reports to the audit commuttee
and assists the commuttee with regand to venfying the
nformahion that is required to be disclosed in the company’s
material public disclosures and in its periodic reports

This ensures that such disclosures are in comphance with

all relevant laws rules and regulations, including the UK
Listing Authonity the London Stock Exchange the New

York Stock Exchange and the US Securities and Exchange
Commussion (SEC)

Key responsibilities

» Reviewing the annual and half-yearly financial statements
wath particular focus on key accounting and audit judgement
and making recommendations to the board tor thewr approval

» Morutoring the clanty of disclosures the going concern
assumptions the viabihty statement and comphance with IFRS

» Reviewing and momitoring the internal controls and nsk
management systems in particular internal controls over
financal reporting

» Overseeing the relationship with the external auditor
incluging the approval of the engagement letter letter of
representation and statutory audit fees with particular focus
onindependence and rotation in accardance with UK and US
rules or requrements

» Promoting an effective internal audit function

» Overseeing the Company s comphiance with the Londen
and New York stock exchanges, FCA and SEC requirements

» Reviewing arrangements whereby staff may raise concerns
about any suspected or known improprieties and ensurning
that such matters are investigated and appropnate
actions taken

» Monitoring and reviewing UK carporate governance
and US SOX comphance

» Receiving the reports of the disclosure commuttee

Activities of the committee

Traiming provided to the commuttee in the year included an
update by the Chief Compliance Officer on SOX requirements
and information from Ernst & Young LLP (EY) on nsk
management internal control gomg concern requirements
and the viability statement

In 2015 as part of the external review of board effectiveness,
respondents were asked about the perceved performance

of the audit commuttee This was very highly rated overall

One area wWentified for improvement was in relation to the
balance of work undertaken between the Chairman and the
committee members, to ensure collective responsibility of the
actvities of the commuttee Other areas ientified mcluded a
need for greater delail on revenue recogrution decisions and
continued vigrlance on SOX requirements

In preparation for each meeting the CFO prepares an extensive
report covening all material financial tax and treasury matters
Particular areas of focus in 2015 included

» consideration of revenue recogmition whichis by necessity
based on management estimates and assumptions
particularly with regard to timing and consideration of the
Group's policy for aged work n progress and recervables
Incomunction with the external auditor these judgements
were challenged, especially with regard to end-lfe
forecast estimates

» with regard to the provisions and estimates (including
It:gation) within the accounts, the comrmttee in conjunction
with the external auditor spent time focusing on these
areas and on satisfy:ng tself as to thesr appropriateness
particularly for legacy labdittes
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Accountability continued
Audit committee continued

» contract nisks and material contracts (those above £10m
n contract value) showing a deteriorating position over
time including the menitoring of management s early
warning system to increase visibility of underperforming
material contracts

» the Foster Wheeler zllocation of goodwill and impairment
testing ansing from the acquisition 1n respect of which
the committee continued to challenge and stress test the
assumptions that were being made in the process

» reviews of the performance of the GPG business and
the challenging of the inputs tnto the impairment testing
calculations where the deteriorating performance has
resulted i a significant impairment of £308m

» the classification of exceptional items where costs excluding
ntangible amortisation and impairment of £114m have been
charged in the year principally due to restructuring and
ntegration costs

» the Foster Wheeler purchase price allocation exercise
in respect of which the commuttee undertook a thorough
review of the process and challenged the appropriateness
and the judgements made on the reduction in the net
assets acquired of around US$245m and the corresponding
ncrease in goodwill

» adequacy of legacy hiabilities including the accounting
for asbestos and environmentat labiities

» accounting for taxation including the recognition
of deferred tax and assets relating to research and
development government credits and monitoring the
outcorne of recent EL) cases on tax rulings and the
assessment of disclosing thrs as a contingent habiity

» the assessment of the basis of the Group 5 going concern
assumptions with particular emphasis on the refinancing
process and the assessment of the Group s viabaity
statennent in accordance with the change to the UK
Corporate Governance Code

» the ongoing quality and acceptability of the Group's
accounting policies procedures, systemns and
nternal controls

» SOX programme oversight and the estabhshment of nsk
and control matrices and the :dentification of key controls to
meet the SOX control objectives This was the first year that
attestation has been required on the Group s internal control
environment and the comrmttee was pleased to note that
no matenal weaknesses had been dentified

» a review of the audit procedures required in order to meet
the requirements of the SEC and Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (PCAOB) in the US

» as part of the CFO s report the commuttee received detars of
all breaches of treasury policy This enabled the comnmitee to
see how relatively minor 1ssues are identified and addressed
te ensure they do not become more significant matters
In the year, rminor breaches were identthed i relation to bank
counterparty imits, but none was considered to be material

In its reviews of the hull and halt-year results particular
emphasis was placed on contractual issues where the
reported finangial position was analysed and discussed
in the CFO s report and the findings validated by means
of in-depth questioning

At the request of the board the committee also reviewed and
provided advice on whether the annual report and accounts
when taken as a whole are farr balanced and understandable
to enable the Company s shareholders to assess the
Company s performance business model and strategy

In coming to its view that it was satished with the overall
fairness balance and clanty of the document the comrmuttee
took tnto account

» its own knowledge of the group and its strategy and
performance in the year

» the comprehensive guidance provided to all contributors
to the annual report and accounts

» a thorough internal verification of the factual content
within the document

» the comprehensive reviews undertaken at different levels
tn the group to ensure consistency and averall balance

» adetaled review by seruor management

Interna! controls and risk management

The comnuttee reviews the processes by which the

Company s control environment 1s evaluated A control nisk
self assessment 15 undertaken every year, with comprehensive
integnity checks and the exercise in 2015 agamn dentilied no
significant areas of concern The Group's sermor management
15 formally required to confirm compliance within their
businesses with the Group s Code of Business Conduct its
policies and procedures and any areas of concern need to be
fully explamed and addressed A rewised Code of Business
Conduct was introduced in 2015

The Head of Internal Audit reports to the committee on any
alleged or suspected wrongdoings reported through the
independently operated helplings or gtherwise All such
incidents n the year were investigated and did not reveal any
significant internal control failures or have a matenial hinancial
impact at group tevel although improvement in oversight

and 11 the apphcation of existing controls have beenput in
place following a fraud «dentified in Australia {see note 5

on page 116)

In a few instances disciplinary action was taken against
employees, which led to disrrussal where warranted

The committee s primary responstbiities In relation to risk
management are in ensunng thal robusl processes are in place
for managing risk throughout the Group The acquisition of
Foster Wheeler was completed in the fourth quarter of 2014
and the control framework was reviewed and the risk and
control systems were integrated with those of the wider group

The group s principal business and strategic nsks are shown
in the strategic report on pages 19 to 21 and the approach to
managing rrsk 15 shown in more detail on pages 18 and 57

Amec Fosier Wheeler
Antua! report s sccounts 2015




Internal audit

In 2015, the commttee continued to morutor and review the
operation of the internal audit function, receving a full report
at each meeting from the Head of Internal Audit The Head of
Internal Audit formally reports to the commitiee chairman

The findings of each internal audit review are summarnised
and the committee focuses its discussions on unsatisfactory
findings and on the action plans in place to address them
Partrcutar areas of focus during 2015 included a number of
wdentified frauds and the application of the agents/sponsors
process particularly within the former Foster Wheeler
businesses Concerns were also raised about an increase n
the number of control-related 1ssues and the reasons for this

A review of the staffing levels of the internal audit function
was undertaken and a recommendation was made by

the committee to increase the number of staff to meet
the in¢reased workicad requirements This was endorsed
by the board

External audrt

During 2015 the committee continued to oversee the
relationstup with the external auditor Ernst & Young LLP (EY)
The commitiee reviews both the procedure for the engagement
of the external auditor and the procedure for the appointment
of the external auditor every year In 2015 both procedures

met both UK and US requirements

Each year the relevant audit risks are assessed and EY 5

vigws are presented to the committee Buning the year the
signifiicant risks identified by EY were appropriateness of
revenue recognition on contracts adequacy of contract
related provisions and legacy habitities (including asbestos and
envirgnmental} purchase price allocation adjustments relating
to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler goodwill imparrment
impact of tax planning recogrition of deferred tax assets and
R&D tax credits and resk of fraud and management override
Other risk areas included appropniale disclosure and treatment
of exceptional items

Throughout the year and in conjunction with EY the commuttee
challenged management and assured iself that the risks

were bheing addressed and that reporting on the matters

was balanced Examples of these challenges included the
judgements taken on a waste energy project in Western
Europe the assessment of Mount Polley as a contingent
lLiability, accounting for a UK fuel storage contract and an ol
and gas related project in South America Other challenges
nchuded the judgements taken in the Group s goodwill testing
issues with imparment (in particular GPG) purchase price
allocation includmg the accounting recorded in respect of a
contract in the Southern US and the appropriateness of the
accounting for the Group s asbestos hability of £414m The
committee also discussed and debated the appropriateness

of the Group’s effective tax rate and recognition of deferred tax

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and sccounts 2015

The audit differences and quality of earnings schedule for the
year ended 2015 was presented by EY at the February 2016
meeting The value of unadjusted differences and the quahty
of earrungs high-level review of the impact of items that could
be considered nen-recurring 1n nature were discussedin detan
The audit differences were not considered to be matenal and
the quality of earnings was considered appropnate overall

On behalf of the commutiee the Head of Internal Audit
undertakes an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the
external auditor The views of senior members of the finance
teams throughout the Group are sought as well as qualitative
feedback Responsesaremeasured and directly compared
with previous surveys sothat progress can ba monitored

The external auditor effectiveness review for 2015 will be
undertaken after the year end process has been completed
and the results will be presented to the commuttee in
August 2016 The results of the review will be reported

in next year s report

EY were appointed as Amec Foster Wheeler s external auditor
1n 2010 following a formal tender process As the audit partner
responstble for the Group audit had been in place for five

years a new audit partrier (Colin Brown) was appointed for the
2015 audit The commuttee takes account of and endorses the
retevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code with
regard to the appointment of the external auditor which means
that the external audd contract will be put out to tender at the
latest by 2020 subject to any further regulatory change The
committee also considers that the process cormphes with the
provisions of the Compebtion and Markets Authority (CMA)
Order for UK audit market published on 26 September 2014

Amec Foster Wheeler has formal procedures relating toits
relationstup with the external auditor including for the provision
of non-audit services to ensure that such work does not impair
the external auditor s objectivity and independence This
procedure clearly outhnes the category of work the external
auditor 15 permutted to carry cut and the rules governing

what 15 not permitted The procedure follows the guidehnes
and requirernants set out by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants 10 England and Wales and has been amended

to take account of the requirements of SOX and the PCACB
The committee now delegates authority to the Chairman of

the audit commuttee to pre approve all non-prohibited services
undertaken by the external aud:itor in addition all non-audit
services performed by the external auditor will be disclosed

to investors in the company s penodic reports

The process is continually monitored by the Head of

Internal Audit and details of all ‘'other services performed

are formally presented to the audit comrruttee twice a year

It 15 the responsibility of the audit commuttee to momtor

the overall level of non-audit fees relative to audit fees from

an independence point of view and to confirm that auditor
independence has been safeguarded If there are any concerns
about this for the avordance of doubt, the undertaking of such
work woutld not be permitted

61

Strategic report

Financials Governance

Addtional information




Accountability continued
Audit commuttee continued

Fees payabte by the Group to the Company's statutory auditor
EY and its asspoates were as follows

ro1s 200
m m
Audit fees
Audit of the Company 5 accounts 41 39
Audit of the accounts of the
Company's subsidiaries 14 15
5.5 54
Tax fees
Tax compliance services 0.9 04
Tax advisory services - =
09 04
All other fees
Corporate finance transactions 09 64
Other non-audit services 02 01
11 65
75 123

Fees for the audit of the Company’s accounts relate to the
audd of the parent cormpany s accounts and the consohdated
financial statements

Al EY s fees for non audit work in 2015 were approved in
accordance with the Company s palicy covening nan-audit
services As a result of the application of this policy and
additional discussions with them the directors do not beheve
that EY s independence has been compromised because of
this additional work on behalf of the Company

The level of non-audit fee awarded to EY in 2014 was
considerably higher than would normally be the case as shown
in the table abave as a result of work undertaken on the Foster
Wheeter acquisition

During 2014 EY was paid non-audit fees of £2 7m by Foster
Wheeler pnor to the acquisition date

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and secounts 2015




Health, safety, secunty, environmental and ethics (HSSEE) committee

]
The core role of the HSSEE committee 1s to
assist the board in upholding the Company’s
principal value of doing the nght thing, to review
the HSSE policy statement and to satisfy

itself that all significant health, safety, secunty,
environmental and ethics nsks are identified

and controlled

Dear shareholder

On 1 January 2015 the board created the HSSEE commuttee

o replace the ethics cormrrittee and its terms of reference were
extended to include health safety security and environmental
matters (full detasls of which can be found on amectw com)
The purpose of the HSSEE commuittee 1s to provide an additional
level of governance in respect of Amec Foster Wheeler s health
safety security environmental and ethics actvibies

Our employees have the right to work In a safe and secure
environment, which s particularly smpaortant in a group that has
over 40 000 people working in more than 55 countries Over the
course of 2016 we will be refreshing our Beyond Zero inibiative
which 1s aims to deliver first-class protection from harm for our
people our assets, our enwwronment and our customers

There is a strong framework in place that has supported

Amec Foster Wheeler as it has become a more global business
following the Foster Wheeler acquisition This ensures that

our employees and those who work with and for us act with
mtegrity wherever they are based Qur employees have access
to a third party reporting system to enable them to report any
concerns in complete confidence All such calls are investigated
and actions taken where appropriate

This year the commuttee has overseen the launch of a new Code
of Business Conduct and successful Code of Business Conduct
and ant-bnibery and corruption training across the Group with
very high completion rates being achieved Further traimng
programmes are scheduted for roll out in 2016 to further rase
awareness and assure comphance

Linda Adamyiny
Chairman of the Health Safety Secunty, Environmental
and Ethics Committee

10 March 2016

Amec Foster Whesler
Arvw report and accounts 2015

Members

The HSSEE commuttee compnses only iIndependent

non executive directors The quorum for the commuttee is
two members In 2015 there were three scheduled commutiee
meetings held and no unscheduled meetings

The company Chairman the executive directors the General
Counsel and Company Secretary the Chiet Compliance
Officer and the Global Head of HSSE also attend each meeting
by invitation

The membership of the commuttee 15 detailed below

Membership and attendance of the HSSEE committee
during 2015

]
Mestng artsncance

Linda Adamany {Chairman) 3/3
Neil Carson 3/3
Stephanie Newby 3/3
Kent Masters (from 14 February 2015) 3/3

Key responsibilities of the HSSEE committae

The commuttee reviews Amec Foster Wheeler s HSSE policy
at least annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose and
rmeets legal and regulatory requirements in all respecits

It also exarnings the processes mn place to satisfy itself that
all sgnificant health safety security and environmental nsks
are wentified and mitigated

The committee oversees the operations and activities of the
HSSE review committee which I1s a management committee
details of which are outlined on page 56

The committee reviews and monitors business ethics within the
Group including comphance with relevant legislation regulation
and current best practice It also reviews and approves the
Group s Code of Business Conduct at least annually

It considers and reviews the scope and planning of all ethical
comphance activity within the Group and reviews the extent
and effectiveness of the Group s internal training and external
reporting of comphance and ethics matters

In the event of an actual or suspected matenal breach of

the Code of Business Conduct or any other serious matter

a member of the commuttee will normally take responsibiity
for and manage any nvestigation into the relevant matter with
the support of the General Counsel and Company Secretary
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Accountability continued

Heaith, safety, secunty, environmental and ethics (HSSEE) committee continued

Activities of the HSSEE committee

The committee reviewed the revised Amec Foster Wheeler
Code of Business Conduct 1in March 2015 and endorsed its
content This document combined the codes of busingss
conduct of the former AMEC and Foster Wheeler businesses
into ong new code

The separate ethrcs reporting systems for the AMEC and
Foster Wheeler businesses were combined into a single system
during the second half of the year Curing the year a total of
104 concerns were raised in Amec Foster Wheeler in respect

of alleged or suspected ethical breaches, most of which were
reported through the independent third-party reporting
systems Each report was taken senously and investigated

The outcome of these investigations resulted in disciphnary
action where appropriate as well as enhancements to the
existing control environment where necessary

Over the course of the year the number of matters reported
has increased which we see as a positive outcome emanating
from the increased publicity and the independent nature of the
reporting process

The Global Head of HSSE attends each committee meeting
and gives a fult report and update on HSSE matters Areas

of focus during the year included risk mitigation and high
potential incidents particularly those that occurred wathun joint
ventures The commuttee was pleased to note the deep dive
reviews that were undertaken in resgect of each incident and
that the outcormes and lessons learned were taken on board
throughout the business

As part of the externally conducted board effectiveness review
undertaken in 2015 the performance of the committee was
assessed and was rated tughly Improvements to the safety
reporting process for the commuttee and the board identified
n the review, are being implemented

The commuttee also reviewed its terms of referencen
December 2015 and recommended to the board that the terms
of reference continued to be fit for purpose and to meet the
requirements of the group

Arrec Foster Wheeler
Anryal report and accounts 2015




Remuneration
Remuneration committee

]
The remuneration commuttee’s aim s to design
and apply a reward policy that promotes the
long-term success of the Company

Dear sharehoider

Board changes

On17 January 2016 Sarmr Brikho stepped down from the
board and tus role of Chief Executive He left the Company
on 31 January 2016 |n accordance wath his contract Samwr
received a payment n lteu of 12 months base salary benefits
and penston Further detais are provided on page 71

Our CFQ, lan McHoul has been appointed interim CEQ while
we recrudt a new Chief Executive lan will recerve an acting up
allowance of £20 000 per month for the pernod he undertakes
the acting role This temporary uphft will also be reflected in
his pension allowance for this period but other benefits wili

be unchanged His maximum bonus opportumity for 2016 will
be at the higher level of 15086 of salary (including the acting
up allowance) for the period he fulfils the role of intenim CEQ
and revert to 125% thereafter His LTIP opporturity will remain
unchanged Further details are provided on page 67 The
commuttee considers that 1s a farr and reasonable package

to reflect the additional responsibilities being undertaken

Remuneration for 2015

The commuttee s work this year has taken place agamnst the
backdrop of the very sharp slowdown in the company s major
markets which has resulted in performance being lower than
anticipated going into the year We have also taken into account
the major shift tn the net debt position and the decision to
rebase the dwidend

In the light of this the commuttee has aiso determined that

1o annugl bonus payments will be made to executive directors
in respect of 2015 notwithstanding that some of the targets
that were set at the start of the year pnncrpally those relating
1o the successful integration of the two legacy businesses,
were achieved None of the long-term incentive awards made
three years ago have vested Overall remuneration levels for
executwe directors have accordingly reduced sigmficantly year
on year in ine with business performance

Remuneration for 2016

There will be no increase in base salary for the CFO for

the third year (n a row although he will receve an acting up
allowance for the teme he undertakes the role of interim CEQ,
as described above

In order to reflect the changed prionities, we are making several
changes to the operation of our incentive arrangernents within
the Nexibibty allowed for by our extsting policy

In relation to annua! bonus, n hine with our overall strategy
we are giving greater prionty to the need to reduce net debt
by making 25% of the annual bonus opportunity dependent
on cash and debt management 509% of bonus will remain
dependent! on dehvery of the 2016 planined EBITA target and
25% will be based on other KPis In hne with our past practice
the actual targets and outcomes wil! be disclosed at the end
of the year

in relation to 2016 LTH awards we plan to introduce a third
performance condition related to the implementation and
execution of our strategy The exact nature of these measures
and targets will be finatised following the recruitment of our
new CEO This s to ensure that they have an opportunity to
input into the chosen measures so that they are fully aligned
with our strategy going forwards It)s bikely that such measures
will focus an reshaping the portfolio growing the core activity
and driving efficiency The committee intends to consult with
shareholders regarding the chosen measures and detatls of
these measures will be disclosed in next year s report

This strategic scorecard will apply to 409 of the award with
the remainder continuing to be spht evenly between relative
TSR and EPS performance measures

This year we have expressed the EPS target as a pence per
share range for 2018 Thisrefiects both expectations for the
macro market environment particularly for oil & gas and our
internal projections which point to a continuing downturn in
2016 but which incentivisg growth thereafter Further details
are provided on page 6

Neil Carson
Chairman of the remuneration commuttee
10 March 2016
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Remuneration continued
Remuneration committee continued

Membership and attendance of the remuneration
committee up to 31 December 2015

L _________________________________________]
Scheduted  Unschachieg

Meil Carson

(Chairman from 14 May 2015) 3/3 0/0
Simon Thompson

(Charman up to 14 May 2015) 171 0/0
Linda Adamany (from 30 Aprd 2015) 2/2 0/0
John Connolly 373 0/0
Colin Day 3/3 0s0

The quorum for the commuttee s two members There were
three scheduled and no unscheduled meetings held in 2015

The Ctuet Executive, the Group Human Rescurces Director and
other members of management attend meetings by imvitation

Simen Thompson retired as a directer at the conclusion of
the 2015 AGM and was succeeded as commuttee charman

by Neil Carson and on 30 Aprd Linda Adamany was appointed
to the committee

Incensidenng the matters within its remut, the committee takes
account of recommendations from the Chairman in respect of
the Chief Executive and from the Chief Executive inrespect of
the other executive directors and designated executives

The commmuttee 1s advised independently by Deloitte who took
over the role from New Brigge Street (NBS) during the year
foilowing a retender process

During the year Deloitte also provided advice to management
1n relation to the interpretation of the Remuneration Reporting
Regulations and below board remuneration Separate teams
within Deloitte provided unrelated adwisory services in respect
of business model integration research development and
inngvation taxation treasury taxation corporate finance

and treasury services to the Group during the year

Deloitte 1s one of the founding members of the Remuneration
Consultants Cade of Conduct and adheres to this Code inits
deahngs with the committee The commuttee is satisfied that
the adwice provided by Deloitte 1s objectve and independent
The commuttee s comfortable that the Deloitte LLP
engagement partner and team that provide remuneration
adwice to the committee do not have connections with the
Company that may smpair ther independence The committee
reviewed the potential for conflicts of interest and judged that
there were appropnate safeguards against such conflicts

NBS did not undertake any matenal additional work for the
Company N8BS 1s wholly owned by Aon plc and white other
companies within the Aon group do undertake material
wark for the Company, this s not in the area of executive
remuneration and arrangements were in place within the
Aon group to ning-fence NBS from other services provided

Deloitte was paid £11 250 and NBS was paid £23 328 during
the year for the advice provided to the committee on the
basis of ime expended and semornty of individuals providing
the advice
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The commuttee 1s also supported by the Company's human
resources department who may from trme to time use third
parties to prowide data and technical advice

The commuittee normatly meets three imes a year and

has an established annual agenda of items that it considers
at the vartous meetings the major elements of which are
summansed below

|
March » Confirmation of short- and long-term
incentive outcomes

» Approval of Directors remuneration report
» New long-term incentive awards

» Shareholder feedback/consultation

» Remuneratton pohicy and practice

August

» Commuttee processes and appointment
of consultants

December » Review of individual base salarres

and total remuneration

» Incentive plan targets

In order to fully take account of the impact of the

foster Wheeler acquisition and the changed market outiook
the decisions that would normatly have beert made at the
December 2014 meeting were largely deferred to the meeting
n March 2015

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Directors’ remuneration report

Annual report on remuneration

Remuneration policy
There are no changes proposed to remuneration policy for 2016 from that approved by shareholders at the AGM on 14 May 2015
For refarence the policy Is set out in full on pages 75to 80

Application of remuneration policy for 2016

Changes to base salaries for executive directors

The base salary of the CFO is not being increased in 2016 His salary last increased on 1 January 2014 In respect of his role
of interrm CEQ tan will recetve an acting up allowance equivatent to £240,000 per annum pro-rated to reflect the months
ar part-months he fulfils the interim CEQ role gving him an effective annualised salary as shown below

™8 2015 changs
{an McHoul as CFO £530,000 £530,000 n/c
|an McHoul as intennm CEQ £770,000 n/a n/a
Samir Brikho {up to date of leaving) £954,000 £954 000 n/c

Annual bonus measures and targets

The following borus measures and their weightings (maximum opportunity as a percentage of base salary) have been agreed

by the committee for 2016 The measures for 2016 have been changed from 2015 to reflect the challenging environment in which
we are currently operating and our evolving strategic prienities in this context The cash/debt measure replaces the previous
operating cash measure and has been given a sigrificantly increased weighting to refiect the greater focus that this is being given
as part of our strategic pniorities for the next 12 months The largest part of the bonus continues to be based on EBITA reflecting
the wmportance of a continued focus on profitability

Fer the periad he 1s fulfilling the interim CEO role lan McHoul s bonus will be at the higher maximum of 150% of base salary and
will be based on his nterim CEO salary Sarmur Brikho has not beenincluded in the 2016 bonus plan

Mk sure Actng CEQ rowe CFO role
EBITA 75% 62 5%
Cash/debt 375% 3125%
Other strategic objectives 375% 3125%
Totals 150% 125%

The specitic targets against these measures are commercially sensitive and may be subject to revision They will be disclosed
retrospectively in next year s report to the extent that they do not remain commercially sensitive at that time

Long-term incentive awards

Awards with a face value equivalent to 250% of base salary are being made to lan McHoulin 2016 1n ine with previous years

For this purpose, base salary will not include the temporary acting up allowance 309 of the award wili be subject to a comparative
TSR measure 30% to an EPS performance measure and 40% to a strategic scorecard measure For each measure 25% of that
part of the award 1s paid for threshold achievernent and 100% for maximum achievernent with straight-line vesting in between

TSR will be measured against a peer group comprising Amec Foster Wheeler and UK and international companies against which
Amec Foster Wheeler competes directly The comparator group 1s the same as tor the 2015 awards as described on page 71 with
the exception that Akastor has been removed because its business mix was considered by the committee Lo be less relevant and
has been replaced by Tecnicas Reurudas a Sparush competitor Threshold vesting occurs at median ranking and maximum at
upper quartile ranking or higher

The EPS target range will be 678 pence per share in 2018 for threshold vesting and 73 8 pence per share for maximum vesting
The targets have been set to reflect both expectations for the macro market environment, particularly for o1l & gas and our
internal projections which pomnt to a continuing downturn in 2016 but which mcentivise growth thereafter Inine with policy
the targets and actual EPS will be adjusted to reilect any corporate transactions and certain other defined items

The strategic scorecard measure will relate to the implementation and execution of our strategy The exact nature of these
measures and targets will be finahsed following the recruitment of our new CEO This 1s to ensure that they have an opportunity

to input into the chosen measures 50 that they are fully aligned with gur strategy going lorwards 1tis tikely that such measures will
focus on reshaping the portfolio, growing the core activity and driving eficiency and will be distinct from the short-term targets for
annual bonus The commttee ntends to consult with shareholders regarding the chosen measures and details of these measures
and targets will be disclosed in next year s report
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Pensions
Mr McHoul receives a cash allowance of 20% of salary i hieu of pension benefit For the perod when he is intenm CEO this

wilt be paid on tus higher salary including the acting up allowance He also has hfe assurance benefit of four times his normal

annual salary

Changes to Chairman’s and non executive directors fees
The fees for the Chairman and non executive directors are not being increased for 2016

ms 2015 % change
Charrman £318.000 £318.000 n/c
Board fee £60,500 £60500 n/c
Audit committee chairman £30,000 £30000 n/c
Remuneration committee chairman £13,000 £13 000 n/c
HSSEE committee chairman £6,000 £6000 n/c
Senior Independent Director £5,500 £5 500 n/c
Non-UK directer {additional travel time) £12100 £12,100 n/c
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Annual report on remuneration continued
.________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
The information from this point onwards up to and including the statement of directors’ share
interests and shareholding on page 72 1s subject to audit

Single total figure of remuneration for 2015
The foilowing table shows a single total figure of remuneration in respect of qualfying services for the 2015 hinancial year for each
director, together with comparative figures for 2014

L.}
Salary/Tees Taxaie benafits Banus TP Sharesae Penpon Tots)
£000 £000

£000 £000 £ 000 1000 £000
7018 0 IS 204 S Z0W 201 20M | 1018 M 2013 2004 28 2014
Executive
Samir Brikho* 954 954 53 43 0 594 - - 3 - 255 246 1,265 1837
lan McHoul 530 530 18 18 0 268 - - - - 106 106 654 922
Non-executive
John Connolly 8 318 - - - - - - - - - - 38 318
Neil Carson 72 61 - - - - - - - - - - T2 61
Calin Day 91 79 - - - - - - - - - - 91 79
Linda Adamany 79 77 - - - - - - - - - - 79 77
Stephame Newby* 73 13 - - - - - - - - - - 3 13
Kent Masters* 61 - - - - - - - - - - - 61 -
Simon Thompson* 29 76 - - - - - - - - - - 29 76
Aggregate directors
emoluments 2642 3333

*Samir Brikho stepped down from the Board and hus role of Chief Executrve on 17 January 2016 Stephame Newby and Kent Masters joned the board in
Novemnber 2014 and February 2015 respectively Simon Thompson left the Board in May 2015 Staphame Newby s fees include an amourt paid i relation
t¢ her ongong post acquintion servce as a director of Foster Wheeler AG from 13 Novemnber 2014 to 19 January 2015

Taxable benefits for the executive directors comprise disability and healthcare insurance car/travel allowance working lunches
and tax return preparation assistance Mr Brikho s 2015 figure includes an amount of £5 0C0 invoiced duning the year but which
actually related to assistance provided inrespect of 2014

The 2015 Sharesave figure for Samir Brikho 1s the gain made on exercising an option over 1,335 shares made under the
Sawings-related Share Ophon Scheme (Sharesave) at an option price of £6 74 The closing share price on the date of exercise
9 March 2015 was £3 09, resulting in a gain on exercise of £3,137

Samir Brikho 1s 3 member of the adwisory board of Stena AB and a non-executive director of Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB
he recewved fees of SEK 644 315 dunng the year inrelation to the first appointment and SEK 803 333 in relation to the second lan
McHoul is a director of Britvic plc and received fees of £61 181 duning the year in relation te this appointment Such appointments
are subject to preor approval of the board Dwrectors are perrrutted to retain fees (These amounts are not subject to audit and are
not included in the single total figure table above )

Tetal pension entittemants
The pension amount shown in the 2015 'single total igure of remuneration’ above comprises the following

Accrued DB pemuon Value of Cash Totad peraon

NIV 08 berahit Howsrce banefit

£000 £000 £000 £000

Samir Brikho 48 g6 139 255
lanMcHoul - - 106 106

Samir Brikho had 2n historic arrangement that prowvided for a pension payable frem age 60 made up of 4 17% of final pensionable
salary in respect of serwice to 31 Decernber 2007 and cne-thirtieth of career averaged revalued earmings in respect of service
thereafter Salary and earmings for penston purposes are subject to a cap currently £161 000 pa for the tax year 2015/16

Mr Brikho has also received a cash allowance i respect of salary above this cap in lieu of further pension beneiit

Mr McHoul receved a cash aliowance 1n heu of pension

The cash allowance in the case of Mr Brikho represented 20% of salary above the pension scheme cap and i the case
of fan McHoul represented 20% of full salary
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Annual bonus
The bonus targets and outcomes against the various performance etements together with the propertion of overall bonus
opporturity that related to each were as follows

Measurs Tarpat range Actusi Weghting
EBITA* £422-475m £374m 60%
Cash conversion 72 - 85% >85% 10%
Cost synergies £25 40m >£40m 10%
Use of High Value Execution Centre (HVEC) 18 - 21% >21% 10%
Embedding new company values and behaviours n/a n/a 10%

*For bonys purposes EBITA (atter exceptional tems whsch may be disallowed for bonus purposes at the committes s discrelion) Is normabised lor axchange
rate movements and cost of share-based payments the target and actual figures shown above are before any such adustments

The target for the Use of HVEC measure was based on the percentage of addressable man-hours for company as a whole
executed through the HVEC

tn the light of overall performance the committee has determined that no annual bonus payments will be made to executive
directors i respect of 2015 notwithstanding that some of the targets that were set at the start of the year principally these
relating to the successful integration of the two legacy businesses were achieved

Performance Share Plan

The LTIP amount shown in the 2015 single total figure of remuneration 1s the award made under the Performance Share Flan in
2013 Vesting is due to take place on 28 March 2016 and 1s subject to two performance conditions each measured over three-year
penods (1) earmings per share (EP5*) growth for 2015 compared to a base of 85 7p (being the adjusted EPS for 2012) and (u) total
shareholder return (TSR) relative to a comparator group based on average share prices in final quarter of 2015 compared to those
in the corresponding period in 2012 The two performance condibons operate mdependently on different parts of the award half
of the basic award is dependent on EPS and the other half on TSR the matched award depends solely on EPS

“EF'S for this measure means the diluted earnings per share expressed to one decimal ptace of Armec Foster Wheegler pic before goodwill and intangible
amortisation the charge or credits associated with executive share awards and exceptional items Real growth means in excess of the change in tha UK Retail
Prices Index for December 2015 compared to December 2012

The performance achieved against the EPS target and the TSR outcome are as follows

2011 awsards parformance messure Thrashokt - 25% vastng Masimum - 100% vestng Qutcoma Pefcentiage of max achuved
Real annual compound growth in EPS 5% 129% <5% 0%
Total shareholder return ranking Median Upper quartile 19th out of 25 0%

Accordingly no shares will vest from these awards

Details of share awards dureung year

Awards over a value of 250% of base salary were made on 22 May 2015 under the new Long-Term Incentive Plan approved at the
2015 AGM The face value of the awards 1s based on the share price at the date of award which was £9 38 Awards in the form of
nil-¢ost options may normally be exercised up to 18 months after vesting

Face vy Partentags vesting &t
Type of inlerest swarged £000 threshold partormance Number of shares. End of perfornancs penod
Samir Brikho Ni)-cost options 2385 25% 254264 31 December 2017
lan McHout Nn-cost oplions 1325 25% 141257 31 December 2017

The awards granted to Samir Brikho lapsed when he left the Company The award granted to Mr McHou! will vest in March 2018
subject to the outcome against the performance condittons measured over the three years 2015 to 2017 and will then be subject
1o a twa-year post-vesting holding period in Iine with policy Half of the award 1s subject to a TSR performance condition and the
other ha!f 1s subject to an EPS performance condition

The TSR measure 1s based on Amec Foster Wheeler s ranking against the comparator group set out below based on the average
share price over the final quarter of 2017 compared to the corresponding period in 2014 The threshold for any vesting te occur
1s that Amec Foster Wheeler needs to be ranked at median or hugher If upper quartile ranking i1s achieved full vesting will gccur
Vesting 15 on a straight line basis between these threshold and maximum targets
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Comparator group int respect af 2015 awards
C______________________________________ & ]

Aecom Technology USA KBR USA
Akastor Norway McDermott International USA
Aker Solutions Norway Petrofac UK
Amec Foster Wheeler UK Sapem ltaly
Babcock Internationat UK Schiumberger USA
Cameron International USA SNC-Lavalin Group Canada
Chicago Bridge & tron USA Techmip France
Fluor USA  Tutor Pert USA
Granite Construction USA  Wood Group (John) UK
Halliburton USA Worley Parsons Australia
Jacobs USA

The commiitee has discretion to make further adjustments to the list when necessary to take account of mergers acqurisitions
or cther such events

The EPS measure 1s based on the compound annual growth (CAGR) to 2017 from an adjusted 2014 base of 76 6p which s the

pro forma figure if the Foster Wheeler acquisiion had been in place for the full year EPS for this purpose is defined as the dituted
earrungs per share expressed to one decimal place of Amec Foster Wheeler plc before goodwill and intangible amortisation the
charge or credits associated with executive share awards and exceptional items (at the committee s discretion) Threshold (25%)
vesting will oceur if CAGR 15 5% and maximum {10095) vesting will occur f CAGR 15 10% or higher with straight-line vesting for

a result between these targets

The number of shares vesting as determined by the performance conditions outcomes will be increased to take account
of reinvested dividends including the UK tax credit in the period between award and vesting

Details of the specific companies mcluded in the TSR comparator groups for both the 2013 and 2014 awards were included
in the directors’ remuneration reports for those years and may be obtained on request from the Company Secretary

Payments to former directors
No payments (including payments for loss of office) were made to former directors duning 2015

Leaving arrangements for Samir Brikho

0n 17 January 2016 Samir Brikho ceased to be a director of Amec Foster Wheeler plc (the Company ) and on 31 January 2016
Mr Brikho s employment with the Company terminated Mr Brikho receved the following payments which are in accordance with
his service agreement and/cr the Company s remuneration policy as set out on pages 75 to 80 of this report

» salary pension and contractual benefits up to 31 January 2016

» a payment in keu of notice equal to 12 months salary and contractual benefits (£1 253 063) paid as a lump sum and consisting of
- base salary - £954 000
- pension entitiements - £254 813
- payment in heu of the value of contractual benefits - £44,250

Up to £25 000 (plus VAT) may be paid directly to Mr Brikho s tax adwisers for tax return preparation assistance in 2015/16
Thisis 1n part acontractual benefit not included in the amount above and in part in respect of advice provided in connection
with hus termination of employment Additionatly £19 150 (ptus VAT) has been paid directly to Mr Bnkho s solicitors

for legal services provided in connection with tus termination of employment

As described eartier in this report, no payments tn respect of 2015 or 2016 annual bonus will be made Outstanding awards
under the Long-Term Incentive Plan, the Performance Share Plan and the Sharesave Plan lapsed onleaving employment

Mr Brikho did not recerve any payments in respect of loss of office as a director
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Directors’ share interests and shareholding requirements
As at 31 Decermnber 2015 (or in the case of Stmon Thompson as at the date he ceased to be a director) the beneftcial interests
In the share capital of the Company of the directors and therr connected persons were as follows

Usmarsted sharg optons subwct Umnwestad share oplons
Legaty owd shares o e OTE Ao Congaona(Snartaen)
John Connolly 873380 - - .
Samir Brikho 1975674 - 688729 2192
lan McHoul 329432 - 382626 2.206
Neil Carson 5000 - - -
Coln Day 22558 - - -
Linda Adamany 3100 - - -
Stephame Newby 21 899+ - — _
Kent Masters 70000*
Simon Thompson 4744 - -
*Held as ADSs

Details of the unvested options for Sarmir Brikho and lan McHoul included in the table above were as follows
]

Date of award Type of award Numizer of shares Exarc s prace Ex a5 perioc

Sarmir Brikho March 2013 PSP 218630 Nil March 2016 to September 2017
March 2014 PSP 215835 Ml March 2017 to September 2018

October 2014 Sharesave 1032 8872 January to June 2018

May 2015 LTIP 254 264 N March 2018 to September 2019

October 2015 Sharesave 1160 £6795 January to June 2019

tan McHou! March 2013 PSP 121,461 Nl March 2016 to September 2017
Oclober 2013 Sharesave 1046 £8360 January to June 2017

March 2014 PSP 119908 Nil March 2017 to September 2018

May 2015 LTIP 141 257 MNil March 2018 to September 2019

October 2015 Sharesave 1160 £6795 January to June 2019

All of Mr Brikho s unwested options lapsed on 31 January 2016 due to the cessation of his employment The PSP award made
to Mr McHoul in March 2013 will lapse on 28 March 2016 due to the mimmum performance requirerments not having been met

Details of the options exercised by Sarmir Brikho and lan McHoul during the 2015 financial year are as follows
. . ]

Number of options Numbaer of shares Gaw on gptin
Dala of sward Typa of award eaprcised withheid kot tas Exercrae price orrene Dte opteon extrorid
Samir Brikho October 2011  Sharesave 1335 0 674 £3137 9 March 2015
Apri 2012 PSP 37015 7404 Nil £270950 5 QOctober 2015
lan McHoul Apri! 2012 pse 20575 9671 Nil £150,609 5 October 2015
Total £424.696

No other directors exercised options during the 2015 financial year

On 5 January 2016 Messrs Connolly and McHout acquired 2 911 and 57 shares respectively and on 11 January 2016 Mr Day
acquired 752 shares, all of these were in ieu of the interim dwvidend paid on 5 January 2016

There were no other changes in the directors interests in the share capital of the Company between 31 December 2015 and 8 March
2016 (or 31 January 2016, in the case of Mr Brikho) As at 8 March 2016, the shareholdings of each of the directors was less than 1%
of the total shares outstanding No director has used any of their sharehcldings tn hedging arrangements or as collateral for loans

Guidehnes are in place requiring executive directors and members of the Group Leadership Team to build up and retain a holding
of Amec Foster Wheeler shares recewed from incentive plans or purchased by them The level of targeted shareholding 1s 230%
of salary for executwe directors and 125% for ather semor executives

Based on the average share price and salaries during December 2015 the legally owned shares shown above represented the
tollowing percentages of base salary which were both in excess of the shareholding requirernent

Samir Brikho 855%
lan McHou! 256%

There is no sharehalding requiremnent for the Charrman or non-executive directors
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Total shareholder return
Thus graph compares the TSR performance of Amec Foster Wheeter ple assurming dwidends are re-invested with the TSR
performance of the FTSE 100 over the period 31 December 2008 to 31 December 2015

Total sharwholider retum o5
Armec Foster Wheeter
FTSE 100 Index
250
5
50
o5
(5]
Saurce Datastream 4] 2008 009 2010 201 02 203 014 2015

Chief Executiva's pay in the last seven years
- ___________________________________________________]

2009 2010 200 2012 2013 2014 2015
Single total igure of remuneration £'000 4103 9295 4590 3092 2370 1837 1265
Bonus awarded as % of maximum 58% 7% 64% 57% 52% 41% 0%
LTIP vesting as % of maximum 100% 80% 71% 50% 19% 0% 0%

Percentage change n Chief Exacutive’s remuneration

The table below shows how the percentage change betwean 2014 and 2015 in the Chief Executive s salary benefits and bonus
compares with the percentage change in the average of each of those elernents of pay for a comparator group of employees The
committee has selected employees in the UK as the comparator group as they have broadly the same structure of remuneration
and to ehminate the iImpact of exchange rate movements if employees in other countries were included

Salry Taxasio benefits [

013 04 % chungs s 2014 erangs o 014 % Crange

Chief Executive 954 954 0% 48 48 0% o 594 -100%
UK staff +13% +1i% +4%

The taxable benefit figures for the Chiet Executive have been adjusted compared to those shown in the single figure of
remuneration table to correct for the perrod to which payments actually relate The year on-year change for UK staff taxable
benefits s based on data for tax years ending in 2015 and 2014 averaged over the number of employees in receipt of those
benefits The year-on-year changes for UK staff salary and bonus are based on the aggregate amounts paid in each year dvided
by the average number of employees in that year 2014 figures do not include the former Foster Wheeler employees
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Relative Importance of spending on pay

The table and chart below illustrate the relative importance of spending on pay compared to distributions to shareholders
{dwidends and share buy-back) and other disbursements from profit or cash flow that are considered by the directors to be the
most matenal expenditures in refation to the Company s strategy

2018 2014 2013
2000 £000 £o00
Stafl costs (see page 118) 2137 1642 1639
Dividends and share buy-backs 167 124 153
Acquisitions (see pages 150 to 153) 85 1983 22
|
Relative importancs 75
of spending on pay
£bn
2015
2014 0
2013
is
10
71
] Sta¥ costy Dwvteruls and shawe buy backs Airslons

Shareholder voting on remuneration poticy and report at last AGM
At the annual general meeting held on 14 Aprif 2015 votes were cast as follows

E_____________________________________________________________________________]
Shares for (nchucing

ResohAwon cescratonary) % i Ervour Shaned igsl % agmnst Shargs wihbaig
To approve the remuneration report 255630210 9956 1119538 044 1,801 294
To approve the remuneration policy 253956672 98 90 2824184 110 1770186
To approve the Long Term Incentive Plan 230053912 8905 28275200 1055 221920

The commuttee do not consider that the votes agamst any resolution were substantial requining any specihic explanation or action
in response
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Remuneration policy

Introductien

The tollowing sets out the policy that was approved by shareholders at the 2015 AGM

Remuneration policy table
This table sets out the companents of the directors remuneration package (except on recruitments or promotions which are
described separately) It is also part of this policy that we will honour payments or awards crystallising after the effective date of
thrs pahicy (14 May 2015) but arsing from commitments entered into prior to that date or at 8 time when the retevant individual
was not a director of the Company

Executive directors

Cormponent and how th
wipports strategy How thes oparates Mlaxirram
Salary Reviewed annually from 1 January Intersm reviews only in case of significant changes of responsihty Salary increases for

Enables the business
to attract and retain
Individuals with the
personal attributes
skills and experierice
required to detver
our strategy This
als0 apphes to the
other elements of
hixed remuneration
below (pension and

executive directors will
rot normally exceed the
average increase awarded
to other employees based
mthe sarme country
Increases may be above
this level if there 1s an
mcrease In the scale
scope complexity or
responsibiity of the

role ar to allow the base

other benefits) salary of newly apptanted
executives to move
towards market norms
as ther expertence and
contribution nerease
Pension and retated Normally through a fixed allowance some or all of wh:ch can be paid in the form of a company To allow tor the fluctuating
benefits contnibutyon to a dehined contribution pensran plan with any batance paid as a cash supplement va'ue of defined benefit
Where the plan permits indmduals may also sacrifice on alike for like basis part of base salary in penston accrual and cost
return for an enthanced company contribution Pension ptan memberstip 5 available on the same of hfe assurance the
basis as for seruar employees generally in the country in which the indmdual 1s based and there aggregate value of thase
are no special arrangements for directors arrangements company
contrnbution to a defined
Uife assurance i1s also provided contribution arrangement
and cash supplement wil
nat exceed 50% of annual
salary
Other beneflts Standard benefits typrcally include dhsability and healthcare nsurance {including cover for ekgble The actual value of these
dependants) car/travel allowance working lunches and tax return preparation assistance benehts will vary from
time to time depending
Additiona! benelits may be pard where an ingmdual 15 required by the Company to relocate This can smong ather things on
include temperary housing prior to fufl relocatvon and a one off payment to cover specilic costs of the c;t of nwnns; them
moving home or an allowance of an equivalent armount paid for a ficed number of years The intentian is that the
Where indviduals are required to work in another courttry on a temporary basis housing travel tax aggregate cost would be i
equalisation and cost of Ining adjustments may also be paid in ine with the Company s normal pobcy hne with market practice
for employees generally and will not exceed 100%
Other benefits may be prowded from time to ime where the commuttes teels it appropeiate and 31::::’: rs;l:cr:‘:::re
n hna with market prachice to do so in the country n which the drector 1s based expatnate element and
The Cornpany may from time to time operate cther arrangements that are open to employees i 20% of annual satary
a particular country (for example relating to savings discounted purchase salary sacrifice hohday otherwise
buy and sell sarvice recogriton awards) that executive directors may participate in on the same
basis as other empioyees in the country in wiuch they are based
Amec Foster Wheeler
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration policy continued

Compons snd how tha

WIPDOIS St htegy Haw the oparates Mpmym

Annual borus Caleulated by reference to a mx of hinancial and other strategic objectives set by the remunreration The maximum opportunity
Rewards the commuttee that vary lrom year to year and may vary between indwiduals to reflect the business 13 150% ot annual salary
achieveinent of pnontes assocated with each role Profit based measures will have a wrghting of no1 less than 50% tor the Chief Exacutive and
annual financiatand  The commuttee will determma for each year threshaold and target levels of bonus that will be payabie 125% for other executive
delvery of other for meetng predetined pertormance levels agamst the objectives set for the year Targel bonus will not directors

strategpc business
targets

exceed two therds of maximum

25% of any bonus eamed s paid un the form of Ameac Foster Wheeler shares deferred for three years
during which it 1 subject to claw back »n the event that the accounts for the year {or which the shares
were earned are requwred to be restated for a correction of a prior pertod ervor or at the committée s
discretion for personal misconduct

The balance of the bonus s normally pad as a cash allowance following the end of the year to which

the payment relates However to facitate higher levets of executive share ownership the bonus may

ot the director s option and subject to the cornmittee s agreement be in the torm of il cost optons over
company shares of quivalent value tnstead of cash payment The vesting ¢s deterred tor three months
durng which it 1s forfeit If the indnadizal s a bad leaver Such oplions Bave a Six month exercese window

The committee has discretion to amend performarice measures and targets or adust bonus pay outs
to take account of exceptsonal tems unbudgeted asquisitions or disposals and cther aspects ol
performance which have not been specifically identified i the targets

Long-Term
Incantive Plan
Incentivises directors
to achieve long term
value creaton and
ahgnment with

long term returns

to shareholders

Annual awards of conditional awards or nil ¢ost options (with an 18 month exercise period after vesting)
Following vesting and whese relevant exercese all shares (net of tax) will be held m trust for two years
trom the onginal vesting date Dunng this persod shares will not normally ba able to be transierred and
may be subjact to claw back i the event that the accounts for any year over which the shares were
aarned are required to be restated for correction of a pnor pencd error There is further provision to
reciuce leaver awards retrospectively on an mdrvidual basis a5 sel cut below

Awards are subject to EPS growth and relative TSR measured over a three year penod with equal
weighting on each measure and any additional strategic that the committee may conster
appropsiate tor any particular set of awards Additionally awards are subject (0 a provision that allows
the comrmttee to reduce vesting in the gvent of a materally adverse misstaternent of results for arry year
of the perfarmance penod te cerrect errers or for personal misconduct The number of shares vesting
from these awards 15 increased Lo take account of reinvested dwdends

The comemittee will detarmine the applicable EPS range tor azch set ot awards with 259% of the relevant
porton of the awards vesting f tha bottorm af the range s achueved and 100% «f the top 13 achieved with
straght kne vesting betwaen EPS 15 adjusted for certain defined iterns and calculatea on a consistent
basis between base and tinal years

Tne committes will detarmine the TSR comparator group for each set of awards with 25% of the relevant
porton of the awards vesting 1f Amec Foster Wheeler s ranking 1s at median and 1003 i+t 1s at upper
quartile wath straight Ime vesting between The committee at ts discretion may reduce ar ehminate
the portion of the LTIP determined by reference to refatve TSR thit 1$ ot satisfied with the underlying
tinancial performance of the business during the performance penod

The comrmittee may amend the perfarmance conditions it an event happens which the commuttee
considers to be of a genuine exceptional nature so that amended performance condtion(s} would be
a tarer measure of performance and would be matenally nether easier nor more difficult to satsty

Intne event 6! a change of contral and in the absence of an exchange of awards being agreed awards will
normally vest to ths extent that the performance conditions have been mat at that tume The committee
has discretion to measure performance based solety against one of the pertormance conditions

Award of shares witha
face vahse at the time of
award of up to 250% of
annual salary (tgnoring
dmidend equivalents)

Sharesave
Provides alignment
wath sharehalders
interests

Sharesave 15 an employee share plan under which discounted options over Armac Foster Wheeler shares
are granted Imked 10 3 $avings arrangement with the optisns becoming exercisable at the end of the
savings perod The exercise pnce can be up to a 20% discount to the share price at the time of offer and
the number of shares is that which can be bought at the exercrse price with the expected proceeds of the
savings contract Executive directors are eligible 10 participate in thrs plan on the same basis as other
empioyees in the country in which they are located Invitations to partcipate may be made annually

Sharesava 15 not subject to performance conditions as the terms of the plan are subject to tax legisiation
m the UK and certan other cournttries including the US that preciude this

Sharesave options become exercisable 1o the extent of savings made in the event of a thange
of control

The maximum monthly
Savings level under any
concurrent Sharesave
plans s i hne with

the hrmit set by the UK
government fram time

to hime tor such ptans
(currently 5500 per
manth or the equivalent in
other currencias)
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Remuneration policy continued

Chairman and non executive directors
Note The remuneration of non-executive directors rs set by the Charrman and Chief Executive under delegated authority from the
toard rather than by the remuneration commuttee

Componant snd how i

WPPOrts strategy e ths opaTater el

Fons Non executive directors receve only fees for therr services and do not participate in any ot the ncentive  increases inthe

To attract and or benefit schemes of the group Fee structure comprises 2 base lee and additional fees to reflect ume Chairman $ tee wll not

rgtam ndviduals commitment and responsibelity of specific roles {for example SI0 and committee char) Additonal normally exceed the

with the personal fees may alxo he pand to drgctors not residant m the UK to recognise the addetional traveitng time average Increase awarded

attributes skilis and  mattending mestings to expcutive directors

expenence required The Chair

10 determuna man whilst a non executive director will NGt partcipate in any of the incentive or beneht The compsany s artickes
schemes of the group currently set an aggregate

stralegy and tmit of £600 000 for base

governance toapply  Directors (including the Chairman) are resmbursed for experses relating to perforrmung thew duties fons for non executive

exacutive oversight and any tax thereon cractors Total tees will

:::'l:h:ze:m not exceed market norms

nterests

Selection of performance targets

Financial performance targets under the annuat bonus plan are set so that the target level of bonus is paid normally for achieving
the Company’s short-range plan To achieve maximum bonus higher targets have to be met In determining targets, the
committee takes account of the general business circumstances including the perceived difficulty inherentin the short-range

plan and the need to balance stretch against risk Profit 1s chosen as the most appropriate measure of the Company s short-term
performance and the cash measures are chosen to refiect the conversion of profit to cash across the year Strategic targets are set
to reflact other key business objectives during the year

EPS targets under the Lang Term Incentive Plan are set to reflect the Company s longer-term growth objectives at a level where
the maximum represents genuine outperformance against expectations EPS 1s chosen as the most appropriate measure of
absolute growlh n ine with the Company s sirategy TSR 1s chosen to measure relative long term performance against a peer
group comprising UK and international companies aganst which Amec Foster Wheeler competes directly Other strategic targets
may be set to reflect other key business abjectives during the particular three-year cycle
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration policy continued

Recruitment pay policy
L ]

Extereil hre

Interral promoton o the bad

Base solary

Take account af current terms and any premium requued to
secure fngh calibre appontment

Take sccount ot current terms relativittes with other boand
members and whether amy previous pic baard experience |f
itial salary is below market benchmark tor role would axpect to
move progressivaly to that level over next 24 months based on
performance in rofe

Punsion and related
benefits

Existing arrangements may be continued otherwise in ling with
standard policy

Existing arrangements may be continued otherwise m hne with
standard polcy

Other benafita Normally v e with standard policy but may include special Extsting arrangements may be continued atherwise tn kne with
transtional arrangements eg overseas hire where dependants standard pohcy
remain outside the UK
Annual bonus tnchuston n annual bonus for year of ture based on Where refevant increase existing bonus opportunity to level
pro rated salary apphcable to new role and apply pro rata from date of promohon
Maxsmum opportunity (as a percentage of salary) no greater inchading any amepciment to perfwrmence measures
than that for Cheet Executve Maxwrnum opporturuty (as 8 percentage of salary) no greater than
that for Chiel Executive
Long-Term Inctusasn in LTIP tar yesr of hire subject to sams performance Maxsnum opportundy in line with standard policy atfowing for 2n
Incantive plan condibons as others but with three year vesting period running  additionzl award to be made i year of appoimment 10 reflect the
from date of oning timang of the aopointment and the extent of other enhancements
to remuneration terms Previous awards will contwiue on ther
Maxmum opportunety in line with standard pohcy angmal terms
Sharosave Inctus:on innext offer subgect to meeting any qualifying pernod Inclusson in next offer subject to any restrctions as aresult
of service that applies for new employees generalty of savings hrmits
Natice perfods Where it 15 nacessary to secure the services of a particular Apply standard policy immechatefy ncluding if relevant reducing
indreidizal the remuneration committee has drscretion to agree  any more favowrable existing terms
mrialnotice penods of not mora than 24 months reducing (o
normal policy level over a period not mare than 12 months
One-oft Where individu als torfeit borws or fong term mcentive payments  Indiwduals may be compensated for actual expenses neiuding
arrangements from their former employer as a result of resigning tojom Amec  temporary accommedatian in the ovent that they are required

Foster Wheeler then the commitieg has the drs¢retion to make
additional one-off awards m the torm of cash and/or shares

and subject to performance and./or other conditions including
hoiding penods as appropriate The maximum amounts to

be awarded would be based an an estimate of actual loss
discounted for any accelerated payment and the extent to which
the loss s otherwise compensated for by the naw tarms overal!

Indviduals may be compensated {or actual expenses including
ternperary eccommodation in the event that they are required
to retocate to take up the new role Afternatively a temporary
cash atiowance may he pad far a krited period of time which
equates to the estimated refocation cost that would othermse
hawe been rermbursed These amounts wil include arry
grossing up for 1ax

to relocate to take up the new role Alternatively a temporary cash
allowance may be paid tor a hmited period of time which equates
to the estimated relocation cost that would stherwise have been
reimbursed These amounts will nclude any grossing up for tax
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Remuneration policy continued

Policy on notlce and paymant for toss of office
Newly appointed executive directors will be employed on contracts that include the following provisions

» the mdividual will be required to give six months notice if they wish to leave and the Company wil give up to 12 months notice
of termmation other than for gross misconduct or other circumstances where employment may be terminated without notice

» at the Company s discretion the mndmvidual may be placed on garden leave for some or all of the period between the giving of
nohice and termmnation in whuch case the Company will continue to pay salary and benefits for the garden leave period but will
not make new share or other incentve awards

» at any time, at the Company s discretion employment may be terminated before the end of the required notice period by making
a paymentin lieu of the balance and subject to mitigation as described more fully in the table below

In the event of lang-term wncapacity employment would not normally be terminated so long as the executive was entitled to
payments under the Company s group income protection insurance arrangements but the executive would be required to stand
down from their role and as adirector

Payment for 1053 of office will be deterrined according to the following pninciples set out betow and for the current executive
directors, having regard to their existing contractual terms as described following the table

- ]
Notlce The exacutive wil receve base salary pension and other benefits [or any part of the notice penod worked (and any period of garden
leave} On termination the executive will be ¢ntitled to payrment tor ary accrued but untaken hohday pay

The Cormpany may elect (o pay a sum in lvu of notice tor all ar any part of the notice pencd calcutated by reference to the value of
salary pension and other contractual benehts (excluding bonus) Indetermining tha payments to be made and the structure of such
payments the Company will have regard 10 the executive s abulity to metigate their loss In respect of any defined benelit pension
nghts an augmentaton of benelits tor the relevanl part of the notice period may be made The commiltes has discrelion to conlinue
o pronada cectain benelits to the end of the notice period rather than including them n the payrment in hew

Whera the employment 15 being terminated by the Company for gross misconduct (or other circumstances entiting the Comparry
to treat the contract as at an immediate end) termination will be Immechate and no payment in beu of notice will be made

Annusl bonus o bonus will be paid in the gvent of termiration tor gross musconduct

tn all other circumstances the committee will consider whether It s appropriate to make 3 bonus payment 1o the year in question
talang into account all relevant circumstances ncluding performance and conduct Payment will usually be determined and pawd in
cash at the normal time

Deferred honus In the event ¢f termination due to miscenduct by the individual the Remuneraton Commitee may deternune that some or all
trom prior years atits discretton of the deferred shares wili be fortent

In the case of death the shares wik be reteased in tull to the estate 23 soon 38 przcticable theresfter
In other circumstances they will continue to be subject to the deferral peniod and only released at the end of it prowding no further

claw back applies
Long Term Allunvested awards will apse on jgaving i the even: of termenation for grass mesconduct or other bad leaver circumstances
Incentive Plan An example of a bad leaver would be an indmdual resigrung i order to Lake up 2 position with a ¢cormpatitor

Awards will immediately vest in lullin the event of geath

Inother cases unvested awands will be pro rated for service which may includa ary penod lor which payment was madhe in beu

For pre 2015 awards provided the associated ivestment shares remain lodged matched awards will normatty be retaimed in full
unless the commuttae decde to pro rate for service A turther reduction may be made at the committee s discretion to take account
of relevant crcumstances at the ttme of leaving The retamed awards will vast in the normal way taking account of the relevant
perfarmance condritions and at the normal tme subject to the committee bemng satistied at that trme that the iIndmvidual remams

a good leaver

Other Redundancy pay i Iine with statutory provseons or those apphang 1o employees gererally in the country i which the director s based
will be provded m the event of terminatson due Lo redundancy

The cost of legal tax or other advice mcurred by theé indnadual tn connection with the termmnation and/or support with seeking
alternative employment may be met up to a maximum of £100 000

Additional payments may be made where required to settle legal disputes or as consiuderation lor new or armended post empiloyment
restnctions

Where an indradual 18 m recerp! of relocation o expatriation benefits the costs of actus! expenses incurred in relation 1o any
arrangements that are subsect to term contracts may continue to be resmbursed for up to s months or at the Company s discretion
aone off payment made to cover the costs of premalure cancellation The cost of repatriabion will 2lso be covered where thus was part
ol the onginal expatriaton terms

Sharesave oplsons lapse unless the director leaves because of specified good leaver reasons tn which case they can be exercised
for a lonited perod to the extent of savings made to the date of exerzise
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Remuneration continued
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration palicy continued

Sarmir Brikho and lan McHou! are both employed under contracts (dated Aprid 2007 and September 2008 respectively) with
notice periods of twetve months from the Company and which require them to give six months notice of resignation The
contracts permit for payment to be made in heu of all ar part of the required notice perod at the Company s discretion but there

1s no prescribed methodology for calcutating such payment in liew or applying rmitigatron Should circumstances anise where notice
15 given and the executive 1s not required to work all or part of the notice penod, the terms of the existing contracts would be
honoured The individuals may be placed on garden leave for part of the notice period in which case the committee may deterrmine
that it 1s appropniate to pay an element of bonus for that garden leave penod

Existing directors’ service contracts
The notice provisions for Samir Brikho and lan McHoul are described above There are no specified change-of-control provisions

The Chawrman s engagement may be terminated on six montns’ notice on either side

The contracts of non-executive directors may be termmated by the individual at any ime There are no specific provisions for
compensation in the event of early termination by the Company Our practice is that all directors submit themselves for re-election
on an annual basis, in line with the recommendations in the UK Corporate Governance Code

Gansideratton of conditions elsewhere in company and sharehotder views
Our appreach to the annual review of base salaries s to take account of personal performance, company performance and pay
levels more broadly withun the Company External benchmarking 1s also taken into account, particularly for new appointments

Any proposals to change remuneration policy are considered against the best practice gurdelines produced by shareholder
bodies and major shareholders are consulted directly when formulating any proposals for ssgificant changes

The Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the rermuneration comrmmittee make themselves available at any tme and also
at each annual general meeting to discuss any 1ssues raised

Difterences in policy for directors compared to ather employees

The structure of remuneration for executive directars 15 in line with other seror management The primary differences compared
to other employees are the structure of variable pay, which for senior management s 10 the form of perfermance-related
incentives and for other employees 1s largely in the form of overtime and allowances reflecting the different emphases of the roles
and in the level of accrual under defined beneht arrangements

Hlustrations of application of policy
The total remuneration for each of the executive directors that couid result from the proposed remuneration policy in 2015 under
three different performance levels s shown below

3§y - - |
Semir Brikho z lan McHout 3

£m 5065 £m 2643
Fixed pay z aT% Foeed pay 50%
Annual bonus Annual bonus 5
LTIP 4 3399 LTIP 1760

3 T 40%
28% - 25%
H 1243 259 i 0654 T
{ 1009 ) 25% 100% 39% 25%
0 Fizad elemenl On Large Mazrmum 1] Fuxad sigrment. On target Mazumwm
Notes

1 Frxed pay «$ Dase salary for 2015 plus the value of pension and benefits The value of pension and benelits tn kind 15 taken from the single total Ligure
of remuneration for 2015

2 Ontarget pertormance 1s the level of pertormance required to deliver 66 679 of the maximum annuat bonus and 50% of the lull LTIP sward
3 Maximum periormance would result i the maxzimyum bomss and 100% vesting ot LTIP award
4 LTIP values ignore any change in sharg pesce or dvidend egquivalents
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Engagement
Relations with shareholders

The executive directors undertake an extensive programme

of meetings with institutional shareholders during each year
Qur results presentations and investor education events are
recorded and remain avalable on our website at amecfw com/
mvestors for those unable to participate on the day

Each year the Chairman and Sentor Independent Director offer
to meet with all major shareholders Since the pubhicabion of the
previous annual report 15 such meetings have taken place

The Chairman attends full-year results presentations

Ad-hoc requests from sharehelders for meetings with members
of the board are facilitated by the investor relations team

The board also receves unedited feedback reports following
shareholder meatings and all material brokers research notes
together with a report at each meeting including benchmark
data within our peer group

During 2015 we appointed Quantifire anndependent service
provider to update our shareholder contact base and prowide
us with regular feedback from our investor engagement
achivities This information 15 used 1o help target potenbal new
shareholders and improve the efficiency and quality of our
investor communications

Our 2016 AGM will be held at Panter s Hall 9 Little Tnnuty Lane
London EC4AV 2AD an 27 Apnil 2016 at 11 00am The notice of
meeting which includes explanatory notes on the business to
be transacted at the meeting accompanies this report and.s
also available on our website

Separate resolutions will be proposed at the AGM to recewe
the annual report and accounts to declare a final dividend
to approve the remuneration report to re-elect each of

the current directors who will retire in accordance with the
provisions of the Code to elect Roy Franklin as a director

to re-elect Ernst & Young LLP as auditor and to authornse
the directors to fix the auditor s remuneration

Shareholders will also be asked to renew both the general
authonity of the directors to allot shares in the company

and to allot such shares without the application of statutory
pre-emptionnghts In addition shareholders will be requested
to authorise the company to make market purchases of its

own shares within prescnibed mits and approve the resolution,
o be repeated at each AGM going forward to authonise the
caling of general meetings, other than annual general meetings,
on 14 clear days notice

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accourts 2015

The board views the AGM as an opportunity to directly
commumcate the group s progress and engage with
shareholders Where possible, the entire board will attend

the AGM and will be available to answer questions from those
shareholders present The board encourages all shareholders
1o attend and participate where possible

At last year s AGM a number of interesting questions were
raised and all of the proposed resolutions passed by way of a
pollvote The percentage of the company s share capital voted
in favour of each resolution ranged from B8 279% to 99 99%

]
Find out mors online

Visdt our website at amecw com/rvestars tor further intormation regarding
this year $ AGM
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Directors'report

|
Cur directors present their annual report and

the audited accounts of Amec Foster Wheeler

plc (the Company) and its subsidianes (together
referred to as the Group) for the year ended

31 December 2015

Achlavements in 2015 and priorities for 2016

Disclosures relating to particulars of important events atfecting
the Group that have ccourred since the last financial year, an
indication of Likely future developments in the business of the
Group and research and development activities can be found

in the strategic report on pages 1 to 37

Dividends

The cirectors are recormmending a final ordinary dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 0f 14 2 pence

per share This final dividend will be payable on 4 July 2016 to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 27 May
2016 Anntenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
of 14 8 pence per share was paid on 4 January 2016 Further
information on the payment of dividends to shareholders and
the holders of American Depasitary Shares (ADSs) can be
found on pages 180 to 181

Dwidends paid during 2015 comprised an intenm dividend
of 14 B pence per share and a final dwidend of 28 5 pence per
share, both in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014

Changes to the board of directors

Details of the directors of the company as at the date of

this report together with bref biographical details and board
committee memberships are set out on pages 4110 43

Changes to the board since 1 January 2015
]

Samr Brikho Chief Executive Stepped down
Officer as Chref Executive
17 January 2016
Roy Frankhn Non-executive Appointed
director 1January 2016
Simon Thempson  Non-executive Retired
director 14 May 2015
Kent Masters Non executive Appointed
director 13 February 2015

Effective immediately upon Mr Brikho s departure, Mr McHoul
was appointed to the rale of interim CEQ, which he has agreed
to fulh] alongside his rote as Chief Financial Officer until the
search for a new Chief Executive 1s concluded

82

Directors’ indemnity arrangements

The Company mantains directors and officers’ habiity
msurance cover in addiion throughout the financial year
and at the date of this report qualifying thiwrd party indemruty
provisions within the meaning of Sections 232-234 of the
Companies Act 2006 were in place for all of the directors

and the Company Secretary

In addition certain employees serving as directors of certain
eligible subsidiaries at the Group s request have also received
direct qualifyang third party indemnity provisions within the
meanmng of Sections 232-234 of the Compantes Act 2006

in relation to such directorships

Directors’ interests

None of the directors 15 or was materally interested in any
contract of significance to Ame¢ Foster Wheeler s businesses
during or at the end of the financial year Delails of directors
share interests and of their nghts to subscnbe for shares are
shown in the remuneration report on page 72

Corporate governance statement

The company s statement on corporate governance 15 set
out on pages 40 to 84 and is incorporated into this report
by reference

Share capital

The primary market for Amec Foster Wheeler s ordinary shares
15 the Landon Stock Exchange where we have a premium listing
and our shares are adrmitted to the main market Following the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler the company s shares were also
successhully isted on the New York Stock Exchange {(NYSE)

and are traded in the form of Amencan Depositary Shares
(ADS) Further information on the company s ADS programme
can be found on pages 181 to 182

The issued share capital of the company as at 31 December
2015 compnised a singie class of ordinary share The rights
and obligations attaching to the shares are set out in full in the
articles of association of the company and are described on
pages 184 to 186 In summary each share carnies the nght to
one vole at general meetings of the company and no nght to

a fixed mcome There are no restrictions on voting nghts

Pursuant to the Squeeze-Out Merger inthaled on

8 December 2014 4 255 970 shares were 1ssued to Foster
Wheeler shareholders on 19 fanuary 2015 to acquire the
remairng 1ssued and to be issued Foster Wheeler voting rights
Details of movements in the company s issued share capital
duning the year are set out in note 22 on pages 146 to 148

Authority was granted to the directors at the 2015 AGM to
allot shares or grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any
secunity to shares up to a nominal amount of £64,158 715
(Section 551 amount) of which up te £9721 017 could be
allotted for cash other than in connection with a pre emptive
offer (Section 561 amount)

Amec Fostar Wheeler
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Resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to
extend thus authonity to the end of the AGM in 2017 or 1 June
2017 whichever s earher The revised Seclion 551 amount
will be £64 345628 and the revised Section 561 amount will
be £19498 675 The directors have no present intention of
1S5UINg any shares other than in respect of the exercise of
share aptions No 1ssue will be made that will effectively alter
the control of the company withaut the prior approval of
shareholders at a General Mesting

Since the completion of the £400m share buy-back programme
in February 2013 the company has not made any purchases

of iIts shares in the market At the 2015 AGM authority was
granted to the directors to make market purchases of up

to 38 884,069 of the company s shares A resolution will be
proposed at the 2016 AGM to extend the authority of the
directors to make market purchases of up to 10% of the
company s shares within prescribed hmits

For further information on the above resalutions relating to the
company s share capital please refer to the notice of annual
general meeting 2016 which includes explanatory notes on the
business to be transacted at the meeting

Major interests in shares

On the basis of notiications received under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR 5) and other notifications receved
by Amec Foster Wheeler pic from shareholders shareholdings
of 3% or mare of the voting rights of the company as at

31 December 2015 were as follows

Humber -
BlackRock Inc 21904416 563
Mondran Investment Partners Limited 20253855 528
Frankhn Templeton Inshitutional LLC 19712142 505

The shareholding percentages reflect the company's 1ssued
share capital at the time of the notification There were no other
not:fications receved under DTR S from the above shareholders
between 31 December 2015 and 8 March 2016

There are no shareholdings that carry special nghis relating
to control of the company

Financial instruments

Disclosures relating to the group s use of financial mstruments
can be found in note 19 on pages 136 to 141 and are
incorporated into this report by reference

Branches

As a global group our interests and activities are held or
operated through subsidianies branches jont arrangements
or associates established in and subject to the laws and
regulations of, numerous different jurisdictions

Details of the company s related undertakings can be tound
on pages 194 to 201

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Significant arrangements - change of control

The following significant agreements contain provistons
entiting the counterparties to exercise termination or other
rights in the event of a change of control of the company

Under the £1 700m three- and five-year term loan and five
year multi-currency revolving credit facdity agreement dated

1 March 2016 between, amongst others the company and
Bank of America Merrill Lynch Internatonal Lirmited (as facility
agent) the company must promptly notify the facility agent if
1t becomes aware of any change of control

Following such notice the lenders under the relevant agreement
are required to negotiate with the company for a penod of 30
days with a view to agreeing terms and conditions acceptable
to the company and all the relevant lenders for continuing the
relevant facilities If agreernent is not reached by the relevant
parties before the end of the 30-day period if alender so
requires the relevant facihity agent must by notice of not

tess than 30 days to the company cancel the commitments

of that lender under the relevant agreement and declare the
partic:pations of that lender 1n all outstanding loans under

that agreement together with accrued interest and all other
amounts accrued under that agreement to be immediately
due and payable If the company s subject to a change of
control by one or more persons who are listed as having been
the subject of a sanctions designation then the banks do not
need to fund any new debt drawdowns and their commitments
can be cancelled within a 14 day period

The service contracts of asmall number of semor executives
previously employed by Foster Wheeler provide for enhanced
severance payments to be made in the event that their
employment s terminated involuntanly and not for cause
witkun the first two years of the acquisition These provisions
will cease to apply from November 2016

Depending an the nature of the transaction entitlements
under the company s share plans may be triggered by a
change of control Further detail can be found in the directors
remuneration report

In addition a small number of contracts and agreements
entered into by group companies in the ordinary course of
business contain provisions under which the approval of the
counterparty would be required n respect of a change of
control in the absence of such approval the contracts could be
teminated by the counterpartres Such contracts are however
not considered to be materia) with respect to the results of the
group as a whole

A change of control eccurs If any persen or group of persons
acting n concert gains conirol of the company
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Directors’ report continued

Employees

Our employees embody our knowledge, brand and reputation
and it 15 through their actwities, day by day, that we deliver on
our business objectives and commitments to shareholders
chents and the wider commurity information on employee
development and training, how we engage with our employees
to ensure they understand the direction in which the company
1s going and are committed to Amec Foster Wheeler s values
the actions taken to share knowledge with our employaes and
keep them informed of developments how we assess and

act on employee opimon and encourage involvement in the
company s performance and our commitmant to cultural
diversity and equal opporturities can be found on page 14 and
1s incorporated in this report by reference As can be seeninour
Code of Business Conduct Amec Foster Wheeler 1s committed
to providing a workplace which offers equal opportunity for
promotion and advancermnent As part of the integration of the
two AMEC and Foster Wheeler businesses a revised Code of
Business Conduct was implemented during the year that meets
the needs of the wider Group

As part of the company s equat opporturities policy procedures
are in place that are designed to provide for tull and farr
consideration and selection of disabled apphcants to ensure
they are properly trained to perform sately and effectively and
to provide career opportunities that allow them te fulfil thewr
potential Where an employee becomes disabled in the course
of thewrr employment Amec Foster Wheeler will actively seek

to retain them wherever possible by making adjustments to
their work content and environment or by retratming them

to undertake new roles

Sustamabibty

Summary details about our commitment to sustainabriity

ana its importance to our day to-day activities are set out
specifically on page 22 and in general throughout our strategic
report Further detail1s available in cur sustamnabiiity report
and on our website

Greenhouse gas emissions

Disclosures relating to the group s greenhouse gas emissions
as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006
(strategic report and directors report) Regulations 2013

can be found in the strategic report on page 22

Political donations

During 2015 Amec Foster Wheeler made no pohtical donations
in the UK or European Union including donations as defined for
the purposes of the Pabtical Parties Elections and Referendums
Act 2000 Amec Foster Wheeler Amerncas Limuted a subsidiary
of the company in Canada made contnbutions to non-EU
political parties in Canada totaling C$1 950 (£995)

Going concern
The directors, having made enquiries consider that the group |
has adequate resources to operale for the foreseeable future
and therefore it 1s appropnate {o continue to adopt the going
concern basts in prepanng the accounts Further detals of this
review can be found on page 37

Viability statement

In accordance with the new requirement in the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code the directors first viabshty
statement and accompanying basis of assessment can be
found on page 21

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the AGM for the re appomntment
of Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of the company

Disctosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this
directors' report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there 1s no relevant audit informatien of wiich the company s
auditor 1s unaware and the directors have taken all the steps
that they cught to have taken as dwectors to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit infarmation and to estabhsh that
the company’s audrtor s aware of that information

The above statement 15 made in accordance with Section 418
of the Companies Act 2006

Responsihility statements

The statemnent of drectors’ responsibilities including the fair
balanced and understandable statement inrespect of the
annual report and accounts can be found on page 85 The
statement by the Company s auditor relating to their reporting
responsiailities ¢an be found on pages 92 and 93

On behalf of the board
AL ~rry
Alison Yapp

General Counsel and Compary Secretary
10 March 2016
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Responsibiity statements of the directors

Statement of directors’ respansibilities in respect

of the annual report and the accounts

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report
and the consolidated and parent company accounts in
accordance with applicable law and reguiations

Company law requires the directors to prepare consolidated
and parent company accounts for each financial year Under
that law the directors are required to prepare the consohdated
accounts in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company
accounts in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and
apphcable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under Company law the directors must not approve the
consohidated and parent company accounts unless they are
satishied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for
that period

In preparing each of the consohdated and parent company
accounts the directors are requured to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistentiy

» make judgerments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

» for the consolidated accounts state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

» for the parent company accaunts state whether applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been folfowed subject to any
matenat departures disclosed and explained in the parent
company accounts

» prepare the consolidated and parent company accounts on
the gong concern basis unless it 1s nappropriate to presume
that the consolidated and the parent company will continue
In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explan the parent
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the parent company and
enable them to ensure that its accounts comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the group 2nd to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregutanties

Under apphicable law and regulations the directors are also
responsible for preparing a strategic report directors report
directors’ remuneration repart and corporate governance
statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and
integnity of the corporate and financial information included
on the company s website Legisiation in the UK governing
the preparation and cissermunation of consohdated and
parent company accounts may differ from legisiation

in other unsdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors In respect
of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

»the accounts prepared in accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards give a true and fair view of the assets
liatihes financial positon and profit or loss of the company
and the undertakings included in the consclidation taken as
a whole

» the strategic report and directors’ report includes a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the 1ssuer and undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainbies that they face

In addit'on we confirm that the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole s far balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the positton and performance strategy and business model
of the campany

Signed on behalf of the board

s

lan McHou!
Cheef Financial Officer and intenim CEQO
10 March 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler pic

Our opinion on the financisal statements
In our opwion

» Amec Foster Wheeler plc's Group financial statements and Parent company financal statements (the financial statements )
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the
Group s loss for the year then ended

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financi2i Reporting Standards
(I¥RSs ) as adopted by the European Union

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework

» the inancial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulatien

What we have audited
Amec Foster Wheeler plc's ( the Group's) financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 comprise

Group Parent company

Consohdated incoms staternent Balance sheet

Consoldated statement of comprehensive income Statement of changes in equity

Consohdated balance sheet Related notes 1 to 12 to the finangial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Consolidated cash fiow statement
Related notes 1 to0 28 to the financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s apphcable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
company linancial statements s apphicable law and Uited Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Overview of our audit approach
|
Risks of material russtatement » Appropniateness of revenue recognition on contracts

and adequacy of contract related prowisions

» Purchase price allocation adjustments relating
to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler

» Goodwill impairment

» iImpact of tax plannuing, recogrition of deferred tax
assets and Research and Development tax crecits

» Adeguacy of legacy labuhties including asbestos
and environmental

» Risk of fraud and management override

Audit scope » We performed an audit of the complete financial information
of 4 components and audit procedures on specific balances
tor a further 24 components

» The components where we performed full or specific audit
procedures accounted for 90% of profit before tax adjusted
for certain pre-tax exceptional items and 89% of Revenue

Matenalty » Overall Group matenahty of £10m which represents
5% of profit before taxes adjusted for certain pre-tax
exceptional tems

Trus page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler 5 anmual report on Form 20 F as filed with the SEC
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Qur assessment of risk of material misstatement

We identilied the risks of material musstatement descnibed below as those that had the greatest effect on our overall audit
stralegy the allocation of resources in the audit and the direction of the efforts of the audit team In addressing these rnisks
we have performed the procedures below which were designed in the context of the linancial statements as a whole and

consequently we do not express any opimion on these individual areas

Rk

Qur reaponas to the rek

What wa concuded to the Autit Committes

Appropriateness of revenue recognition on contracts and adequacy of contract related provisions

Refer to the Strategic Report (page 13) the Audit
Commuttee Report (page 53) Crnitical accounting
pohcies and the use of judgments, estimates and
assurmptions (page 105) and Note 3 of the Group
financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015, and as
detailed in Note 3 revenue recorded in the year
was £5 5bn

We focused on this area because there is a nisk that
due to the complexity asseciated with accounting
for tong term contracts and the judgements involved
in deterrmiming contract provisions Amec Foster
Wheeler s financial statements could be misstated

Specific risks over revenue recognition include
nappropriate percentage of completion accounting,
incorrect recognition of variation orders and
nappropriate accounting for contract contingencies

Specific risks over contract related provisions
include unrecorded habihities for contractual
disputes and inappropriate apphcation of

the Group s policy tor aged work in progress
and recewables

The magriutude of the nsk (1e the Ikehthood of
occurrence and the size of an error should it occur)
18 consistent with the prior year

We tested internal financial controls
over the calculation of revenue including
those used to determine the percentage
of completion for fixed price contracts

For a sample of contracts, we challenged
management in respect of the
reasonableness of judgements made
regarding the cost to complete estunate the
trming of the recognition of variation orders
and the appropnateness of assumphons
made in estimating warranty provisions

We have also challenged management's
assessment of the adequacy of contingency
provisions against contract specific nsks
and their assessments around the potential
for hqindated damages for projects with
delays For those contracts subject to
claims we have made enquires of internal
and external legal counsel

We have chalienged the recoverabitiy ot
aged work in progress and receivables and
assessed whether the Group s accouting
policy has been apprepnately applied

We have assessed whether management s
polictes and processes for making these
estimates are appropnate in accordance
with |AS 37 and consistently apphed

Qverall, we are satished
that Amec Foster Wheeler s
accounting policy for
revenue recognition and
contract related provisions
are reasonable and

have been appropriately
applied The vatuation of
contract nsk provisions at
31 December 201515 within
an acceptable range

Purchase price allocation adjustments relating to the acquisttion of Foster Wheeler

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 60)
Critical accounting policies and the use of
judgments estimates and assumptions {page 105}
and Note 24 of the Group financial statements

We focused on this area given the judgements
mvolved in making final adjustments to

the provisional fair values of assets and
liabilties acquired

These judgements include determination of
whether the circumstance whuch gave rise to the
final adjustment existed at the acquisibon gate and
also whether the vatuation methodology appled in
mazking the adjustment 1$ reasonable

The magmnitude of the nisk (1e the kelthood of
occurrence and the size of an error should 1t occur)
15 higher than in the prior year

We tested internal financial controls
over the identification of adjustments
{0 be made to the provisional far value
accounting of assels and habilities
acguired with Foster Wheeler We also
tested controls in place over the
calculation of the final adjustments

We challenged management over the
assumptions and valuation lechniques
used i calculating the adjustments made
to the prowisional valuation of assets

and hiabiities acquired This included
carraborating the valsation to external
sources such as settlement agreements
as applicable

We gained an understanding of the
situaticn relating to each adjustment
at the time of the acquisibion 1o assess
thewr appropriateness

The fair values of the assets
and liabilities recognised
on the acquisition of

Foster Wheeler have

been measured within

an acceptable range

This page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual report on Forrn 20-F as filed with the $EC
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler pic continued

Rigk

Cur nisponsa 1o Lhe rak

‘What we concluded to the Audit Comumiltes

Goodwlll impamrment

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 60)
Critical accounting policies and the use of
judgments estimates and assumptions (page 106)
and Note 12 of the Group financial statements

The total carrying value of goodwill at the year end
1s £2 2bn This is following animpairment of £308m
which has been recorded in the Global Power Group
{ GPG') segment Animparrment has arisen as

the recoverable amount of GPG was less than the
carrying value of the investment

We focused on this area given the signifrcant
|udgements and complexity of valuation
methodologies used to determine whether the
carrywng value of goodwillis appropnate These
include the determination of the cash generating
units used to assess goodwil! for impairment the
allocation of goodwill to cash generating units and
the assumptions used within models ta support
the recoverable amount of goodwill

The magnrtude of the rnisk (t e the likelhood of
occurrence and the size of an error should it occur)
1s tugher than in the prior year

We tested internal financial controls for

the goodwdl impairment process including
the determunation of assumptions used
within the models to assess the recoverable
amount of goodwill

We tested the integnty of the models

and challenged the appropnateness of

the cash generating units determined

by management We challenged

the assumptions used in respect of
forecast growth rates and involved our
vatluation specialists to corroborate the
appropriateness of the discount and growth
rates used We have evaluated the profit
forecasts used within the models aganst
current trading conditrons and challenged
managerment on the key assumptions
underpinning the forecasts Thisincluded
stress testing the models, to determine the
degree to which the assumptions would
need to move before an impairment would
be triggered

The impairment recogmised
n respect of the goodwill
allocated to GPG has been
appropriately deterrmined

The carrying vatue

of goodwill post the
imparrment recorded at
the year end s appropnate

Impact of tax planning, recognition of deferred tax assats and research and dovelopment tax credits

Refer to the Audit Commuittee Report (page 60) and
Notes 8 and 15 of the Group financial statements

We focused on the nsk ansing from tax planming
given the significant judgements invaived In
assessing uncertain tax posttions including those
relating to the financing structures the Group has
in place in Canada and the United States

We focus on tha recognition of certain deferred
tax assets and assets relating to research and
develepment credits as both these areas involve
udgement in the assessment of the recoverability
of the associated tax asset This includes
assessment of the penod over which taxable
profits will be available to utiise the assets aganst

The magnitude of the nsk (1e  the Iikelthood of
occurrence and the size of an error should it occur)
is consistent with the prior year

We tested mternal financial controls over
the deterrmination of tax risk provisions
We also tested internal financial controls
over the recogrution of deferred tax and
research and development assels

We challenged tax exposures éstimated

by management Using our tax experts

we evaluated the nisk analysis associated
with these exposures along with claims or
assessments made by tax authorities to
date We have also reviewed documentation
in relation to tax audits to ensure that any
exposures the tax authonties are raising
have been considered and provided lor
where necessary

We have challenged the proit forecasts
used by management in determining the
period over which delerred tax assets and
assets held in respect of research and
development tax credits will be recovered
We have also assessed)f management s
rattonale over the length of time such
assets will be recovered, I1s reasonable
We have evaluated the histoncal accuracy
of lorecasting taxable profits and the
integnty of the models used

We are satisfied that the
provisions recorded in
respect of tax risks are
within an acceptable range

The carrying value of assets
relating to deferred tax and
research and development
tax credits are within an
acceptable range at the
year end

This page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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Rak

COur response to the nak

What we conchucied! 10 the Audit Commmutise

Adeguacy of legacy llabilities including asbestos and environmental

Refer to the Strategic Report (page 21) the Audit
Commuittee Report (page 60) Critical accounting
pohcies and the use of jJudgments estimates and
assumptions (page 105) and Note 2] of the Group
financial statements

The Group has risk relating to claims or potentiat
claims resulting from the dispesal of businesses
in previcus years and those relating to asbestos
exposure and environmental contamination
Total provisions refating to legacy businesses

at the year end are £124m asbestos £378m

and environmentat £44m

We focused onthis area as determinming the impact
and hikety outcome of any htigation matters requires
significant judgement There Is also a risk that
provisions are not made for claims which have

been received

The magnitude of the risk (i e, the likelihood of
occurrence and the size of an error should it occur)
15 consistent with the prior year

We tested internal financial controls over
the appropnate valuation of habiities We
assessed the judgements and accounting
treatments made by managemaent ansing
from contractual disputes and other

risks We performed audit procedures on
suppeorting calculations and assumptions

Where appropniate we have held
discussions with management s legal
experts and also obtained and consydered
legal tetters from external counsel and
other supporting documentation

We have engaged our own actuanal
specialists to support our audit procedures
n respect of asbestos habilities These
procedures include assessment of the
methodology used by management

The valuation of legacy
habilities including asbestos
and envirgnrmental habiities
at 31 December 2015:s
within an acceptable range

The disclosures made
in respect to contingent
liabilities are appropriate

Risk of fraud and mzanagement override

The risk of fraud exists in any business However
fraud involving the manipulation of results to achieve
performance targets are particularly harmful

to shareholder value and the current economic
environment has increased thesr risk of occurrence

The evolution of the business and geographical
footprint across new territores heightens the risk of
fraud and bribery and corruption Business practice
In emerging markets may expose Amec Foster
Wheeler to financial legal and reputational risk

The risk of fraud and management overnde could
involve the manipulation of results to achieve
performance targets or asset misappropnation
particularly involving third party suppbers who
may overbill for goods or services and facilitation
payments to secure business

The magrutude of the nisk (1 e the ikehhood of
occurrence and the size of an error should it occur)}
15 consistent with the prior year

We considered Transparency International s
Corruption Perception Index 2014

when performing our scoping exercise
Companents with significant operations in
countries which are high on the Index have
been included in our In 5cope components

We have tested entily level controls over
the implementation of Group wide polictes
and procedures

We pertormed audit procedures including
analytical review and journal entry testing
n order to «dentify and address the risk

of management override of controls We

designed testing procedures and thresholds

tor all balances in such a way as 1o ensure
that the nsk of fraud and error is mitigated

We chatlenged and corroborated the
basts of management s key estimates
such as those made 1n determming
trading provisions

We have taken into account
Transparency International s
Corruption Perceptian Index
2014 when preforming our
SCOpING exercise

As aresult of procedures
performed, we did not lind
any evidence of material
management overnde or
undetected fraud

In addition to the nisks identified as part of our audit planning the size of and judgement nvolved in determining the Group's
exceptional items affected the allocation of resources and the direction of our audit efforts and for which our audit response

was as follows

This page does not torm part ¢f Amec Foster Wheeler s annwual report on Form 20 £ a5 fled with the SEC
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler pic continued

Resk

Out raspana to the itk

What v 1o ¢ e Auschl Ca

Presantation of excephiona) items

Armec Foster Wheeler consider the separate
reporting of except:onal costs helps to provide
a better indication of the Group s underlying
business performance

Continuing pre tax exceptional costs including
impairment and amortisation recorded in the
current year are £559m (2014 £156m)

There s jJudgement in determining whether the
classification and measurement of tems presented
as exceptional s reasonable There s also a risk
that the Group s policy for such items 1s not
applied consistently

We have tested controls in place over the
determination of items to be recorded
as exceptional

We have challenged management over
whether the costs which have been
recorded as exceplional are recorded in
line wath the Group's policy and have been
appropnately excluded from trading profit
In particular we have challenged whether
the inclusion of internal labour costs anthe
basis of time spent on integration actwities
1s reasonable and whether the inctuston of
restructuning costs 1s reasonable We have
constdered the Financial Reporting Council
{'FRC ) guidance on items bemng reported
as exceplional

We have assessed whether the level
of disclosure provided in the financial
statements appropriately reflects the
assessment made by management in
determining the classification of such
items as exceptional

Overall the disclosure of
exceptional stems are n
accondance with the Group s
disclosed accounting

policy for exceptional

items and I1s in accordance
with the requirements

of 1AS 1, Presentation

of Financial Statements

The scope of our audit
Talonng the scope

Qur assessment of audit nsk our evaluation of matenahty and our allocation of performance materiality determene our
audit scope for each entity within the Group Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements We take into account size nisk profile the organisation of the Group and effectiveness of Group-wide controls
changes in the business environment and other factors such as recent Group Internal Audit result findings when assessing

the level of work to be performed at each entity

In assessing the nsk of material misstaternent to the Group financial statements and to ensure we had adequate quantitative
coverage of significant accounts in the hinancial statements we selected 28 components cavering entities within UK US Canada
Italy, China, Australia and Singapore which represent the principal business umits within the Group The Primary Team performs
audit procedures on those areas of accounting pertormed centrally such as goodwill and intangible asset impairment reviews

and consohdation adjustments

Of the 28 components selected we performad an audit of the complete financial information of 4 components { {ull scope
components ) which were selected based on thewr size or sk charactenistics For the remaiming 24 components ( specific scope
components ), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had the potential
for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the linancial statements either because of the size of these accounts or therr

risk profite The audit risks disclosed above were subject to full scope audit procedures as appropriate

The reporung companents where we perforred full and specific 2udit procedures accounted for 90% (2014 90%) of the Group s
profit before tax adjusted for certain pre-tax exceptional iterns and 89% (2014 929%) of the Group s Revenue

For the current year the full scope companents contributed 53% of the Group s profit before tax adjusted for certam pre-tax

exceptional items and 69% of the Group s Revenue

The speciic scope component contributed 319% of the profit before tax adjusted for certain pre-tax exceptional itemns used
to calculate matenahty and 20% of the Group s Revenue The audit scope of these components may not have included testing
of all sigmificant accounts of the component but will have contributed to the coverage of risks tested for the Group

Of the remaining components that together represent 10% of the Group s profil before tax adjusted for certamn pre-tax exceptional
items, none are individually greater than 53 of the Group's adjusted profit before tax For these components, we performed

other procedures including analytical review testing of consolidation journals intercompany elirminations and fareign currency
translation recalcuiations to respond to any potential risks of materal misstatement to the Group financial statements

Ttus page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annwal report on Form 20-F as tiled with the SEC
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The charts befow illustrate the coverage obtamned from the work performed by our audit teams
N ]

Profit before tax adjusted for 10 Revenue 1
certain pre-tax exceptions! ltems %
% n Full scope companents 20

Fuly scope camponents Specihic scope companents

Speciic scope cormpanants Other procedures

Other procedures

69
59

Changes from the prior year

The basis of our audit scoping has changed in the current year following a change to the Group's internal reporting structure
Qur audtt coverage in 2015 1s consistent wath that of 2014

Invoivement with component teams

In establishing our overall approach to the Group audit we determined the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each

of the cormportents by us, as the pnimary audit engagement team or by component auditors from other EY global network firms
operating under our instruction Of the 4 full scope components, audit procedures were performed on 1 of these directly by the
primary audit team and 3 by component teams For the 24 specific scope components where the work was pnmanly performed
by component auditors we determined the appropriate level of involvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit
evidence had been obtained as a basis for cur opinion on the Group as a whole

The Group aucht team continued to follow a programme of planned wisits that has been designed to ensure that the Senior
Stalutory Auditor ar tus designate wisits each of the key locations at both the interim and year end stages of the audit process
During the current year s audit cycle visits were undertaken by the primary audit team to the component teams in Canada
the United States and various sites in the UK, including some specific scope locations

These visits involved co-developing the significant nisk area audit approach, reviewing key local working papers and conchusions
meeting with local and regional leadership team getting an understanding of key contral processes including centrahsed entity
level control processes and attending clasmng meetings The pnmary team interacted regularly wath the component teams where
appropriate during varrous stages of the audit attended all ull scope and certain specific scope closng meetings in person and
all other specific scope close meetings via conference call reviewed key working papers and were respansible for the scope

and direction of the audit process This, together with the additronal procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropnate
evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements

Qur application of matenality
We apply the concept of matenality in plannung and performing the audit in evaluating the efect of identified russtatements
on the audit and n formung our audit opimon

Materiahty

The magmitude of an omusston or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements Materiahty prowides a basis for determiming the nature and extent
of our audit procedures

We deterrruned materality for the Group to be £10 millkon {2014 £14 4 millien), which 1s 5% (2014 5%} of profit before tax
adjusled for certain pre-tax exceptional iterns We believe that profit before tax adjusted for the items as described below
provides us with a consistent year on year basis for determiring matenality and 1$ the most refevant performance measure
to the stakehaolders of the entity Detasled audit procedures are performed on matenal excephonal items

Starting basts £{235)m
Loss betore tax
Adjustments £429m

Adjust tor certain pre tax exceptional iiems to determine adjusted proft belare tax

Materiatity Totats £194m
Matenality of £10m (5% of matenality basis)

This page does not farm part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual ceport on Form 20-F as fded with the SEC
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler pic continued

Performance matenality
The application of mateniahty at the indwvidual account or balance level itis set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level
the probabihty that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds matenality

On the basis of qur risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group s overall control emironment and other
qualitative considerations our judgement was that overall performance matenaiity (1 e our tolerance for misstatement in

an individua) account or balance) was 50% (2014 509%) of our planning materiahty namely £5m (2014 £72m) We have set
performance matenality at this percentage to ensure that the total uncorrected and undetecied audit differences in alf accounts
did not exceed our materiality

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obiaming aud:t coverage over significant financial staterment accounts s
undertaken based on a percentage of total performance maternaity The performance materiality set for each component s based
on the relative scale and nsk of the compaonent to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of msstatement at that
component In the current year, the range of performance materi2hity allocated to components was £1m to £4m (2014 £1mto £7m)

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstaternents 1s considered as being clearly thwial

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences m excess of £0 5m
(2014 £05m) which s set at 5% of planning materiality as well as differences below that threshold that in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected nusstatements agamst both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in hight
of gther relevant qualitative considerations in formang our opimon

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit invelves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements suficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal rmisstaternent whether caused by fraud or error Thus includes
an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group s and the parent company s circumstances

and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made

by the directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition we read all the financial and non-financial
nformation in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to wdentify any
nformation that i1s apparently materially incorrect based on or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of perfarmuing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
imphcations for our report

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Staternent set out on page 85 the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financsal statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit
and express an opiruon on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Iretand) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Prachces Board s Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Thus report 1s made solely to the company s members as a body inaccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparnies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume
responsibibity ta anyong other than the company and the company $ members as a body for our audit work for this report

or for the opinions we have formed

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In qur opiruan

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repaort to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

» the information gven in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Tus page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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Matters on which we are required to report by excaption
1SAs (UK and Ireland) reporting
We are required to report to yout in our opinion financial and non-financial information i the annual report (s

» matenally incaonsistent with the information n the audided financial statements or

» apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired i the course
of performing our audit or

» otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to report whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired in the
course of perforrming the audit and the directors statement that they consider the annual report and accounts laken as a whole
1s far balanced and understandable and provides the tnformation necessary for shareholders to assess the entity’s performance
business mode! and strategy arnd whether the annual report appropnately addresses those matters that we communicated to
the Audit Committee that we consider should have been disclosed

We have no exceptions to report

Companies Act 2006 reporting
We are required to repart to you if, in our opinian

» adequale accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wisited by us or

» the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns or

» certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or
» we have not receved all the information and explanations we require far our audst
We have no exceptions to report

Listing Rules review requirements
We are required to review

» the chrectors statement in relation to going concern set out on page 37 and longer-term viabiity set out on page 21

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corpeorate
Governance Code specified lor our review

We have no exceptions to report

Statement on the directors’ assessment of the pnincipal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of the entity
1SAs (UK and Ireland) reporting
We are required to give a staterment as to whether we have anything matenal to add or to draw attention ta in relation to

» the directors confirmation in the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the entity including those that would threaten its business model future performance solvency or iquidity

+ the disclosures in the annual report that describe those nsks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

» the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in prepanng them and therr identification of any material uncertainties to the entity s abihty to continue
to do 50 over a pericd of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements

v the directors explanation in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the enlily over what penod they
have done so and why they consider that period to be appropniate and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and meet its habilities as they fall due over the period of their
assessment including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualiications or assumplions

We have nething matenial to add T/U draw attention to
-

€.
Colin Brown (;‘pzu)oréstm%wy auclitx7 LL,O

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Audstor
London

10 March 2016

This page does not form part of Armec Foster Wheeler s anrtual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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Report of ndependent registered public accounting firm
on internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareho!ders of Amec Foster Wheeler plic

We have audited Amec Foster Wheeler plc's internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2015, based on critena
established in Interna! Control—integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commuittee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Comnussion 2013 framework (the COSO criteria) Amec Foster Wheeler ple s management 1s responsible for maintaiming effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
inctuded in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibiity

15 to express an opinton on the company s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary

in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for gur opinion

A company s internal control over financial reporting 15 a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
relability ot financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles A company s internal control aver financial reporting meludes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authonisations of management and directors of the company and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acqursihon use or disposition of the company s
assets that could have 2 matenal effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent imitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also
projections of any evaluation of etfectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
tecause of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorale

in our opirion, Amec Foster Wheeler plc maintained, in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting
as of 31 December 2015 based onthe COSQ criteria

Wae also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)

the consolidated balance sheets of Amec Foster Wheeler as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 and the related consolidated income
statement statement of comprehensive income changes in equity and cash flow statement for each of the three years in the
period ended 31 December 2015 of Amec Foster Wheeler plc and our report dated 10 March 2016 expressed an unqualfied
opinion thereon

Ernyk e
Ermt&YounggLé \/"""3 LLF
London England

10 March 2016
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Report of independent registered public accounting firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Amec Foster Wheeler pic

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Amec Foster Wheeler plc as of December 31 2015 and 2014
and the related consolidated income statement statements of comprehensive income, change i equity and cash flows for each
of the three years in the penod ended December 31 2015 These financia) statements are the responsibility of the Company s
management Qur responsibility 1s to express an opuwon on these inancial statements based on gur audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures i the financral statements An audit afso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion

in our opinion  the financial statements referred 10 above present farly in alt maternial respects the consolidated financial posstion
of Amec Foster Wheeler at December 31 2015 and 2014 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union and International Financial Reporting Standards as 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board

We also have audited, i accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Amec Foster Wheeler plc s internal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31 2015 based on critena established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) and our report dated 10 March 2016, expressed an unquatiied opinion thereon

6/?)(:’ <_7, L
L
bl B

10 March 2016

Motes

1 The mamtenance and integnty of the Amec Foster Wheeler plic web site 15 the respansibility of the directors the work carmed out by the auditors does
not nvolve consideration of these matters and accordingly the auditors accept no respansibiity for any changes that may have gecurred to the financiat
statermnents since they were wutially presented on the web site

2 Legistation in the United Kingdom goverming ihe preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legrsiation in other unsdictions
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

s 2u 2013
Bylore  Amortisstion, Befora  Amortsaton
amortisstion,  ssception! =Tor tkaton axcephonal Bafore  Amortaaton
Mmezes aved escaptons| darms and Trtsation nd
o ared ssbastos tamrs and asbeatos nd excegtonal
asbestos selsted ltens wbestos  related dems excaphional itams
rulated [tams (note %) Total  rylstagt tems (nota 5) Total temas (mote 5) Tolal
hote Ln tm im im &m £m £m tm
Continuing aperations
Revenue 23 5455 - 5455 3993 - 3993 3974 - 3974
Cost of sales (4.787) -  (4T87) (3475 - (3475) (3431 - (3431
Gross profit 668 - 668 518 - 518 543 - 543
Adminsstrative expenses (334) (538) (872) (219) (135) (354) (228) (65) (293)
Loss on businass
disposals and closures - (Y] ) - (16) (16} - (7 )]
Profit/(loss) before
net financing expense 4 334 (539) (205) 299 (151) 148 315 (72} 243
Financial income 16 - 16 11 - 1 12 - 12
Financial expense (54) (20) (74) an (S) (16) (14) - (14)
Net financing expense 7 (38) {20) (58) - (5) (5) 2) - 2)
Share of post-tax results
of joint ventures 13 28 - 28 12 - 12 14 - 14
Profit/(less) before
income tax ? 324 {559) (235) 31 (156) 155 327 (72) 255
Income tax s (63) 45 (18) (67) 18 (49} (67) 2 (69)
Profit/(loss) for the
year from continuing
operations 261 {514) (253) 244 (138) 106 260 (74) 186
(Loss)/profit for the
year from discontinued
operations [ (5) 1 (4) & (19} @7 8 - ®)
Profit/(loss) for the year 256 (513) @57) 236 (157) 79 252 (74) 78
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent (256) 82 179
Non-controlling interests ) 3) (1)
(257 79 178
Basic (loss)/earnings
per share 1
Continuing operations 68 1p (661)p Bl8p 3%lp 890p 638p
Discontinued operations 1L3)p p (26)p {89p 27p 27N
66 8p (62.2)p 792p 272p 86 3p E11p
Diluted (loss)/earnings
per share 10
Continuing operations 677p {661)p 795p 351p 872p 625p
Discontinued operations {1.3)p (L)p (25p (86)p (27p @7%p
66.4p (672)p 770p 265p 84 5p 598p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 {restatec) 200
Nots £&m im £m
{Loss)/profit for the year {257) 79 178
Other comprehensive Income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and less
Exchange movements
- Exthange movements on translation of foreign subsidianies (46) (4) (70)
- Net (loss)/gain on hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiaries 19 3) (4) (1)
- Tax on exchange movements - - 1
Cash flow hedges
- Effective portion of changes in farr value 2) (1) 3
- Tax on effective portion of changes in fair value 2 - {1)
- Transferred to the income statement - - 1
49) {9) (67)
Kems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Actuanial gains/(losses) on defined banehit pension schemes 1 150 {58) 40
Tax on actuanal gans/(losses) (25) 1 (20)
125 47 20
Other comprehensive income 76 (56) (47)
Total comprehensive income (181) 23 131
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent Qs1) 26 133
Non centrolling interests - (3) {2)
Total comprehensive income {181} 23 131
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015
Registered number 1675285
L]
2014
205 (restated)
Nota ™ o
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment n 127 150
intangible assets 12 3025 3443
Interests in joint ventures 13 104 122
Dervatve financial instruments 19 18 2
Retirement beneht assets u 231 102
QOther recewvables 0 145 167
Deferred tax assets » 50 56
Total non-current assets 3,700 4042
Current assets
Inventories s 13 14
Trade and other recewvables 7 1455 1469
Dervative financial Instruments 19 16 12
Current tax recevable 25 12
Bank depasits (more than three months) a 23 21
Cash and cash eguivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) a 340 495
Total current assets 1872 2023
Total assets 5572 6065
LIABILITIES
Current liablities
Interest-bearmng loans and borrowings 23 (683) {(710)
Trade and other payables " {1,459) (1438)
Derwative financial instruments 1 {21) (14)
Current tax payable (98) (130)
Total current habliihes (2.261) {2,292)
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrewings 2 (640) (609)
Trade and other payables 20 {121) (111)
Derwvatrve fmancial instruments 19 (4) (5)
Retirement benefit liabihibes W {168) (188)
Oeferred tax habilibes " (106} (108}
Provisions n {664) (756)
Yotal non-current habllibes (1.703) (1777
Total labilities (3.954) {4 069)
Net assets 1608 1996
EQUITY
Share capital » 197 194
Share prermium account 133 101
Merger reserve 540 877
Hedging and translation reserves (26) 24
Capital redemptron reserve 3 34
Retamed earnings 721 744
Total equity attnbutabla to equity holders of the parent 1599 1974
Non-controiling interests 9 22
Total equity 1608 1996

The accounts on pages 96 to 156 were approved by the board of directors on 10 March 2016 and were signed on its behall by

LA

lan McHou!
Chuef Financial Qfhcer and intenm CEO
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Share Share Merger Hetgryg Te M: R :mlrmg Total
- preEmaem rare raerv [ ] resane [0 Toinl nisrests oquity
m km 7] £m Em £m £im Em £m f 7
As at 1 January 2015
{restated) 194 101 877 - 24 34 744 1974 22 1,996
Loss for the year - - - - - - (256) {256) [4)] (25N
Exchange movements
on translation of foreign
subsidiaries - ~ - - @an - - 47 1 (46)

Net loss on hedges of

net investment in foreign

subsidiaries - - - - (3) - - (3) - 3}
Effective portion of

changes in fair value

of cash flow hedges - - - 7)) - - - (2) - {2)
Tax on effective portion

of changes in fair value

on¢ash flow hedges - - - F4 - - - 2 - 2
Actuaral gains

on defined benethit

pension schemes - - - - - - 150 150 - 150

Tax on actuarial gans - - - - - - (25) (25) - (25)
Other comprehensive

income for the year - - - - (50) - 125 75 1 76

Total comprehensive

wncome for the year - - - - (50) - {131) (181) - (1B1)
Dwidends - - - - - - (167) (1171 - {167)
Dwidends to non

controlling interests - - - - - - - - {4) (4)
Equity-settied

share-based payments - - - - - - 7 7 - 7

Acquisition of shares

by trustees of the

Employee Share Trust - - - - - - %) (5) - 5
Utisation of

treasury shares - - - - - - 15 15 - 15

Acquisition of aon-

controlling interests - - - - - - 79 (r9) (9) (88)
Shares ssued 3 32 - - - - - a5 - 5

Transfer of imparrment

losses to merger reserve - - (337) - - - 337 - - -

As at 31 December

2015 197 133 540 - (26) 34 721 1,599 9 1608
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Share Shate Marge Hedging owon mua":‘wu Toted
caputal premum resenve reserv reserve reserv sarnmngs Total anereats =ity
im im &m £m Im £m im £m im &
As at 1 January 2014 152 101 - 1 32 34 802 1122 2 1124
Profit for the year - - ~ - - - 82 82 (3 ™
Exchange movements
on translation of foreign
subsitiaries - - - - (4) - - (4) - 4)
Net loss on hedges
of net investment in
foresgn subsidiaries - - - - (4) - - (4) - 1)
Eftective portion of
changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges - - - (1) - - - [0 }) - Q)
Actuanal losses
on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - - (58} (58) - (58)
Tax on actuariallosses - - - - - - 11 i - 1
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - (08 (8) - (47) (56) - {56)
Total comprehensive
Income far the year - - - 63} 8) - 35 26 3 23
Dividends - - - - - - (124) (124} - (124)
Equity-settied
share-based payments - - - - - - 25 25 - 25
Utihsation of
treasury shares - - - - - - 6 6 - 3
Ansing on business
combinations - - - - - - - - 23 23
Shares issued 42 877 - - - - - 819 - 019
Transfer to
Merger reserve - (B77) 877 - - - - - - -
As at 31 December
2014 (restated) 194 101 877 - 24 34 744 1974 22 1,996
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Captal Non

“51’;1:. wm m b . AL .;'n-c‘! Tatal mnrm:tf l‘:it:
im £m im m n Im £m o

As at 1 January 2013 154 o] | (2) 101 32 693 1079 4 1,083

Profit for the year - - - - - 179 179 (0}] 178

Exchange movements on

transtation of foreign subsichianies - - - (69) - - (69) 0] 70

Net loss an hedges of net

investment in foreign subsidiaries - - - [§)] - - {1 - Q)

Tax on exchange movements - - - 1 - - 1 - 1

Effectve portion of changes

in fair value of cash flow hedges - - 3 - - - 3 - 3

Tax on effective portion of changes

in farr value of cash flow hedges - - I - - - Q) - a)

Cash flow hedges transierred

to the income statement - - 1 - - - 1 - 1

Actuanal gans on defined

beneht pension schemes - - - - - 40 40 - 40

Tax on actuanal gains - - - - - (20) (20) - (20)

Other comprehensive incomea

for the year - - 3 (69) - 20 (46) 4)] “n

Tatal comprehensive Income

for the year - - 3 (69) - 189 133 ) 131

Dividends - - - - - (108) (108) - (108)

Equity settled

share-based payments - - - - - 14 14 - 14

Tax on equity-settied

share-based payments - - - - - {1 1) - (1)

Acquisition of shares by trustees

of the Employee Share Trust - - - - - 2) 2) - )

Utilisation of treasury shares - - - - - 7 7 - 7

Acquisition of shares under

the buyback programme (2) - - - 2 - - - -

As at 31 December 2013 152 101 1 32 34 802 1122 2 1124
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Consoclidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2018 204 201
Nata im I L
Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax from continuing operations (235) 155 255
Loss before income tax from discontinued operations 9 (5) (33) (16)
(Loss)/profit before income tax (249Q) 122 239
Financial Income 7 {16) 1) (12)
Financial expense ? 74 16 14
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures zo (28) (12) (14)
Intangible impairment and amortisaton 52 444 49 47
Depreciation n 26 16 12
(Profit)/loss on disposal of businesses 5 {1) 44 6
Difterence between contributions to retirement benefit schemes
and current service cost " (3 (2) -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1) - 1
Lass on disposal of intangible assets - 1 -
Equity-settled share-based payments 7 8 14
262 23 305
Decrease in inventones 1 - 1
Decrease in trade and other recevables 38 106 66
Decrease in trade and other payables and provisions (81) 137) (80O}
Cash generated from operations 220 200 292
Tax paid a9 (54) (52)
Net cash flow from operating activities 141 145 240
Cash flow from Investing activities
Acquisition of businesses (net of cash acquired) 24 (&) (781) (20)
Investment in joint ventures (1) 1) )
Purchase of property plant and equipment as) (14) (10)
Purchase of intangible assets (23) 17) (13)
Movements in bank deposits {more than three months) {2) 3) [¢))
Dhsposal of businesses (net of cash disposed of } 2} {2) 4)
Dispasal of joint ventures 11 (21) -
Disposal of property plant and equipment 2 - 1
Interest received 3 4 9
Didends recewved from joint ventures L] 42 14 8
Amounts receved/(paid) on matunty of net investment hedges 37 {7 &)}
Net cash flow from Investing actlvitles a7 (828) (40)
Net cash flow before financing activities 188 (682) 200
Cash fiow from financing activities
Proceeds from other borrowings 68 1198 100
Repayments of other borrowings (143) (100} (130}
Cash flows inrespect of faciity arrangement fees (3) 13 -
Interest paid (38) ()] (11)
Dividends paid aen {124) (108)
Acquisitton of nan-coniraling interest n (54) - -
Cash recerved in respect of debt related cash flow hedges bl 12 - -
Dwidends paid to non-controlling interests (L] - -
Acquisition of shares for cancellation - - (45)
Cash flows in respect of treasury shares® 15 7
Acquisition of shares by trustees of the Employee Share Trust (5 - {2)
Net cash flow from financing activities (319) 960 (189)
(Decrease)/Increase In cash and cash equivalents (131) 278 11
Cash and cash equivatents as at the beginning of the year o 495 223 232
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents 23 {24) (6) (20)
Cash and cash egquivalents as at the end of the year b:} 340 495 223
Arvec Foster

102

‘Wheeler
Arnusl repcnt and actounts 2015




Consolidated cash flow statemnent continued
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2013 20140 200
Mots m £m m
Cash and cash equivalents consist of
Cash at bank and in hand 2 o7 3 153
Bank deposits (less than three months) 2 33 118 79
Bank overdrafts za - - (9
Cash and cash equivalents as at the and of the year 2 40 495 223
Bank deposits {(more than three months) n 23 21 18
Bank loans Fi] (1.264) (1267) {120)
Fees capitalised against bank factlities n - 9 -
Derivatives classified as net debt 2 14 - -
Finance leases 2 (59) (61) -
Net (debt)/cash as at the end of the year (946) (803) 121
*Cash receved trom SAYE option holders on exercise of options
mﬁffw!:!mmmﬁ 103
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

1 Significant accounting policies

Amec Foster Wheeler plc 15 2 public hrited company which s histed on both the London Stock Exchange and the New York Stock
Exchange and incorporated and dormuciled in the United Kingdom The principal actiities of the Company and its subsidiaries
{the Group) are descrnbed in note 2

Statement of compliance

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of Amec Foster Wheeler plc and all of ts substdiaries made up to 31 December
each year, and the Group s share of the profit after inferest and tax and net assets of joint ventures based on the equity method
of accounting

In accordance with EU law (IAS Regulation EC 1606/2002) the consohdated accounts of ihe Group have been prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted for use in the EU as at 31 December 2015 {adopted IFRS)

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (IFRIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006

applicable to comparies reporting under IFRS The company has elected to prepare its parent company accounts in accordance

with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101), these are presented on pages 157 to 165 I

From the Group s perspective there are no apphcable diferences between adopted IFRS and IFRS as 1ssued by the 1ASB
and therefore the financial statements also comply with IFRS as issued by the IASB

Restatement

0On 13 November 2014 (the acquisition date) the Group acquired 95 3 per cent of the issued share caprtal of Foster Wheeler AG
Due to the relatively short period of time between the acquisition date and 31 December 2014 management had not finalised its
assessment of the fair values of certain of Foster Wheeler s assets and kabiities at the tme that the 2014 financial statements
were completed and as a result the 2014 financial statements reflected the provisional assessment of the fair values as at the
acquisition date The restatement had no impact on the 2014 income statement

During 2015, management has completed the fair value assessment and the comparative amounts shown in the Balance Sheet
Statement of Comprehensive Income Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Staternent have been restated to reflect
changes made to the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities recognised on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler details of which
are set outin note 24

In addition to the above the acquisition balance sheet as presented on page 151 has been restated to present habiities of £65m
n respect of onerous leases within trade and other payables These liabiliies had previousty been presented within prowsions

As the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG in November 2014 resulted in the Group securing more than 0% of Foster Wheeler s
ssued share capital the acquisition quabfies for merger relief under section 612 of the Comparies Act 2006 from crediting the
share premium that arose on the new shares issued in consideration for Foster Wheeler to a share premium account The balance
sheet as at 31 December has been restated to present excess of the nominal value of the shares issued of £877m as a merger reserve

Accounting standards adopted (1 the year
There are no IFRS 1AS amendments or IFRIC interpretations effective tor the first time this financial year that have had a matenal
impact on the Group

New standards, amendments and Interpretations issued but not effective which have not been early adopted by the Group
IFRS 9 Financia! Instruments replaces the existing guidance in |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments including the new expected
credit loss model for calculating i/mpairment on financial assets and the new general hedge accounting requirements It also
carnies forward guidance on recognition and derecognition on financial instruments from IAS 39 IFRS 915 effective for annual
periods beginrng on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permutted

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ wil supersede the current revenue recogrition guidance including 1AS 18
‘Revenue IAS 1] Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes eHlective Under IFRS 15 an entity
recogmises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied That is when the control of goods or services underlying
the particular performance obhigation is transferred to the customer The standard provides far more prescriptve guidance with
regards to specific scenarios and requires extensive disclosures IFRS 1515 effective for annual periods beginning an or after

1 January 2018 with early application permitted

IFRS 16 'Leases replaces the existing gurdance in JAS 17 ‘Leases’ IFRS 16 eiminates the classification of leases as either operating
leases or finance leases The standard introduces a single lessee accounting model which requires a lessee to recogrise assets
and habiities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months and depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease
habilities in the income statement

The application of IFRS 9 IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 1n the future may have a matenial impact on the amounts reported and disclosures ,
made in the Group s accounts However it 1s not practical te provide a reasonable estumate of the effect of IFRS 9 IFRS 15 and |
IFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review

Other than as described above there are no other IFRS, IAS amendments or IFRIC interpretations which are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a matertal impact on the Group
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of preparation

The accounts are presented in Sterling rounded to the nearest million All calculated numbers for example earnings per share
are calculated on the underlying numbers to one decimal place precision They are prepared on the historical cost basis except
that derwative financial instruments and retirement benefit assets and liabilities are stated at tair value

The preparation of accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
judgements estimates and assumphions that aifect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habihties
Income and expenses The estrmates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and various other lactors
that are belteved to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ

from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimales are recogrised
in the period in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that period or in the penod of the reviston and future
periods If the revision affects both current and future periods

Amec Foster Wheeler believe some of these policies require a high level of judgement and the most eritical accounting policies
and significant areas of judgement and estimation anise from

» acquisition accounting under IFRS 3 Business Combinations

» long-term contracts under IAS 11 Construction Contracts

»intangible assets including goodwill under 1AS 38 Intangtble Assets and IAS 36 Impairment of Assets'
» provistons under IAS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabidities and Contingent Assets

»uncertain tax positions under (AS 12 'Income Taxes

» defined benefit pension schemes under IAS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits’

In addition judgement has also been apphed in the presentation of certan research and development government credits and
In presenting the UK conventional power business as a discontinued operation in 2013

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations

During 2014 the Group acquired Foster Wheeler The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase under IFRS 3 Determining

the fair value of the assets and habitties acquired involved sigmificant judgement and estimates This involved the use of valuation
madels to determine the farr value of the intangible assets acquired (nputs to these models incilude estimates of the future cash
flows of Foster Wheeler the appropriate discount rate to apply to these future ¢ash flows estimates of the retention rates for

key customers and the hkelihood of renewal of significant service contracts Further information about the assumptions used for
calculating provisions and goodwill are documented below

I1AS 11 Construction Contracts
A significant amount of the Group s activities 1s undertaken via long-term contracts These contracts are accounted for n
accordance with |AS 11 'Construction Contracts which requires estimates to be made for contract costs and revenues

Management bases i{s judgements of contract costs and revenues on the latest avaitable information which includes detasted
contract valuations n many cases the results reflect the expected outcomne of long-term contractual cbligations which span more
than one reporting period Contract costs and revenues are affected by a vanety of uncertainties that depend on the cutcome

of future events and often need to be revised as events unfold and uncertainties are resolved The estimates of contract costs

and révenues are updated regularly and significant changes are highlighted through established internal review procedures

In particutar, the internal reviews focus on the timing and recogrutron of incentive payments and the age and recoverability of

any unagreed income from variations to the contract scope or claims The impact of the changes i accounting estimates s then
reflected in the ongomng results

Principally there are two types of long-term contracts being cost reimbursable contracts and fixed price contracts Due to the
nature of these contracts the sigmficant estimates tend to anise on hxed price contracts rather than cost resmbursable contracts
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting polictes continued

Basls of preparation continued

IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

The Group has a significant amount of intangible assets on its balance sheet Goodwill arising on acquisitions represents

the excess of the fair value of the purchase cansideration over the farr value of the assets and habiities acquired Goodwallis
capitahsed and subject to imparment review both annually and when there are indications that its carrying value may not be
recoverable Animparment loss 1s recognised to the extent that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

The determunation of carrying value involves sigmficant jJudgements when allocating goodwill to the cash generating units ( CGUs')
expected to benefit from the acquisition The estimation of the recoverable amounts also requwes sigmficant judgements and
estimates including the future cash fiows of the CGU terrmunal growth rates and the appropniate rate at which to discount those
cash flows See note 12 for further details of the impairment reviews performed during the year The carrying amount of the

Global Power Group CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount through recogrition of an impairment loss of £308m
agamst goodwill

Intangible assets other than goodwill are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses The cost of an
intangible asset acqurred in a business combination is the fair value of the asset at the date of acquisition Amortisation is charged
to the income statement over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets

1AS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabitities and Contingent Assels

When accounting for provisions for itigation and other tems the Group has taken internal and external advice i considering
known legal claims and actions made by or against the Group It carefully assesses the likelihood of success of a claim or action
Appropriate provisions are made for legal claims or actions against the Group on the basis of likely outcome but no provisions
are rmade for those which in the view of rmanagement are unlikely to succeed

The Group has a sigruficant asbestos refated provision Some of the Group s US and UK subsidiaries are defendants 1 numerous
asbestos-related lawsuits and out-of-court mformal clams pending in the US and UK Plaintiffs claim damages for personal
injury alleged to have ansen from exposure to or use of ashestos in connection with work allegedly performed by the Group s
subsidianies during the 1970s and earlier

The provision for asbestos 1s the Group s best estimate of its obhigation required to settle claims that 1s expected to continue
up until 2050 The provision is discounted back to a net present value using a US Treasury yield curve discount rate

See note 21 for further delails of the Group s provisions

IAS 12 tncome Taxes
Significant judgement 1s required in determumng habiities related to uncertain tax positions in particular those in respect
of financing structures Theres also significant judgement required in assessing the recoverability of delerred tax assets

I1AS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits

Defined benefit pension schemes are accounted for in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuanes but
significant judgements are required in relation to the assumptions for future salary and pension increases, discount rate, inflation
and member life expectancy that underpin their valuations For Amec Foster Wheeler, these assumptions are important given the
relative size of the schemes that remain open for future accrual

See note 14 for further detalls of the Group's retirement benefit schemes

IFRS 5°Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Dvscentinued Operations’
In accordance with IFRS 5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’ the post-tax results of discontinued
operations are disclosed separately in the consohdated income statement

Discontinued operations include the non-core Bult Eavironment businesses which were sold during 2007 SPIE which was
sold In 2006 and the UK conventional power business that was discontinued in 2013 The judgements applied in presenting
the UK conventional power business as discontinued are explamed in note 1 to the 2013 financial statements The cash flows
of discontinued operations are fully consolidated within Amec Foster Wheeler up to the date of sale The results and other
disclosures in respect of discontinued operations are shown in note 9

Going concern
As at 31 December 2015 the group had net debt of £946m and committed and avarable banking faciities of £442m

On 2 March 2016 the Group announced the completion of a refinancing of its main debt facilihies by entering into a new facility with
a syndrcate of 20 banks The new facility which has three tranches — a three-year £650 rmillion term loan 3 five-year £650 million
term loan and a five-year £400 million revolving credit facility — replaces the Company s existing revolving credit facility and the
Foster Wheeler acquisition faciity

The Group has assessed it will be able to meet expected mandatory iterest and repayment of its banking facilities in place
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Going concern continued

The Group will finance operations and growth from its existing cash resources and its commutted banking faciities The Group's
policy aims to ensure the constant availability of an appropriate amount of funding to meet both current and future forecast
requirements consistent with the Group s budget and strategic plans

The directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In prepaning the iinancial statements

It for any reason the Group 1s unable to continue as a going concern, It could impact the Group's abibty to realise assets at ther
recogmsed values n particular goodwill and other intangible assets and to extinguish ltabiibies in the normal course of business
at the amounts stated in the consohdated accounts

Accounting policies
The accounting policies set cut below have unfess otherwise stated been applied consistently to all penods presented in these
consohdated accounts

Basls of consolidation

The consolidated accounts comprise the accounts of the Group and its subsidianes as at 31 December 2015 Controlis achieved
when the Group 1s exposed or has nghts, to vanable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee Generally there 1s a presumption that a majority of voting nghts result in control

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate there is a change of control
Consolidation of a subsiciary begins when the Group oblams control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group toses control
of the subsidiary Assets, iabilities, Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consohdated accounts from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidary

Profit or 1oss and each component of comprehensive Income s attnibuted to the equity holders of the parent of the Group

and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 2 deficit balance When necessary
adustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group s
accounting policies All intra-Group assets and habilies equity, ncome, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are ehminated in full on consolidation

A change i the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control 1s accounted for as an equity transaction

If the Group loses control over a subsichary 1t derecognises the related assets (including goodwill) habihties non-controlling
interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss 1s recognised in profit or loss Any investment retained
15 recognised at fair value

A jont venture 15 a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangerment have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture Joint control 1s the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant actiwities require unanimous consent of the parties shanng control

The considerations made in determining joint control are siritar to those necessary to determine control over subsidaries

The Group s investrments in its joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method Under the equity method the investment
w a joint venture 15 inhially recognised at cost The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date The results of the joint ventures are included in the
conschdated accounts from the date the joint control commences until the date that it ceases

The aggregate of the Group s share of profit or loss of a joint venture 1s shown on the face of the mcome staterment and represents
profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the joint venture

Losses ol a jmnt venture are recognised only to the extent of the Group s interest in the juint venture unless the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf aof the joint venture

Ajoint aperation 1s a yoint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the assets
and obhgations for the liabdities relating to the arrangement

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under jont operations the Group as a joint operator recogrises m relation
tots interest in a joint operation

» its assets and habihties, including its share of any assets and kabylibies held jointly
» its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
» its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by joint operahon

» its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

8id costs

Bid costs are expensed as mcurred until the Group i1s appointed as the preferred bidder Subsequent to appointment as preferred
bidder, bid costs are capitalised and held on the balance sheet provided the award of the contract 1s virtually certain and it s
expected to generate sufficient net cash flow 10 allow recovery of the bud costs Where bid costs are reimbursed at financial close
the proceeds are applied first agamnst the balance of costs included in the balance sheet with any additional amounts treated as
deferred income and released to profit over the period of the contract

Business combinations and goodwill
The purchase method)s used to account for all business combnations

Goodwill represents the excess of the farr value of the purchase cansideration over the fair value of the assets habihtias and
contingent habilities acquired

Goodwsll arsing on acquisitions since 1 January 2004 is caprtahised and subject to an impairment review both annually and when
there are indications that its carrying value may not be recoverable Goodwill 1s not amortised

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term {nvestments
Cash compnses cash balances and deposits repayable on demand and available within one worlang day without penalty

Cash equivalents are other deposits with a maturity period of three months or less from date of acquisttion convertible without
an undue period of notice and not subject to a sigruficant nsk of changes in value

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on dernand and form an integral part of Amec Foster Wheeler s cash rmanagement are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cashflows

In the cansolidated balance sheet bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current habiihes
Deposits with a maturity period of more than three months at inception are classiied as bank deposits {more than three months)

Development axpenditure

Expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the development of wind farm projects 1s recognised as an intangible asset when the
Group can demonstrate it is probable that the wind farm development will generate future econermic benefits in excess of the
amounts capitahised and other relevant cnitena for capitahising such costs in accordance with 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets have
been mel

Following imitial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset the assetis carned at cost less any accumudated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses Amortisation of the asset begins when the wind farm development 1s complete
and the asset 1s available for use Itis amortised over the period of expected future benefit During the period of development

the asset 1s reviewed for imparment annually

Discontinued operations and assets and labilities held for sale

A discontinued operation is a separate major ine of business or geographic area of operations that has aither been disposed
of abandoned or 1s part of a plan to dispose of a2 major line of business or geographuc area An operationis classified as a
discontinuad operation (n the year that the above cntena are met

Certan legacy settlernents and relevant prowsion adjustments are allocated to discontinued operations whenthose settlements
and provisions anse from or are directly related to the discontinued operations

Dwvidend income
Didend income 1s recognised when the nght to receive payment is estabhished

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recogmsed in the income statement as incurred

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods That benefitis
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid pnce)is deducted The hability discount
rate 15 the yreld at the balance sheet date on AA rated corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms
of the Group s abligations The calculation s performed by a qualified actuary using the projected urit credit methiod

A net surplus from a defined benefit plan s recognised on the balance sheet when the asset would be recoverable as a result
of an expected luture refund after a gradual settlement of plan hatuhities

Netinterest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit labidity or asset
Actuarial gains and losses are recogmsed in other comprehensive ncome in the year in which they anse
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Exceptional items

As permitted by IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements! certain items are presented separately as exceptional on the face

of the consohidated income statement |n the opinion of the directors these exceptional items require separate disclosure by wvirtue
of thewr nature, size or incidence in arder to obtain a clear and consistent presentation of the Group's underlying performance and
to provide consistency with internal management reporting Exceptional items may include, but are not restricted to imparrment
charges acquisition related costs, restructuring costs gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets, and gains and losses on
the disposal or closure of businesses Acquisiion-related costs may include transaction costs {including external advisory legal
valuation and other professional fees and attributable internal costs) the amortisaton of acquisition-related facility fees payments
to selling shareholders that are accounted for as remuneration and changes in the far value of contingent censideration

Financlal instruments
Financial instruments are imtially recorded at farr value Subsequent valuation depends on the designation of the mstrument

Cash bank deposits borrowings and trade recewables and payables are held at amortised cost

Bank loans and similar borrowings are recogrised initially at fair value (1 e proceeds received) net of directly attributable transaction
fees Interest expense including transaction tees 1s recogrused over the life of the bank loan using the effective interest method

Derwvative financial instruments are recognised mitiaily and subsequentty at fairr value The gain or loss on re-measuremnent

to far value 15 recognised immediately in the income statement However, where dervatives qualify for hedge accounting
recogrition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the tem being hedged The fair value of derivative financial
mstruments 1s deterrmined by reference to market values for similar inancial :nstruments or by discounting the expected future
cash flows at prevailing interest rates

The sale and purchase of derivative financtal instruments are non-speculative

Cash flow hedges

Where a derwvative financial instrument 1s desrgnated as a hedge against the variabiity incash flows of a recogmised asset

or liability or a hughly probable forecast transaction any gain or loss on the effective part of the denivative inancial instrument
15 recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated within the hedging reserve The gain or [0ss on any ineffective
portian of the hedge 15 recognised immediately in the income statement

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging nstrument no longer meets the critera for hedge accounting expires

or15 sold terminated or exercised The cumulative gain or loss previously recogrised in the hedging reserve remains there until
the forecast transaction accurs The cumulative gain or loss in the hedging reserve is transferred to the income statement in the
same period that the hedged itemn affects profit ar loss

Net investment hedges

Foreign currency differences ansing on the retranslation of financial nstruments designated as a hedge of a net investment

n a foreign operation are recogrused in other comprehensive income, to the extent that the hedge 1s efective The gain or loss
of any ineffective portion of the hedge 1s recognised immedrately in the income staterment On disposal of the foreign operation
the cumulative value of gains and lasses recorded in equity 1s transterred to the income statement

Foreign currencies

The Group s consohdated accounts are presented in Sterkng which s also the parent company s functional currency Each entity
n the Group determimes its own functional currency and items inctuded in the accounts of each entity are measured using that
functional currency An entity’s functional currency reflects the underlying transactions events and conditions that are relevant to it

At an individual entity level transactions ina currency other than the functional currency of the entity are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate rubing at the day of the transaction Entities which have multiple foreign currency
transactions apply the average rate for the month as an approximation of the exchange rate on the day of the transaction
Monelary assets and llabilities denominated in foresgn currencies are transiated into the functional currency at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and any foreign exchange differences arising are recogrised in the mcome statement
except those ansing on intra-Group balances settlement of which 1s neither planned nor probable to occur, which are recogmsed
in other comprehensive income Non-monetary assets and habdities are measured in terms of histoncat cost and are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

On consalidation the results of entities with a functional currency other than Sterling are translated into Sterting using a monthly
average exchange rale The net assets of such entities are translated into Sterling at the closing exchange rate

Exchange differences ansing on the translation of foreign currency net investments and any foreign currency borrowings

or torward contracts used to hedge those investments are taken to a transiation reserve They are recycled and recogrused as a
profit or loss on the disposal or closure of abusmness The cumulative translation difference for all foreign operations was deemed
to be zero as at 1 January 2004 the date of transition to adopted IFRS

Ao repoe e sccouns 2018 109

Strategw report

Financials Governance

Additonal information




Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Impalrment

The carrying values of all of the Group s assets other than inventones, balances on long term contracts and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to deterrmne whether there 1s any indication of impairment If there are indications of
an impairment in the carrying value then the recoverable amount is estimated and compared to the carrying amount

For goodwll and assets not yet available for use, the recoverable amount 15 estimated at each balance sheet date Animparment
loss 1s recogrused to the extent that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

Intangible assets other than goodwilll

Intangible assets acquired by the Group, which mclude customer relatianships, brands/trademarks arder backlog patents
and software, are stated at cost less accumulated amorhisation and impairment losses The cost of an ntangible asset acquired
in a business combination is 1ts fair value at date of acquisition

Amoertisation 1s charged to the income staterment on a straight ine basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets
from the date they are avauable for use

The estimated lives of imangible assets held at 31 December 2015 are as fellows

Customer reiationships Two to 18 years
Brand/trademarks Up 1o 20 years
Order backiog Three to five years
Patents 15 years

Software Three to seven years
Other Up to six years
inventones

Inventories wcluding fand held for and in the course of development are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Oevelopment land and work in progress is included at cost less any losses foreseen i completing and disposmng of the
development Costincludes cost of acquisitian and development to date tncluding directly attnbutable fees and expenses
net of rental and other Income attributabie to the development

Leases

The determunation of whether an arrangement 1s (or contains) a tease 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease The arrangement 1s, or contains, a lease «f fulfilment of the arrangement s dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even f that right 1s not expheitly specified
" an arrangement

A lease Is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease A lease that transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease

Finance teases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or if lower
at the present value of the minimum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction

of the lease liabiity so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remamning balance of the habihty Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the iIncome statement

Aleased asset s depreciated over the useful iifa of the asset However f there s no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term the asset I1s depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term

Operating lease costs including incentives received are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the period
of the lease

Net financing expense

Net financing expense comprises interest recewvable on funds invested interest payable pension financing income the unwinding
of discounted balances and foreign exchange gains and losses Interest income and interest payable are recognised in the income
statement as they accrue using the effective interest methed

Directly attnbutable finance costs are capitalised in the cost of purchased and constructed property plant and equipment
until the relevant assets are brought inte operational use
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and eguipment 1s measured at cost less accumuiated deprecialien and imparment losses The cost of property,
plant and equipment as at 1 January 2004 the date of transition to adopted IFRS was deterrmined by reference Lo its fair value
at that date

Depreciation 1s provided on all property plant and equipment, with the exception of freehold land at rates calculated to write
off the cost less estirnated residual value of each asset on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life Reviews are made
annually of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of individual assets

The estimated lives used are

Freehoid bulldings Upto 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings  The shorter of the lease term or 50 years
Plant and equipment Manly three to five years

Provisions for liabilihes and charges

Provisions are recogrused when the Group has 2 present cbhgation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it s probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obhgation

The Group has taken internal and external advice in considenng known and reasonably likely legal claims and actions made by
or aganst the Group [t carefully assesses the hkelthood of success of a claim or action Appropriate provistons are made for legal
claims or actions against the Group on the basis of ikely outcome bul ne provisions are made for those which 1n the view of
management are unlikely to succeed These possible but not probable iabilities are disclosed in note 26 as contingent trabiliies

Research and development government credits

The Group claims research and development gavernment credits in the UK US and Canada These are judged to have
characteristics more akin to grants than income taxes and are offset against the reievant expenditure caption Credits are
recogrused to the extent there 1s reasonable assurance they will be received which, given the necessary claims processes
can be some hime atter the original expense I1s incurred

Revenue recognition and long term contracts

Revenwue represents the amount received or receivable for goods and services supplied by the Group to its customers including
the Group's share of revenue from work carried out by jomtly controlled operations Revenue exciudes intra-Group sales and value
added tax and otner sales taxes

The Group s revenue s derived principally from service and construction-type contracts Contract revenue is recognised over
the term of the contract by reference to the stage of completion of the contract actiwity at the end of each reporting period

Revenue from cost resmbursable contracts 15 based on the services provided, typically represented by man-hours worked

and 1s measured by reference to agreed charge out rates or to the estimated total contract revenue Flow-through ¢costs en cost
reimbursable contracts typically consisting of matenals equipment or subcontractor services, are included as both contract
revenue and contract costs

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised using the percentage-of-completion method measured by reference to physicat
completion or the ratio of costs incurred to total estimated contract costs |f the cutcome of a contract cannot be estimated
reliably, as may be the case in the imtial stages of completion of the contract revenue s recogrised only to the extent of the
costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable If a contract is expected to be loss-making the expected amount of the loss

15 recognised immediately «n the income statement

Avariation 1s an instruction by the customer for a change in the scape of the work o be performed under the contract Vanations
are included in contract revenue when it 1s probable that the customer will approve the vanation and the related adjustment to
the contract price can be measured rehably

Actaim s an amount that the contractor seeks to collect from the customer as reimbursement for costs whose inclusionin

the contract price 1s disputed and may arise from for example delays caused by the customer, errors n specification or design
and disputed variations i contract work Claims are included in coniract revenue when negotiations with the customer have
reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim and the amount of the claim can

be measured reliably
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition and long term contracts continued

Incentive payments are additional amounts payable to the contractor if specified performance standards are met or exceeded
Incentive payments are recognised when the contract is sufficiently far advanced that it 1s probable that the required performance
standards will be met and the amount of the payment can be measured rehably

Gross amounts due from customers included in trade and other recevables represent the costs incurred plus recogmsed profits
less pravision for recogrised losses and progress bitings Progress bilings that have not been settled by customers (including
retentions related to contracts in progress) are included in trade receivables where they are stated after allowance for any
doubtful debts

Trade recewvables which are generally of a short term nature, are recogmsed and carried at the onginal mvoiced amount less an
allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts Prowision 1s made when there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to recover balances in ful Batances are written off when the probability of recovery 1s assessed as being remote

Gross amounts due to customers included in trade and other payables represent payments on account received from customers
i excess of the gross amounts due from customers and advances Advances are amounts recerved by the customer before the
related work 1s performed

Shara-based payments

There are various share-based payment arrangements which allow Amec Foster Wheeler employees to acquire Amec Foster
Wheeler shares these awards are granted by Amec Foster Wheeler The fair value of awards granted I1s recogrused as a cost of
employment with a corresponding increase in equity The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the penod duning
which the employees become unconditionally entitied to the award The fair value of the award s measured using a valuation
model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted The amount recogmsed as an expense
15 adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest except where non-vesting 1s due to total shareholder return not
achieving the threshold for vesting

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises the sum of the current lax charge and the movement in deferred tax

Current tax payable or recoverable 15 based on taxable prefit for the year using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable inrespect of previous years Taxable prohit
15 different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting and tax treatments and due to items that
are never taxable or deductible

Tax 15 recognised In the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recogrised in other comprehensive income
or equity in which case it 1s recognised in other comgrehensive iIncome or equity as appropriate

A current tax provision 15 recogrused when the Group has a presant obligation as a result of a past event it 1s probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obhigation and a rehable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation The provision
1s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account
nsks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Separate provisions for interest and penalties are also recorded f appropriate
Movements in interest and penalty amounts in respect of tax provistons are not included i the tax charge but are disclosed within
profit/(toss) before income tax

Tax provisions are based on management s interpretation of country specific tax law and the ikelihood of setilement This involves
a sigmficant amount of judgement as tax legislation can be complex and open to different interpretation Management uses in heuse
tax experts professional firms and previous expenence when assessing tax risks Where actual tax habiities differ from the
provisions adjustments are made which can have a materal impact on the Group's profits for the year

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilibes in the accounts and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabihities are generally recogrused for all taxable
temporary differences with deferred tax assets bemng recogrused where it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avaitable
agamst which the asset can be utiised The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjustments made to the extent that it1s no longer probable that sufficient profits will be available

Assets and liabilities are not recogrnused if the temporary differences arise from the inbial recogretion (other than in a business
combination) of assets and habilities in a transaction that atfects neither accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmsed for taxable temporary differences ansing oninvestments in subsitiaries and joint ventures
except where the Group Is able to contro! the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary ditference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax 1s calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted to apply when the delerred
tax asset 1s realised or the habiity 1s settled

Deferred tax assets and habihities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and it is
intended that they will be settted on a net basis

Amec Fosler Wheeler
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2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations

Amec Foster Wheeler designs delivers and maintains strategic and complex assets for its customers across the global energy
and related sectors

Segment information 1s presented on a consistent basis with the information presented to the Group Leadershup Team for the
purposes of allocating resources within the Group and assessing the performance of the Group s businesses

Pricr to the acguisition of Foster Wheeler in Novernber 2014 the Group s continuing operations comprised of four operating
segments Americas, Europe Growth Regions and Investment Services For the short period between its acquisition and the
end of 2014, Foster Wheeler s results were presented to the Group Leadership Team analysed by 1ts exssting operating segments
E&C Services and Global Power Group

with effect from 1 January 2015 the Group adopted three new geographical operating segments Americas Northern Europe

& CIS, anc Asia Middle East, Africa & Southern Europe, with Foster Wheeler s E&C Services segment being merged into these
segments Foster Wheeler s Global Power Group continues to be reported as a separate operating segment investment Services
also continues to be reported separately Details of the services offered by each segment and the end markets in which they
operate are givenon pages 3to Sand 24 to 25

The Group Leadershup Team uses trading profit as the measure of the profitability of the Group s businesses Trading profit is
therefore the measure of the segment profit presented in the Group s segment disclosures Trading profit represents profit before
net financing expense excluding exceptional tems the amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and asbestos-related
costs {net of insurance recoveries) Trading profit includes the Group's share of the trading profit of joint ventures

Revenue and resuits
. __________________________________]
Reverus Prokt/(koss)
08 2014 700 208 2014 2013
£m £m £m im £m tm
Americas 2,646 2184 2 247 161 212 241
MNorthern Europe and CIS 1492 1293 1227 134 105 a3
Asia, Middie East Afnica and Southern
Europe L050 516 536 68 25 33
Global Power Group 364 53 - 81 1 -
Investment Services 15 8 6 n 9 1n
5.567 4054 4,016 428 352 378
Internal revenue 112) 1) (42) - - -
External revenue 5455 3993 3974 - - -
Corporate costs! (54) €} (35)
Trading profit2 373 321 343
Net financing expense? (40) ) an
Adjusted profit before tax 334 317 332
Tax onresults of joint ventures* Q0) (6) (5)
324 31 327
Intangible amortisation and impairment’ (444) (49) (47)
Exceptional and asbestos-related items$ 115) (107) (29)
(Loss)/profit before income tax (235) 155 255

1 Corporate costs comprise the costs of operating central corparate functions and certain regional overheads

2 Trading profit 15 e2rmngs from contimung operations befora net financding expense tax mtangible amortrsation and mparment pre tax exceptional items
and asbestos refated items of £334m (2014 £295m 2013 £315m) but nchudmg word venture trading proht of £40m (2016 £22m 2013 £28m)

3 Net linancing expense excludes exceptional and asbestos refated tems but includes Amec Foster Wheeler s share of net mterest payable of joint ventures
4 The share o1 post tax resylis of joint ventures 1s further analysed as follows

Forii) 204 203

[ ] 7] im

Trading profit 40 22 28
Net financing expense @) 4) 9)
Tax (10) (6) (5)
28 12 14

5 See note 5 tor lurther detads
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations continued

Transachions between reportable segments are conducted on an arm s length basis Internal revenue anses in the segments
as follows

208 2014 2013
[ £m im
Americas 12 13 18
Northern Evrope and CIS 35 23 17
Asia Middte East Africa and Southern Europe &5 24 7
Global Power Group - - -
Investment Services - 1 -
n2 61 42
Other information
bntannbie smcr taston
‘Share of pasl ta resutts of it veatunes Depracutan g impar ment
2008 20U 2013 013 04 213 2018 201 203
im in im tm £m tm am £m tm
Americas (1) 1 2 9 8 7 46 20 18
Northern Europe and CIS 15 7 6 5 3 41 19 17
Asia, Middle East Africa and
Southern Europe 3 2 2 4 2 2 23 6 12
Global Power Group u 2 - 4 1 - 334 4 -
Investment Services - 1 3 3 - - - - -
28 12 14 26 16 12 444 49 47
Geographica!l origin
Revenue Non current asse's
24
s 2014 2011 2013 {restated) X3
m £m Em m im Im
United Kingdom 1223 1067 1112 647 801 326
Canada 741 938 1104 288 297 188
Uruted States 1873 1218 1070 L302 1175 284
Rest of the world 1618 770 €88 L1019 1442 225
5,455 3993 3974 3256 3715 1023

The non-current assels analysed by geography include property plant and equipment, intangible assets and interests
in joint ventures

Revenue to external customers by region s based on the location of the group subsidiary which made the sale
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3 Revenue
. _]

018 2014 201
&m &m £&m

Construction contracts 1,045 a7 342
Services 4,410 3076 3632
5,455 3993 3974

The revenue from construction contracts shown above 1s based on the defimition of construction contracts included in 1AS 11
and includes revenue from all contracts directly related to the construction of an asset even f Amec Foster Wheeler s role
15 as a service prowder for example project management

4 Profit before net financing expense — continuing operations
e

13

m

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 26
Minimum payments under operating leases B89 87 96

Research and development government credits {15,

There are no material receipts from subleases

2018 2014 2013
™ Em Em
fees paid to the auditor and its associates
The auditing of the accounts 41 39 03
The auditing of accounts of any subsidianes of the company 14 15 11
Taxation cormphance services 09 o4 03
All taxation advisory services other than compliance - - 01
All services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed
to be entered into by or on behalf of the company or any of its associates 0.9 64 16
All other non-audit services 0.2 01 01
75 123 35
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

5 Amortisation, mpairment, exceptional and asbestos-related tems

Continuing operations

Adrmiristrative expenses ~ exceptional and asbestos-related items (94) (86) (18}
Adrministrative expenses -~ intangible amortisation and impairment 444) (49) (a7)
(538) (135) {65)
Loss an business disposals and closures Q) (16) 7)
Net financing expense (20) (3 -
{559) (156) (72)

Taxation ¢credit/(charge) on exceptional and asbestos-related items
of continuing operations 18 6 (6)
Taxation charge on restructuring - - (16)
Taxation credit on intangible amortisation and imparment 27 12 20
45 18 (2)

Post-tax amortisation impairment excephional and asbestos related items
of continuing operations (514) (138) (74)
1

Exceptional tems of discontinued operations (post-tax) {19) -
Post-tax amortisation impairment exceptional and asbestos related items (513} (157) 74)
Post-tax exceptional and asbhestos related items (96) (120} (47)
Post-tax intangible amortisaton and impairment a1n (37) @n
(513) 57 74 f

The charge of £444m in respect of intangible amortisatton and impairment comprises amortisation of £129m and imparments of
£315m The goodwall in the Global Power Group business has been written down by £308m and there was a £7m write down on the
order backlog intangible asset See note 12 for further details '

Post-tax exceptional and asbestos-related items for 2015 are further analysed as foliows
|

2015
Lota Sroft/(loss)
respect of on busingss Othar
Profit an business disposals and Aahat v xzca plianad
dsponals Chotures cinsires rlated tama Hams Tots!
Em m 2m im fm im
Caontinuing operations - (1) [4}] 6 (120) {15)
Discontinued operations 1 - 1 - - 1
Proht/(loss) before tax 1 1) - 6 (120) (114)
Taxation on exceptionalitems - - - - 18 B
Profit/(loss) after tax 1 1) - 6 (102) (96)

The pre-tax profit on disposal of £1m relates to costs and movements in indemnity provisions associated with businesses sold
n prior years and classified as discontinued

There was a credit of £5m relating to a change in the discount rate applied to the asbestos liability and expenenttal gains of £9m
as the habihty 1s reassessed on an annual basts These credits were offset by a £7m charge n respect of unwinding the discount
and £1m other cosis of managing the hability

Other exceptional termns of £120mincludes £97m relating to the ¢costs of integrating the Amec and Foster Wheeler businesses
£13m amortisation of fees associated with the borrowings taken on to fund the acquisition a £5m loss incurred following an
unauthorised payment made from the Australian business and not expected to be recovered and other exceptional itemns totalling
£5m

Integration costs includes severance (£32m) professional and consultancy fees (£11m) costs of rationalisation of agents
(£8m) property and office rationalisation (£27m) and stalf costs (£11m) as well as IT rebranding and Sarbanes-Oxley Act
implementation costs totalling £8m

Of the £120m of other exceptional items £72m was paid in cash during the year
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5 Amortisation, impairment, exceptional items and asbestos-related items continued

Post-tax, exceptional and asbestos related items for 2014 are further analysed as follows

X014
Protitn Loss on
respect of busness Othay §
Lerss an [ drpomals and Asbesios acepinnal

dspasaly coums cdoturny retated tems s Total 13

&m £m £m Lo £m &m %

Continuing operations 21) 5 (16} {9} (82) {107 g

Discontinued operations (23) - (23) - - 23) #
(Loss)/profit before tax (44) 5 (39) (9 (82) {130)

Taxation on exceptional items 5 - 5 - 5 10

(Loss)/profit after tax (39) 5 (34) (9) an (120}

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed of its investment in the Lancashire Waste project at a loss of

£21m mainly ansing from a reverse premium payable on exit This combined with additional indemmity provisions and costs of
£23m associated with businesses sold in prior years (and classified as discontinued) to give a pre-tax loss on disposal of £44m
Ttus includes a provision £11m in respect of a new claim receved in the year related to a contract completed by the DPS business

which was sold n 2007

There was a credit of £5m from the release of a provision no longer required in respect of a business closed in a prior year

(and classified as continuing)

Other exceptional tems of £82m includes transaction costs of £37m relating to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG £35m costs
of integrating the two businesses and £4m of fees associated with the borrowings taken on to fund the acquisition Integration

costs include consultancy and other costs of identifying cost synergies of £18m which includes assoctated internal labour
plus £17m costs of achieving cost synergies (including £14m redundancy costs) In addition £6m was incurred in completing

the previously anncunced restructuring into gecgraphic business units There was a charge of £8m relating to a change in the
discount rate apphed to the asbestos hability and £1m in respect of unwinding the discount Out of the £82m of other exceptional

tens £58m was paid i cash duning the year
Post-tax exceptional iterns for 2013 are further anatysed as follows

Governance

2013
Lossin Loas on
respact of musnes Other
Lavks oo Dutiness Saposahs and oI echons)
desposals ciosures ciosures dems Tatak
m m im tm &m
Continumg operaligns - 7 o)) (18 (25)
Discontinued aperations (6) - (6} - (6)
Loss before tax (6) ()] {13) (18) (31
Taxation charge on restructunng - - - (16) (16) z
Taxation on exceptional items [ - [ (6) - g
Loss after tax - o Q) @6) @n| |E

Additional ndemmity provisions of £10m and costs in respect of businesses sold in prior years (and classified as discontinued)
were offset by the release of a £5m hktigation provision and indemmity pravisions no longer required, and give a pre-tax exceptional

loss on disposals of £6m

There were additional itigation provisions of £9m offset by releases of £2m n respect of businesses closed ina prior year

and classified as continuing

Exceptional costs of £18m in continuing operations includes £14m restructuring costs associated with the management
rearganisation nto geograpme business units and transaction costs of £4m which inline with IFRS 3 are charged to the

income statement

A tax provision ot £16m has been established for potential withholding tax foltowing a Group restructunng that resulted

in a significant amount of cash being repatnated from foreign subsidianies
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Notes to the consohdated accounts continued

6 Staff costs and employee numbers — continuing operations

018 204 200
&m £m £m
Wages and salanes 1857 1466 1459
Social secunty costs 193 100 98
Equity-settled share-based payments (nole 22) 7 a8 14
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 42 37 36
Defined benefit penston scherme expense (note 14) 38 31 32
2137 1642 1639
]
2013 2018 2013
anber mumer [Ty -
The average number of people employed was as follows
Amencas 15,040 12 365 13046
Northern Europe and CIS 9232 7898 7216
Asia, Middle East Africa and Southern Europe 7086 337% 3070
Global Power Group 2332 322 -
Investment Services/Centre 323 264 240
34,013 24 225 23572

The average numnber of paople employed w1 2014 includes AMEC staff for the full year and Foster Wheeler staff for the period

following the acquisition
Detanls of directors remuneration are provided 1n the Directors remuneration report onpages 67 to 80
The average number of employees as stated above excludes agency staff

7 Net financing expense - continuing operations

Im
Financial Income
Interest income on bank deposits 7 3 7
Other interest and similar income 3 5 3
Pension financing mcome - 2 1
Foresgn exchange gains 6 1 1
16 1 12
Financlal expense
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts {51) (10} (9)
QOther interest and similar expense L)) @) (3
Penston finance expense {2) - -
Foreign exchange losses ) 0y (&)
Unwinding of the discount on the asbestos provision o 4} -
(73) (16) {14)
Net linancing expense (58) (5) {2)

The unwinding of the discount on the asbestos provision of £7m (2014 £1m) has been presented separately i the income
staternent and the amortisation of facility fees of £13m (2014 £4m) (included within interest payable on bank loans and
overdrafts) has been presented as an exceptional item There were no exceptional items included n net financing expense

in the year ended 31 December 2013
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8 Income tax - continuing operations

Income tax arises in respect of the different categories of income and expenses as follows

s 2014 200
Lm Em im
Income tax expense on continuing cperations before amortisation
exceptionals and asbestos related items 63 67 67
Income tax credit on amortisation @ (12) (20)
income tax charge on restructuring - - 16
income tax (credit)/charge in respect of cther exceptional items (18) (5) 6
Total income tax expense from continumng operations in the income statement 18 49 69

08 0K 013
En £m im
Current tax
Current year 59 72 95
Adjustments in respect of prior years {19) (6) (26)
40 &6 69
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (19) (13 (2)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years (k)] 4) 2
(22) an -
Total income tax expense for continuing aperations 18 49 69

During the year effective from 1 Apnil 2015, the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20%
The rate s reduced to 19% with efiect from 1 Apnl 2017 with a further reduction to 18% from 1 April 2020 These changes
were all substantively enacted prior to the end of the year

Factors affecting the tax expense for the year are explained as follows

2014 2013
2008 ) t
m £m im
{Loss)/profit before tax (239) 155 255
Less share of net income from joint ventures (28) (12) (14)
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations (excluding joint ventures) (263) 143 241
Expected income tax expense at UK tax rate (53) A 56
Non-deductible expenses - pre-exceptional 7 13 11
Non-deductible expenses — exceptional 3 1l -
Non-deductible impairments 62 - -
Non-taxable income - pre-exceptional {2) - -
Benelit from finange structures (12) &) N
Closure of HMRC enquiry into intragroup lending 12) - -
Impact of providing deferred tax on pension surplus at 20 0% - - (21)
Impact of changes in UK tax rate on deferred tax () - _
Overseas incoma and expenses taxed at rates other than UK rate 5 8 26
Utilisation of tax assets not previously recognised 1) - (9]
Recognition of tax assets not previously recognised 3) (8) -~
Current year tax assets not recognised 15 10 6
Write-off of previously recogmsed tax assets 26 - 28
Other adjustments in respect of prior years Qo) (10) (24)
Total mcome tax expense for the year for continuing operations 18 49 69

Ouring the year HMRC s enquiry into the nature of the intercompany debt payable from the legacy Amec US group to the UK was
concluded without tax adjustment Accordingly, £12m of risk provision was released n full during the year

Net income tax liabiitres n the Group batance sheet inctude £105m (2014 £126m) relating to uncerlamn tax positions
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

8 Income tax - continuing operattons continued
. ]

015 00U 2013
m £m &m

Tax recognised directly in other comprehensive Income
Current tax - - -
Deferred tax (note 15) 23 ) 21
Tax charge/(credit) recogmised directly in other comprehensive income 23 11 21

9 (Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent the residual assets and retained obligations in respect of businesses sold in prior years
as well as the UK conventional power business which was discentinued in 2013

in accordance with IFRS 5, the post-tax results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately in the consohdated
income staternent

The results of the discontinued operations are all attnbutable to the equity holders of the parent and are as foliows
]

2018 2014 201

im im Em
Revenue - (13) 15
Cost of sales and net operating expenses {6) 3 (25)
Loss before exceptional items and income tax (6) (10) (10)
Attnbutable tax 1 2 2

{5) (8) 8)
Profit/(toss) on disposal 1 (23) (6)
Tax on disposals - 4 6
Loss for the year frem discontinued operations 4) 27) (8)

The loss before exceptional items and income tax in 2015 represents additional provisions on certain contracts within the UK
conventional power business

The negative revenue of £13m and loss of £10m before exceptional itemns and income tax 1in 2014 related to the settlement
of final accounts and additronal provisions on the UK conventional power contracts

The loss on disposals of £23min 2014 relates to addihional indemnity provisions and costs associated with businesses sold
In prior years

Net cash flows atiributable to discontinued operations
The net cash ilows attnbutable to discontinued operations duning the year were as follows

015 20t 2013
im £m £m
Net cash flow from operating actmties Q) 3} (12)
Net cash flow from investing actiatres 2 3 {2)
1 - {14)
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10 Earmings per share

Basi¢ and dituted earnings per share are shown on the face of the income statement The calculation of the average number
of shares in1ssue has been made having deducted the shares held by the trustees of the Employee Share Trust and those held
n treasury by the company As the Group has reported a basic loss ger ordinary share frem continuing operations any potential

ordinary shares are anti-dilutive and so excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share

s 2014 W0
Waighted weighted Waghisd
SeTRE ettt Ll 1
shams Loas shaies Earmings shares Earrungs
Loas member par share: Eamings nunber ber sh e Earmings fumber per share
m million pence tm muion pence im ruthon pance
Basic (loss)/earnings
from continuing operations (252) 383 {66.1) 109 302 361! 187 293 638
Share options - - - - 2 02) - 2 {0 4)
Employee share and
ncentive schemes - - - - 7 (0 8) - 4 (09)
Dituted (loss)/samings
from continuing operations (252) 383 (66.1) 105 31 as5] 187 269 625
Basic loss from
discontinued operations {4) 383 {L1) {27 302 {89) (8) 293 @7n
Share options - - - - 2 Q1 - 2 -
Employee share and
incentive schemes - - - - 7 02 - 4 -
Diluted loss from
discontinued operations ()] 383 (11) 27 31 {86} (8} 299 (27

Basic and dstuted (loss)/profit from centinuing operations 1s calculated as set cut below

08 2014 2003

Lm Im £m
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (253) 106 186
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests 1 3 1
Basic and diluted (loss)/profit from continuing operations (252) 105 187
Arencs report ) sccounts 2018 121

Strategr report

Financials Covernance

Adtonal informatson




Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

10 Earnings per share continued

In order to appreciate the effects on the reported performance of intangible amortisation and impairment exceptional and
asbestos related itemns along with the impact of the potential ordinary shares additional calculations of earrungs per share
are presented

2015 ) o3
Waighted Wesghtex!
aerage arape
- Rt~ S SN O R 4
im miltlan pance £m rrulion pence im rralhony paree

Basic {loss)/earnings from
continuing operations {252) 383 {66.1) 109 302 361 187 293 638
Excepticnal and ashestos
related itemns (post-tax) 97 - 253 101 - 334 47 - 160
Amortisation and
impairment (post-tax) 417 - 108.9 37 - 123 27 - g2
Basic earmings from continuing
operations before impalrment,
amortisation, exceptional and
asbestos related rtems 262 383 68.1 247 302 8i8 261 293 890
Share options - - - - 2 {05) - 2 {06)
Employee share and
incentive schemes - 2 (0.4) - 7 (18) - 4 12)
Diluted eamings from
continuing operations before
impairment, amortisation
and exceptional and asbestos
related items 262 385 62.7 247 3m 95 261 299 872
Bame¢ loss from
discontinued operations (L)) 383 1) (27) 302 89 8) 203 27)
Exceptional items (post tax) (1) - {(02) 19 - 63 - - -
Basic loss from
discontinued operations
before exceptional items (5) 383 {13) (8) 302 (26) (8) 293 (27
Share options - - - - 2 - - 2 -
Employee share and
ncentive schemes - 2 - - 7 01 - 4 -
Diluted loss from
discontinuing operations
bofore exceptional items (5) 385 13) (8) n (295) 8) 299 (27)
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11 Property, plant and equiprment

. ______________________________________________ ]
Landand Prant and

tanidrgs. L -] Tolal
i £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 (restated) 73 172 250
Exchange and other movements €)) 4) )
Reclassifications 2) (5) (7)
Additions 4 12 16
Disposals @ 4) (6}
As at 31 December 2015 s 1n 246
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2015 24 7% 100
Exchange and other movermnents (1)) 2) {3}
Provided during the year 7 19 26
Disposals ) (3) 4)
As at 31 December 2015 29 90 n9
Cost
As at 1 January 2014 30 as 125
Exchange and other movemnents 4 (03] 3
Acquired through business combinations 39 73 112
Additions 6 8 14
Disposals 1)) (3) )
As at 31 December 2014 (restated) 78 172 250
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2014 i7 69 85
Exchange and other movements 2 - 2
Provided during the year & 10 16
Drspasals 8] 3 4)
As at 31 December 2014 24 76 100
Net book value
As at 31 December 2015 46 g8 127
As at 31 December 2014 54 96 150
As at 1 January 2014 13 26 39
-
31 Owcortber
X1 Dacambas 201
2018 (rustated)
Lm m
The net bock value of land and buldings comprised
Freehold 24 29
Short leasehold 22 25
45 54

The carrying value of land and buildings he!d under linance lease at 31 December 2015 was £5m (2014 £6m) The amount acqured
through bustness combinations was £nil (2014 £6m} Additions during the year include £nil (2014 £nil) under hnance leases

The balance as at | January 2015 has been restated following the finalisation of the purchase price allocation of the
Foster Wheeler acquisition
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

12 Intangible assets

o~ Clnl.:liml Brandy/ Ordher st Total
Em &m im im &n r‘z: £m

Cost
As at 1 January 2015
(restated) 2 551 560 186 137 109 123 3666
Exchange and
other movements 21) 1 8 - 8 - (4)
Additions 1 - - - - 21 22
Disposals and rebirements - [))) - - - (&) (37)
Reclassifications - - - - - 7 7
As at 31 December 2015 2,531 530 194 137 1uz 145 3654
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2015
(restated) 35 107 21 14 1 45 223
Exchange and other
movements (4) - 1 1 1 (9V]
Impairment loss 308 - - 7 - - 315
Provided durning the year - 43 n 43 7 25 129
Disposals and rettrements - (€})] - - - (&) 3n
As at 31 December 2015 3 use 32 65 9 65 629
Cost
As at 1 January 2014 792 192 23 9 - 66 1082
Exchange and
other movemnents (2) 4 1 - (1) 2 4
Acquired through
business combinatians 1761 367 162 129 110 5 2534
Additons - - - - - 51 5
Disposals and retirements - (3) - (0 - (1) {5
As at 31 December 2014
(restated) 2551 560 186 137 109 123 3.666
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2014 5 85 19 7 - 29 175
Exchange and
other movements - 2 - - - 1 3
Provided duning the year - 23 2 8 1 15 49
Disposals and retrements - (3) - [4)) - - (4)
As at 31 December 2014
{restated) a5 107 21 14 1 45 223
Net book value
As at 31 December 2015 2192 41 162 72 108 80 3,025
As al 31 December 2014
(restated) 2516 453 165 123 108 78 3443
As at 1 January 2014 757 107 4 2 - a7 907

The carrying value of software held under deferred payment arrangements which are simifar to {inance leases as at
31 December 2015 was £24m (2014 £30m) Additions duning the year include £ni1 (2014 £33m) of software held
under deferred payment arrangements

The impairment loss of £315m relates to a £308m impairment of goodwaill in relation to the Glabal Power Group and
a £7m impairment of the order backlog intangible asset
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12 Intangible assets continued

The Group is required to test its goodwill and intangible assets for impairment at least annually or more frequently if ndicators
of impairment exist

The review of goodwill for indications of impairment by management 1s performed at the operating segment level being the lowest
level of cash-generating units (CGU) morutored lor goodwill purposes With effect from 1 January 2015 the Group adopted three
new geographical operating segments Americas Northern Europe and CIS and Asia Middle East Afnica and Southern Europe
with Foster Wheeler s E&C Services segment bemng merged into these segments Goodwill on the legacy AMEC and Foster Wheeler
E&C businesses was allocated between these segments on a relative fair value basis

The table below shows the goodwill allocated to each CGU post recognition of any imparrment losses
|

Gootws fre tay

31 Decamber descount rate

2015 2018

*»

Americas 1,054 11
Northern Europe and CIS 654 11
Asia, Middle East Africa and Southern Europe 266 11
Global Power Group 218 13

The recoverable amount of all CGUs has been based on value-in-use calculations These calculations use cash flow projections
meluded in the financial budgets approved by the Board for 2016 and pre-tax discount rates as set out in the table above For the
purposes of the calculation of the recoverabte amount the cash flow projections beyond the budgeted pened mnclude no growth in
2017 for the Amerwcas Northern Europe and CIS and Asia Middle East Africa and Southern Europe, and 10% growth 1n the Giobal
Power Group For all segments, no growth s included in 2018 5% growth in 2019 10% growth in 2020 and 3% growth per annum
thereafter The long-term growth rates are in ine with long-term average growth rates for the regions in which the CGUs operate

The financial budgets reflect management s judgement of the future cash flows which includes past experience and expectations
of future performance The most sigmiftcant assumptions relate to trading proht margin and the conversion of trading profit into
cash {cash conversion) Revenue i1s underpinned by a secure order hook for each CGU and the order book remains strong at

£66 bilion as at 31 December 2015 (2014 £6 3 bilhlon) The selection of trading profit margin takes into account the margins
being generated on contracts in progress and management s view of the margin on orders received and s consistent with

Amec Foster Wheeler s growth strategy The cash conversion reflects past expenience and current contract mix

The value-in-use has been compared to the carrying value for each CGU and no impairrment is required nor has been charged
in respect of the Amencas, Northern Europe and CIS or Asia Middle East Africa and Southern Eurgpe CGUs

The carrying amount of the Globa! Power Group CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of

an impairment loss of £308m against goodwill This has been included in administrative expenses in the income statement

The recoverable amount of the Global Power Group CGU s £396m The imparment loss arose due to difficult market conditions
and a reduction tn1 forecast future profits of the Global Power Group Any adverse changes in the key assumptions would increase
this impairment loss

A sensitivity analys:s has been performed inrespect of these CGUs in order to review the impact of changes in key assumptions
The value-in-use calculations referred to above showed headroom of £400m in the Americas CGU and £307m in the Northern
Europe and CIS CGU However applying zero termina! growth would ebrmuinate the headroom and weuld result in an tmpairment
to goodwill of £40m n the Americas CGU and £27m inthe Narthern Europe and CIS CGU A zero growth rate would not result

in animpairment in the Asia Middle East Africa and Southern Europe CGU

Constderation was also given to the impact of a 10% decrease in volume a1% decrease in margin or a 1% increase in discount
rate in each case holding other assumptions constant This did net identify any impairments in these CGUs
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

13 Interests in joint ventures

Interests in jont ventures
Details in aggregate of the Group s interests in all joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity method are as follows

e
£m

Net book value

As at 1 January 2015 122

Exchange and other movernents 2

Disposal of businesses (9)
Additions 1

Reclassifications 2

Total comprehensive income 28

Drvidends receved (42)
As at 31 December 2015 104

As at 1 January 2014 52

Acquired through business combinations 73

Disposal of businesses ()
Additions 1

Total comprehensive income 12

Dwvidends recewved (14)
As at 31 December 2014 122

Group companies are histed on pages 194 to 201

Details of material joint ventures

Petropower Energia Limitada

The Group has an 85% interest i Petropower Energia Limitada a joint venture alongside the state-owned ol company of the
Republic of Chile which began commercial operation in November 1998 The Group s interestis accounted for using the equity
rmethod in the consohdated financial statements Summarnsed hnancial mformation of the (oint venture, based on its IFRS financial
statements are set out below

Summarised Balance Sheet of Petropower Energia Limitada
- - - ]

09 014

&m £m
Non-current assets a7 51
Current assets including cash and cash equivalents of £19 583 000 (2014 £14 607000) as 4]
Current labihties (30} 29)
Non-current labitties {12) (13)
Equity 40 50

Summarised Income Statement of Petropower Energra Lirritada
- -]
wos
[ 2]

Revenue 43
Cost of sales (20)
Admimistrative expenses {2)
Profit before tax a
Income tax expense (5)
Profit for the year 16

Although the Group has an 85% interest m Petropower Energia Limitada the prefits are spht according to the joint venture
agreement In the year the profit after tax recewved by the Group from Petropower Energia Limifada was £1im (2014 £2m)
the carrying value of the invesiment was £53m (2014 £54m)

In 2014 the income received from Petropower Energia Lirmitada was immatenal as the Group only acquired the 85% interest
following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler on 13 November 2014
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13 Interests in jont ventures continued

Nuclear Management Partners Limited

The Group has a 36% interest in Nuclear Management Partners Limited The Group s interest s accounted for using the equity
method in the consohidated financial statements Summarised financial information ot the joint venture based on its IFRS financial
statements are set out below

Summansed Balance Sheel of Nuclear Management Partners Limited
.

s

L im
Non-current assets 10 30
Current assets including cash and cash equivalents of £4,635000 (2014 £2 449Q00) a8 8
Current habibitres (6) (5)
Non-current liabilities - 3)
Equity 12 30
Group's carrymg value of investment 4 11

Summansed Income Statement of Nuclear Management Partners Limited
- __________________________________________________________ ]

s 2014

£m Em

Revenue 6 6
Cost of sales (6) (6)
Admuristrative expenses (2) 3)
Share of post tax results of associate 40 a7
Profit before tax 38 24
Income tax expense - -
Profit for the year as 24
Group's share of profit for the year 14 9

PPP service concesstons
Detatls of the PPP service concesswons are as follows

Faancal Etpady Con esson Met pouty

chne staky perod wvsted

Transport Al3 Thames Gateway 2000 25% 30years -
Incheon Bridge Korea 2005 23% 30vyears £12m

Power Petropower Energia Limitada Chile 1998 85% 20 years £53m

Interests 1n Jotnt aperations
The Group does not hold any individual maternial interests in joint operations in either the current or preor year
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirernent benefit assets and habilities

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates a nurnber of pensson schemes for UK and overseas employees

There are three principal defined benefit schemes In the UK these are the AMEC Staff penston scheme (which also has an
associated Executive top-up scheme) and the Foster Wheeler Pension Plan and in the US The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaned
Employees Pension Plan The AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes are closed to new members but remain open to further
accrual The Foster Wheeter Pension Plan 1s a hybrid benefit arrangement with distinct defined benefit and defined contribution
sections The defined beneht section s ¢losed to new members and further accrual but the defined contribution section remains
open to further accrual The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaned Employees Pension Plan s also closed to new members and further
accrual Contributions by the Group into defined contribution schemas are disclosed innote 6

The AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes are average salary plans for UK employees The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan was
a final salary pension plan All three schames require contributions to be made to a separately administered fund These schemes
are governed by the employment laws of the UK The level of benetits provided depends on the member s length of service and
salary each year Once the benefits are in payment the pension (s adjusted each year relative to the UK s Retail Prices Index for the
AMEC Statf and Executive pension schemes The Fostar Wheeler Pension Plan 1s adjusted each year relative to the UK s Consumer
Price Index Each scheme s establshed under trust law and are governed by 8 Board of Trustees which consists of employers’
and employees representatives Inaddition the AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes have two independent trustees

The Board of Trustees 15 responstble for the adrmunsstration of the plan assets and for the defimition of the investment strategy

Every three years the Board of Trustees is required by tegisiation to review the leve! of funding in the pension plans The Board

of Trustees decides the contribution levels in consultation with the employers based on the results of this trienmal review In the
event that there s a funding deficit the Trustees and the employer will agree a recovery plan to ehminale that deficit over as short
a penod as 1s reasonably affordable

Due to the nature of the habilities, the pension plans are exposed to inflation interest rate risk and changes in the lfe expectancy for
pensioners As the plan assets include significant nvestments in quoted equities the Group 1s also exposed to equity market risk

The valuations used have been based on the final valuations of the AMEC Staff pension scherme and AMEC Executive pension
scheme as at 31 March 2014 The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan s most recent vatuation took place as at 1 Apnil 2013 These
schemes have been updated by the schemes actuaries for the requirement to assess the present value of the habilities of the
schemes as at 31 December 2015 The assets of the schemes are stated at their aggregate market value as at 31 December 2015

The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaned Employees Pension Plan provides pension benefits to certamn full time employees Under the
pension plan retrement benefits are primanly a function of both years of serwice and level of compensation The pension plan
1s closed to new members and further accrual

Following an employee consultation exercise at the end of 2015, the Company has now confirmed its intention to close its UK
Staff and Executive defined beneht pension schemes to future accrual from 1 April 2016 and replace them with a new defined
contributton arrangement Subject to obtaining the necessary Trustee approval all legacy defined contribution plans in the
UK will be merged into the new arrangement by 30 June 2016
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14 Retirement benefit assets and habilities continued

Defined banefit schemes continued
The principal assumptions made by the actuaries are as follows

b uo T1 Dacenitd
2018 1 2013
- [ -
The AMEC Staff penslon schems and tha AMEC Executive pension scheme
Rate of discount 39 36 46
Rate of inflation ao 30 33
Rate of increase in salaries 30 30 33
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (service before/after 1 January 2008) 28719 29720 32722
The Foster Wheeter Pension Plan
Rate of discount 39 37 -
Rate of inflation 30 30 -
Rate of increase in salaries 20 19 -
Rate of increase in pens1ons in payment
(service before/after 5 Apnl 2005 nil before 6 Apri 1997) 20715 11 -
The Foster Wheeler Inc. Sataned Employees Penslon Plan
Rate of discount 39 36 -
Rate of inflation 23 25 -
Rate of increase in salanies N/A N/A -
Rate of increase in pensions in payment N/A N/A -

{n addition the Group has a number of smaller overseas schemes During the year the rate of discount ranged from
159% to 10 1% (2014 18%to 9 0% 2013 4 8% lo 4 9%) The rate of increase in salaries ranged from 1 9% to 8 0%
{2014 19% to 8 0%, 2013 2 B%)

For the three principal defined beneht schemes, the assumed Iife expectancy is as follows

n i O N0 ADecomb 31 December 31 Decerrber
201% 03 2014 204 2013 2013
LT ] Farnsle Mzl Female sle Famale
yuirs yuara yanrs yasrs oS Yo'y

The AMEC Staf! pension scheme and

the AMEC Executve pension scheme

Member aged 65 (¢urrent ife expectancy) 24 24.6 225 246 229 244

Member aged 45 (life expectancy at 65) 24.1 265 242 265 247 263

The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan

Member aged 65 (current hife expectancy) 234 232 235 232 N/A N/A

Member aged 45 (life expectancy at 65} 251 251 253 251 N/A N/A

The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaried

Employees Pension Plan

Member aged 65 (current |ife expectancy) 211 231 216 237 N/A N/A

Member aged 45 (Ife expectancy at 65) 23.2 252 232 254 N/A N/A

The assumplions used by the actuaries are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanal assumptions

which due to the imescale covered may not necessarly be borne out in practice
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirernent benefit assets and habilties continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
The amounts recogmised in the balance sheet are as follows

X Dacarsbar 31 Decamber 3) Decermber

2013 2014 2013

im m £m

Retirement benefit assets 2 102 102
Retirement benefit labilities (168) (188) (62)
Retirement benefit net asset/(liability) 63 (86) 40

The retirement benefit net asset/{liability} s analysed as follows

S

The AMEC Staff and the AMEC Executive pension scheme 184 65 102
The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan 47 37 -
The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaried Employees Pension Plan {59) [CT)] -
Other smaller pension schemes (109) (131) 62)
63 (86) 40

The retirement benefit habilities of £168m (2014 £188m, 2013 £62m) reflect primanly the dehcits on the smaller overseas
schemes

The major categones of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

o 1.0 1 Dacernber
205 014 2013

por et percent par gant

Equities 346 354 413
Bonds (including gilts) 518 9226 476
Property 87 g4 88
Other 49 36 23
100.0 1000 1000

The equities and bonds as hsted above are predominantly quoted investments There is a smallinvestment in privately held pooled
fund invesiments and the property/other investments are unquoted

The amounts recogrnised in the income statement are as follows

[k ] 204 01
tm im [

Current service cost past service cost and adrministrative expenses 36 33 33
Interest cost 104 84 72
Interest income {102) (86) {73
Total amount recogrised in the income statement and included within staff costs
(note 6) 38 31 32
Settlement gain 3 3 -
Total amount recognised in the Income statement 35 28 32
The total amount 15 recogrused in the income statement as follows
Cost of sales 22 20 19
Administrative expenses n 10 14
Net financing expense/{(income) 2 {2) (¢))
Total amount recognised in the income statement 35 28 32




14 Retirement benefit assets and habilities continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit hability are as follows

2018 2014

am [ im
As at 1 January 2931 1743 1652
Exchange and other movements ) 3 (14)
Acqurred through business combinations - 898 -
Current and past serwice cost 32 29 k1]
Interest cost 104 84 72
Plan participants contnbutions 1 12 12
Actuania! (gains)/charges ansing from changes in financial assurmptions and

experience adjustmants arn 278 58
Actuanal (gains)/charges arising from changes in demographic assumptions 14) (19) 7
Settlements (31) (12y (4)
Benefits paid ) (85) (7L)
Reclassifications 3 - -
As at 31 December 2717 2.931 1743

The detined benefit obligation can be allocated to the plans’ participants as follows

18 014 2013

L] » L

Active plan participants 205 220 252
Deferred plan participants 284 313 3as
Ratirees 511 467 410
1000 1000 1000

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting peniod 1s 16 years
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows

;18 204 2013

[ < Im Em

As at 1 January 2,845 1783 1645
Exchange and other movements - 3 (8)
Acquired through business combinations - 826 -
Interest income 102 86 73
Actuarial (kosses)/gans (41) 201 105
Employer contnbutions a6 32 29
Plan participants contnbutions u 12 12
Administrative expenses (4 4) 2)
Settlements (28) (9) -
Benefits paid 141) (85) n
As at 31 December 2,780 2845 1783

Asnec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2015
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirement benefit assets and liabihities continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
The movement in the scheme net asset/(habihty) during the year is as follows

2013 201 2013
m &m Lm
Scheme net (hability)/asset as at 1 January (86) 40 )]
Exchange and other movements 1 - 6
Acquired through business combinations - (72) -
Total charge as per note 6 (38) 3 {32)
Employer contributions 36 32 29
Settlements 3 3 4
Actuanial gains/(losses) recogmsed in other comprehensive income 150 (58) 40
Reclassifications » - -
Scheme net assat/(hability) as st 31 December 63 (86) 40

The impact on the defined benefit obligation of the principal pension schemes of changes in the rmost significant assumptions as

at 31 December 2015 1s shown below

Tha AMEC Staff Tha Foster Whesler
and the ine Salanad
AMEC Executivee  The Foaler Whed!sr Employess
PEMSION SCHEMes Pans«on Plan Pungion Plan
£m &m £m
Discount rate
10 bps (29) 1)) (2)
+10 bps 29 9 2
Infiation
-10 bps 27 4 -
+10 bps (27) (4) -
Salary increase
-10 bps 2 1 -
+10 bps 2) 16)] -
Mortality
+1 year (53) (12) (9}
-1year 53 12 9

The sensitivity analysis above is based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation of reasonable

changes in key assumphions occurring as at 31 December 2015

The defined benefit cbligations of the other beneflit schemes are significantly lower than those of the principal defined benefit
schemes Sensitiity analysis of reasonable changes in the key assumptions as at 31 December did not indicate any significant

changes to the defined benefit obligations of those schemes
Expected benefit payments from the defined benefit plans in future years are as follows

Em

Year 1 139
Year 2 142
Year 3 145
Year 4 147
Year5 150
Next five years 93
1.516

The Group expects to contribute £36m to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2016 This includes special contributions of £6m
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15 Deferred tax assets and habilities

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are attnibutabte to the following
Recognised deferred tax assets and llabilities

Agrts Liahetury
1D Decwmber 31 Detember 31 Decomb.

2013 2014 2015 04

Em im &n im
Property plant and equipment 17 15 0) )
Intangible assets 4 14 (226) (264)
Retirernent benefits 43 67 (43) (38)
Derwvative financial instruments 2 - {2) {2)
Provistons 144 130 - -
Employee share schemes - 1 - -
COther items 12 28 {29) (A7)
Tax losses carried forward 30 42 - -
Tax credits carned forward 2 1 - -
Deferred tax assets/(liabihities) 254 298 {310) (350)

Offset of deferred tax assets and habiities relating

to income tax levied by the same taxation autheority (204) {242) 204 242
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 50 56 (106) (108)

Fecogrused

As at Exchanga inolher As st

e S S A

Em £m £m Im ta

Property. plant and equipment 6 - - 1 - 7
Intangible assets (250} (6) (1) 35 - (222)

Retirement benefits 29 2 - (5) {26) -

Derivative financial instruments 2) - - 2 -

Provisions 130 1 - 12 1 144

Emptoyee share schemes 1 - H - -
Cther items (9) 1 1 {9} 1) in

Tax |osses carried forward 42 {1) (1) {11} 1 30

Tax credits carned forward 1 - 1 - - 2
(52) (3) - 22 (23) (56)

As ot Exchange N other Ayt
1 Jaruzey = flrcogr 1 Decemb

2004 movements Acgprsitians nncome nCome 2014

tm im £m im tm tm

Property. plant and equipment 13 - an 4 - 6
Intangible assets (33) (3) {222) 8 - (250)
Retirement benefits 12) - 35 (5 11 29
Derivative financial instruments - - {2) - - (2)
Provisions 46 2 84 (2) - 130
Employee share schemes 3 - - @) - 1
Other items (5} - 6 2 - )]
Tax losses carried forward 3 - 28 11 - a2
Tax credits carned forward - - - 1 - 1
15 5T (94) 17 1 (52)

The deferred tax credit of £22m (2014 £17m) recogrised in income consists of a credit of £22m (2014 £16m) relating to conbinuing

operations and a £nil credit (2014 £1m) in respect of discontinued operations

Amec Foster Wheeler
Anrcy neport snd accourts 2015
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

15 Deferred tax assets and habilities continued

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years
There are a number of factors that may affect the Group s future tax charge including the resolution of open 1ssues with tax
authorities corporate acquisitions and disposals the use of brought-forward losses and changes in tax legislation and tax rates

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have nol been recogrused in respect of the following tems

1 Decarh 2

2013 2014

i m

Deductible temporary differences 322 326
Tax losses 128 121
450 447

Curing the year the Group withdrew ¢laims made to HM Revenue & Customs {HMRC) to otfset German tax losses of approximately
£79m against UK taxable profits This follows a further change to HMRC s view of the conditions that need to be satistied for a
vahd clasim based on a ruling in the Court of Justice of the European Union The point at issue concerns the date on which there

15 certainty that the losses could not be utilised in the country m which they originated HMRC s position was that it would be
necessary to itigate in order to pursue the clams As the net UK tax benefit of the claims was no more than £10m the decision

to withdraw the claim was taken on the basis that there was no longer clear legal precedent on the point at issue and the costs

of pursuing the claim would be substanhial with no certainty of success

As at 31 December 2015 the expiry dates of unrecognised deferred tax assets carnied forward are as follows
. __________________________________|

Deductiok

Hporary
Tazlcssas cufgrances Teaal
im £m £m
Expiring within 5 years 3 a7 40
Expiring within 6 10 years 10 80 90
Expiring within 11-20 years 46 - a6
Unhrmited 69 205 274
128 322 450

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because 1t 1s not probable that future taxable profits will
be avallable against which the Group can utilise these assets

Unrecognised deferred tax habilities

No deferred tax hability has been recogmsed n respect of £1,323m (2014 £1 440m) of unremitted earmings of subsidianes and
joint ventures because the Group 15 1n a posstion to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difierence and it 1s not
probable that such differences will reverse in the foreseeable fulure

The amount of unrecogrised deferred tax habilities in respect of these unreritted earnings 1s estmated 1o be £28m (2014 £29m)

16 Inventories

- |
ne 31D
01
£m

14
14

Raw matenals

6l olsd
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17 Current trade and other receivables

31 Dwcrmber
11 December 2014
} i (restated)
im Lm
Amounts expected to be recovered within one year

Gross amounts due from customers 552 542
Trade recevables nz 758
Amounts owed by joint ventures 13 10
Other receivables 83 60
Prepayments and accrued income n” 76
Ashestos related insurance recovery debtor (note 21) 14 13
1431 1459

Amounts expectead to bo recovered after more than one year
Gross amounts due from customers 2 -
Trade receivables 7 5
Amounts owed by joint ventures 1 1
Other recevables 14 4
24 10
1455 1469

Trade recevables expected to be recovered within one year include retentions of £34m (2014 £47m)relating to contracts
n progress Trade receivables expected to be recovered after more than one year include retentions of £7m (2014 £4m)
net of £1m impairment (2014 £nil) relating to contracts in progress

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recogrised profits {less recogrsed losses) for all long-term coniracts in progress
for continuing businesses at the balance sheet date was £6 428m

Trade recevables amounts owed by joint ventures and ather recevables are classified as loans and receivables

18 Current trade and other payables

3 Decembar
10 Decamber 2034
205 {restated)
m Em
Amounts expected to be settied wrthin one year

Trade payables 584 543
Gross amounts due to customers 328 361
Other taxation and social security costs 50 42
Other payables 225 180
Accruals 198 235
1385 1371

Amounts expected tc be settied atter more than one year
Trade payables 1 2
Gross amounts due to customers 5 5
Other taxation and social security costs 19
Other payables 47 40
Accruals 4 1
74 67
1459 1438

Gross amounts due to customers include advances received of £5m (2014 £nd)
Trade payables other payables and accruals are classified as other financial liabilities
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

19 Captal and financial risk management

Capital management

The objective of the Group s capital management s to ensure that it has a strong financial position from which to grow the
business and to maximise shareholder value The appropriate capital structure for the Group comprises of a mux of debt and
equity The mix is determined by considening business profile and strategy financial policies and avalabihty and cost of funding

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler the Group is currently in a net debt position The long-term net debt 1s targeted to
be no more than two times trading protit The Group may exceed this operating parameter should the business profile require it
However it 1s expected that any increases would be temporary given the net operational cash flows of the Group

At 31 December 2015 the Group had cornmutted banking facihities of £1 768m (2014 £1863m) Thus consists of a £27m project
debt and a £377m multi currency revolving facility that was taken aut on 18 July 2012 The facility 15 committed for five years and
15 available for gengral corporate purposes The Group has additiona) fachties totaling $2 010m (£1 363m) This compnses of the
following

» $830m (£563m) bridge facility maturing August 2016 with a further six month extension at the Company's option
» $830m (£563m) term iean maturing in equal instalments in 2017 2018 and 2019
» $350m (£237m) revolving credit facility maturing May 2016 :

As at 3] December 2015 £1 264m (2014 £1 267m) of the loans and facilities were utiised by way of debt and £62m
(2014 £156m)was ulilised by way of Letter of Credit As at 31 December 2015, the undrawn portion of the Group s commutted
facilities was £442m |

In November 2014 as part of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG the Group 1ssued 85 milhon of ordinary shares This increased !
share capital by £42m and generated a share premium of £877m, which 1s recorded on the balance sheet withuin the merger reserve

On 1 March 2016, the Group enlered into a new syndicated facility compnsing of three tranches, a three year £650m term loan
a hive-year £650m term loan and a five-year £400m revolving credit {acility This new facility replaces the campany 5 existing
£377m revolving credit facility and the Foster Wheeler acquisition facility of $2 26bn

Financilal nsk management

The principal financial risks to which the Group is exposed are foreign currency exchange risk fundimg and liquidity nsk
counterparty credit sk and interest rate risk The board has approved palicies for the management of these risks which are
reviewed annually

The Group s treasury department manages funding, iquidity, credit nsk and risks arsing from movements in interest and foreign
currency rates within a framework of palicies and guidelines approved by the board most recently in December 2015 The treasury
departrment does not operate as a profit centre and the undertaking of speculative transactions 1s not perrmutted
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19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

Forelgn currency exchange risk

The Group publishes its consolidated accounts in Sterling The majonty of the Group s tracing tncome 1s denorminated 1 the

local currency of the business operatians which provides a natural hedge agasnst the currency of its cost base Where commercial
cantracts are undertaken which are denominated in fereign currencies the Group seeks to mitigate the foreign exchange risk
when the cash flow giving nse to such exposure becomes certain or highly probable This is achieved through the use of forward
currency arrangements which may include the purchase of currengy options There are currently no matenal transactional
exposures which have been wentified and remain unhedged The Group has no reason to believe that any outstanding lorward
cantract will not be able to be settled from the underlying commercial transactions

A significant portion of the Group s earnings 1s generated in non-Sterling currencies Such overseas profits are translated into
Sterhing at the average exchange rate prevasing throughout the year There 1s currently ne hedging in place for profits generated
in non-Sterling currencies but the smpact on Group profits 1s monitored on an ongoing basis In addition the Group has various
assets denominated in foresign currencies principally US Dollars Canachan Doltars and Euros With the introduction of the
acquisition factities detalled above the Group hedges translation exposure wherever possible, by matchuing the currency of its
borrowing (either directly or via derivatives) to the currency of its net assets and future free cash flow As a result, the Group
has designated a senes of derwatives and financial instruments as hedging nstruments in net nvestment hedge relationships
in specific circumstances for example the planned repatniation of foreign assets the Group may from tume to time enter

nto additional net investment hedges to manage foreign exchange nsks The Group appltes hedge accounting in respect of
transactions entered into to manage the cash llow exposures of its borrowings Forward foreign exchange contracts and cross
currency interest rate swap contracts are held to manage the cash flow exposures of a portion of borrowings denominated m
foreign currencees and are designated as cash flow hedges

Based on the Group s net debt as at 31 December 2015 f Sterling were to weaken against all ather currencies by 10% the Group s
net debt would increase by £46m (2014 £44m) This represents a £130m increase in foreign currency borrowings (2014 £134m)
a ESOm increase in derivative assets designated as ¢ash flow hedges of Group borrowings (2014 £47m) and a £34m Increase

in forergn currency cash and cash equivalents (2014 £43m)

If Sterhng were toweaken against afl other currencies by 10% then the far value of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross
currency interest rate swaps other than those destgnated as cash flow hedges of foreign currency borrowings as at 31 December
2015 would decrease by £51m (2014 £57m)

Movernents in the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps would be recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging reserve or translation reserve

Hedging of forelgn currency exchange risk — cash flow hedges

The Group looks to mitigate the foreign exchange nsk ansing on fareign currency borrowings and where contracts are awarded In
or Involve costs in non local currency Forward foreign exchange contracls and foresgn exchange swaps are used for this purpose
and are designated as cash flow hedges The notional contract amount carrying amount and fair values of forward contracts and
swaps designated as cash flow hedges are as foflows

2018 2014 2009 Fai) ]
[ Nobona! Caarying Carrying
cantract contract ameunt end amount amd
armou Tuir vabua far mive

= tn tm
Non current assets — cash flow hedges of foreign currency borrowings 105 105 6 -
Total non current assets 105 105 6 -
Current assets - cash flow hedges of contracts in foreign currencies 57 15 1 -
Current assets — cash flow hedges of toreign currency barrowings 328 318 B8 1
Total current assets 385 333 9 1
Current habilities - cash {low hedges of contracts in foreign currencies 191 44 (9) )
Total current liabilities 191 44 (9) (1))
681 482 6 -
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

There was no charge for ineffectiveness recognised in either 2015 or 2014 A net foreign exchange loss for the year of £2m was
recogrnised in the hedging reserve as a result of fair value movements on derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow
hedging instruments (£1m) and amounts recycled to the income statement in hine with underlying cash flows (£1m)

Hedging of foreign currency exchange risk - fair value through income statement

Certain forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps are not designated as cash flow hedges and changes
in their fair value are recogmised through the income staternent The notional contract amount carrying amount and far values
of these forward contracts and swaps are as follows

2015 204 xns 2014
Notiangl Notonal Carrying Clrm"!

contract contract amount sred amourt an
amoumt amouni fair value far value
m im

Dervative financial instruments

Current assets 24) 229 5 2
Current abilhes 388 422 5) (12)
629 651 - (10}

Hedging of foreign currency exchange nsk — net investment hedges

The Group has forward foreign exchange contracts which have been designated as hedges of the net investments in core
subsidiaries in Canada the US and Europe The notional contract amount carrying amount and fair values of swaps designated
as net investment hedges are as follows

2015 2014 2018 2014
Hotional Notionol Carrying Carrying
ontracy contract ameount and amount and
amount amaount falr value fair valuo
im m 2m im

Derwvative inancial instruments
Non current assels 105 105 12 2
Current assets m 318 2 8
Current habilies 168 - o)) -
384 423 7 10

A net foreign exchange loss lor the year of £3m (2014 £4m) was recognised in the translation reserve in respect of forward foreign
exchange contracts currency interest rate swaps and borrowings designated as net investment hedging mstruments

Other financial derivative assets and habiirttes
The Group has other financial derivative assets of £nil (2014 £1m) and financial derwatwe habittres of £4m (2014 £6m)

The following tables indicate the periods in which the cash flows associated with the derivative inancial instruments are expected
to occur and the periods in which they are expected to impact profit or loss

Camying Expacted 12 monthe 1ta3 2ta 5
amourtt cath Bows o less yesry yasra
Lm on im £&m Em

Dervative hnancial instrumerts
Assets 34 948 726 12 210
Liabilities {25) 963 739 16 208

9 Lou 1465 28
. ]

S
Carrping Expected 12 months. lla? 2ws
R "% & "

Denvatve financial instruments
Assets 14 1,080 877 2 211
Liabilities (19) 648 361 102 185
5) 1738 1238 104 396
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19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

Funding and iquidity risk

The Group s policy &ims to ensure the constant availability of an appropnate ameunt of funding to meet both current and future
forecast requirements consistent with the Group's budget and strategic plans The Group will finance operations and growth from
its existing cash resources and the £442m undrawn portion of the Group's committed banking facibties as at 31 December 2015
The requirement to enter into additional external facilities has been kept under review during the year This includes discussions
with the Group s rmain relationship banks to ensure additional bilateral tending capacity 1s available

Appropriate faciities will be mantained to meet ongoing reguirements for bank guarantees and letters of credit

Counterparty credit risk
The Group 15 exposed to credit risk to the extent of non-payment by erther its customers or the counterparties of its financial
instruments The effective monitoring and controlling of credit nsk 1s a key component of the Group's risk management actvities

The maximumn credit risk exposure on derivatives at 31 December 2015 was £35m being the total net debit farr values per
dervatve counterparty on forward foreign exchange contracts currency swaps and interest rate swaps The Group performs

a Credit Value Adjustment {CVA) and Debnt Value Adjustment (DVA) analysis to establish the credit sk inherent in the closing
derivatwve portfolio As at 31 December 2015 the result of this adjustment has no impact on the Group 5 income statement

In 2014 asimiiar analysis of a 60 basis point deterioration in the credit quality of the Group s derivative counterparties had nit
impact on the Group 5 Income statement Credit nsks ansing from treasury activities are managed by a central treasury function
n accordance with the board approved treasury pohcy The objective of the policy 1s to diversify and miunimuse the Group s
exposure to credit risk from its treasury activities by ensuring that surplus funds are placed with a diversified range of 25 to 30
mainstream banks and with each counterparty up to a pre-approved hmit These limits are set at prudent levels by the board and
are based pnmanily on publicly available credit ratings of counlterparties Credst ratings are moritored continually by the Group
treasury department

The maximum credit nsk exposure on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits {more than three months}at 31 December
2015 was £363m (2014 £516m) The Group treasury department monitars counterparty exposure on a global basis to avond
an over-concentration of exposure to any one counterparty

The credil nsk associated with customers 1s considered as part of each tender review process and 1s addressed imtially through
contract payment terms Where appropnate payment security 1s sought Credit control practices are apphied thereafter duning
the project execution phase Aright to interest and suspension 1s normally sought in all contracts

The ageing of trade recervables at the year-end was

Gross Gross
pu! by mpacment
n n a0 A
WS 2018 2014 2018
tm £m & im

Not past due 57 - 402 -
Past due 0 to 3D days 216 - 163 -
Past due 31 to 120 days 90 3 99 -
Past due 121 to 365 days 40 (18) a7 (6)
More than one year 83 (86) 100 (93)

791 Qon 81 {99

The above analysis excludes retentions relating to contracts in progress of £34m (2014 £47m) expected to be recovered within
one year and £7m (2014 £4m) net of £1m mpairment (2014 £nil) expected to be recovered after one year Net recewvables a5
al 31 Decernber 2015 include £2m (2014 £7m):n respect of amounts overdue by more than one year
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

19 Capital and financial risk rmanagement continued

Counterparty credit nsk continued
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables duning the year was as follows

.
2018 2014

&n £m
As at 1 January (99) (16)
Exchange movements ) -
Increase in impairment allowance {23) (86)
Decrease in impairment allowance 16 3
As at 31 December (107 (99)

Based on past experience, the Group believes that no material impairment allowance 1s necessary in respect of trade recevables
nol past due

Trade receivable exposures are typically with large companies and government-backed organisations and the credit ratings
of these organisations are monitored Credit risks are menimised through the use of letters of credit parent company guarantees
msurance instrurments and forward funding where achievable

The Group s most significant customer in 2015 accounted for around 8% (2014 8%) of continuing revenues and around 2%
(2014 4%, of current trade and other receivables The revenue was generated in both the Americas and AMEASE

Interest rate risk
The £377m multi-currency revolving credit faciity 1s subject to aninterest rate of LIBOR plus a margin depending on leverage

The $830m (£563m) bndge facility 1s subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin which increases over time
The $830m (£6563m) term loan 1s subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin depending on leverage

The $350m (£237m) revolving credst facility i1s subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin

The €35m (£26m) project debt 1s subject to an interest rate of EURIBOR plus a margin

The Group 15 exposed to interest rate nisk on cash and borrowings Cash Is viewed as temporary with any longer term surplus
used to repay credit facilities

When required the Group uses interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to meet its objective of protecting
borrowing costs within parameters set by the Board The Group s policy is to keep between 30% and 70% of its borrowmngs

al fixed rates of interest Movermnents in the fair value of interest rates swaps and cross currency interesi rate swaps that are
designated as cash flow hedges of the Group's borrewings resulting from changes inmarket interest rates are recogmsed in other
comprehensive mcome and accumulated n the hedging reserve with the fair value recorded in the balance sheet At 31 December
2015 after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps approximately 28% of the
Group s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2014 23%;) The year-end position was below the lower threshold due to the
ongaing refinancing activity in 2015 This will be rectified in Q1 2016 following the completion of the refinancing actvity

Based on the Group s gross borrowings as at 31 December 2015 1f interest rates were to increase by 100 basis points in all
currencies then the annual net interest charge would increase by £9m (2014 £9m) A decrease in interest rates by 100 basis
points In all currengies would have an equal but opposite effect
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19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

Interest rate risk - contractual maturity and effective interest rates
In respect of nterest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing finanaal llabdities the following table indicates therr effective
interest rates at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they mature

ms
[fective Leas than 1tod F1- 13 Cwar
intarext raty Totsl 1 yoar yaars yurh S yanrs
por eant &m Im &m £ am
Bank deposits
(more than three months) Q47 23 14 4 5 -
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding
bank overdrafts) 300 340 340 - - -
Bank loans 328 (L264) (679) (192) (385) v
Finance leases 684 (59) (4) {18) (24) a3)
Derwvatives classified
as bank loans - 14 8 - 6 -
(946) (32) (206) (399) (20)
]
2014
Effectve Legs than lta2 2tals Lo 4
nierest A1 Tatal 1yem years years Syears
pis cant Em £m £m i £m
Bank deposits
{more than three months) 080 21 18 2 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding
bank overdrafts) 124 495 495 - - -
Fees capitalised against
bank facilities - 9 5 2 2 -
Bank loans 149 (1267) (706) 5) (545) (1)
Frnance leases 654 (61) (9) (&) (26) ah
(803) {197) 10 (568) (28)

Interest payments of £16m are expected to be paid within one year £15m between one and two years £16m between two and five
years and £ni over hve years

Group borrawing

The Group had no overdrafts as at the end of 2015 or 2014 The bank loans are denorminated in Stering and US Dollars

(2014 Sterling and US Dollars)

All covenants attached to borrowings have been complied with throughout the current and prior years

falr values
Farr vahues are determined using observable market prices (level 2 as defined by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement ) as follows

» The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward
price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate

» The fair value of interest rate swaps and ¢ross currency interest rate swaps are estumated by discounting estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and matunity of each contract and using market rates

All derwative farr values are verified by companison to valuatrons provided by the dervative counterparty banks There are no
matenal credit valuation adjustments {CVA) or debit valuation adjustments (DVA) required on the denvatives outstanding at
31 December 2015
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Notes to the consoldated accounts continued

20 Other non-current receivables and payables
Other non-current recelvables

2004
28 {resiated)
tm m
Asbestos related insurance recovery debtor (note 21) 104 108
Indemnities receivable 16 13
Insurance receivables 4 4
Lease incentives 17 28
Other non-current receivables 4 14
145 167

Other non-current payables
2014
013 (restated)
&m m
Deferred consideration on acquisition - 2
Unfavourable leases 84 65
Lease Incentives 8 7
Other payables 20 26
Other post employment benefits 9 11
m 11

21 Prowvisions
e
Obkgatans
Ashastos Propet and relating to Froperty
related envronmantal daposed related
Imngeton rogation busresses Provesons. Otharr Tetal
£m im £n Em km £m
As at 1 January 2015 (restated) 400 217 86 19 kK’ 796
Exchange and other movements 18 6 ) 1 2) 22
Reclassification 1 3) 2 2 2) -
Transfer out to trade payables - (47) - (2) 2 (47)
Utilised {35) 22) (2) (4) m (64)
Provided 1 10 12 3 7 33
Released (9) N 19) - 3) (38)
Change mn discount rate (5) - - - - (5)
Unwinding of chscount 7 - - - - 7
As at 31 Dacembaer 2015 378 154 78 19 35 664

The balance as at 1 January 2015 has been restated following the finalisation of the purchase price allocation of the Foster

Wheeter acquisition
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21 Provisions continued

Asbestos-related litigation

Certain of the Company s subsidianes 1 the US and the UK are defendants in numerous asbestos-related lawswits and

out of-court nformal claims pending in the US and the UK Plaintiffs claim damages for personal injury alleged to have arisen
from exposure to asbestos primarity in connection with equipment allegedly manufactured by certain of our subsidiaries during
the 1970s or earlier We expect that these subsidiaries will be named as defendants in additional and/or similar suits and that new
claims will be filed in the future Whilst some of these ¢laims have been and are expected to be made in the UK, the overwhelming
majority have been and are expected to be made in the US

We assumed the majonty of our asbestos-related habiibes when we acquired Foster Wheeler in November 2014 Management
worked with independent asbestos valuation experts to measure the asbestos-related habihities assumed Asbestos-related
hatnlities recognised by the Group inciude estimates of indemnity amounts and defence costs expected to be incurred in each
year In the period to 2050 beyond which time management expects that there will no longer be a sigmificant number of open
clams Management s eshimates were based on the following informatron and/or assurmnptions the number of open clams
the forecasted number of future claims the estimated average cost per claim by disease type — mesothelioma, lung cancer
and non-mahgnancies clam flings which resuit in no monetary payments (the zero pay rate ), as well as other factors

Over the last several years certain of our subsidiaries have entered into settlement agreements calling for insurers to make
lump-sum payments as well as payments over time for use by our subsdliartes to fund asbestos-related indemnity and defence
costs, and in certain cases for rembursement for partions of out-of packet costs incurred Asbestos-related insurance recoveries
under executed settiement agreements are recognised in trade and other recewvables together with our best estimate of actua)
and probable insurance recoveries relating to our hability for pending and estimated future asbestos claims in the penod to

2050 Qur actual insurance recoveries may be imited by future insolvencies among our Insurers We do not recogriuse insurance
recoveries due from currently insotvent insurers unless they are subject to court-approved settlement in hguidation proceedings

We have discounted the expacted future cash flows with respect to the asbestos-related labilities and the expected insurance
recoveries using drscount rates determined by reference to appropnate nisk-free market interest rates

Asbestos-related Labilities and assets recognised on the Group s balance sheet were as follows
]

w1 2014
us [ 3 Toerkat us UK Totsl
im m a2m im £m Im
Asbestos-related provision
Gross provision 432 56 488 454 57 51
Effect of discounting a) - (74) (76) - (76}
Net provisiont 358 56 414 378 57 435
Insurance recoverses
Gross recovenes (68) (54) 122) 7D (54) (125)
Effect of discounting 4 - 4 4 - 4
Net recoveries (64) (54} (118) {(67) (54) (121)
Net asbestos related liabilities 294 2 296 31 3 34

1 The net asbestos provision of £414m (2014 £435m) s made up of £378m included n prowvisons (2014 £400m) and £36m (20148 £35m) i respect of
asbestos provisons included in trade and other payables

Estimation of asbestos-related liabiities and insurance recovertes is subject to a number of uncertainties that may result in
sigmificant changes in the current estimates Among these are uncertainties as to the ultimate number and type of claims (iled
the amounts of claim costs the impact of bankruptcies of other companies with asbestos claims uncertainties surrounding
the htigatron process from junisdiction Lo jurisdiction and from case to case as well as potential legisiative changes

Fluctuabions in market interest rates could cause significant changes in the discounted amount of the asbestos-related habilities
and insurance recovenes
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

21 Provisions continued

Project litigaton
As described in note 26 the Group s party to hitigation involving clhents and sub-contractors anising out of project contracts

Management has taken internal and external legal advice in considering known or reasonably hkely legal claims and actions

by and agawnst the Group Where a known or likely claim or action 1s identified, management carefully assesses the likelihood

of success of the claim or action Generally a proviston s recogmsed only in respect of thase claims or actions that management
considers are prabable of success Additionally however, the Group recognises provisions for known or tikely claims against

an acquired business if, at the acquisition date, it is possible that the clawm or action will be successful and its amount can

be reliably estimated

Provision 1s made for management’s best estimate of the future legal costs to be incurred in defending each claim or action and i
of the likely settlemnent costs and/or damages to be awarded for those claims and actions that management conseders are likely
to be successful Due to the inherent commercial legal and techmicat uncertainties underlying the esttmation of our project claims
the amounts ultimately paid or realised by the Group could differ materiatly from the amounts if any that are recogrused in the
financial siatements

As at 31 Decembier 2015 there were two significant ongoing disputes Both of these disputes involve Foster Wheeler and were .
ongoing at the acquisition date Accordingly n measuring Foster Wheeler's identdhable assets and habilities at the acqursition
date, management estabhished prowsions in respect of these disputes and made appropriate reductions to the carrying amount
of the related receivables

Power Plant Arbitration - US

Foster Wheeler has been involved in arbitration arising from its role in the construction of a power plantin West Virgimia US Foster
Wheeler contracted with its chent Longview Power LLC ( Longview ) the owner of the power plant to supply the steam generation
equipment Separate contracts existed between Longview and Siemens Energy Inc { Siemens ) for the supply of the turbine
electncity generator and other plant equipment and with Kvaerner North Amenican Construction Inc (Kvaerner) for the erection
of the plant

Beginrung 1n 2011, various claims and counterclaims were made between Foster Wheeler Kvaerner, Siemens and Longview

in February 2014 Foster Wheeler reached a partial settlement with Longview in December 2014 various settlement agreements
were entered inta Involving the parties leaving the claims between Foster Wheeler and Kvaerner the only claims to be resolved
Kvaerner's total clams against Foster Wheeler amounted to approximately US$190m in relation to compensation for alleged
delays, disruptions ineficiencies and extra work associated with the construction of the plant allegedly caused by Foster
Wheeler s performance under s steam generation equipment supply contract Foster Wheeler claimed approximately US$26m
from Kvaerner in relation to claims for extra work delays scope disputes, and improperty assessed delay iquidated damages

as well as the cost to perform certain ongoing rehabilitation work on the steam generation equipment due to erection failures

by Kvaerner Pursuant to the settlement agreements reached in December 2014 foster Wheeler and Kvaerner exchanged parent
guarantees securing thewr respective claims against each other Foster Wheeler s parent guarantee was capped at US$58m

The arbitration heanng of the dispute between Foster Wheeler and Kvaerner, conducted by the Amencan Arbitration Association
occurred in early 2015 In October 2015 the three-artitrator tribunal rejected Foster Wheeler s ¢claims in their entirety and
awarded Kvaerner US$74m, including interest and arbitration costs Kvaerner commenced an action in New York state court to
confirm the award We opposed the action, seeking an order to vacate the award in whole or in part on various grounds In early
March 2016 the parttes settled their dispute We are 1o pay Kvaerner US$70m in full and final settlement of the claims The parties
will exchange releases and the court action will be dismissed

Rethinery Project Arbitration - India

tn November 2012, Foster Wheeler commenced arbitration in India against sts client seeking collection of unpaid invoices ansing
from services performed on a reimbursable basss in connection with the construction of an oll refinery plant in north-eastern tndia
Our chent rejected the claims and has submutted counterclaims totalhng approximately 70 bilhien indian rupees (approximately
£740m) for damages mcluding claims for revenue loss and loss of tax benefits due to delay in the execution of the project Qur
client has also withheld payment of our invoices on account of delay iquidated damages

We strongly dispute our chent's claims Any hability for delay hquidated damages 1s capped under the contract at a specified
percentage of the contract value currently equivalent to approximately £12m, an amount already retamed by our chent Moreover
the contract also excludes liabtity for special damages and consequential damages including lost profits or product and contains
an overall cap on hability for ¢lasms in the aggregate of up to a specified percentage of the contract value currently equivalent

to approxsimately £29m
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21 Provisions continued

Refinery Project Arbitration - india continued

An arbitration panel was formed in 2013 and divided the parties claims and counterclaims nto two tracks A number of hearings
were hetd on the Track 1 claims dunng 2014 A first partial award was made to Amec Foster Wheeler in March 2014 but our chent
has petittoned the Delhs court for iIts annulment which petition s still pending In September 2015 the panel issued a further
partial award on the Track 1 claims awarding Amec Foster Wheeler approximatety £54m onits invoice claims and dismissing our
chent s counterclaim aliocated to the Track 1 proceedings In February 2016 our client petitioned the Delhi court to set aside this
award as well The petibion 1S pending

The hearing on the Track 2 claims which include our client’s main counterclaims, was held in February 2015 The panel s decision
on these remaining claims 1s ikewise pending Limuted further proceedhings in the arbitration remamn pending with respect to
continuing invoice claim armounts in the Track | proceedings as well as for interest and the costs of arbitration We will continue
to defend strenuously the claims made by our client and pursue the collection of unpaid invoices and enforcement of the awards
made in our favour As the project is neanng completion but still remained in execution as of the end of 2015, the unpaid amount
that we are seeking to collect has increased to the equivalent of approximately £56m and may increase further should our chient
conlinue to withhold amounts from gur nvoices Management have made appropriate allowances against these receivables

Environmental nsks

Certain of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates in particular the US and the EU have environmental laws under which
current and past owners or operators of property may be jointly and severally iable for the costs of removal or remediation of toxic
or hazardous substances on or under their property regardiess of whether such matenials were released in violation of law and
whether the operator or owner knew of or was responsible for the presence of such substances Largely as a consequence of the
acquisition of Foster Wheeter the Group currently owns and operates, or owned and operated industrial facihties It 1s hkety that
as a result of the Group's current or former operations hazardous substances have affected the property on which those facilities
are or were situated The Group have also receved and may continue to receive claims pursuant to indemnity obligations from the
present owners of facihities we have transfecred which claims may require us ta incur costs for investigation and/or remediation
As at 31 December 2015 the Group heid provisions totalling £44m (2014 £33m ) for the estimated future ervironmental clean-up
costs in relation to industrial facilities that it no longer operates Whilst the tirming of the related cash flows is typically uncertain
the Group expects that certain of its remediation obligations may continue for up to 60 years

Indemnities and retained obhigations

As described in note 26 the Group agreed to indemnify certain third parties relating to businesses and/or assets that were
previously owned by the Group and were sold to them As at 31 December 2015 we recagmised indemnity provisions totalhing
£78m (2014 £86m) Indemnity provisions principally refate to the indemnification of the purchasers of SPIE 1n 2006 and the

Built Environment and other peripheral businesses that were sold 1n 2007 Duning 2015 the Group recognised additional indemnity
provisions of £12m in relakion to businesses sold In previous years and released provisions of £19m that were no longer required
following settlement of the underlying 1ssues

Property-related provisions
Praperty-related provisions related to ddapidations of feasehold buildings

Other provisions

Other provisionsnclude £7m (2014 £2m) in respect of the Group s lega!l and constructive obligations to fund loss-making joint
ventures and to meet its share of certain of therr obligations and insurance provisions of £28m (2014 £28m) relating to the
potential habilitres in the Group s captive insurance entity and provisions in relation to risks associated with insurance claims
These potentiat labihties and risks relate predorminantly to industnal disease of former employees These are expected to unwind
aver the next 20 years
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

22 Share capital and reserves

Movernents in share capital and reserves are shown in the consalidated statement of changes tn equity on pages 99 te 101

Share capital

The share capital of the company comprises ordinary shares of 50 pence each All the ordinary shares rank pan passu in all
respects To the company s knowledge and belief there are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in the company or on voling
nghts between holders of shares

The movemnent 1n 1ssued share capital during the year was as follows
. . |

Number im
As at 1 January 2014 303822854 152
Issued during the year 85052989 42
As at 31 December 2014 388 875,843 194
Issued during the year 4255970 3
As at 31 December 2015 39313183 197

Reserves

As at 1 January 2015 there were 5 431 314 shares held in treasury (2014 6 186 965) during the year 2,273,004 shares were
transferred ta share scheme participants (2014 755,651) leaving a balance held in treasury as at 31 December 2015 of 3158.310
(2014 5431 314) £35m (2014 £57m) has been deducted from equity w respect of these shares

The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the farr value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred

The translation reserve comprises all loreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the accounts of foreign operations
as well as from the translation of labilities and the cumulative net change i the fair vatue of instruments that hedge the company's
net investment in foregn subsichianies that have ansen since 1January 2004 being the date of transition to adopted IFRS

Share-based payments

Offers are made penwodically m certain countries under the UK and International Savings-related Share Option Schemes which

are open to all employees in those countries who meet mimimum service ¢riteria Grants of share options are made to participating
employees that entitle them to buy shares in the company normally after three years at up to 20% discount to the market pnce of
the shares at the time of offer In the US, to conform with the relevant tax rutes options are granted at 2 maximum discount of 15%
to the share price at the ime of grant and are normally exercisable after two years

Under the new Long-Term Incentive Plan annual awards are made to directors and selected senior employees of nil-cost options
or restnicted shares Below board level awards are spht between a performance based element (half of which 1s based on a total
shareholder return related performance condition and the other haif an an earnings per share related performance condition)
and a non-performance element Awards are made in the form of nil-cost options other than in certain countries where they are
made in the form of restricted shares Awards to Executive Directors are as described in the Directors remuneration report an
pages 67 to 80

Under the Performance Share Plan, annual awards were made to directors and selected semor employees of restrnicted shares that
are subject to both market and non market based conditions calculated over a three-year peniod

Under the Restricted Share Plan awards were made to selected employees as restricted shares which vest in full after three years
provided the employee has remained (n continuous employment

Prior to the acquisttion, Foster Wheeler s Compensation and Executive Development Committee administered the Foster Wheeler
AG Omnibus Incentive Plan for Foster Wheeler s employees non-employee directors and third-party service providers

Under the terms of the Implementation Agreement equivalent awards of AMEC shares were granted by AMEC in replacement
of Foster Wheeler awards and the terms of those replacement awards are equivalent in all material respects to the terms of the
Foster Wheeler Omnibus Plan All employees of Foster Wheeler and its subsidiaries and/or afiihates, its non-ernployee directors
and certam of its third party service providers were ehigible to participate in the Foster Wheeter Ommibus Plan As at the date of
acquisition only Foster Wheeler options Foster Wheeler RSUs and Foster Wheeler PRSUSs were outstanding under the Foster
Wheeler Omnibus Plan

The share-based payment arrangements operated by the Group are predosinantly equity settled and other than in defined good
leaver circumstances require participants to be still in employment with the Group at the time of vesting

Qur current practice 1s to satisfy awards vesting or aptions being exercised under the executive ptans with market-purchased
shares held in the Amec Foster Wheeier Employee Share Trust and to satisfy Sharesave options being exercised by the transfer
of shares held in treasury

146 mm and accounts 2015




22 Share capital and reserves continued
Share-based payments continued

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options under the Savings related Share Option Scheme are as follows

i
i

avciee price Nurrhar of mtu:‘::: Numiber of

2018 spthons 2014 optons

Pl .ty oancy W14

Outstanding on 1 January 819 7711,995 794 6,691,883
Lapsed/cancelled 850 (1.920.215) 822 (777995)
Exercised 6715 (2,29591) 777 (765 267)
Granted 683 4674510 874 2563 374
Qutstanding on 31 December 7 817037 819 7711995
Exercisable on 31 December 863 373,627 902 200948

Options were exercised on a regular basis dunng the year and the average share price for the year was 780 pence

(2014 1102 pence)

Options outstanding on 31 December 2015 have weighted average remaning contractual lives as follows

Walghied Waghted

EVerags avirage

ramakning amanng
covttrathu| (He Marnber of contractual [ty Nurnbar of
2018 optiom 2004 ophions
yuanr s yoors 2014
600 00 pence to 699 99 pence 30 3965570 - 2391513
700 00 pence to 799 99 pence 20 467,796 - -
BCO 00 pence to 895 99 pence L3 27050 11 3807935
Qver 900 00 pence - 1,026,512 02 1512 547
8,170,379 7711995

The numbers of shares held under the Performance Share Plan and Restricted Share Plan are as follows

Nurmbes of Nusmier of

shares chams

ms 2014

As at 1 January 6717237 4194248
Lapsed (L361,021) (1110559)
Vested (1674,001} (250328)

Granted 2510707 3883876

As at 31 December 6,192,922 6717237

Armec Foster Wheeler
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

22 Share capital and reserves continued

Share-based payments continued

The fair value of services recerved in return for share oplions granted and shares awarded are measured by reference to the far
value of those instruments For grants in either the current or preceding years, the pricing modets used and nputs (on a weighted
average basis where approprniate) into those models are as follows

Long Tarm VRF:::
Sanings relatad Shace Opbon Seheme Incentre Plan Periog'mance Share Plan Awitrcied Shaoy Ptan Ormmbun
(Black Scholes model  (Monts Carls model) (Monte Carlo model) (Monte Cario mode) a0
2018 20 2011 xns 0e on 2014 203 2014
Weighted average farr value
at measurement date 149p 198p 217p 789p 1006p 948p 949p 960p 1.027p
Weiughted average share
pnice at measurement date 769p 1014p 1061p 938p 1105p 1060p 1082p 1070p 108l1p
Exercise price 683p 874p  866p n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Expected share price volatihty 28% 2% 27% 27% 26% 28% n/a n/a n/a
Option life 33 33 33 27 31 28 27 27 n/a
years  years  years years years  years years  years
Expected dvidend yield 36% 35% 40% n/a n/a n/a 35% 30% 35%
Risk-free interest rate 1.29% 10% 10% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Comparator share price volatility n/a n/a n/a 2% 32% 3% n/a n/a n/a
Correlation between two comparues
in comparator group n/a n/a n/a 40% 50% 50% n/a n/a n/a

The expected share price volatility 1s based on the tistoncal volatility of the company s share price

The performance conditions attaching to the new Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Performance Share Plan involve a comparison
of the total shareholder return of the company with that ot its comparaters and achievement of targeted earnings per share
growth The former 1s @ market based test and as such s incorporated inte the grant date fair vatue of the award There are no
performance conditions attached to the Restricted Share Plan

Prior to the acquisition, Foster Wheeler had 1ssued shares awards to employees non-employee directors and certain third parties
under the Foster Wheeter AG Omnibus Incentive Plan Under the terms of the Implementation Agreement equivatent awards of
Amec Foster Wheeler shares were granted in replacement of these foster Wheeler awards On acquisition awards of 2 400 766
Amec Foster Wheeler shares were granted There are no performance concitions attached to these awards

Dividends

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the inancial year ended 31 December 2015 of 14 2 pence per share
which will absorb an estimated £54m of equity Subject to approval it will be paxd on 4 July 2016 to shareholders on the register
of members on 27 May 2016 This dmidend has not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences for the company
Thus final dividend together with the intenm dividend of 14 B pence (2014 14 8B pence. 2013 13 5 pence) per share results in a total
cividend for the year of 20 0 pence per share (2014 43 3 pence 2013 42 0 pence)

Dnidend cover for 201515 2 3 times (2014 1 8 tumes) based on adjusted diluted £PS from continuing operations

As announced in November 2015 1t 1s the current intention of the Board that ardinary dividends in 2016 will be approximately
half that declared in 2014 with approximately one-third paid at the interim and two-thirds as a inal dwidend

Dnidends charged to reserves and pad
Interim dwadend in respect of 2014 of 14 8 pence (2014 interim dividend in respect

of 2013 0f 135 pence 2013 interim dividend in respect of 2012 of 11 7 pence) per share 56 a0 36

Final dwidend n respect of 2014 of 28 5 pence (2014 final dividend in respect of 2013

of 28 5 pence, 2013 final dvidend in respect of 2013 of 24 8 pence) per share m 84 72
167 124 108

The amount waived by trustees of the Employee Share Trust in respect of the interim and hinal dividends was £1m
(2014 £1m, 2013 £1m)
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23 Analysis of net (debt)/cash

Asat and A

H othay non cash 31 December

201! Cash tiow mowments 2008

Em Lm Lm tm

Cash at bank and in hand 377 (46) (24) 307

Bank deposits (less than three months) 118 (85) - 33

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 495 (131) (24) 340

Bank overdrafts - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents 495 (131) (24) 340

Bank deposits (more than three months) 21 2 - 23
Bank lcans {1267) 64 (61) {1.264)

Fees capitalised against bank facilities 9 3 (12) -
Finance leases (61) 11 (9 (59)

Derwvatives classified as net debt - (12 26 14
Net debt as at the end of the year (803) (63) (80) (946)

Asul Exharge and Asm

1lauaty other non cash 3 Decamber

2014 Acquaition Cath fow ravTanls 20j4

Lm om im im

Cash at bank and i hand 153 239 (9) (6) 377
Bank deposits (less than three months) 79 29 10 - 18
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 232 268 1 (&) 495
Bank overdrafts )] - 9 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 223 268 10 ©) 495
Bank deposits (more than three months) 18 - 3 - 21
Bank loans (120) (39) (1102) {6) (1.267)
Fees capitaised against bank facilities - - 13 @) 9
Finance leases - (32) 4 (33) (61)
Net cash/(debt) as at the end of the year 121 197 (1.072) (49) (803)

The fair value of bank Ipans 1s £1 264m (2014 £1 268m) compared to a carrying value of £1 264m (2014 £1 267m) The fair value
of finance leases 15 £59m (2014 £66m) compared to a carrying value of £59m (2014 £61m)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015 includes £47m (2014 £60m) thatis held in countries from which prior
approval 1s required to transfer funds abroad There are restrictions on the use of £9m (2014 £7m) of cash held on behalf of joint
venture arrangerments and £17m (2014 £28m) held on behall of customers and collateral against bank guarantees In addition,
there are restrictions on the use of a further £16m (2014 £16m) of cash and cash equivalents in respect of commitments of the

Group s captive insurance subsidiary to certain insurers

Amec Fastar Wheeler
Annual report and accounts. 2015
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

24 Acquisittons and disposals

Acquisitions in 2015

On 5 October 2015 the Group acquired the remaining 49 9% shareholding tn KROMAV Engenhana Lida a company incorporated
in Brazil for a consideration of £3m As a resuit of the transaction the non-controlling interest released was £1m resulting ina
charge of £4m recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

Mandatory purchase of minority Foster Wheeler shareholders

On 19 January 2015 Amec Foster Wheeler pic completed the squeeze-out merger under Swiss law (the Squeeze-Out Merger )
of Foster Wheeler AG ( Foster Wheeler ) through its wholly owned subsidiaries AMEC International investments BY and A-FW
Internatianal Investments GmbH

All remaining Foster Wheeler shareholders recewved for each Foster Wheeter share held a combination of $16 00 in cash
and esther (1) 0 8998 Amec Foster Wheeler shares if the shareholder's address on the books and records of Foster Wheeler
was outside the United States or (n) O 8998 Amec Foster Wheeler American depositary shares (‘ADSs } if the shareholder 5
address on the books and records of Foster Wheeler was i the United States

The cash portion of the consideration was increased by $0 225 for each Amec Foster Wheeler share or Amec Foster Wheeler
ADS recewved, in lieu of the Amec Foster Wheeler dividend of £0 148 (announced on 7 August 2014) This was calculated by
converting the divdend amount to US$ (at the European Central Bank s 5 January 2015 exchange rate of $1 5223 per £1 00)

In aggregate Amec Foster Wheeler paid as consideration in the Squeeze Out Merger £51m {$77m) in cash and 1ssued 4 255 970
Amec Foster Wheeler shares

The purchase consideration was aliocated as follows
- ]

vaiue
Em
Assets acqured -
Liabtlities assumed -
Net ilentifiable assets and habilities -
Amount recognised in the consohdated statement of changes in equity 75
Naon-controihing interest acquired 10
a5
Consideration
Shares issued 34
Cash paid on completion 51
as
Acquisrtions i 2014
Foster Wheeler
Background

On & October 2014 the Group launched a public tender offer to acquire the entire 1ssued share caprtal of Foster Wheeler AG
the ulimate parent company of Foster Wheeler Pursuant to the tender offer which closed on 13 November 2014 (the acquisition
date) the Group acquired 95 3 per cent of the issued share capital of Foster Wheeler AG

Constderation payable for the interests in Foster Wheeler acquired by the Group amounted to £1 915m {measured at farr value at
the acquisition date) of which £979m was settled incash £919m was settledrby the issue of ordinary shares and ADSs and £17m
was settled by the grant of replacement share options and awards to Foster Wheeler employees

Due to the relatively short period of time that elapsed between the acquisition date and the completion of the 2014 financial
statemnents management had not finalised its assessment of the fair values at the acquisition date of certain of Foster Wheeler s
property plant and equipment equity accounted investments and property-related, legal and environmental cbligations and a
provisional allocation was reported in the 2014 financial statements The fair value assessment was completed during 2015
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24 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Acquisitions In 2014 continued
The purchase consideration has been allocated as follows

£
Identdiable assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 111

Identifiable intangible assets 742

Interests in joint ventures 3

Current tax recevable 13

Deferred tax assets 27

Inventories 1

Trade and other receivables 751

- Gross contractual amounts recevable 818

- Allowance for doubtful debts (67)
Dervatwve hinancial instruments (12)
Cash and cash equivalents 265

Liabiirties agsumed

Bank loans (39)
Finance lease obligations (32)
Trade and other payables (856)
Current tax (65)
Retirement benefit labilities (72)
Deferred tax habiities (113)
Provisions (592)
Netidentihable assets acquired 212

Non controlling interests (23)
Goodwll 1.726

Consideration 1915

Non-controlling interests in Foster Wheeler were measured at their proportionate share of Foster Wheeler s identifiable assets
and labilittes at the acquisition date

Goodwill of £1 726m has been recognised on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler Managemaent considers that the goodwill

15 attnibutable to the future strategic growth opportunities ansing from the acquisition Foster Wheeler s highly skilled
customer-oriented and collaborative assembled workforce the significant cost synergies that are expected to result from

the mtegration of Foster Wheeler with the Group s exesting aperations, and the potential for tax synergies None of the goodwil
15 expected to be deductible for tax purposes

Acquisition-related costs relating to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler totalling £33m were recogrused within adrminustrative
expenses dunng 2014

in the penicd from its acquisition to 31 December 2014 Foster Wheeler contnbuted £274m to the Group s revenue and £1m to
the Group s trading profit After amortisation exceptional items and net asbestos related tems Foster Wheeler generated a loss
of £44m in the penod from acguisition 1o 31 December 2014

Management estimaled that if Foster Wheeler had been acquired on 1 January 2014 the Group s revenue for the year would have
been £1 814m higher than reported at £5 800m Management was unable to eshmate rehably what the Group s profit or loss for
the year would have been on this basis principally because itis not practicable to retrospectively apply the significant purchase
accounting adjustments that were made to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabibhies of Foster Wheeler at its acquisition
date and the tax effects of those adjustments

Changes to the provisional far value allocation

As discussed above durtng 2015 management completed its assessment of the fair values of Foster Wheeler's assets and
habilities as at the acquisition date resulting in the recognition of an additional goodwill of $245m The most sigrificant updates
were as follows
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

24 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Acquisitions In 2014 continued

Longview

As previously disclosed during 2015 the arbitration panel awarded Kvaerner approximately $74m (approximately £48m)

in respect of the arbitration with Kvaerner Narth American Canstruction Inc arising from GPG s role i the construction of the
Longview power plant in West Virginua, US 1n 2011 As the contract was complete prior ta the acquisition, this award has been lully
reflected in the purchase price allocation

Refinery project arbitration — india

As disclosed In the 2014 financial statements Foster Wheeler commenced arbitration i India against its client seeking collection
of unpaid mvoices N connection with the construction of an ol refinery plant in north-eastern Incdha Its chent rejected the clam
and submutted significant counterclaims The prowisional purchase price allacation included an allowance aganst the outstanding
debts but, due to the ongong nisks and the passage of ime a further charge of £16m has been made This represents full
provision against the outstanding receivables

Other project itigation
A provision of £33m has been established against costs expecled to be disallowed and a potential aileged breach of warranty clam
n respect of design work undertaken on a design, build and construct project based in the Southern US

Management has performed a detailed review of the contracts in the GPG business and made prowisions for defect rectiication
and damages claims totalling £19m across a number of contracts

A number of smaller provisions (totathng £2im) have been estabhshed agamnst specific contact nisks

Receivables and payabies
Prowision has been made against recevables and unbilled work in progress on a number of contracts (including £10m on one
contract) that were outstanding as at the acquisition date and remained uncollected at the end of the tindsight perod

Prowision has also been made against an employment tax risk associated with a permanent establishment overseas

Uncertain tax positions
Management has reviewed the ongoing tax positions of Foster Wheeler and increased the provisions for uncertain tax postbions
in a number of junisdictions The maost significant increases withholding tax on potential deemed distributions

Property. plant and equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been reviewed resulting in a £9m wnite down of two properties to their
expected market value

Deferred tax

Deferred tax habilities reduced by £23m This movement includes a potential tax hability on the future unwind of an overseas
branch, as well as the deferred tax impact of the additional adjustments to the purchase price offset by the impact of the
finalisation of the intangible asset allocation The recogmition ol deferred tax on the purchase price allocation is restricted

as a result of uncertainty over tuture profits and capacily constraints

Restatement

In addition to the above the acquisition balance sheet as presented on page 151 has been restated to present habiities of £65m
i respect of onerous leases within trade and other payables These habilities had previousty been presented within provisiens
As part of the finalisation of the acquisition accounting the acquired mtangible asseis have been allocated to the relevant
unsdictions resulting i a forergn exchange movement between the acquisition date and 31 December 2014 This 15 reflected

n the restaled consolidated statement of changes in equity for 2014

Scopus

0On 15 December 2014 the Group acquired the entire Issued share capital of Scopus Group (Holdings) Limited (Scopus) for £68m
with £67m pad on completion and £1m deferred for one year Headquartered n Aberdeen UK with bases in international ol and
gas hubs Scapus has around 200 employees who provide specialist engmneering services to the global o and gas petrochermical
and nuciear industries

Due to the retatvely short period of ime that had elapsed between the acquisition date and completion of the 2014 financial
statements management had not yet {inalised its assessment of the fair values at the acquisition date of 15 December 2014 at the
time that the 2014 financia! statements were completed The farr value assessment was completed during 2015 wath only minor
adjustments to the provisional assessment

Gaodwill of £35m has been recognised on the acquisition wiuch management considers s principally attributable to its skilled
workforce which did not meet the cntena for recognition as an mtangible asset at the date of acquistion Trus specialist expertise
will complement Amec Foster Wheeler s existing project delivery capability across the hfecycle of a project
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24 Acquistions and disposals continued

Acquisitions in 2014 continued
Summary of financial effect
Purchase consideration was provisionally allocated as follows

&m
Intangble assets 3
Tangible assets 1
Trade and other recewvables 7
Cash and cash equivalents 3
Trade and other payables (3)
Oeterred tax hability (€)
Net identifizble assets and habilities 33
Goodwill on acquisitean 35
68

Consideration
Cash = paid on completian 67
—deferred 1
68

Scopus did not make a matenal contnibution to the Group $ results for the year and would not have done 5o even if it had been
acquired on 1 January 2014

Acquisitions In 2013

Automated Engineenng Services Corp

On 15 November 2013 the Group acquired all of the shares in Autormnated Engineering Services Corp (AES) for up te US$35m of
which US$29m (£18m) was paid on completion and up to $6m (£4m) will be paid after three years dependent on the achieverment
of certain performance targets

AES 15 a professional design engineering nuclear services firm based in Naperville lWhnos US 1t provides plant design/
modification engingering engineering analfysis safety licensing and regulatory services and engmneering programme support
to existing nuclear utiities primarily in the US We acquired AES to build on the Group s postion in the nuclear induslry inthe US
aliowing us to better serve our chents and providing a strong platform from which to actueve further growth n nuclear services
Goodwll of £12m was recognised on the acquisition of AES

Purchase consideration was allocated as follows
eSS e e e e e e o ]

tm
Intangible assets 6
Trade and other receivables 6
Trade and other payables (2)
Netdentifizble assets and labilities 10
Goodwill 12
Consideration 22
:ﬁ% and acooums 2015 1«53
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

25 Commitments

Operating leasa commrtments
The total obhigations under non-canceltable operating lease rentals for continuing operations are as foilows

3 Oecamb 3 Dacerd
01 2014

&m m

In one year or less 86 99
Between one and five years 224 249
Over five years B 124
a5 472

Amec Foster Wheeler enters into the following types of lease short-term plant hires, leases for motor vehicles and office equipment
with lease periods of two to five years and longer term property leases None of the leases include any contingent rentals

Finance lease and hire purchass commitments

The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of property and deferred payment arrangements
which are similar to finance leases for software These leases have terms of renewal bul no purchase options and escalation
clauses Renewals are at the option of the specific entity that holds the lease Future mimimum lease payments under inance
teases and hire purchase contracts together with the present vatue of the net minimumlease payments are as follows

208 2004
Mindymss I':um fopred Miumum P;'ewu vaiue

&m T g ™ M"'E'vs-

In one year or less 6 4 12 9
Between one and five years 49 42 47 35
Over live years 15 13 20 17
Total mimmum lease payments 70 59 79 6!
Less amounts representing linance charges ) - (18) -
Present value of mimmum lease payments 59 59 6l 61

26 Contingent habilities

Legal claims and actions

From trme to time the Group 1s party to htigation involving chients and sub-contractors ansing out of project contracts

Such litigatron includes ctaims or actions by and against the Group for cancelled contracts for additional costs mcurred

n excess of contract provisions, as well as for back charges for alleged breaches of warranty and other contract commitments
We have recognised provisions for certain known or reasonably Likely legal claims or actions against the Group We do not expect
known and reasonably likely legal clasms or actions for which a provision has not been established to have a material impact on
the Group's financial position, results of operations or cash flows

indemnities and retained obligations

We have agreed to indemnify certain third parties refating to businesses and/or assets that were praviously owned by the Group
and were sold to them Such indemn:fications relate primanly to breach of covenants, breach of representations and warranties
as well as potential exposure for retained hiabiities environmental matters and thard party claims lor actvities conducted by the
Group prior to the sale of such businesses and/cr asset We have established prowisions for those indemmities in respect of which
we consider it probable that there will be a successful claim We do not expect indemruhes or retained obligations for which a
provision has not been established to have a material impact on the Group's financial position results of operations or cash fiows

Guarantees
The Group has guaranieed certain performance obligations in respect of a refinery/electric power generation plant located in Chile
n which we hold a non-controlling interest
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26 Contingent habihities continued

Mount Pollay

The Mount Polley mme 1s owned and operated by Mount Polley Mining Corporation a subsichary of Impenal Metals Corporation
and 1s located near the town of Likely Britesh Columiina Canada On 4 August 2014 a tailings pond facihty at the rmine faited
releasmg large quantities of water and mine talings into the local environment The dam was in the process of being rarsed at
the time of the failure One of our subsidiaries along with other parties had vanous design and quality assurance responsibilities
associated with the expansion of this facility Our subsidiary was prowiding engineering services at the time of the breach but did
not perform the onginal design

An Independent Review Panel issued a report on 30 January 2015 concluding that the cause of fallure was shearing along a zone
containing a weak so! layer along with other contributory factors On December 17 2015 the Chief Inspector of Mines for BC
1ssued a report that for the most part agrees with the conclusions of the Independent Review Panel At this ime hitigation has
been threatened by the Owner of the Mine and its parent company Impenial Metals Corporation but no itigation has yet been
commenced against the Group Management s opimion is that its employees performed in a professional manner consistent with
the standard of care for a competent engineer on a project of this nature in addition the contract between our subsidiary and
Mount Polley Mining Corporation contains imitatrons of hability provisions that exclude ctaims for consequential damages and
livut the subsichary s liabihty to the amount of professional fees charged, which wera less than CDN$1m

Amec Foster Wheeler 1s taking external legal adwice on this matter In ight of both internal and external advice, and given the early
stages of thrs matter it 1s considered possible but not probable that there will be an cutflow in respect of this 1ssue

Tax planning
The Group undertakes tax planning which 1 comphant with gurrent legislabion and accepted practice Recent changes to the tax

environment, including the OECD's project around Base Erosion and Profit Shifting have brought into question the fegitimacy of
tax planning previousty undertaken by multinational entities There have been several recent high profile tax cases against tax
authonties and large groups The Eurepean Commussion has opened formal investigations to examine whether decisions by the
tax authorities in certain European countries comply with European Union rutes We are monitoring the outcome of these cases in
order to understand whether there is any nisk to the Group Based on the Group s current assessment of such issues 1t 15 toc early
to speculate on any areas of challenge and potential hlabihties and as a result it1s nol currently considered prabable that there will
be an outflow In respect of these issues

27 Related party transactions

During 2015 there were a number of kransactions with the senior management group jont venture entities and subsidiary compames

Transactions with the senlor management group

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler in late 2014, the senior management group now consists of Amec Foster Wheeler plc
board members and the pressdents of the Americas, Northern Europe and CIS Asia Middle East Africa and Southern Europe and
the Global Power Group

The semor management group and relatives controlled 0 7% of the voting rights of the company as at 31 December 2015

In addition to their sataries the company also provides non-cash benehits to executive directors and other semcr managers and
they receive share awards under the Performance Share Plan The company also contributes to a defined benefit plan on behal
of certain executive directors Details of ther compensation are as follows

018 2044

&m £m
Short-term employee benelits 5 5
Pension costs - -
Equity-settled share-based payments - 1

5 6
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

27 Related party transactions continued

Transactions and reiated balances outstanding with joint ventures
The transactions and related balances cutstanding with joint venture entities are as follows

Vel of trandaciions wam
o L yuar sl
204 204
2015 (ruaiated) 03 (restated)
Em im £m

&tm
Services recewed 1 - -
Services rendered 28 29 12 12
Provision of hnance - 9 7 25

ut

The 2014 restaterment reflects changes to classifications of related party transactions

In Septemnber 2012 the UK government s Department for Business, Innavation and Skdls announced a change to UK legisiation
with respect to the requirement tor a UK company to be subject to annual audit An additional aucit exemption has been
introduced, such that for a subsidiary of a parent established 1n a European Econormuc Area state that subsidiary can be exempt
trom annual audht if certain conditions are met The principal conditions are the requirement far the subsidiary s shareholders
to agree to the exemption and a guarantee to be issued to the subsidiary by the parent undertalung guaranteeing all of the
substdiary $ outstanding habilities at the year end until they are satished in full

The Group will be exempting the following compames from an audst in 2015 under Section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006
all of which are fully conschdated in these accounts

Amec Foster Wheeler Finance Asia Limited (Registered number 6205760}
AMEC Hedge Co 1 Limited (Registered number 07870120)

AMEC Kazakhstan Holdings Limited (Registered number 4530056)
Amec Foster Wheeler Property and Overseas Investments Limited (Registered number 1580678)
AMEC USA Finance Limited (Registered number 5299446)

AMEC USA Holdings Limited (Registered number 4041261)

AMEC USA Limited (Registered number 4044800)

AMEC Wind Developments Limited (Registered number 8781332}

Ard Ghaoth Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7625013}

Auld Clay Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7285550)

Castlecary Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7611293}

Hitton Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7767187)

Pl Energy & Emissions Limited (Registered number SC209704)

Sandway Solutions (No 3) Limited {Registered number 5318249)

Sigma Financial Facihties Limited (Registered number 3853449)

28 Post balance sheet events

Refinancing

On 1 March 2016 the Group completed a refinancing of its rmain debt faciities by entering Into a new faciity with a syndicate

of 20 banks The new faciity wiuch has three tranches - a three-year £650m termloan a3 five-year £650m term loan and

a five-year £400m revolving credit facihty - replaces the company s existing revolving credit facility and the Foster Wheeler
acquisition facility

Longview

in earty March 2016 the Group settled its dispute with Kvaerner as described in note 24 We have agreed ta pay Kvaerner $70m
in full and final settlement of the claims

Amec Foster Whae'er
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015
.- - ]
08 24
Nots & tm
Fixed assots
Intangible assets 2 33 3
Tangible assets 3 1 ]
Investment 1n subsidiaries s 4.219 4480
4,253 4512
Current assets
Debtors including amounts faling due after one year of £1 310 m (2014 £1102 m) s 1378 1149
Cash at bank and in hand 41 93
1419 1242
Current liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due wathin one year 6 (1.661) (2 025)
Net current llabilities (242) (784)
Total assets less current liabilities 4,011 37es
Creditors amounts falling due after one year H (2.091) {1.324)
Net assets 1,920 2404
Caprtal and reserves
Called up share capital 9 197 194
Share premium account 9 133 101
Capital redemption reserve 9 34 k"]
Merger reserve ] 540 8§77
Profit and foss account 3 1,016 1198
Equsty shareholders’ funds 1920 2,404

The accoynts on pages 157 to 165 were approved by the board of directors on 10 March 2016 and were signed onits behalf by

lan McHoul
Chief Financial Otficer and interim CEO

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report 2nd sccounts 2015
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Company statement of changes 1n equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Share Share Mg rederrplion Protit snd lovs
caprial oF e resare resarve sccount Tatal
m im im £m im &m

As at 1 January 2015 (reslated) 194 101 877 34 1198 2404
Loss for the year - - - - (368) (368)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (368) (368)
Transfer of losses from the retained earmings
to the merger reserve - - (337) - 337 -
Dwidend - - - - {167) (67
Equity-settled share-based payments - - - - 1 1
Utiisation of treasury shares - - - - 15 15
Shares 1ssued 3 32 - - - 35
As at 31 December 2015 197 133 540 34 1016 1,920

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Share Share Marge! rodui:g: Frant andings
capetal Prémasm Sesere TESETve sccount Tatxl
im £m Em &m £m Im
As at 1 January 2014 152 101 - 34 1294 1581
Loss for the year - - - - 3) 3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (3) 3
Dividend - - - - (124) (124)
Equity-settied share-based payments - - - - 25 25
Utiisation of treasury shares - - - - 6 6
Shares 1ssued 42 877 - - - 919
Transfer to merger reserve - (877) 877 - - -
As at 31 December 2014 {restated) 194 101 877 34 11e8 2404

Amec Fostar Wheeler
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Notes to the company accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101)
and under the hrstorical cost convention except that dervative financial instruments are stated at fair value m accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 2006

The cormpany has not presented its own proht and loss account as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

The resuits of Amec Faster Wheeler plc are included in the consolidated accounts of Amec Foster Wheeler pic which are available
from Booths Park Chelford Road Knutsford Cheshire WA16 8Q2

The accounts are presented in Sterling, rcunded to the nearest mutlion

As the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG in November 2014 resulted in the Group securing more than 90% of Foster Wheeler s
1ssued share capital the acquisition qualifies for merger relief under section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 from crediting
the share prermiurn account As a result the balance sheet at 31 December 2014 has been restated to present the excess of the
nominal value of the shares issued of £877m as a merger reserve

The company has transitioned to FRS 101 from previously issued UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice for all periods
presented Transiticn tables showing ali material adjustments are disclosed in note 12 The accounting policies which follow
set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

The company has taken agvantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101

» the requirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46-52 of IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment (detais of the number and waighted-average
exercise prices of share options and how the far value of services received was determined)

» the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures
» the requirements of paragraphs 91 95 of IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement
» the requirement in paragraph 38 of 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative information in respect of
- paragraph 79(a)}(v) of IAS 1
- paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment
- paragraph 118(e) of tAS 38 Intangible Assets’
» the reguirements of the following paragraphs of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
= 10{d) (statement of cashilows)

- 10{f) (a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies an accounting polcy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective statement of items in its inancial statements or when it reclassilies items inits
financial statements)

- 16 {statement of compliance with all [FRSs)
- 38A (requirement for minimum of two primary statements including cash flow statements)
- 388 D (additional comparative information)
- 40A D (requirements for a third statement of financial position)
=111 (cash flow statement information)
- 134-136 (capital management disclosures
» the requirements of IAS 7 Staterment of Cash Flows

» the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (requirement
for the disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been ssued but 1s not yet effective)

« the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures’ (key management compensation)

» the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more
members of a group provided that any subsidiary which s a party to the transaction s wholly owned by such 2 member

;
{
i
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Notes to the company accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

The preparation of accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilities
income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based ¢n huistonical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis of makang judgements
about carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from
these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
n the pertod i which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that peniod or in the penod of the rewision and future
penods if the revision affects both current and future perods

Amec Foster Wheeler believe some of these policies reguire a high level of judgement, and the most critical accounting policies
and significant areas of judgement and estimation arise from

Impairment of investments in subsichanes

Determiring whether the company s investments in subsidiaries have been impared reqgures estrmations of the investments
values in use The value In use calculations require the entity to estimate the future cash flows expectedto anse from the
nvestments and suitable discount rates in onder to calculate present values The carrying amount of investments in subsidianies
at the balance sheet date was £4,219m (2014 £4 480m) with an impairment loss of £351m recogmsedin 2015 (2014 E£nil)

Dividend income
Dividend income 1s recogrised when the nght to receive payment is established

Financlal instruments
Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value Subsequent valuation depends on the designation of thenstrument
and 15 as described in note 1 to the consohdatad financial statements

Foreign currencies

Transactions in a currency other than Sterling are transiated to Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and llabilittes denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date and exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account in the year Non-monetary assets and
liabihties are measured in terms of historical cost and are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Intangih!e assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Amortisation 1s charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives ofintangible assets,
from the date they are available for use The estimated useful lives of intangible assets held at 31 December 2015 are as follows

Software Three to seven years

Interest

interest 1s recogrused in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the effective nterest method
{nvestments

Investments are stated at cost less impairment losses Where equity-settled share-based payments are granted to the employees
of subsichary companies the far value of the award 1$ treated as a capital contribution by the company and the investments in
subsidiaries are adjusted to reflect this capital contribution

Pensions

The company participates in the Amec Staff and Executive defined benefit pension schemes The assets of these schemes are
held separately from those of the company As there s no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined
benefit cost to indmdual Group entities, the company has recogmised a cost equal 10 the contributions payable to the schemes
in respect of the accounting peried

Details of the defined benehit schernes can be found in note 14 of the consolidated accounts
Contributions to the defined contribution schemes are recognised m profit or loss in the period in which they become payahble

Tangible assets
Property plant and equ:pment 1s measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and smpairment losses

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value
of each asset on a straight hine basis over its estimated usefulife The estimated useful ives as at 31 December 2015 are as follows

Plant and equipment Three to five years
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1 Accounting policies continued

Remuneration of auditors
The detailed information concerning auditors remuneration s shown 1n note 4 of the consolidated accounts

Share-based payments

There are share-based payment arrangements which allow Amec Foster Wheeler employees to acquire Amec Foster Wheeler
shares, these awards are granted by Amec Foster Wheeler The (air value of awards granted is recognised as a cost of employment
with a corresponding increase i equity The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the award The fair value of the award 15 measured using a valuation model taking
into account the terms and conditions upon whuch the awards were granted The amount recognised as a cost 1s adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest except where non vesting 1s due to share prices not actueving the threshold for vesting

Taxahion
The charge for taxation 1s based on the results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary
differences between the treatment of certain iterns for taxation and accounting purposes

Deterred tax s recogmised without discounting n respect of all tempaorary differences between the treatment of certain items
for taxation and accounting purposes which have ansen but not reversed by the balance sheet date except as otherwse required
by 1AS 12 Income Taxes'

2 Intangible assets

Softwan
m
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 41
Additions 9
As at 31 December 2015 50
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2015 10
Provided during the year 7
As at 31 December 2015 17
Net book value
As at 31 December 2015 33
As at 1 January 2015 31
3 Tangible assets
]
Plant snd
prent
Em
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 4
Additions -
As at 31 December 2015 4
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2015 3
Provided during the year -
As at 31 December 2015 3
Net book value
As at 31 December 2015 1
As at 1 January 2015
mmﬁwwu 2015 161
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Notes to the company accounts continued

4 Investments (non-current)
. _____________________________________________________________________________________________|

Amounts Tousd
Shares i N et by ratment
* Lm im £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 4062 464 4 526
Additions 90 - 90
As at 31 December 2015 4152 464 4,616
Provisions
As at | January 2015 46 - 46
Additions 351 - 351
As at 31 December 2015 397 - 397
Net book value
As at 31 December 2015 3755 464 4,219
As at 1 January 2015 4016 464 4480
Group companies are listed on pages 194 to 201
5 Debtors
]
1 Decamber 31 Decamber
ms 20U
[T Em
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidharies -] 5
Dervative financial nstruments i3 13
Corpaoration tax 21 24
Prepayments and accrued income 8 5
68 47
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year
Derwvative financial instruments 19 2
Amounts owed by subsidharies 1,291 1100
1378 1149

The deferred tax balance 15 analysed as follows

LY 2014
Lm £m

Difference between accumulated depreciation and capstal allowances 1) (¢}
Tax losses 1 -
Share-based schemes - 1

In his budget speech on 8 July 2015 the UK Chancellor ot the Exchequer announced reductions in the rate of UK corparation tax
from 209 to 19% on 1 April 2017 and 18% on 1 Apr 2020

As at 31 December 2015 the reductions in the rate of corporation tax to 19% and 18% had been substantively enacted

162 :mm’r ’h:el necrwmu 2015




6 Creditors amounts falling due within one year
.|

I Decomber J) Oecomnbe:

2015 2014

£m im

Bank overdrafts 12 8
Bank and other loans 673 693
Trade creditors 42 37
Derwative financial instruments a3 12
Amounts awed to subsicianies 901 1276
1.661 2026

The company has committed banking facilities of £1,741m (2014 £1826m) This consists of a £377m emulti-currency revolving
faciity that was taken out on 18 July 2012 The facility 1s commutted for five years and is avaslable for general corporate purposes
In addition on 13 February 2014 the company entered snto acquisition factities totalling $2 260m (£1 449m) This comprnises

of the following

» $830m (£563m) bndge facility which matures 5 August 2016 with a further six month extension al the company s option
» $830m (£563m) term loan matunng n equal instalments in 2017 2018 and 2019
» $350m (£237m) revolving credit faciity matunng May 2016

As al 31 December 2015, £1 236m (2014 £1 230m) of the loans and faciities were utilised by way of debt and £62m
(2014 £159m) was uliised by way of Letter of Credit

On 1 March 2016 the Company entered into a new syndicated facility comprising of three tranches athree-year £650m term
loan a five-year £650m term loan and a five-year £400m revolving credit facility The new faciity replaces the Company s existing
£377m revolving credit faciity and the Foster Wheeler acquistion faciity of $2 26bn

7 Creditors amounts falling due after one year
- ]

11 Dcarmbar 31 Dacamber
2015 0

£a
Amounts owed to subsicharies 1509 794
Bank and other loans 563 528
Derwative hinancial instruments 19 2
2,091 1324

8 Share capital

The share capital of the company comprises ordinary shares of 50 pence each All the ordinary shares rank pan passun all
respects To the company s knowledge and belief there are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in the company or on voting
rights between holders of shares

. ]
n e

2004
Lm

194

G| 8

Allotted called up and fully paid ordinary shares of 50 pence each

The movement inissued share capital duning the year was as foltows
- |

Nomber &
As at 1 January 2015 3188875843 194
Shares 1ssued 4 265970 3
As at 31 December 2015 393,131,813 197

Share-based payment
Details of share based payment schemes operated by the company are provided in note 22 to the consolidated accounts
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Notes to the company accounts continued

9 Reserves

Moverments in reserves are shown in the company statement of changes in equity on page 158
Details of dwvidends approved by the company and paid during the year are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated accounts

During 2012 Amec Foster Wheeler plc generated a significant profit from an internal restructuning This becomes distributable
as quahtying consideration 1s passed to Amec Foster Wheeler plc As at 31 December 2015 £564m of reserves are considered
to be distributable

The company s loss for tne year in 2015 was £368m

10 Contingent habilities

Guarantees and indemnities
Guarantees given by the company in respect of borrowings of subsidiaries amounted to £ail as at 31 December 2015 (2014 £ril)

In addition the company 1s party to cross-guarantee arrangements relating to overdrafts for certain Group companies
The maximumm gross exposure as at 31 December 2015 was £79m {2014 £94m)

The company will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the following UK subsidiaries in accordance with Section 479C
of the Compares Act 2006

Amec Foster Wheeler Finance Asia Limited (Registered number 6205760)

Amec Foster Wheeler Property And Overseas Investments Limited (Registered number 1580678)
AMEC Hedge Co 1 Limited (Registered number 07870120)

AMEC Kazakhstan Holdings Limited (Registered number 4530056)

AMEC USA Finance Limited (Registered number 5299446)

AMEC USA Heldings Limited (Registered number 4041261)

AMEC USA Limited (Registered number 4044800)

AMEC Wind Developments Limited (Registered number 8781332)

Ard Ghaoth Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7625013)

Auld Clay Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7285550)

Castlecary Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7611293)

Hilton Wind Farm Limited (Registered number 7767187)

PI Energy Ermissions Limsted (Registered number SC209704)

Sandiway Solutions (No 3) Limited {Registered number 5318249)

Sigma Financial Facilities Limited (Registered number 3863449)

The company has assessed the probability of loss under these guarantees as remote

164 Amec Foster Wheeler
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11 Related party transactions

During the year the only related party transactions for which disciosure 1S required under IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
were with the senior management group As allowed by IAS 24 transactions with wholly owned subsidiary undertakings
are not disclcsed

Transactions with the senlor management group
The servor management group of the company consists of Amec Faster Wheeler pic board members

The servor management group of the company and ther immediate relatives controlled 0 65% of the voting rights of the company
as at 31 December 2015

Details of dwectors remuneration are provided in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 67 to B0

12 Transition to FRS 101

For all years up to the year ended 31 December 2014, the company prepared its accounts in accordance with previcusly 1ssued
United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP) For the year ended 31 December 2015 the company has
transitioned to FRS 101

In prepaning these accounts the company has started from an opening balance sheet as at 1 January 2014, the company's date

of transition to FRS 101, and made those changes in accounting policies and other restatements required for the first-time adoption
of FRS 101 This note explains the princtpal adjustments made by the company in restating its batance sheet as at 1 January 2014
prepared under previously issued UK GAAP and its previously published UK GAAP accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014

On transition to FRS 101 the company has apphed the requirermnents of paragraphs 6-33 of IFRS 1 First time adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards

Restatements required on transition from UK GAAP to FRS 101

Reclassification of software assets

Previously under UK GAAP software development costs were capitalised as tangible assets Under FRS 101 these costs meet

the criteria for capitalisation as intangible assets under IAS 38 Intangible Assets and as such have been reclassified from tangible
assets to intangible assets in the balance sheets as at 1 January 2014 (£26m) and 31 December 2014 (£31m)
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History and development

Details of incorporation

Amec Foster Wheeler plc 15 a public imited company that s
incorporated in England and Wales with the registered number
01675285

The Company's registered office 1s situated at Booths Park,
Chelford Road Knutsford Cheshire WA16 8QZ, UK

The Company operates under English law

The Company s agent in the US 1s CT Corporation, whose contact
address s 111 Eighth Avenue New York New York 10011 US

Origins

Amec Foster Wheeler pic (previously AMEC plc) was formed in
1982 when Farclough Construction merged with Wilham Press
Group The Matthew Hall Group of Companies was acquired

in 1988 As a business we can trace our history back over

150 years to the onigins of these predecessor companies

Subsequent transformation

In recent years the Group s activities have been transformed
by exsting from cril construction and becorming a consultancy
engineering and project management business We have
actueved this transformaton through a combination of organic
growth acquisitions and divestement of non-core activities

» In 2000 we acquired AGRAInc a North Amencan
environmental, engineermg and construction services
company and Ogden Environmental and Energy Services
Co Inc aUS enwironmental consulting company

» In 2005 we acquired Paragon Engineering Services Inc
a Houston-based o1l and gas engineering services company
and NNC Holdings Limited a UK nuclear consultancy and
engineering business

» In 2007, we sold our UK-based civil construction businesses

» In 2008 we acquired Geomatrix Consultants Inc
a Calrfornia-based techrucal consulting and engineering firm,
Ruder Hunt International Limited, a project services company
to the ol gas chemical energy and process industries and
Bower Damberger Rolseth Engineering Limited

» In 2008 we sold our wind developments business

» In 2009 we acquired GRD Limited an engineering and project
delivery company based i Perth, Australia, speciahsing in the
design procurement and construction of muneral projects

» In 2010 we acquired Entec Holdings Limited a UK based
environmenta) and engineering consultancy company

» In 2011 we acquired MACTEC Inc a US engineenng and
environmental services company and QED International
Limited or gech an osl and gas completions and
COMMISSIONING S&rvices company
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» In 2012 we acquired Energy Safety and Risk Consultants
(UK) Limited, or ESRC a UK-based nuclear technical services
business Unidel Group Pty Limuted or Umdel a consuiting
engineening and techmcal services company serving
Australia s energy, resources and infrastructure sectors
and a 509% stake in Kromav Engenharia Ltda or KROMAV
a partictpant in the Brazilian od and gas market with an
option to acquire the outstanding 50% stake

» In 2013 we acquired Automated Engineering Serwices Corp ,
a US design engineering nuclear services firm which provides
support to exsting nuclear utdities

»(n 2014 we acquired Scopus Group (Holdings) Limited
{Scopus) Headgquartered in Aberdeen, UK with bases
in international o1l and gas hubs Scopus has around 200
employees who provide specialist engineering services to
the global ol and gas petrochemucal and nuctear industnes

Between 1997 and 2006 we bought and sold mterests in SPIE
which provided electrical engineering communications services
and speciahst activities in the energy and rail industries
predominantly in France

in Novemnber 2014 the Company acquired contral of Foster
Wheeler AG aleading international engineernng construction
and project management contractor and power equipment
suppher by way of a public tender offer Foster Wheeler AG
was a Swiss-registered company that was listed on NASDAQ
inthe US At 31 December 2014 the Company owned through
awholly owned subsidhary 95 3% ot the 1ssued share capital
of Foster Wheeter AG At the ime of the acquisition Foster
Wheeter had around 12 000 employees and operated in over
30 countries through two business groups

Developments during 2015

During January 2015 the Company acquired the remamning
shares in Foster Wheeler AG by way of a squeeze-out merger
conducted under Swiss law and Foster Wheeler AG merged
with and into one of the Company s wholly-owned subsidiarres

In October 2015, we exercised our right to acquire the remaining
50% stake in Kromav Engenhana Ltda

In December 2015 we exercised our night to acquire the
remaining 40% stake in S2V Consulting Pty Ltd a company
incorporated in Australia and providing specialised consulting
services to our ol and gas customers inchuding upstream/
midstream, subsea and pipelines onshore/offshore and
production and processing Dunng December 2015 we also
sold our mterest in Project Management Holdings Limited

a company incorporated in lreland and providing engineering
architecture, and project management and construction
services intemationally

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Risk factors

We describe below those risks and uncertainties that we
consider to be significant because therr cutcome may have

a rmaterial adverse efiect on the Group s busmess fnancizl
condition results of operations or cash flows We have not histed
these nisks and uncertainties in any particular order of prionty
Other nsks and uncertainties that are currently unknown to

us or that are known but not currently considered by us to

be significant could become apparent to us or change and
therefore may ultimately have such matenal adverse effects

Adverse global economic conditions or other macro-
econom|c developments in the geographic regions and
markets in which we operate

We expect to derive the largest share of our revenue from
the il & gas market with a broad exposure from upstream
to downstream Qver recent years the ol & gas industry has
faced a number of challenges including continuing pressure
onconsumer demand ¢osts and ol & gas prices As a result
of the continuing nature of these challenges many o & gas
companies have reduced and may reduce further ther capital
expenditure in response to market and investor pressure

In our other markets such as clean energy spending

by custamers will depend on cost developments for new
technologies support for government initiatives and the
avallabilty of funding for projects, whilst demand for raw
materials from China may have a significant impact on minng
projects We have experienced increased competition for new
contracts and some customers have requested different less
favourable contract terms due to these conditions

We expect to derive the majority of our revenue from the
combination of Europe the US and Canada and will be exposed
to the impact of global and local economic conditions affecting
these regions We may, therefore be adversely affected if
economic conditions in these regions deteriorate or become
more uncertain

Adverse or volatile economic conditrons may also impact
hquidity and the availability of credit to our customers as
well as the demands of investors for greater returns in these
markets, each of which may in turn influence customer
spending on capital investment and/or asset maintenance
and may result in delays or cancellation of projects

If we are unable to successfully antiipate changing economic
and political conditions affecting the junisdictions and markets
in which we operate we may be unable o effectively plan for
or respond o those changes

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Risks assoclated with operatmg in emerging markets.

We conduct a portton of our operations in emerging markets
Going forward we expecl that our operatrons will be more heavity
focused inthe Middle East as well as in other emerging markets,
such as Latin Amer(ca and parts of Asia Our operations in these
markets are exposed to risks that may not be encountered in
countnes with more well established economuc and political
systemms which include to a greater or lesser extent changes in
governmenta! reguiations, trade restrictions and laws tardfs and
ather barners the potental for naticnahsation of enterprises or
government policies faveuring local produchion, renegotiation

or nullification of existing agreements fluctuations ininterest
rates and currency exchange rates the introduction of exchange
controls and other restrichions by foreign governments
tmehness of client payments differing protections for intellectual
property and enforcement thereof and divergent environmenial
laws and regulations

Continuing political and social unrest in the Middle East has
had and may continue to have a negative impact on existing
and future opporturities in the region

Changes in cammodity prices may adversely impact
demand for our services.

As a general matter, commodity pnces are volatile and are
influenced by a number of external factors, ncluding the supply
of and demand for commodities speculative activitres by
market participants, global political and economic condstions
the levels of production in major commaodity praducing
countries and the costs of exploring for developing producing
and delivering the commodities In particular fluctuations

In commodity prices related to the ol & gas, metals, mining
and rminerals mdustries may adversely impact our business
since they may adversely affect customer spending on capital
investment and asset maintenance and may result in delays
or cancellation of projects

The reduction in ail prices has adversely impacted investment
in both ail and gas production by drving international ail
companies to focus on ways in which they can be more capital
efficient and this may continue if o1l prices remain low For
example such companies may choose to reduce overall levels
of upstream capital expenditure and look at options to improve
the efficiency of operating expenditure Fluctuations in the price
of metals and minerals, such as gold and copper have aiso
mpacted mining customer spending

Such dechnes in the tevels of customer spending as a resuft
of a reduction in commodity prices could negatively impact
our operations Any delay deferral or size reduction iy our

customers projects may restrict the opportunities available
to us for organic growth and the achuevernent of our targets
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Risk factors continued

Adverse changes in macro-economic. market and other
conditions could result In the impairment of goodwll

and other intangible assets.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more often if

an event or circumstance indicates that it may be impaired
Other intangible assets are tested for impawment whenever
there is anndicatian of iImpairment Animpairment test s an
assessment of whether the carrying amount of an asset can he

supported by the net present value of the future cash flows that

are expected to be derved from it esther by use 1n the business

or from sale Animpatrment test requires management to make

certain cntical assumptions including future sales volumes
profit margins and long-term growth rates and to determine an
appropriate discount rate to apply to the estimated cash flows
Other factors that may affect revenue and profitabinty (for

exampte, intensifying competition pncing pressures regulatory

changes and other industry developments) are also cansidered
Discount rates are based on current yields on government
bonds, the level of which may change substantsally from period
te perod and which may be affected by political and economic
developments which are beyond our control

An imparment loss 1S recognised if the carrying value of the
asset 1s not supported by net present value of the cash flows
expected to be denved from it Whilst an impairment loss does
not i itself affect cash flows 1t may be an indication that future
cash flows wilt dechine Moreover any significant impairment
in the carrying value of goodwill may indicate an associated
impasrment in the refated investment held by the parent
company No assurance can be given that any such future
impairmenit loss in the parent company would not affect the
Company s distributable reserves and therefore our ability to
pay dividends to our shareholders
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Faflure to meet customer expectations on project delivery
could resuit In damage to our reputation and/or loss of
repeat business and potentially lead to litigation.

Many of the contracts which we enter into with our customers
are long term and may contain iquidated damages clauses
refating to en tirne delivery and/or kquidated damages relating
to performance and/or hability in respect of unhquidated
damages A number of factors including failure to follow

best practice guidehnes could mean that projects are not
delivered to time, cost, quality or appropriate health safety and
environmental standards and therefore do not meet customer
expectations or the expectations of the relevant third party
Any failure to deliver In accordance with customer expectations
could subject us to damages and/or reduce cur margins

on these contracts Failure to meet customer expectations
may also result in disputes or htigation cancelled contracts
additignal costs incurred in excess of current contract
provisions, or back-charges for alleged breaches of warranty
and other contract commitments

Damage to reputation or loss of repeat business as a result
of our faillure to rmeet our customers expectations could
negatively impact cur ability to win new contracts in the future

Long-term contracts may be subjact to early termination,
variation or non-renewal provisions.

We enter into long-term contracts with customers which

are performed over a penod that may exceed two years

Such contracts may be termunated earlier than expected
either within the relevant notice periods or upon default or
non performance by ourselves which may result in additional
costs if adequate compensation is not recesved

Projects included in our order book may be dalayed

or cancelled.

Changes in project scope or schedule create uncertanty as
to the portion of orders that can be performed or the amount
of revenue that will be recogmsed in any given year Customers
may also not be able to secure the necessary financing and
approvals tor ther projects, which could result 1n a delay or
cancetlation of the proposed project Even where a project
proceeds as scheduled 15 posstble that contracted parties
may default and taill to pay amounts owed Furthermore
fluctuations in currency exchange rates may affect the value
of the order book As a result of these uncertainties, the order
book may not be a reliable mdicator of our future revenue

or profitability

Amec Foster Whesler
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Lump sum contracts are more subject to unanticipated
modifications, technical problems and delays.

Lump sum contracts carry different risks than rermbursable
coniracts because the selling price of the project 1s agreed
based on estimates at the ime the contractor enters into the
contract and the contractor assumes a greater proportion of
the nsks assocwated with completing the project n particular
in the EPC contracts in which we engage, the contractor often
assumes the nisk of variations frorm onginal contract projections
due to engineering design changes or project modifications
that the contractor has to make after submutting its tender
There may also be unanticipated technical problems with

the equipment being supplied or developed by the contractor
changes in the costs of companents, matenals or labour,
difficulties i obtaining required governmental peromts or
approvals changes in labour condihions and other unexpected
delays or costs We may incur a loss on contracts that are
subject to these amendments if we are unable to abtain a
vanation of the contract or are not sufiiciently reimbursed for
the costs incurred as a result of these changes or modifications

We may lose key management or face difficulty In
attracting and retaining appropriately skilled personnel,
Our future success s dependent on our ability to attract and
retain key management and suitably qualified people to execute
our projects Despite the change in market conditions in some
of the markets in which we operate there Is still a scarcity of
resources far certain key positions and ongoing competition

for switably qualilied and expenenced personnel fromother
companies and organisations

White we may have apprognately qualihied and experienced
personnel we may find it diflicult to move them between
projects and regions and this could impact our abdity to meet
obligations under our contracts

Sermor management departures or prolonged absences key
personnel shortages and diffrculties in relocating our personnel
could adversely affect cur ability to implement our strategy and
manage cur operations efficiently

Amec Foster Whesler
Annual report and sccounts 2015

Failure to comply with health, safety and environmenta!
laws may result in losses

We are subject to numerous laws, regulations and policies
concerning the protection of health safety and the
environment such as those concerning the use and production
of waste and by-products considered to be hazardous under the
environmenta! laws and regulations of the unsdictions in which
we operate including nuclear and other low-level radicactive
materials, the remediation of environmental contamination
waste water and waste disposal or that otherwise relate to
environmental protection Failure to comply with such laws
regulations and policies could potenhally lead to reputational
darnage fines htigation and claims for compensation,

which can be substantial Such faifure may also result in the
withdrawal or suspension of hcences and permits or we may
be forced to undertake extensive remedial clean-up actonor to
pay for government-ordered remedial ¢lean-up actions evenin
cases where such hazards have been caused by third parties

We may be subject to iabilities for ervironmental
contarmunation as an owner or operator {or former owner

or operator) of a facility or as a generator of hazardous
substances without regard to negligence or fault Qur clean
energy bustness s nvolved in providing services to operators
and utiities in the full lifecycle of nuclear energy from new
build and reactor support to nuclear decommissioring and the
management of radioactive and hazardous matenials We could
therefore, be exposed to nsks associated with the nuclear
industry and the impact of nuclear regulation As part of any
contract invoiving work or services at or in connechon with
nuclear facihties, we typically require an indemnity in respect
of nuclear hability from our customers Where an indemeity

15 not provided, international nuclear conventions such as the
Paris Convention and the Vienna Convention protect us against
liability previded that our contracting entity 1s registered in a
country which s a signatory of the relevant convention In cases
where our customers are not prepared to provide an indemnity
of this nature and no protection 1s provided by internatianal
convention we may be required to bear the ¢ost of such
habilities in addition to any reputational damage

Changes 1n emaronmental laws and regulations remediation
obligations enforcement actions stricter interpretations of
existing requirements future discovery of cantarmination or
claims tor damages to persons property natural resources
or the environment could result in unanticipated material
costs and habilities
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Risk factors continued

A major safety Incident could lead to reputationa!l damage
and Increase potertial hizbilrties.

We are invglved in activities and environments that can be
dangerous and that have the potential to cause serious mjury
to personnel or damage to property or the environment Qur
projects are increasingly complex and place employees and
others near large equipment, dangerous processes highly
regulated matenals or in remote and challenging environments
We are respansible for the safety and security of our employees
travelhing on company business and while working at project
sites and of third-party personnel while working at project

sites under our superviston, and accordingly must implement
safety procedures

Failure to cornply with such precedures may cause us to be
subject to losses and liabiity under chent contracts or statutory
regulations Any failure in health and safety performance

whuch results in a major or sigreficant health and safety or
environmental incident 1s likely to result in additional costs

in terms of potential habilities or remediation costs Such
failure could generate sigmhcant adverse publicity resulting

in employee turnover and damage to our reputation which

may adversely impact our ability to win new business

Faiture or security breaches of our IT systems and/or

data secunty may result in losses.

We are dependent on the eflicient operation of our IT systems
Such systemns may fail and/or sensitive data held by them

may be lost Informatron and commumnication systems are

by their nature susceptible to internal and external security
breaches, including computer hacker and cyber terronst
breaches emplayee witful breaches and the risk of employees
succumbig to criminal scammung from external sources, and
can fall or become unavailable for a significant period of time

A significant performance failure of the Group's IT systerns could
lead to loss of control over catical business project information
and/or systems (such as design tools contract costs invoicing,
payroll management and/or internal reporting) resulting man
adverse impact on the ability to operate effectively or to fullit
contractual cbligations Such fallure may i turn, lead to a loss
of customers revenue and profitabiity and the incurning of
sigmficant remedial costs

Qur operations are especially dependent on the use of internal
data and customer data We have incurred and will continue to
Incur expenses to comply with mandatory privacy and secunty
standards and protocols imposed by law regulation industry
standards or contractual obligations relating to the collection
use and security of personal information data Faifure to comply
with such data privacy laws and regulations may result in fines,
penalhes claims and reputational damage Additionally « data
security controls fail there s a nisk that we will unintentionally
disclose protected or sensitwe data including important
ntellectual property which could lead to the wiolation of client
confidentiahty agreements reputational harm and the loss of
cnitical data
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Failure to comply with anti-corruption laws and
regulations, economic sanction programmes ar other laws
and regulations may result in us becoming subject to fines
or penaltias and the disruption of our business activities.
Many of the countries in which we operate have anti-corruption
laws and regulations that restrict the offer or payment of
anythmng of value to government officials or other persons with
the intent of gaiming business or favourable government action
We are subject to these laws and regulations mncluding the US
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 and the UK Bribery Act
2010 Addtonally economic sanclions orogrammes, including
those administered by the United Natrons the EU and the US
Office of Foreign Asset Control restrict our business dealings
with certain sanctioned countries Many of these regulations and .
sanchons programmes establish record-keeping obhigations :

We are exposed to the nsk of vidlating anti corruption laws

and sanctions regulations apphcable in those countries where
we our partners or agents operate Some of the locations in
which we currently operate lack a developed legal system, have
highievels of corruption and have proven to be susceptibte to
the occurrence of fraud Whilst we mandate compliance with
relevant policies laws and regulations (including ant-corruption
laws) and have implemented procedures and controls to
monitor internal and external comphance there canbe no
assurance that our palicies and procedures will be followed

at all times or will effectively detect and/or prevent violations
of the applhcable laws or other fraudulent actiwity by one or
maore of our employees consultants subcontractors agents
or partners

Viglations of anti corruption laws and sanctions regulations

are punishable by civil penalties including fines, dermal of

export priviteges mpjunctions asset seizures debarment from

government contracts (and termunation of existing contracts)

and revocations or restrictions of icences, as well as criminal

fines and imprisonment In addition any major violations of

policy law or reguiation (ncluding nstances of fraud) could

have a significant impact on our reputation and conseguently

on our ability to win future business |

Ammec Ferster Wheeler
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Funding risks in relation to defined benefit pension
schemes.

We operate a number of defined benefit pension schemes
where careful judgement 15 required in determining the
assumptions for future salary and pension mcreases (for those
plans that are not frozen) discount rate inflation investment
return and member longevity We expect to continue to operate
these schemes aithough the most significant schemes are now
closed Based on our current assumptions we expect that we
will be able to fund these pension schemes without seeking
recourse to additional external financing Actual cutcomes
could, however differ from our assumptions For example a
prolonged period of lower than expected asset returns and/

ar unexpected increases in longewity could create or worsen

a funding shortfall on one or more of the schemes 1n which
orcumstances we may agree or be required to make additronal
cash contributions to the schemes to eliminate the funding
shortfall It sigrificant such additional contributions may
constramn our ability to invest in acquisstions or undertake
capital expenditure, thereby adversely impacting our growth
and profitability

If the actual number ani/or cost to the Group of resotving
asbestos-retated claims s higher than expected. thera
may be an adverse effect on our cash flows and our results
to the extent that the addrtional cost 1s not covered by
insurance, or expected insurance reccveries are not,

in fact, realised

Certain of the company $ subsidiaries have been named

as defendants in numerous lawsuits and out-of-court
administrative claims in which the plaintiffs claim damages for
alleged bodily injury or death ansing from exposure to asbestos
pnmarnily m connection with asbestos placed by others on
steam generating units and auxiiary equipment assembled
installed and/or sold by those subsidiaries In the US certain
former Foster Wheeler subsidianies have received claims
alleging personal injuries due to contracting work performed
by them and more rarely from exposure to asbestos containing
components installed in their steam generating umits and
auxibary equipment We expect that these subsidiaries will be
named as defendants \n additwnal and/or similar suits and
that new claims will be filed in the future Whilst some of these
claims have been and are expected to be made in the UK, the
overwhelming majority have been and are expected to be made
n the US

We have provided for the estimated indemmity amaunts 2nd
defence costs that we expect to incurin relation to open and
expected future asbestos related claims in each year in the
penad to 2050 We have also recognised the estimated future
recoveries under our Insurance arrangements agatnst the costs
of resolving these clams

It 1s possible that the actual number of future claims brought
against us and the cost of resolving pending and future claims
could be substantially higher than expected due to a number
of factors which include

» an Increase In the rate at which new claims are filed and
increases in the number of new clamants

» adverse changes in the mix of diseases alleged to be suffered
by the claimanis

Amec Faster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2015

» adverse changes in the mix of clamants making allegations

» increases in indemnity payments or defence costs associated
with asbestos-related claims

» decreases in the proportion of ctaims dismissed with zero
indemnity payments

» iIndemnity payments being required to be made sooner
than expected

» adversa fluctuations in the discount rate (eg the 30-year
US Treasury rate) used to discount the provision for
asbestos refated claims and related insurance recovenes

» adverse changes to forecasting estimation or valuation
assumptions or methodologies (whether related to potential
habilities, claims and/or associated costs)

» payment of damages in armounts greater than expected

» adverse changes inlegislative or judicial standards govermng
the filing, handhng or resolution of asbestos-related clams

Whilst certain of these claims are covered by insurance the
settlements that we made with our insurers were sometimes
for fixed monetary amounts and/or provide cover only for
claims made before a specified future date Accardingly a
future increase in the Group s asbestos-refated habibies would
not result in an equivalent increase in the amount recoverable
from those insurers It s 2150 passible that insurance recoveries
may not be realised in tull and on time or at all due to insurer
insolvency or for some other reason To the extent that any
defence and/or indemmity costs incurred by us for open and
expected future ashestos-related claims are not covered by
insurance proceeds we would be responsible for the payment
of those costs which would adversely affect our cash flows

Obhigations and Liabiities relating to divested

and non-core busmesses.

We rernain at risk to potential itigation and business ctaims

in relation to divested and non-core businesses where we

have provided customary warranties to the purchaser or have
continuing obligations such as to carry out environmental
remediation Where appropriate we have made provision for
these obligations but it 15 possible that the actual costs incurred
in setthng any claims will matenally exceed those provisions

We may face risks ansing out of our ongowng portfolio review
In particular we may be unable to find purchasers for assets
or businesses to he disposed and we may not be able to meet
the targets associated with our disposal programme  Activities
ansing from the ongoing pertfolio review and any subsequent
disposals will require additional time of key management, as
well as additional hinancial resources To the extent that we are
unable to proceed with the portiolio review and any disposals on
the basis or the ime frame we expect or further management
or financial resources are required to carry out those activities
it may have a negatve tmpact on the Group
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Performance measures

We assess the financial performance of our businesses using a vanety of measures Certain of these measures are particularly
important and we have termed them key performance indicators We refer to these measures in the strategic report and use themin
presentations toinvestors In this section, we explain the relevance to us of each of these measures and show how they are calculated

Same of these measures are non |FRS measures because they exclude amounts that are included in, or include amounts that are
excluded from, the most directly comparable measure calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS or are calculated using
financial measures that are not calculated in accordance with IFRS We do not regard these non-IFRS measures as a subslitute for
or supenor to the eguivalent measures calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS and it should be noted that they may
not be comparable with similarly titled measures used by other comparxes

Profitability measures

Management uses three measures of profitability that are not recogrused measures under IFRS trading profit trading margin
and adjusted proht before tax Each of these measures 1s based on an IFRS measure of profit but excludes specific items whose
nclusion in the IFRS measure unders the companison of the trading performance of our businesses from one period to another
with each other or with these of our compehilors

Management has identified the following specific items that are excluded in arriving at these non-|FRS measures exceptional
tems the amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and asbestos-related costs (net of insurance recoveries)

Exceptional items are iterns of income and expense that are material by therr size incidence or nature and may include, but

are not restricted to acquisition-related costs, restructuring costs gatns and losses on the disposa! of fixed assets and gains

and losses on the disposal or closure of businesses Acquisition-related costs may include transaction costs (including external
adwvisory legal valuation and other professional fees and attributable internal costs) the amortsation of acquisitton-related
facility fees payments to seling shareholders that are accounted for as remuneration and changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration Exceptional tems that were recogrused in continuing operations are analysed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statemants

Trading profit trading margin and adjusted profit before tax exclude items that can have a significant effect on the Group s profit
orloss and should therefore be used in comunction with and not as a substitute for the equivalent IFRS measures Management
compensates for these imitations by separately monitoring the items that are exctuded from the equivalent IFRS measures tn
caleulating these non-iFRS measures

Trading profit

Trading profit represents profit before net financing expense excluding exceptional items the amortisation and impawrment of
intangible assets, and asbestos-related costs {net of insurance recoveries) Trading profit includes the Group 5 share of the trading
profit of joint ventures

Trading profit i1s the measure used by management to assess the trading perfermance of the Group s individual businesses and 1s the
measure of segment profit that we present under IFRS Trading profit ts a non-IFRS measure when presented on a consolidated basis

s 2014 20

Continuing operations

(Loss)/profit before net financing expense (205) 148 243
Intangibles amortisation and imparrment 444 49 47
Net ashestos retated (income)/casts Q3) 8 -
Exceptional items 108 94 25
Share of trading profit of joint ventures 40 22 28
Trading profit 374 321 343

Trading margin
Trading margin represents trading prohit expressed as a percentage of revenue

Trading margenis a nen IFRS measure that 1s used by management to measure the success of our businesses In managing their
cost base and improving profitability

Emunleas tisted ctherwe 03 2018 2013
Continuing operations

Revenue 5,455 3993 3974
Trading profit 74 a2 343
Trading rnargm 6.9% 80% 86%
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Adjusted profit before tax

Adjusted profit before tax represents profit before tax before exceptional items the amortisation and impairment of intangible
assets asbestos-related costs and interast expense (net ot insurance recoveries), and the Group s share of tax on the results
of joint ventures

Adjusted profit before tax 1s a non-IFRS measure that 1s used by management to assess the trend inthe Group's overall prolitability
.

2015 201 200
n Em i
Continuing operations
(Loss)/profit before tax (239) 155 255
Intangibles amortisation and impairment 444 49 a7
Net asbestos related expense {income)/costs {6) 9 -
Exceptional tems 11 98 25
Share of income tax of joint ventures 10 6 5
Adjusted profit before tax 334 317 332

Cash flow measures

Traching cash flow {previously aperating cash flow)

Trading cash flow represents cash generated from operations before cash flows arising from exceptional items asbestos-related
payments (net of nsurance recovertes) the difference between retirement benefit contrnibutions and the current service cost
legacy settlements and discontinued operations and currency translation differences on workeng capital but including dwidends
received from joint ventures

Trading cash flow 15 a non-{FRS measure which 15 an indicator of the Group s abilsty to generate cash fromits continuing operations
before taking into account exceptional items and the servicing of long-term obligations and the settlement of legacy 1ssues

2014 2013
£m im

2ma
Cash generated from operations 220
Net asbestos-related payments 22
Excess of pension contributions over current service cost 3
Cash outflow on exceptional items 72
Legacy settlements and discontinued operations 36 9 14
Currency translation ditferences Q9
Amortisation of finance arrangement fees 12
Dmvidends received from joint ventures 42
388

Trading cash flow

Cash conversion
Cash conversion represents trading cash flow expressed as a percentage of trading prefit Cash conversionis a non-IFRS measure
that we use as a measure of the efficiency of qur businesses in converting their trading resutts into cash

£m unless $tated otherwrse a;ms 204 2013
Trading cash flow 388 283 341
Trading profit 374 321 343
Cash conversion 104% BB% 99%
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Performance measures continued

Other measures

Underlying change in revenue

Management uses the underlying change in revenue to measure the organic growth of our businesses relative to each other
to our markets and to our competitors

We define the underlying change as the year-on-year change excluding the effect of flow-through procurement acquisitions
and disposals of businesses and currency exchange rate movements

Underlying change - 2015 compared with 2014
e

20H Cunrency Undertyng Underlyng
proforme charge 2015 change
£m £m im Em m %

Continuing operations
Americas 2.705 34 - {93) 2646 3%
NECIS 1705 @ 16 (227) 1,492 13%
AMEASE 1031 29) 27 21 1050 +1%
GPG 454 2 - 92) 364 -20%
Investment Services 16 - - )] 15 -
Intercompany ehrmnations (i - - I (12) -
5800 5 43 (393) 5,455 7%

Adjusted diluted EPS

Adjusted dituted earnings per share represents profit for the year from continuing operations before exceptionalitems, the
amortisation and imparment of intangible assets asbestos-related costs and interest expense (net of insurance recovenes),
and the tax effect of those items divided by the dituted number of ordinary shares

Growth in adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations 1s an indicator of the underlying trend in the Group s abihity to generate
earnings and may be useful to investors n assessing the value of the Company s ordinary shares (for example by way of price
earnings multiples)

Whilst IFRS does not define any adjusted EPS measures the presentation of such measures is permmitted in financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS Accordingly reconcihations of adjusted diluted EPS to diluted EPS from continuing operations
for each per:od presented are ncluded in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements

Diidend cover
Omdend cover 1s a non-IFRS measure that represents adjusted diluted EPS from conbinuing operations as a muttiple of the
dividend per ordinary share

Whilst dividend ¢over 1s an indicator of the sustainabihity of future dividend payments in the context of the Group s underlying
trading performance we can only pay dividends to the extent of the Company s accumulated distributable reserves

s 2014 201
Drvidend per ordinary share 29.0p* 433p 420p
Adjusted diluted EPS from contimung operations 62.7p 795p 87 2p
Dvidend cover 2.3x 18x 2 1x

1 Includes the proposed hnal dvidend tor 2015 of 14 2p per ordinary share

Crder book
Cur order book represents the total remaining value of secured projects to be executed up to any break point in the relevant
contracts Contracts are included tn our ocder book only when they are signed and we do not include contracts won by joint ventures

Cur arder book and orcer intake are significant indicators of our future revenues As at 31 December 2015, our order book was
£66bn (2014 £6 3bn) We discuss significant recent contract wins in the strategic report on page 16
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Prior year operating results

Reported under IFRS
- .

Em anless stated e porik] Change
Continuing operations

Revenue 3,993 3974 0%
Profit before net

linancing expense 148 243 -39%
Profit before tax 155 255  -39%
Cash flow from

operations 200 292 -32%
Oiluted earmings

per share 35.1p 62 5p -44%
Dividend per share 433p* 420p +3%

1 Includes the proposed final dwidend for 2014 of 28 Sp per ordinary share

Adjusted measures
|

Uncerlyryg

£m unlass stated 2004 2013 Change change®
Continuing operations
Scope revenue! 3920 3854 +2% +1%6
Trading profit? 32 343 -6%
Trading margin? 8.2% 89% -70bps
Adjusted prolit before tax* 317 332 5%
Trading cash flow® 283 341 1%
Cash conversion® 88% 99% -110ps
Adjusted dituted

earnings per share’ 79.5p 872p 9%

1 Scope revenue represents reported revenue less flow through procurement
reven.ue

2 Trading profit represents profit before net financing expense batore the
amartisation of intangible assets asbestos related costs (net of insurance
recoveries) and exceptional tems but mcluding the Group s share of the
trading profit of joint ventures

3 Trading margwin represents tradmg profit expressed as a percentage of
scope revenue

4 Adpsted prof before tax represents prolit before tax before exceptional
tems the amortisation of intangihle assets asbestos relsted costs and
interest expense (net of insurance recoveries) and the Group s share of tax
an the results of jomt ventures

5 Trading cash tlow represents cash generated from operations before
cash flows ansing from exceptional tems asbestos related payments
(net of msurance recoveries) the difference between retrement benghit
contnbutions and the current service eost legacy sattlements and
discontinued operations and currency translation differences on working
c2pital but mchuding dividends recenved from joint ventures

6 Cash conversion represents trading cash flow expressed as a percentage
of trading profit

7 Adiusied diuted earnmgs per share represents profi for the year from
continuing cperations belore exceptional tems the amortisation of
intangible assets asbestas related costs and nterest expense {net of
msurance recoveries) and the tax effect of those items dreded by the
dijuted number of ordinary shares

8 Undertying change excludes the etiect of flow-through procurement
Ecquisitions and dispasals of businesses and cusrency exchange
rate movements

Amec Foster Wheeler
Arewsti report and acecunts 2015

Revenuo
Revenue for the year was broadly unchanged compared with
last year at £3993m (2013 £3,974m)

Revenue declined by £175m in the Americas and by £108m
Europe but increased by £54m in the Growth Regions Revenue
from Ol & Gas was down 13%, Mining was down 14% and E&1
down 3% but revenue from Clean Energy was up 11% Revenue
in all markets was adversely affected by the strength of sterling
particularly against the US dollar Overall currency exchange
rate movements reduced revenue by £238mn 2014 compared
with 2013

Foster Wheeler contnibuted £274m ta the Group s revenue
during the last seven weeks of the year following its acquisition
in November 2014

Flow-through procurement decreased by £47m 1o £73m
(2013 £120m)

Excluding flow-through procurement the effect of acquisitions
and currency movements underlying revenue increased by 1%
Underlying revenue from Ol & Gas was down 5% and that from
Mtring down 6% but Clean Energy was up 16% and E&I was
up 5%

Seasonality

The Group s revenue 15 generally higher in the second half of
the year principally because weather conditions in the northern
hemisphere are typically more conducive to project activity

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were £354m (2013 £293m), including
exceptional items, intangibles amortisation and asbestos-
related costs (net of insurance recoveres) totalling £135m
{2013 £65m)

Administrative expenses before intangibles amortisation
excephional iterns and net asbestos-related costs declined by
4% to £219m (2013 £228m} principally due to the wmpact
of currency movements and reduced share-based payment
charges Also determined on this basis Foster Wheeler s
administrative expenses following its acquisition were £26m

Corporate costs which comprise the costs of operating central
corporate functions and certain regional overheads were £4m
lower at £31m (2013 £35m)

Profit before net financing expanse

Profit before net inancing expense was significantly lower at
£148m (2013 £243m) largely due to exceptional costs incurred
during 2014 1n relation to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler
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Prior year operating results continued

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
intangible assets principally comprise goodwill and identfiable
ntangible assets that were recogmsed in relation to acquired
businesses Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s subject to an
annual imparment test No imparrment was recogrised in
either 2014 or 2013

Intangsbles amortisation was £49m (2013 £47m) Whilst an
additional amortisation expense of £11m was recognised an

the intangible assets acquired with Foster Wheeler and there
was the full-year amortisation of intangible assets recogrmsed

in acquisitrons ¢cormpleted in 2013 the year-on-year change was
reduced because the amortisation expense in 2013 included the
accelerated amortisation of certain intangible assets We expect
the full-year impact of the amortisation of intangible assels
acquired with Foster Wneeler to be approximately £85m

Asbhestos-related casts (net of insurance recoveries)
During 2014 the Group recogrised net asbestos-related costs
of £8m (2013 £nd) in profit before net linancing expense which
largely related to the reduction between the acquisition date
and the year-end date in the discount rate applied to the net
asbestos-related liabihties assumed on the acquisition of Foster
Wheeler In addition the Group recognised an asbestos related
interest expense of £1m (2013 £nil)

Exceptional items

Net exceptional costs totalling £98m (2013 £25m) were
recognised (n arriving at profit before tax from continuing
operations as follows

» costs of £41m in relation to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler
(inctuding transaction costs of £37m within administrative
expenses and acquisition-related facibity fees amortisation
of £4m within net financing expense)

» costs of £35m relating to the integration of AMEC and Foster
Wheeler {including internal staft costs associated with
wdentfying and achieving cost synergies)

» costs of £6m incurred In completing the restructuring of
AMEC's business onto a geographical basis

+» a net loss of £16m on the exit of businesses, compnising a
loss of £21m on businesses sold in the year (principally the
reverse premrum payable on exit from the Group s investment
in the Lancashure Waste project) which was partially offset by
again of £5m on the release of a provision no longer required
i respect of a business closed 1n a previous year
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Trading profit and trading margin
- ]

Undheriying
Emuniess sisted w0 200 Crangs change!
Revenue 3,993 3,974 0%
Flow-through
procurement (73 (120)
Scope revenue! 3920 3854 +2% +1%
Proht before net
financing expense 148 243
Intangtbles
amortisation 49 47
Net asbestos-related
cosls 8 -
Exceptignal items 94 25

Share of trading proht

of joint ventures 22 28

Trading profit! k¥ | 343 6%
Trading margin! 8.2% 89% 70bps
Order book £63bn  £41bn +55%

1 Non IFRS measure (see Pertormance measures on pages 172 to 174)

Trading profit decreased by 6% to £321m (2013 £343m)
Trading margin decreased by 70 basis pomnts to 8 2%
(2013 89%)

In Amenicas trading profit fell due to the impact of currency
translation and lower levels of activity in Oil & Gas and Mining
bemng partially offset by increased wark in Clean Energy
Trading margin dechined partially due to this change in market
mix towards lower margin Clean Energy and because of the
timing of large contract close-outs which were particularty
favourable in 2013 In Europe trading profit and trading margmn
both ncreased compared wrth 2013 largely as a result of the
nan-recurrence of the losses from the Teesside Gas Processing
Plant contract in the Growth Regions trading prolit fell due

to the impact of currency translatign and a lower contripution
from Clean Energy and E&I Compared with 2013, Growth
Regions trading margin fell due to pricing pressure from
customers and investment for growth

Currency exchange rate movements reduced trading profit
by £22mn 2014 compared with 2013

Arnec Foster Whetler
Anruai regort and sctounts 2015




Net financing expense

Net financing expense was £5m (2013 £2m} inctuding net
bank interest payable of £7m (2013 £2m) net foreign exchange
lasses of £ril {2013 E£1m), and net interest income on pension
assets and habilities of £2m (2013 £1m) In 2014 net financing
expense also included a net expense of £1m (2013 £ril) due

to the unwanding of the discount on asbestos-related habilies
(net of insurance recoveries)

A net currency exchange loss of £4m (2013 loss of £1m)

was recogrised in the translation reserve in respect of foreign
currency borrowings and dernvatives held in designated net
investment hedging relationships

Share of results of joint ventures
The Group's share of joint ventures profit for the year was £12m
(2013 £14m)

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was £155m (2013 £255m) after intangibles
amortisation of £49m (2013 £47m) net asbestos-related costs
and interest expense of £9m (2013 £rul) exceptional tems of
£98m (2013 £25m) and the Group s share of joint ventures

tax expense of £6m (2013 £5m)

Adjusted profit before tax was 5% lower at £317m
(2013 £332m) reflecting the overall dechine in the Group s
trading performance in 2014 compared with 2013

Taxation

Qur tax policy 1s to manage our cbhgattons in comphance
with all relevant tax laws, disclosure requirements and
regulations We seek to ensure that our approach to tax and
the tax payments that we make in all territones in which we
have operations are fully consistent with local requirements
taking into account avallable tax incentives and allowances
and are aligned with the Group's wider business strategy
We seek to develop good open workeng relationships with tax
authorities and to engage with them proactvely recogmsing
that tax legislation can be complex and may be subject to
ditfering mterpretations

During 2014 there was a tax credit on exceptional items of
£6m (2013 tax charge of £6m) and a tax credit of £12mon
mtangibles amortisation (2013 £20m) In addition there was
an exceptional tax charge of £16min 2013

The Group's share of joint ventures income tax expense was
£6m (2013 £5m)

The Group s effective tax rate on continuing operations
(including its share of joint ventures” Income tax expense

but before exceptional items mtangibles amortisation and
asbestos related items) increased to 23 0% (2013 21 9%)
The tincrease princpally reflected reduced prior peniod credits
which result from agreement of historical items with various
tax authorities In addition 2013 included a credit following
areduction in the tax rate apphed to the UK pension surplus
which was notl repeated in 2014

H
g
i

andg aetourts 2015

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Profit for the year from continuing cperations was £106m
(2013 £186m) after mtangibles amortisation of £49m (2013
£47m) the net asbestos related expense of £9m (2013 £nil)
net exceptional itens of £98m (2013 £25m), and an income
tax credit on those items of £18m (2013 charge of £2m)

Adjusted profit for the year from continuing operations was
6% lower at £244m (2013 £260m)

Non-controiling interests
During 2014 there was aloss of £3m attributable to non-
controling interests (2013 loss of £1m)

Earnings par share

Diluted EPS was 26 Sp (2013 59 8p), compnising earnings per
share of 35 1p (2013 62 5p) from continuing operations and
aloss of 8 6p (2013 2 7p) from discontinued operations

Adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations was lower at
795p (2013 87 2p) due to the decline in the profit for the year
trom continuing operations and the increase in the number

of shares in 1ssue as a consequence of the acquisihion of
Foster Wheeler

Dividend

The board recommends a inal dividend of 28 5p per share
which together with the interim dividend of 14 Bp per share
results in a total dividend of 43 3p per share (2013 42 Op) an
increase of 3% Subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM
on 14 May 2015 the final dwvidend will be payable on 2 Juty 2015
to shareholders on the register at the close of business on

29 May 2015

Dividend cover for 2014 1s1 8 times (2013 2 1times) based
on adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations Gaing
forward, the board expects to mantain a progressive dividend
policy whilst maimtaiming dividend cover at around two times
adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations
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Prior year operating results continued

Results by operating segment

Amercas
|
Lmunless sated 2004 00 Change m
Revenue 2,072 2 247

Flow-through

procurement {73) (12Q)

Scope revenue! 1999 2127 -6% +4%
Profit before net

financing expense 195 21

Intangibles

amortisation 17 18

Exceptional stems (6) 10

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 1 2

Trading profit! 207 241 -14%

Trading margin 102%  113% -110bps

Order book EL2bn £14bn 14%

1 Nen tFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 172 to 174)

Revenue in Amenicas was £2 072m (2013 £2 247m) a decline
of 8% Excluding flow-through procurement the effect of
acquisitions and currency movements underlying revenue was
up 4% Growth inunderlying revenue n Clean Energy and E&I
was partially offset by dechnes in Qil & Gas and Mining

Trading proht fell by 14% to £207m (2013 £24lm) largely as a
result of the reduced levels of activities in Oil & Gas and Mining
Trading margin was 10 2% down by 110 basis points compared
with 2013 Trading margin dechned principally due to increased
weighting of lower-margin Clean Energy in the product mix
and due to the iming of large contract close-outs which were
particularty favourable in 2013
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Europe

- - |
Underkang

£m uniess ststed 04 2013 Change changa’

Revenue 1119 1.227 -9% -8%

Profit before net

tinancing expense 70 63

intangibles

amortisation 17 17

Exceptional tems 3 1

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 12

Trading prohit! 101 93 +8%

Trading margin! 91% 76% +150bps

Order book £18hn  £17bn +3%

1Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 172 ta 174)

Revenue 1n Europe fell by 9% to £1,119m (2013 £1 227m),
primanty due to the reduced level of il & Gas actvity in the
North Sea Underlying revenue dechined by 8%

Trading prohit increased by 9% to £101m (2013 £93m) Trading
margin was 9 19 up 150 basis points compared with 2013
largely as a result of the non recurrence of losses from the
Teesside Gas Processing Plant

Growth Regions

- ]
Undertyng

Em unless stated 014 2013 Change change!

Revenue 590 536  +10% +18%

Profit before net

financing expense 20 10

intangibles

amortisation 4 12

Exceptional items 2 7

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 4 4

Tradng profit! 30 33 -9%

Trading margin’ 51% 62% -110bps

Order book £09bn £09bn

1 Non-IFRS measure (see Pertormance measures on pages 172 to 174)

Revenue in Growth Regions improved by 10% to £590m
(2013 £536m) pnmanly driven by increased revenue from
Ol & Gas activihies in the Middle East and a partial recovery
in Miming revenue in Australia Underlying revenue increased
by 18% principally due to the exclusion of adverse currency
exchange rate moverments

Trading profit fell by 9% ta £30m (2013 £33m) reflecting lower
contributions from Clean Energy and E&I Trading margin was
51% down 110 bas:s points compared with 2013 due to pricing
pressure from customers and investment for growth

Arnic Fosiar Wheester
Anna! report and accounts 2015




EAC Services and Global Power Group

E&C Serwices and Global Power Group are Foster Wheeler
business units and therefore contributed to the Group's
performance only for the final seven weeks of the year fallowing
the acquisitian of Foster Wheeler in November 2014

E&C Services contributed revenue of £221m and a trading
profit of £4m (before intangibles amortisation of £7m)

As at 31 December 2014 the value of E&C Services order
book was £2 Obn

Global Power Group contributed revenue of £53m and a trading
profit of £2m (before intangibles amortisation of £4m) As at

31 December 2014 the value of Glaba!l Power Group s order
book was £0 4bn

Investment Services

Duning the periads under review Investment Services
pnncipally comprised the Incheon Bridge PPP project in Korea
and the Lancashire Waste progect (which the Group exited

in 2014) the Group $insurance captive the Group s wind
development activities and a range of other non-core activities

Revenue in Investment Services was £6m (2013 £6m)
tnvestment Services incurred a loss before net financing
expense of £16m (2013 £3m), after deducting an exceptional
loss on disposals of businesses of £21m (2013 Lnil} Trading
profit was £8m (2013 £1lm) of which £3m (2013 £7m) was
denved from joint ventures

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent the residual assets and
retained obligations of businesses sold in prior years together
with the UK conventional power business that was classified
as a discontinued operation during 2013

Discontinued operations generated a trading loss before
tax of £10m (2013 loss of £10m) and after a